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Page 2 Page 4
% A-P-P-EEARANGE-S 1 ANCHORAGE, ALASKA; TUESDAY, JUNE 14, 2022
For Al aska Legislative Budget & Audit Conmittee: 2 8:57 a.m.,
3 Christopher J. Slottee . . . .
Howard S. Trickey 3 called as a witness herein, being first duly sworn to
4 Schwabe W 1lianmson & Watt H
420 L Street, Suite 400 4 state the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the
5 Anchorage, Alaska 99501 5 truth, testified under oath as follows:
ool ot tee@en 6 EXAMINATION
6 csl ottee@chwabe. com
htrickey@chwabe. com 7 BY MR. SLOTTEE:
7 . .
g or Aaska Permanent Fund Corporation: 8 Q Thank you, Commissioner Mahoney. Could you
o gggorL \étvepgle?ndtSU:E;/gngog Filippi 9 state your full name for the record.
Anchorage, Al aska 99501 10 A Lucinda Mahoney.
10 907- 677- 3600 . -, .
pt aci n@l askal aw. pr o 11 Q And what is your current position with the
11
) 12 State?
For the State of Al aska Executive Branch:
12 ilezﬁi giar r';gzm 13 A Commissioner of the Department of Revenue.
13 Assi stant Attorneys General 14 Q Andyou also serve as a member of the Board of
State of Al ask )
14 Degaret 2em 3? faw 15 Trustees for the Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation?
Pr of essi onal Devel opnent & Public Service Section 16 A ldo
15 P.O. Box 110300 :
Juneau, A aska 99811 17 Q My name is Chris Slottee. I'm here representing
16 907- 465- 3600 0 ) . ;
j essi ca. | eeah@l aska. gov 18 the Legislative Budget & Audit Committee, who is
17 al an. bi r nbaum@l aska. gov . . . . .
18 19 conducting an investigation into the processes employed by
19 Court NBR?E"K avrik RWR 20 the Board of Trustees to evaluate the performance of the
2 ;’i“ii {v: S f'egl Regg”ig“g' LLC 21 executive director and the termination of Angela Rodell
Anchorage, Al aska 99501 22 from her position as executive director in 2021.
21 . .
22 23 I'm going to ask you some questions about that
%i 24 process and that decision. If at any time you don't
25 PACI FI C RIM REPCRTING (907) 272- 4383 25 understand what | said, either because I'm speaking too
Page 3 Page 5
1 I NDEX 1 quickly or you're not quite sure of the time frame, please
EXAM NATI ON S .
2 2 just interrupt me and say, can you be more specific, what
g CUCNDA MAHOEY PAGE | 3 time frame are you talking about. Okay?
Examination By M. Slottee ...................... 4 4 A Okay. Sounds good.
4 -
EXH Bl TS 5 Q Soyou -- you started as a commissioner or were
5 i . . H )
EXH BI T DESCRI PTI ON PAGE 6 appointed to be -- sorry -- a trustee in 2020, correct~
6 7 A Correct.
. BblL fLaska Permanent Fund Corporation Board 5 8  Q Were you part of the Governance Committee when
Policies (37 pgs.) 9 they approved the revised Board of Trustees charters and
8 Exh 2 Novenber 4, 2020 email (1 pg.) ......... 9 L
Exh 3 2020 survey responses (21 pgs.) ........ 11 10 governance policies in September of 20207
9 Exh 4 Decenber 7, 2020 email with attached ... 11 11 A Y
report (26 pgs.) es.
10 |Exh 5 Decenber 1, 2020 memp with attached .... 12 12 Q So I'm going to mark this as [Exhibit 11 I'm
sel f-evaluation (3 pgs.) . . . .
11 Bh6 Decenber 7 and 8, 2020 emmil chain ..... 15 13 going to be referring to this throughout the meeting
(1 pg.)
12 Exh 7 Decenber 6, 2021 survey sunmmary report . 32 14 tOday' S " d)
(6 pgs.) 15 (Exhibit/No. 1! marked.
13 Exh 8 Final 2021 CEO perfornance evaluation .. 37
16 BY MR. SLOTTEE:
summary results (29 pgs.)
14 Eh3 ?:JT;YFVLV‘Z)”ES)S/ ;’erfor mance evaluation .... 40 117  Q Okay. So do you recall this -- the document
15  [Exh 10 Noverber 20, 2021 emil (2 pgs.) ....... 41 18 that | gave you, which is titled Alaska Permanent Fund
Exh 11 Tweet (1 pg.) ..o 59 .
16 Bxh 12 Cal endar entries (2 pgs.) ... ..ol 67 19 Corporation Board of Trustees Charters and Governance
Exh 13 Decenber 7, 2021 emmils with attachnent 92 20 Policies?
i; (3 pos.) 21 A lrecall it, yes
;g 22 Q And this was adopted by the Board of Trustees in
21 23 20207
22 . .
23 24 A Imean, | would likely need to review the agenda
24 25 and make absolutely sure, but if -- I'm assuming that what
25 y g
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1 you are saying is accurate, so | would say yes. rases 1 that consultant in 2020 about the contents of the survey? Page®
2 Q It has a date of September 24, 2020. 2 A I'm thinking.
3 A You areright. It does. 3 Q Uh-huh.
4 Q Allright. So I'm going to turn you to page, at 4 A Idid talk to her, so I'm trying to remember
5 the bottom, page 32 of the document, or it's marked at the | 5 what | talked to her about. Yeah. Ithink I did talk to
6 bottom APFC-SWEF 111. 6 her about the survey.
7 A Page 32. Right. 7 Q Okay. What do you recall talking to her about
8 Q Yes. Andit's titled the Executive Director 8 the survey?
9 Performance Evaluation Policy? 9 A lremember reading it, and | think | asked her
10 A lseeit. 10 to add something to the survey, but I don't remember what
11 Q Okay. And so under Policy Guidelines under 11 itwas.
12 Roles and Responsibilities, the No. 4, what's paragraph 4, | 12 Q So was it the consultant who kind of prepared
13 it says, "The board may retain the services of an 13 the initial version of the survey, the survey questions?
14 independent third party to facilitate and administer the 14 A Yes.
15 performance evaluation in order to ensure the integrity 15 Q And then trustees -- at least you were asked for
16 and confidentiality of the process." 16 some input into if you had any changes or questions about
17 Do you recall discussions over, including that 17 it?
18 language in this 2020 version when this -- when this 18 A Ithink so. Yeah. That's what | recall.
19 packet of policies or charters was adopted? 19 Q Do you remember if Ms. Rodell had any -- was --
20 A No. 20 had any discussions with the consultant over the contents
21 Q Do you remember any discussion at the Board of |21 of the survey?
22 Trustees about wanting to bring in a third-party 22 A ldon't. Idon't know.
23 consultant to handle the evaluation of the executive 23 Q You weren't part of any of those conversations
24 director or -- 24 that you recall?
25 A ldon't recall the conversation in September of |25 A No, no.
Page 7 Page 9
1 2020. 1 Q I'm going to give you what's going to be marked
2 Q Okay. Allright. And then it goes on to say: 2 as Exhibit 2, which is an email from Steve Rieger to
3 The board will establish -- I'm looking at paragraph 5. 3 Lucinda Mahoney, Craig Richards, Angela Rodell and Chad
4 It says, "The board will establish a survey to provide 4 Brown dated November 4, 2020.
5 trustees with a tool for evaluating the performance of the | 5 A Okay. So do you want me to read the whole thing
6 executive director based on a number of criteria, 6 or--
7 including the following." And there is (a) through (e). 7 Q If you want to, yes.
8 Do you see that? 8 A Okay. Okay.
9 A ldo. 9 (Exhibit No. 2 marked.)
10 Q So | have a few questions I'm going to ask you 10 BY MR. SLOTTEE:
11 about that survey. 11 Q Okay. So Steve Rieger, was he a trustee at the
12 A Okay. 12 time?
13 Q So do you recall anything about hiring a 13 A Yes.
14 consultant in 2020 to help develop that survey? 14 Q Was he vice chair at the time?
15 A ldo. 15 A Yes.
16 Q Okay. What generally do you recall about that? |16 Q And then Craig Richards was a trustee at the
17 A ljust remember that a consultant was hired to | 17 time?
18 manage the process. That's it. And that's all | 18 A Yes.
19 remember. 19 Q Was he chair at that time?
20 Q Did you play any role in selecting the 20 A No.
21 consultant? 21 Q Who was chair?
22 A No. 22 A ldon't think so. Ithink at that time it was
23 Q Do you know who did? 23 Bill Moran.
24 A No. 24 Q Okay. And then Chad Brown, who was that?
25 Q Do you remember having any conversations with | 25 A He's an HR person.
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Page 10 Page 12
1 Q Soif you see the beginning of the email it 1 same survey was distributed to staff as to the board.
2 references Vicki Graham being chosen as a consultant. Do | 2 Okay. So my inclination was correct. Thank you for
3 you remember Vicki Graham? 3 providing that.
4 A ldo. 4 BY MR. SLOTTEE:
5 Q Do you remember, was it Steve Rieger's decision 5 Q And then in addition to the -- so did you --
6 to engage her, or was it a trustee -- like the entire 6 obviously this is dated December -- sorry. December 7,
7 board decided to engage her? 7 2020. Do you recall reviewing this prior to having
8 A Irecall that Steve had made a recommendation 8 executive session in 2020 to discuss Ms. Rodell's
9 that Vicki be hired to manage the process. 9 performance?
10 Q Do you remember what Vicki's credentials were or | 10 A lam sure |l did, but | don't recall.
11 why she was retained versus somebody else? 11 Q Okay.
12 A No, I don't. 12 A It's quite a while. Quite along time ago.
13 Q Okay. So if you look at the second paragraph, 13 Q Sure. Sure. And then I'm going to give you
14 it says, "Following that, Ms. Graham plans to design a 14 what's marked as Exhibit 5| which is a memo from Angela
15 questionnaire to be circulated to the six trustees, plus a 15 Rodell titled Self-Evaluation, December 1, 2019 to
16 questionnaire to be circulated to top staff and possibly 16 November 30, 2020 dated December 1, 2020.
17 also to a sample of others at the organization. She will 17 (Exhibit No. 5 marked.)
18 receive the responses confidentially and anonymize the 18 BY MR. SLOTTEE:
19 feedback." 19 Q So as part of the executive director evaluation
20 Do you recall any discussions with Ms. Graham 20 process, Ms. Rodell was provided a copy of the report on
21 about who -- which employees within APFC to include in 21 the survey, is that right? And then she was given an
22 that survey? 22 opportunity to provide a written response?
23 A No. 23 A You are talking about 2020?
24 Q Do you recall any discussions with any other 24 Q 2020, yes.
25 trustees about which employees to include in that survey? | 25 A ldon't know. | wasn'tinvolved in the process
Page 11 Page 13
1 A No. 1 itself. Ijust reviewed the outputs.
2 Q Do you recall any discussions with Ms. Rodell 2 Q Okay. So did the -- did the Governance
3 about which employees to include in that survey? 3 Committee meet prior to the executive session in 2020 to
4 A No. Idon'tthink I was involved in those, | 4 discuss the survey results and what report would be
5 mean, but I don't recall. 5 provided to the trustees?
6 Q Okay. Do you recall, was it the same 6 A ldon'trecall. | mean, | remember that we had
7 questionnaire that the -- did the trustees in 2020 receive 7 ameeting of the whole, the entire board. 1 don't recall
8 the same questionnaire/survey that the employees received? | 8 a specific governance meeting with just, like, three
9 A Yes. | believe so. There would be adocument 9 people.
10 where we could go back and look at that to be sure. 10 Q Okay. Well, if we could turn back to the
11 Q Do you want to look at the survey? 11 policies that | gave to you earlier, and if we go to
12 A Because there was something in 2020 that was 12 page 33 of that document. And so there is a title --
13 published where | could make sure that my response was | 13 there is a section called Evaluation Process, right?
14 accurate. 14 A Uh-huh.
15 Q Let me give you what we will mark as Exhibit 3, 15 Q And it starts off with: The vice chair, acting
16 which will be the 2020 survey responses. 16 as the chair of the Governance Committee, will meet with
17 (Exhibit/No. 3 marked.) 17 the executive director to review the evaluation survey and
18 BY MR. SLOTTEE: 18 criteria and agree on any changes. In 2020 that was Steve
19 Q Actually, I'm also going to give you this, which 19 Rieger, right?
20 is an email from Vicki Graham to Steve Rieger, yourself 20 A Yes.
21 and Craig Richards on December 7th with the final report 21 Q Okay. Andthen|No. 8is: Towards the end of
22 from the 2020 survey. 22 the calendar year before the fourth quarter meeting of the
23 MR. SLOTTEE: So make that as/Exhibit 4. 23 board, the vice chair will distribute a packet of
24 (Exhibit/No. 4 marked.) 24 materials to each trustee which will include either a
25 THE WITNESS: Okay. So it appears as though the |25 report from the executive director, a strategic plan and
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Page 14 Page 16
1 budget and the evaluation survey and criteria to be filled 1 A I mean, I'm reading the email that you have
2 out by the trustees, right? 2 here, and | suspect this is all there was. | don't recall
3 A That's what it says, uh-huh. 3 any verbal discussions. So we didn't meet.
4 Q Do you recall receiving the survey in 2020 and 4 Q So to your recollection, nobody objected to not
5 filling it out? 5 having a Governance Committee at the time?
6 A Yes. 6 A That's correct, because it's ultimately a vote
7 Q Andthen 9 says: The trustees should complete 7 of all the six. | mean, everybody discussed -- you know,
8 the survey and return it to the facilitator. The 8 everybody has got to talk about it, not just three.
9 facilitator will tabulate the results and present a report 9 Q Allright. Did -- to your recollection, did the
10 summarizing the results to the Governance Committee, 10 Governance Committee ever meet just as the Governance
11 together with the completed evaluation surveys. The 11 Committee to consider evaluation of Ms. Rodell's
12 committee will review the report and submit it to the 12 performance or surveys related to her performance?
13 board. 13 A No.
14 And then|No. 10 says: The board will meet in 14 Q Allright. So thenin 2021 -- | want to turn to
15 executive session to review and discuss the results of the 15 the survey process in 2021. And in 2021, the Board of
16 executive director's performance evaluation. The 16 Trustees did not use Vicki Graham or another consultant to
17 Governance Committee will prepare a draft evaluation 17 manage the evaluation process, is that right?
18 report with the executive director's assessment and 18 A That's right.
19 summary of the evaluation results attached as appendices. | 19 Q Andin 2021, were you the vice chair of the --
20 And so my questions are just kind of generally 20 vice chair at that time?
21 on the use of the Governance Committee, but | also want to | 21 A Yeah.
22 give you this before | ask you there to make sure we have |22 Q So therefore the chair of the Governance
23 full context here. 23 Committee?
24 We'll mark this as Exhibit 6/ This is an email 24 A  Yes.
25 from Steve Rieger -- it's an email chain between Steve 25 Q So were you involved in the process of
Page 15 Page 17
1 Rieger, Lucinda Mahoney and Craig Richards on December 7, | 1 developing the survey of Ms. Rodell's performance in 2021?
2 2020. 2 A Yes.
3 (Exhibit/No. 6 marked.)? 3 Q Soin 2021 why was a consultant, third-party
4 BY MR. SLOTTEE: 4 consultant, not used to facilitate that evaluation of
5 Q So | just kind of summarized the evaluation 5 Ms. Rodell's performance?
6 process as stated in the 2020 board charter package. And 6 A Ithought about it and concluded that we didn't
7 then we have this email from Steve Rieger to you and Craig 7 need the consultant because we were going to essentially
8 Richards on December 7, 2020, and particularly the second 8 use the same survey questions that she had developed. |
9 paragraph where he says: | would like to have Ms. Graham 9 am very familiar with SurveyMonkey you know, as a tool
10 circulate these review documents to all trustees 10 because we have deployed it at the Department of Revenue
11 beforehand, and we would go directly to the executive 11 several times with over 450 people potentially using the
12 session with all six trustees present without holding a 12 survey.
13 Governance Committee meeting, even though our Governance | 13 Additionally, | am just a person who is focused
14 Committee policies call for the documents to be presented 14 on saving money, and so, you know, | believe that if --
15 to the full board by the Governance Committee. 15 you know, if | compiled the survey, we could save a little
16 If you have any objection to bypassing this step 16 bit of money. Granted, it's not a lot.
17 of having a Governance Committee meeting beforehand, 17 But more importantly, my goal was to try to
18 please let me know. Otherwise, | will plan to have 18 establish a standardized annual process for these
19 Ms. Graham present -- circulate the documents to all the 19 performance reviews such that it would be like clockwork
20 trustees the following day. 20 every year. You know, we would reevaluate the questions.
21 Do you see that? 21 They are very simple to update or change in SurveyMonkey.
22 A ldo. 22 Distribute, and then the software tool compiles the
23 Q Do you recall any discussions or -- in 2020 23 results and the graphs. And it's easy.
24 around not having that Governance Committee meeting and 24 Q Sodid any of the questions in the survey change
25 just going directly to the full board? 25 from 2020 to 2021 that you recall?
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Page 18 Page 20
1 A There was one question that -- that | wanted in 1 didn't want to be associated with a group.
2 there, which was just a -- a component associated with 2 Q Okay. And so why did you -- was that a choice
3 listening. You know, I think listening is a very 3 that you made to set it up in that way?
4 important attribute for a manager. And | think Craig 4 A I'm thinking about that. And it was done that
5 Richards also made a suggestion -- there is an email on 5 way the prior year.
6 that -- 6 Q Did you agree with that approach? And why was
7 Q Uh-huh. 7 it set up like that or what would be your rationale for
8 A --for an update to one of the questions. 8 setting it up like that?
9 Q Okay. And did you -- so in 2020 not all of the 9 A Thereason for setting it up that way was to
10 employees of APFC received the survey link. It was a 10 just get an understanding of how Angela's performance was
11 selection that was chosen by the consultant. In 2021, all 11 viewed between the investor staff and the operations staff
12 of the employees at least had the option to complete the 12 and the board, which was the same as -- as what Vicki had
13 survey, is that correct? 13 done the year before.
14 A Yes. 14 Q Butit was an option so people could select
15 Q Was there -- do you recall -- what was your 15 neither so they didn't have to self-identify?
16 rationale between -- behind expanding the kind of reach of 16 A Yeah, | think it may have been -- if | could go
17 the survey to 100 percent of the employees at least having 17 back and see if that was what --
18 the opportunity to take it? 18 Q Sure.
19 A Sure. You know, the more responses that you 19 A No. It was there. It was called "prefer not to
20 havein a survey, the more accurate it could be. And plus | 20 say." So it was there. There was no difference. So
21 with the power of the software compiling all the results, 21 thereis no difference.
22 to me it was -- didn't matter if we had 21 responses or 40 | 22 Q Okay. Was there any kind of -- when people took
23 responses because of the way that the software compiles | 23 the survey, did they have to, like, create an account or
24 the data. 24 log in or do something to confirm that they are an
25 And plus, as | had mentioned before, we have 25 employee of APFC who is taking the survey?
Page 19 Page 21
1 successfully run these surveys in the Department of 1 A |believe so, but that was all administered by
2 Revenue with hundreds of people and, you know, we just get | 2 Chad.
3 really good results. So | believe that the more the 3 Q Okay. Okay. Are you aware, was there any
4 feedback, the better we would be able to evaluate. 4 restrictions on somebody taking the survey more than once?
5 Q So were you -- did you -- were you like an 5 A I'm not aware that someone did take the survey
6 administrator on the, like, SurveyMonkey and software 6 more than once. That would have been unethical. However,
7 platform in that you could go in there and change the 7 it's my understanding that there are controls. And we did
8 questions and -- 8 not customize the software tool at all. It's off the
9 A No, I didn't do that. 9 shelf.
10 Q Who did that? 10 Q Was it the same -- that was the same software
11 A Genevieve. 11 tool that was used in 2020, right?
12 Q And you would tell her what to change, and she 12 A Yeah. Yes. I'm sorry.
13 would go in there and change it? 13 Q So the type of survey, I've seen it referred --
14 A Yeah. And it was just, | think, three or four 14 the type of survey that was used in 2021 -- in 2020, is it
15 words, you know. It was essentially the same survey as 15 referred to as a 360-degree survey; is that accurate?
16 what Vicki had developed. 16 A Uh-huh.
17 Q And for the survey, when employees took it, did 17 Q What is your understanding of what a 360-degree
18 they have to identify kind of what their -- not 18 survey is?
19 necessarily -- well, did they identify what their job 19 A It's arepresentation of opinions about
20 title was or their position was in APFC? 20 performance for -- that are obtained from subordinates, as
21 A No. 21 well as bosses. So it's a full review.
22 Q Did they identify in any way? 22 Q Did the board receive any kind of training or
23 A Yes. They were asked to identify whether they 23 education on the strengths and weaknesses of using a
24 were under investments, operations, board or neither. 24 360-degree review for a performance evaluation?
25 There was an option for neither just in case somebody 25 A You know, | don't recall anything in 2020

PACIFIC R1iM REPORTING

907-272-4383

Pages 18..21



ALASKA LEGISLATIVE BUDGET & AUDIT COMMITTEE
LUCINDA MAHONEY on 06/14/2022

Page 22 Page 24
1 because that would have been the year, in my opinion, when | 1 Q Yeah. You mentioned there were a variety of
2 it would have been appropriate to do that because we were, 2 data points that the trustees considered when evaluating
3 you know, essentially doing the same as what had been done | 3 performance in 2021. You identified Trustee Schutt
4 the prior year. 4 expressing a concern over this op ed. I'm asking what
5 Q Did you have any concerns over using the 5 other data points were considered.
6 360-degree survey? Did you, like, well, this is -- it's 6 A Let methink about that. So there was
7 good for what it's worth, but you have these X concerns 7 significant discussion about past performance reviews and
8 about that type of process? 8 the problems that existed in the past that had not been
9 A Ididn't have concerns about it, but | also 9 resolved. So that would not have been an item that would
10 recognize that these type of surveys represent one data 10 have been on the 2021 performance review. And that was,
11 point of many that you -- or we, the trustees, would use 11 you know, a pretty significant concern for some of the
12 to evaluate Angela's performance. It's not the sole 12 trustees.
13 thing. It's areference. 13 Q What were the items that had been kind of --
14 Q Okay. In 2021, what were the other data points 14 that were addressed in 2021 in this executive session
15 that were used to evaluate Ms. Rodell's performance? 15 about past problems that had not been resolved?
16 A In the executive session, some of the trustees 16 A One problem was associated with what we refer to
17 talked about areas of concern that were not on the 360. 17 as the silos in the Permanent Fund Corporation. It's an
18 Q What were those areas of concern? 18 organizational structure concern. And there is a lot of
19 A One trustee talked about an op ed that Angela 19 conflict and tension between the operations staff and the
20 had written in the newspaper without working -- or 20 investment staff. And that causes internal problems
21 notifying the trustees that she was doing that. 21 within the organization.
22 Q Which trustee was that? 22 Angela had recognized that that was a problem,
23 A Trustee Schutt. 23 you know, for many years that she was unable to resolve.
24 Q And what was the subject matter of the op ed, if 24 And the board -- we also talked about how the board
25 you recall? 25 recognized that this was a problem that they had asked
Page 23 Page 25
1 A Potential government shutdown and the impact on 1 Angelato try to resolve this. They had sent her to
2 the Permanent Fund. 2 management training to try to help her improve her skills
3 Q Was Trustee Schutt's -- was the concern over the 3 to resolve this problem, and it was still unresolved.
4 op ed about the substance or the process? 4 Q So where were you seeing evidence of the -- the
5 A | think you should ask him. 5 continued issue of a silo between -- and the conflict
6 Q Well, based on what you recall what he said at 6 between investment and operations? Was it based on the
7 the time. 7 survey comments or in addition to the survey comments?
8 A I think it was both, but that's what | recall. 8 A For me personally, it was just the survey
9 | mean, there was a lot said in that meeting, and there 9 comments. | didn't talk to the staff about those type of
10 were four hours of discussion. It's hard to remember the 10 issues. That was her job.
11 details. 11 Q Okay. And so the board had asked Angela to go
12 Q Sure. But what other data points do you 12 to management training to try to help her develop the
13 remember being a subject matter that was considered by the 13 tools to address these silo issues that had been
14 trustees when you were evaluating Ms. Rodell's performance 14 previously identified?
15 in 2021? 15 A That's what | understand. This was before | got
16 MR. PTACIN: I'm sorry. The first question was 16 there. Okay? So -- and I'm just saying that those were
17 2020, and now you are going to 2021, is that right? 17 references that people addressed that were in addition to
18 MR. SLOTTEE: | thought my first question was 18 the 360.
19 where she referenced the Trustee Schutt. That was in -- 19 Q Okay. Well, let's say while you were there. So
20 THE WITNESS: '21. 20 in 2020 and in 2021 -- | guess it may just be from post
21 MR. PTACIN: Sorry. Go ahead. 21 2020. Was there something that was asked of Ms. Rodell to
22 THE WITNESS: Yeah. It was '21. Yeah. 22 do in regards to the operation -- this silo between
23 So you are asking me what was discussed -- are 23 operations and investment while you were there that you
24 you asking me what was discussed in the executive session? | 24 felt that she had not actually accomplished or hadn't
25 BY MR. SLOTTEE: 25 done?
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Page 26 Page 28
1 A You know, the board talked with her about trying 1 look at the document, the summary document for the
2 toresolve these problems and -- in 2020, and then in 2021 2 performance review, the very first five bullets on it, if
3 it was still a problem. So you know, in regard to the 3 Irecall, were all of the good things that Angela did for
4 specific inner workings within the Permanent Fund 4 the organization. And we talked about it. We talked
5 Corporation about that tension and the conflict, | don't 5 about the exceptional returns.
6 know specific details. That wasn't my job. That wasn't 6 But the thing to remember and the thing that you
7 my role. 7 need to think about is the returns are delivered by 51
8 Q That was Ms. Rodell's role as the executive 8 people working at the Permanent Fund Corporation, not one
9 director? 9 person. The executive director doesn't singlehandedly
10 A Yes. That was her job. 10 deliver performance. There is a group of investors. They
11 Q Okay. Allright. Any other data points? 11 arethe ones that are making the buy/sell transaction
12 A I'm thinking. Yeah. There was another -- there 12 decisions. They are the ones that are selecting the
13 was another one. So it's kind of along the same 13 private equity investments, the managers.
14 conversation here. There was discussion, you know, about | 14 I mean, there are so many components associated
15 should we try to invest more training with Angela and see | 15 with delivering returns. It's ateam. It's a whole team
16 if she would -- see if she could improve, you know. And 16 that makes that happen. And so she was a part of that
17 one of the trustees said that she wouldn't improve. 17 team, no doubt, but she was also not allowed to be
18 This -- sheis -- this is the way she is, and she's not 18 involved in the investment decisions. And that was a
19 likely going to improve. So we needed to, you know, like 19 decision that had been made.
20 accept that. 20 | was really new on the board when that
21 Q Which trustee was that? 21 happened, but she was removed from that process.
22 A Bill Moran. 22 Q When did that happen?
23 Q Okay. So the prior training at least that was 23 A ldon't recall specifically. |think it was
24 maybe discussed was this management training? 24 early 2020, or it may have even been prior to my arrival.
25 A Yeah. 25 |think it was prior to my appointment to the board. And
Page 27 Page 29
1 Q Any other training that was -- had been 1 |--yeah.
2 attempted with Ms. Rodell that you recall being discussed 2 Q When you say "removed from the process," | guess
3 atthetime? 3 what do you mean by that? She had no -- no final
4 A It was just referred to as management training. 4 decisionmaking authority or did not -- was not allowed to
5 But | have been on the board for two years. Some of the | 5 provide her input into investments?
6 other trustees have been on longer, so | don't know what | 6 A So I'm going to try my best to tell you what |
7 other -- you know, what that really meant, if that was 7 recall. Okay? So the investment group has an investment
8 just one or multiple. I don't know. 8 committee, and they make determinations together about how
9 Q Okay. Any other data points that you can 9 to make investments. And then they would have another
10 recall? 10 meeting that would include Angela.
11 A No, that's it. If I think of something as we go 11 And then the way the new policy worked was if
12 on, I'll tell you. 12 Angela disagreed with the investment committee's decision,
13 Q Thank you. Did -- was one of the data points 13 then that -- the next level of decisionmaking had to come
14 considered by the trustees -- or let me -- was one of the 14 to the board because there was concern that -- | don't
15 data points discussed during this executive session the 15 really know what it was about her having that unilateral
16 financial performance of the Permanent Fund Corporation? |16 decisionmaking ability for investments.
17 A Yes. 17 Q So Ms. Rodell has described it as if the -- she
18 Q And how had the financial -- how had the 18 disagreed with the investment committee, she could say no,
19 Permanent Fund performed financially over the last -- the 19 but then there would be a report to the board. And |
20 prior year? 20 would assume the board could then override her decision.
21 A Excellent. 21 s that consistent with your --
22 Q How much weight did that give -- was that -- in 22 A Ithink so. A report or report to the board, |
23 your mind, how much weight would you give that towards 23 kind of construe that to be the same.
24 your evaluation of Ms. Rodell? 24 Q Sure. Sure. Okay. Did that ever happen while
25 A We talked about -- we talked about -- if you 25 you were a trustee?
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A No.

Q Did the trustees have discussions in the context
of evaluating Ms. Rodell's performance in 2021 about that
specific issue? Not that specific issue. Sorry. The
issue of how much to weight the actual financial
performance of the Permanent Fund Corporation versus, for
example, the siloing issue that you identified, the
training issue that you identified earlier. Was there a
discussion over the relative weights to apply to the
different factors?

A There were no weights.

Q No formal weights?

A No.

Q Did the board have --

A There was no statistical number, if that's what
you are asking. No. I mean, | don't think that's how you
evaluate executives, with statistics.

Q What do you think is the best way to evaluate an
executive in an entity such as the Permanent Fund
Corporation?

A Well, I think the survey is one data point.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

Page 32
identifies all those factors, and as we walked through the

different questions as a group, we discussed -- you know,
we looked at what the investment team said, what ops said,
what the board said, and then we had a discussion about
that topic. So we looked at factors, but did we say, this
one is worth 10 percent, this one is worth 30 percent?
No. No.
Q Okay. Did you -- other than the -- so you had
the survey results with you. Not the raw survey
responses, right? Just the summary report in 2021?
A Yes.
Q And actually, let me get that in front of you
just to make sure.
MR. SLOTTEE: We are on Exhibit 7? 67?
(Exhibit/No. 7. marked.)
MR. SLOTTEE: And somehow | ended up with only
two of these. Let me go make a quick --
MR. PTACIN: Chris, | think | have one from
yesterday, if it's the same document.
MR. SLOTTEE: ltis, but | don't have one for
the Department of Law, so let me go make a quick copy. |

22 Discussing some of the items that | shared with you 22 assume you want a copy of this.
23 earlier that were concerns in an executive session, you 23 MS. LEEAH: Yes, please.
24 know, understanding how the organization is performing, | 24 MR. SLOTTEE: We will go off record.
25 you know. Understanding, like, the strategic plan, what |25 (Off the record.)
Page 31 Page 33
1 kind of progress is being made there. 1 BY MR. SLOTTEE:
2 I mean, there is a lot of different variables. 2 Q Okay. So what I've just marked as [Exhibit 7/is
3 And they -- they kind of just all meld together. And the 3 adocument titled CEO Performance Evaluation, APFC,
4 board has to take a look at, is this the leader that we 4 confidential, December 6, 2021. Do you see that?
5 want based on past performance to lead us into the future. | 5 A Yes.
6 And so it all kind of goes together. 6 Q Do you recall this document?
7 Q So--and | use this as an example because it's 7 A Yes.
8 fresh on my mind and not that I'm trying to compare the 8 Q And was this the performance evaluation that was
9 two, but my sons went to a state robotics Lego 9 presented to the trustees at their executive session where
10 competition, and they had to present this project. They 10 they considered Ms. Rodell's performance?
11 get a rubric and said, do you work well with each other; 11 A  Yes.
12 did you ask good questions. And they present it to a 12 Q Okay. So during that executive session when you
13 committee -- or evaluation of, like, three or four people 13 were considering and discussing Ms. Rodell's performance,
14 and the people fill out the rubric and they talk and they 14 who was in the room?
15 have an ultimate decision of who wins, who loses, rank all 15 A Okay. So there were two executive sessions.
16 the different projects. 16 Q That's a good point. Let's start on the first
17 Was there any type of kind of rubric or kind 17 one, the first day.
18 of -- not necessarily a document, but all right, these are 18 A Thefirst day, five of the six trustees were in
19 the different factors we are going to consider; we are 19 theroom.
20 going to go through them one by one by one to make sure 20 Q And which trustee was not?
21 everybody is considering all these relevant factors within 21 A Corri Feige.
22 the trustees, and then the trustees will vote on what the 22 Q Was he attending by phone or not attending?
23 next step is to be? 23 A She did not attend.
24 A So the way our process worked was we -- we 24 Q Sorry. She. Sorry. Was anybody else in the
25 started with the 360-degree review results, which 25 room?
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1 A Oh, the other five. 1 provided to the trustees for use in evaluating Ms. Rodell
2 Q Sure. Other than the trustees. 2 that you know of?
3 A Oh. No. 3 A 1believe -- well, | brought the numeric summary
4 Q Was anybody attending by phone? 4 of the scores, like the summarization of them. | also
5 A No. 5 brought, but did not distribute, the strategic plan. It
6 Q Okay. And then let's go to the second day. And 6 was unnecessary. | was -- | was trying to be prepared for
7 this is before -- well, the second day it was -- who was 7 what was discussed. | had previously distributed her --
8 present in the room during executive session? 8 her self-evaluation via an email. And in that same email
9 A The same five trustees, and then Corri Feige 9 I had also included the survey results, this document.
10 calledin. 10 Q The summary?
11 Q Was there anybody else in the room? 11 A Yeah. So | had sent an email and then with the
12 A No. 12 datain advance, and then | brought the physical documents
13 Q Was eventually Ms. Rodell invited to attend 13 to the meeting in addition to the strategic plan.
14 executive session? 14 Q Any other documents that you can recall bringing
15 A Yes. 15 to the meeting?
16 Q Was anybody else eventually invited to attend 16 A | brought the -- the detailed summary of the 360
17 the executive session, besides Ms. Rodell? 17 review just in case trustees had questions about the
18 A  Yes. 18 details associated with the summary because | summarized
19 Q Who? 19 data.
20 A Val Mertz. 20 Q Isthat -- let me give you what we will mark as
21 Q Anybody else? 21 [Exhibit 8, Is that the detailed summary you are referring
22 A No, I don't think so. | don't recall anyone 22 t0?
23 else. 23 A This is not what | brought. This is a
24 Q And for the record, who is Val Mertz? 24 consolidated summary. What | brought -- and it is likely
25 A Val Mertz was the CFO -- is the CFO, and she is | 25 the same, but what | brought was four packets of these:
Page 35 Page 37
1 currently the acting director. 1 One that was just investments, one that was just
2 Q Was she invited in after or before Ms. Rodell 2 operations, another one that was just board, and the other
3 was invited in? 3 one that was just -- that was neither, because the way
4 A After. She was invited in after Angela left the 4 that we organized the data was segregated like that. So |
5 room. 5 wanted the source documents so | could be efficient.
6 Q Okay. Okay. During the 2020 executive session 6 Q So if someone said, let's look at what the
7 when you were discussing Ms. Rodell's performance, was 7 investment comments were, you would have those readily
8 anybody else in the room besides trustees? 8 available?
9 A 1think Vicki Graham. 9 A Yeah, yes.
10 Q That was the consultant that had been hired to 10 (Exhibit'No. 8/ marked.)
11 do the survey? 11 BY MR. SLOTTEE:
12 A Yeah. 12 Q Did any trustee board members ask for copies of
13 Q Anybody else? 13 the raw survey responses?
14 A ldon't recall anyone else, but | mean, 14 A No, not from me. Maybe Chad.
15 typically the executive sessions are just the trustees and | 15 Q [I'msorry. Yes. From you, that you are aware
16 whoever is specifically invited, which I think was just 16 of.
17 Vicki. | --it's two years ago. 17 A No.
18 Q lunderstand. | understand. So -- but so in 18 Q And soin -- if we are looking at what's marked
19 2021, so you had the CEO performance evaluation summary | 19 as/Exhibit 7| this is a summary of the comments made by
20 that was -- was that, like, physically in front of the 20 employees in response to the -- and board members in
21 trustees? 21 response to the 360-degree survey?
22 A Uh-huh. 22 A It was arepresentation of what the overall tone
23 Q Isthatayes? 23 was for the comments. |tried to take out personal,
24 A Yes. 24 you know, some of the comments were personal in nature, so
25 Q Were there any other documents that were 25 |Itried to take those out. And I just tried to establish
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Page 40

1 an unbiased objective summary of the survey. 1 A Oh, no. This was a confidential document.

2 Q So you personally selected kind of 2 Q Let me give you what's marked as Exhibit 9

3 representative comments to include here? 3 (Exhibit'No. 9 marked.)

4 A Yeah. 4 BY MR. SLOTTEE:

5 Q And then I think this shows a -- 5 Q And so this is an email from Genevieve

6 A Chris, I should add that | selected these and 6 Woijtusik --

7 then I sent the results of my work to Chad Brown, the HR 7 A Yes.

8 manager, and | asked him to go through the raw data and to | 8 Q --to the Board of Trustees with a CC to you

9 compare what | had identified to represent the overall 9 titled SurveyMonkey Performance Evaluation. And for some

10 tone to make sure that there wasn't any bias, that it was 10 reason, the version printed out does not actually have a

11 independent, objective. And | asked him, if he saw 11 date on it, but it looks like this is a summary of the

12 anything that was out of line, to -- to make edits and to 12 timeline for the employee survey or the employee/board

13 let me know. 13 survey. Isthat accurate?

14 Q Okay. And did he have any comments or make any 14 A Yes.

15 proposed changes? 15 Q These dates listed here that she has listed

16 A No. He actually, | think, said that he thought 16 there, questionnaire loaded into SurveyMonkey on December

17 1did agood job. 17 17 and then the subsequent dates, are those consistent

18 Q And then if we look at what's been marked as 18 with your understanding of what the dates were in terms of

19 Exhibit -- actually it's been marked as Exhibit 8 And 19 when the survey was deployed, how long employees had to

20 just as an example, go to the third page. And there are 20 answer it?

21 some categories there from exceeds expectations to does 21 A Yes. ldeveloped, like, a small little project

22 not meet expectations and then total, and then there is a 22 plan here to ensure that we gave everyone enough time to

23 weighted average column. Do you see that in the middle of 23 respond and then compile. Yeah.

24 that? 24 Q Was there any kind of like -- were the

25 A Yes. 25 employees -- was there any messaging to the employee over
Page 39 Page 41

1 Q And was those kind of -- those scores, that 1 why they were receiving this survey, what was its purpose,

2 weighted average, was that provided to the trustees? 2 who was going to be the recipient?

3 A It was provided to the trustees by -- by a 3 A It was the same message that you see here. It

4 different group, and then in total. And | --1think --1 4 went to -- Chad, | think, sent it to the employees, and it

5 compiled it, and then | also sent -- sent my work to Chad, 5 said, | believe, the same thing as what it says here, that

6 and I said -- I think | found a -- | found something that 6 it's alink to the 360 performance review. They --1am

7 didn'ttie. Okay. Ithink | had calculated it myself 7 under the understanding that they have prepared or have

8 using Excel and then looked at what was the survey, and so | 8 used the SurveyMonkey tool, so they were familiar with

9 there was something that didn't -- wasn't exactly the 9 that. And then some of them had operated the tool in the

10 same. So | asked him to check it because | said, there is 10 prior year, same questions that Vicki established.

11 something wrong here, can you check this and see what's | 11 Q And let me give you what's marked as Exhibit 10

12 going on. And he did, and he came back and confirmed 12 So this is an email string. The top string is from Chad

13 something. And that is what | used. 13 Brown to the trustees dated November 20th. Subject

14 Q Okay. Did you share -- did you give a copy of 14 matter, forward, SurveyMonkey performance evaluation. And

15 this -- the performance evaluation or any of the documents 15 then the first email in the string is from Genevieve

16 that you brought to the board meeting, the executive 16 Woijtusik to all staff at apfc.org, with a CC to you,

17 session, to anyone other than trustees before the 17 subject matter of SurveyMonkey performance evaluation.

18 executive session? 18 You see that?

19 A |provided it to Angela. 19 A Yeah.

20 Q Okay. Anybody else? 20 (Exhibit/No. 10 marked.)

21 A No. Chad. 21 BY MR. SLOTTEE:

22 Q Chad. 22 Q So | just want to make sure | have it correctly.

23 A Chad and Angela. Yeah. 23 So the Genevieve -- it was from Genevieve's email account

24 Q Anybody outside of Alaska Permanent Fund 24 that the survey was distributed to the APFC --

25 Corporation? 25 A Okay. Thank you. Ididn't know that. |
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1 guess -- I mean, | don't recall that. | was copied on it, 1 same process as last year, the one that Vicki did, and --
2 but -- 2 yeah.
3 Q Do you recall any other kind of messaging to the 3 Q Other than that, | mean, did you have any
4 employees of APFC about the purpose of the survey, the 4 conversations, verbal conversations, with Ms. Rodell about
5 timeline, other than this email from Genevieve? 5 this is what we are going to talk about at the executive
6 A I'm not aware of anything else. 6 session, this is -- | don't know, you may want to be
7 Q Okay. 7 prepared to address this or these are the issues that we
8 A They are pretty responsible. They -- when they 8 are going to talk about?
9 see adeadline, they do it; | mean, those who choose to. | 9 A No. However, | -- | sent her an email when |
10 It wasn't arequired -- they weren't required to 10 was in Juneau and she was in Juneau, and | told her that
11 participate. It was optional. 11 if - if she wanted, that | would come over and meet with
12 Q Okay. Did you provide Ms. Rodell with a copy of 12 her to discuss the 360 performance review, and she didn't
13 the raw survey responses prior to the executive session, 13 respond.
14 or was it just the summary that we have marked as Exhibit | 14 Q She didn't -- you didn't have that discussion?
15 [7? 15 A Yeah. She didn't -- she didn't say -- she
16 A The summary. 16 didn't say yes, let's talk about it. | provided it as an
17 Q Do you recall, was there any -- was there a 17 option. She didn't say no, | don't want to talk about it,
18 different process followed in 2020, or do you not know in 18 but she didn't say come over, let's talk about it, so --
19 terms of what was provided to Ms. Rodell before the 19 Q Isthat the -- did she provide her written
20 executive session? 20 response -- she provide two written responses to the -- or
21 A ldon'trecall. 21 strike that. She provided a self-evaluation, right, for
22 Q Did anyone bring in specific financial 22 2021?
23 information, like reports or benchmarks to be discussed by | 23 A Yes.
24 the trustees during their evaluation of Ms. Rodell in 24 Q And then did she also provide a written response
25 2021? 25 to the survey summary?
Page 43 Page 45
1 A Did anyone bring in reports. No one brought in 1 A Yes.
2 reports, other than me. And for example, | didn't bring 2 Q Okay. Do you recall receiving any other written
3 inthe -- you know, the report with numbers would have 3 responses or communications from her regarding the survey
4 been the year-end performance review, but we all knew that | 4 or the -- regarding the survey?
5 it was 29 percent. So -- and we talked about that. We 5 A No, not that | recall, no.
6 talked about it, but we didn't need a report because we 6 Q Did -- did the board have any discussions prior
7 knew it. 7 to the executive session about we are going to be
8 Q I guess a broader question: Other than you, did 8 evaluating Ms. Rodell. One topic for discussion is
9 any other trustees kind of bring in documents that -- for 9 potentially the termination of her employment?
10 other trustees to either potentially look at or show other 10 A No.
11 trustees during that evaluation of Ms. Rodell's 11 Q When did that first come up, termination of
12 performance in 2021? Do you recall anybody else bringing 12 Ms. Rodell's employment?
13 in other documents? 13 A Okay. Could you be more specific? Like we
14 A ldon't recall that, no. 14 wouldn't have discussed that in a public meeting.
15 Q So again, talking about the 2021 executive 15 Q Sure. Did you have any discussions with any
16 session, prior to that executive session, did you have any 16 trustees, individual trustees, prior to the 2021 executive
17 conversations with Ms. Rodell about what was going to 17 session about the potential for voting to terminate
18 happen or what was going to be discussed at that executive 18 Ms. Rodell's performance or employment?
19 session? 19 A lreceived a call from atrustee.
20 A Isent her an email, and I provided her with 20 Q And who was that?
21 this table, if Irecall. And my -- my goal was to, you 21 A It was Craig Richards.
22 know, communicate to her the process and then ensure that | 22 Q And when was that?
23 when the agenda was being built for the board meeting, 23 A When was that. It would have been either
24 that it would accommodate two executive sessions. You 24 mid-October, early November.
25 know, | said that we were essentially going to use the 25 Q And what was the -- if you can recall, what was
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1 the substance of that conversation? 1 communicate to the legislature and to the public. And you
2 A He -- he called to tell me that he was concerned 2 know, | don't want to put words in his mouth, but | -- I'm
3 about her performance, and he wanted to open a discussion | 3 not -- he was just -- | don't want to put words in his
4 about whether she should continue to lead the fund. There | 4 mouth because | might misquote him, but | just know that
5 was more, but | don't remember the details. That was the 5 he was he concerned that those weren't being properly
6 gist of it. 6 supported.
7 Q Do you recall -- you don't recall the specific 7 Q Did you have any concerns over Ms. Rodell's
8 date that this happened? 8 properly supporting or implementing the resolutions?
9 A No. 9 A No.
10 Q Itwasn't a scheduled call? 10 Q So was this a surprise call, that you weren't
11 A No. He just called me. 11 expecting this call to happen?
12 Q Do you recall about the length of the call? 12 A Yes. It was asurprise.
13 A Let methink. I'm going to estimate. Okay? 13 Q After the call, did you go back and reevaluate
14 Q Uh-huh. 14 your -- kind of whether or not you -- your view of
15 A Ten minutes, maybe. 15 Ms. Rodell's performance in regards to the resolutions and
16 Q Do you recall anything, specifics, about what 16 their support?
17 was concerning him about her performance? 17 A  Yes.
18 A Could you say that again. 18 Q And what did you look at to reevaluate that?
19 Q Do you recall any -- did he mention any 19 A Ididn'tlook at any specific documents. |just
20 specifics in regards to his concerns about Ms. Rodell's 20 was -- | thought about it. |1 was thinking about it.
21 performance? 21 Q Did your view of Ms. Rodell's performance change
22 A Yes. Okay. Give me aminute. Let me think 22 based on that kind of reevaluating or thinking about it?
23 about it. 23 A Did it change. Not in regard to the
24 He -- he was concerned that she wasn't really 24 resolutions, no.
25 doing what the board had directed her to do. And I think 25 Q So as of the executive session, you still had
Page 47 Page 49
1 that was associated with maybe the resolutions. 1 the view that you didn't feel like she was not properly
2 Q Anything else that you can recall? 2 supporting the resolutions?
3 A Huh-uh. 3 A | believed she was properly supporting the
4 Q No? 4 resolutions.
5 A No. I don't recall. 5 Q That's a much more accurate way to say it.
6 Q Do you recall him referencing having a similar 6 Appreciate it.
7 discussion with other trustees? He's calling you and 7 A Sometimes those double negatives trip me up, so
8 he's, like, | already talked to blank or I'm going to talk 8 I just like to say it twice.
9 to blank. 9 Q That's a much clearer way. Thank you. Did you
10 A He did not say that. 10 end up reevaluating performance on issues other than the
11 Q Did you talk to any other trustees prior to the 11 resolutions?
12 executive session about the question of whether or not to 12 A | --lreserved my opinion in regard to Angela's
13 terminate Ms. Rodell's employment? 13 performance until | saw the -- the 360 performance review
14 A No. 14 and when | heard the comments from the other trustees. |
15 Q Just Craig Richards? 15 had made no decision about terminating her until the
16 A Yeah. 16 second executive session. | was really on the fence.
17 Q And then in terms of the -- so you mentioned 17 Q So what about the 360-degree survey review; how
18 that -- something about that she wasn't really doing what 18 did that impact your evaluation?
19 the board had told her to do in regards to what you think 19 A | was really concerned about the conflict and
20 is the resolutions or associated with the resolutions. 20 the stress that | sensed from the 360 review from the
21 What do you recall the board having directed 21 investment staff. And the investment -- | mean, everybody
22 Ms. Rodell to do in regards to the, quote, unquote, 22 atthe Permanent Fund is extremely important. Everybody
23 resolutions? 23 contributes. But it was really important to me that the
24 A The board had established resolutions which now | 24 investment staff, you know, have a really collaborative,
25 are documents that state our policies that we try to 25 cohesive working relationship with the executive director.
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1 Because like | said earlier, they are the ones that are 1 that the systems are all safe and secure. It's the risk
2 making the decisions about our returns. 2 manager, the communications department, the HR department,
3 And based on what | read, | was concerned that 3 kind of the back office operations that, you know, a
4 it could possibly impact attrition, meaning they would 4 corporation needs.
5 leave, and that would negatively impact returns. So that 5 Q Okay. So you mentioned that one of the -- two
6 was troublesome to me. 6 of the things that were -- influenced your decision was
7 It was also concerning to me to see the 7 the 360 review and also the comments from the other
8 comments, you know, about the silos. You know, there were | 8 trustees?
9 comments from both sides in regard to the tension that 9 A Uh-huh.
10 that was creating in the organization. 10 Q And you followed up and said that, well, the
11 So those -- those areas concerned me. And -- do 11 executive director needs to have good relations with the
12 you want me to go on? 12 board. From your point of view in 2021, what was the
13 Q Yeah, absolutely. 13 relationship between the executive director and the board?
14 A So my vision for the fund and, you know, as a 14 A Well, | mean, if you look at the survey results,
15 trustee, I'm looking to the future. And by 2030, you 15 which was the first time that | realized that there was
16 know, | want our organization to be positioned to be a 16 stress, if you will, or tension between the trustees and
17 100-billion-dollar fund. When you look at the modeling, 17 Angelato the magnitude that it was, | mean, some of the
18 which I've looked at, it's very possible. Butin order to 18 board members -- and I'm just going to share some of the
19 achieve a 100-billion-dollar fund, we need to have a very 19 things that were on the survey -- felt that she was
20 high performing team in place. And that means it has to 20 manipulative, that she wasn't honest. Some felt that she
21 be an executive director who can work well with everybody |21 had her own agenda and wasn't following the board's
22 in the organization and bring them all together, as well 22 agenda.
23 as have a good relationship with the board. 23 Q Actually, this would be -- why don't we do this.
24 And so you know, as | listened to the trustees 24 Let's pull up [Exhibit 7
25 in executive session, as | considered the 360-degree 25 A Because | could go here --
Page 51 Page 53
1 review, you know, two of the three were -- were broken. 1 Q Yeah. So--
2 And Il just believed, to move forward to achieve that goal, 2 A Yeah. So like on page -- the very first page, |
3 we -- we needed an executive director that could manage 3 referenced item 2. Does not embrace the vision of the
4 all of that. 4 board, but instead tries to control the board to achieve
5 Q When you say "two of the three were broken," 5 her own vision and points of view.
6 what is the -- just for the record to be clear, what is 6 Q Inregards to that statement, is that -- was
7 the three and what is the two that were broken? 7 that a view that you had?
8 A ljust thought that the investment team and the 8 A No.
9 board, there were -- there were just -- there were 9 Q Did you see any -- would you point to anything
10 relationship issues with both of those very critical 10 like, well, | could see how someone could see that, | just
11 components of the corporation. 11 didn't agree that that was what Angela was doing?
12 Q Issues with the relationship with the executive 12 A Could you say that again.
13 director? 13 Q I guess I'm trying to find out, were you aware
14 A Yeah. 14 of any -- did anybody use any examples of Angela not
15 Q And I'm sorry. Also just for the record or just 15 embracing the vision of the board and instead trying to
16 to be clear, we have been talking about, you know, 16 control the board?
17 operations and then investment. How would you separate 17 A You know, they may have gone into it in the
18 out, just broadly speaking, like operations and investment 18 executive session, but | don't remember.
19 at APFC? 19 Q Do you independently -- not necessarily what
20 A Okay. So theinvestors are those who do the buy 20 they said in terms of what was said in the executive
21 and sells and select the investment managers and develop | 21 session. Do you, sitting here today, independently recall
22 thereturns. And then the operations -- they are titled 22 any instances in which you would have viewed Ms. Rodell as
23 operations, but | think of them more as administration. 23 not embracing the vision of the board, but instead trying
24 They are the ones that are doing the accounting for all of | 24 to control the board to achieve her own vision?
25 thetransactions. It's the IT people that are ensuring 25 A Thereis one area, yeah. And thatis in regard

PACIFIC R1iM REPORTING

907-272-4383

Pages 50..53



ALASKA LEGISLATIVE BUDGET & AUDIT COMMITTEE
LUCINDA MAHONEY on 06/14/2022

Page 54

Page 56

1 to the Permanent Fund Corporation budget. So pretty much | 1 MR. SLOTTEE: It's fine. It's fine.

2 my entire career, | have been very much a budget hawk, and | 2 BY MR. SLOTTEE:

3 Ireally like to see budgets that have been really well 3 Q The sixth bullet down references -- or it

4 vetted, and | -- | believed that the budget that was 4 states, "Her relationship with the board is stressed and

5 initially submitted to the trustees back in September 5 some trustees report a lack of trust and candor."

6 wasn't really well vetted. And | was concerned about that 6 A Where are you? I'm sorry. Excuse me.

7 because the numbers presented were pretty high. And | -- 7 Q The sixth bullet point down on the top under

8 |l was confused, truthfully. I didn't understand why she 8 Overall Summary. Then it goes on to say: The same could

9 would have presented numbers that were so high. When we | 9 be said for her dealings with the executive branch and the

10 challenged them, she came down pretty quickly. 10 legislature.

11 And so | felt like, is she using the board to 11 Did you have a lack of trust in Ms. Rodell?

12 make the tough decisions about the budget versus making | 12 A Notinitially. I was -- | became concerned at |

13 them herself, or --  mean, | don't know what she was 13 believe it was the Kodiak board meeting when she brought

14 thinking. Or was she really trying to build a big 14 in what | was told was a mediator to discuss the strategic

15 bureaucracy. I don't know. But those were my thoughts. 15 plan.

16 Q And that was the budget in September 2021? 16 Q Why did that raise concerns regarding your trust

17 A Yeah. 17 with Ms. Rodell?

18 Q Allright. Any other examples of the -- that 18 A Because the -- | believe the normal policy would

19 you would see of Angela potentially not embracing the 19 have been to start out a discussion with the board and

20 vision of the board but instead trying to control the 20 say, I think we need to update the strategic plan. You

21 board to achieve her own vision and points of view? 21 know, let's collaboratively identify do we need to do this

22 A No. I mean, not that | can think of right now. 22 over atwo- or three-day period because it's a pretty

23 Q Okay. That same -- let me back up. Is this 23 significant process to go through. And you know,

24 kind of a cut and paste of a comment from the 360, or did 24 according to the governance policy, you know, it's

25 you edit it for clarity? 25 supposed to start in the Governance Committee. And
Page 55 Page 57

1 A Most of the time | cut and paste, but there were 1 then -- and whether we would actually have done it in the

2 other times where | just tried to capture the tone and 2 committee, it is really a discussion of the whole board

3 shorten it up a bit. 3 becauseit's such --it's important.

4 Q Okay. Well, this one goes on to say: Although 4 But what she did was she brought in a mediator.

5 she has done good work on goals with which she is aligned, | 5 And I didn't really understand what was going on because |

6 she actively resists and undermines the board and staff in 6 didn't know this -- this person. And I thought it was

7 areas in which she is not aligned. 7 inappropriate, and | just think that it should have been

8 Did you see any instances of Ms. Rodell actively 8 addressed in a different manner. And I didn't understand

9 resisting and undermining the board and staff in areas in 9 what -- what her objective was there.

10 which she was not aligned? 10 Q Okay. So the mediator -- you weren't aware the

11 A No. 11 mediator was going to come at all until they kind of

12 Q Okay. What was the -- the -- best in class goal 12 showed up at the meeting or at last minute?

13 for -- the next comment references that Ms. Rodell failed 13 A ldidn't realize that the person was a mediator.

14 to develop a best in class goal. Do you recall there 14 Okay.

15 being like an initiative from the board to do that? 15 Q Do you remember their name?

16 A Yeah. That -- that was a part of the strategic 16 A Al Bolea.

17 plan. And I don't know all the details of it because it 17 Q So this was the first time you started having

18 was developed and put into place before | became a 18 kind of concerns about trust and candor?

19 trustee. 19 A Yeah. And then at the same meeting, again, it

20 Q Okay. Allright. So going up to the top, the 20 was adiscussion about the budget. | again shared my

21 overall summary, if we go down, it's the sixth bullet 21 concern about an area that | thought was too high, and

22 point down. 22 she, like, lashed out at me on the record. It was really

23 MR. PTACIN: Try not to mark those. Those are 23 uncomfortable, and | was really disappointed in her for

24 the officials. 24 doing that.

25 THE WITNESS: Do you have whiteout? 25 Q Do you remember the subject matter, the budget
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1 matter? 1 about an hour and 28 minutes. Do you want to take a
2 A It was incentive comp. 2 break? Are you okay?
3 Q Did you have any discussions with her after that 3 (A break was taken.)
4 Kodiak meeting about the lashing out or -- 4 BY MR. SLOTTEE:
5 A No. 5 Q So Commissioner, when we broke for a brief at
6 Q -- how disappointed you were? 6 ease, | think you were just -- just testified that you had
7 A No. I'was -- | was pretty upset about it. | 7 received a call from Brandon Brefczynski --
8 was confused. | couldn't understand why she gotso | 8 A Yes.
9 emotional. You know, we were having a professional | 9 Q --who had expressed a concern about a tweet
10 discussion. 10 from Ms. Rodell?
11 Q Okay. Any other instances? 11 A Yes.
12 A No, not that | can think of right now. 12 Q Who is Brandon Brefczynski?
13 Q Okay. That comment says, regarding the lack of | 13 A I'm not sure of his exact title, but he worked
14 trust or candor, "The same can be said for her 14 in the governor's office at that time. | think assistant
15 dealings" -- Ms. Rodell's dealings -- "with the executive | 15 to the governor. | don't know. But he worked for the
16 branch and the legislature.” 16 governor in the governor's office.
17 Are you aware -- did you have any conversations |17 Q Do you remember -- and what we marked before we
18 with any members of the legislature or their staff where | 18 left was Exhibit 11, which was a printout of a tweet from
19 they expressed concern over -- that they had a lack of -- | 19 Ms. Rodell on August 20, '21 where she states, quote -- or
20 they had concern over Ms. Rodell's candor or trust? 20 tweeted, "As of June 30th, the ERA has an uncommitted
21 A Did | have -- who? Say that again. 21 balance of 9.3 billion, of which the governor's
22 Q Sorry. Any members of the legislature or their 22 appropriation bill would use three billion, leaving the
23 staff. 23 balance of 6.3 billion for future appropriations.” Do you
24 A The legislature or their staff. No. 24 see that?
25 Q What about with the members of the executive 25 A ldo.
Page 59 Page 61
1 branch? 1 Q Is that the tweet that he was calling about?
2 A  Yes. 2 A | believe so, yes.
3 Q Who would that be? 3 Q What did he -- what was his concern about the
4 A Okay. So can we -- can you restate the question | 4 tweet?
5 just one moretime. I'm sorry. | want to make sure | 5 A He was concerned that the number was wrong.
6 answer correctly. 6 Q Okay. Was the number wrong?
7 Q Sure. Did you have any conversations with any 7 A |didn't go back and check.
8 members of the executive branch where they expressed a 8 Q Okay. Did you -- were you aware of this tweet
9 lack of trust in Ms. Rodell? 9 before Mr. Brefczynski called you?
10 A Not alack of trust. So the answer is no. 10 A No.
11 Q What about a lack of candor from Ms. Rodell? 11 Q Did you have any concerns about the tweet?
12 A No. 12 A No.
13 Q What about any concern -- discussions with 13 Q Do you know what -- why she was tweeting this
14 members of the executive branch wherein they expressed | 14 out, like what was going on at the same time that she
15 concerns about Ms. Rodell kind of in general? 15 tweeted on that August 20th?
16 A Yes. 16 A Okay. So what I recall is that there was a
17 Q Who would that have been? 17 budget presentation going on in house finance, and a
18 A So | had had a discussion -- actually, | had 18 legislator had asked a question of Neil Steinger, the
19 received a call from Brandon Brefczynski about a tweet | 19 budget director, about what was the balance of the ERA,
20 that she had posted on Twitter, | guess is what it's 20 and he cited a number. And then some minutes later one of
21 called. 21 the legislators got on the record and corrected him. And
22 MR. SLOTTEE: All right. And 21st century. 22 Ithink he was referring to this number here.
23 Mark as Exhibit 11 the tweet from Ms. Rodell. 23 Q In|Exhibit 11 from Ms. Rodell's tweet?
24 (ExhibitiNo. 11fmarked.) 24 A Yes.
25 MR. PTACIN: Lucinda, by my watch, it's been 25 Q Okay. So Mr. Brefczynski called you and
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1 expressed concern that Ms. Rodell's tweet was factually 1 before you post and think about the timing. If you are
2 inaccurate. Any other concerns about Ms. Rodell's tweet? 2 going to post, think about the timing of it because
3 A Just the fact that she was tweeting and he 3 sometimes perceptions become reality. That's what | said.
4 thought it was an inaccurate number. That's it. 4 It was along conversation. You know, we talked
5 Q So something beyond -- not even necessarily that 5 alot -- we talked a lot about golfing together. We both
6 it was inaccurate, but that she was tweeting at all in 6 have houses down in Palm Springs. We go out. And so |
7 response to this -- apparent response to this testimony 7 was trying to -- to get -- | was trying to calm her down
8 from the legislature? 8 because I felt like she was really overreacting.
9 A Yeah, yes. 9 Q Did this tweeting incident, this tweet, did that
10 Q Do you recall any other specifics about that 10 play any role in your ultimate kind of consideration
11 conversation? 11 during executive session over whether or not to
12 A ljust remember that my response was that | had 12 terminate -- vote in favor of terminating her employment?
13 confidence in Angela's numbers, and there are different -- | 13 A Absolutely not, because, like | said, most
14 okay. So when he called me, | didn't have this in front 14 likely her number was accurate.
15 of me because | don't tweet. Okay. | don't know that | 15 Q What about the fact of her tweeting and then
16 even know how to get on and look at something like this. 16 Mr. Brefczynski's call; did that influence you at all,
17 So ldidn't -- I didn't know what the numbers were. But 17 have any influence on you?
18 what | said to him was that her numbers aren't wrong 18 A No.
19 usually and we need to think about -- | go, what was the 19 Q Allright. Any other conversations with any
20 question? Was it committed balance? Was it uncommitted | 20 members of the executive branch about Ms. Rodell or her
21 balance? What date? You know, was it the end of the 21 performance?
22 year? Was it -- because June 30 is the end of the year. 22 A Not her performance.
23 Ididn't hear all that. 1didn't listen to those 23 Q What about Ms. Rodell?
24 legislative sessions. 24 A  Yes.
25 So | was trying to talk to him about, you know, 25 Q What other conversations can you recall?
Page 63 Page 65
1 you need -- before you are certain that the number is 1 A Okay. So there was -- okay. What do you mean
2 wrong, you need to make sure it's apples to apples kind of 2 by the executive branch?
3 number. But he was very concerned. And I told him that | 3 Q Well, let's start with anybody working in the
4 would call Angela and talk to her about it. 4 governor's office.
5 Q And did you? 5 A Okay. Soyes. Randy Ruaro, the chief of staff,
6 A ldid. 6 called me to share concern about how a transaction was
7 Q What did you talk to her about? 7 booked at the Permanent Fund Corporation. And this
8 A Icalled her and | said to her, Angela, | am 8 transaction was the four-billion-dollar inflation-proofing
9 calling you as your friend. And she and | were very close 9 transaction. So what was ultimately transferred from the
10 friends prior to this. And | said, I'm asking you to be 10 ERA to the principal was something close to 5.8 billion.
11 mindful of what you tweet. And it's just -- it has a lot 11 So he was concerned about was that the right
12 of viewership, and | just want you be to be careful. 12 process, you know, what was the basis for moving 5.8
13 That's all | said. 13 instead of the four. And you know, he -- he just wanted
14 Q What was Ms. Rodell's response? 14 to understand it. He was concerned, | think, mainly
15 A She got very upset. She -- she -- | think that 15 because he didn't understand it. It wasn't really a
16 she overreacted to my comment because | was really trying | 16 reflection on Angela's performance. It was really just
17 to help her and support her because she's my friend, plus |17 more a concern.
18 | wanted to do what was right for the fund. | always want 18 And so we had -- | think, Craig had initiated a
19 to protect the integrity and the reputation of the fund. 19 request to get the support and the reason why 5.5 was
20 And she represents the fund, right? So -- but she did. 20 ultimately transferred, and then all the details of it, as
21 She got very emotional. 21 well as the supporting law around why it happened that
22 And she asked me if | was asking her to resign. 22 way.
23 And I said, no, absolutely not. That is not what this 23 Q When did this happen?
24 conversation is about at all. And I said, I'm calling you 24 A I'm thinking. | think it was in November. And
25 as your -- as your friend and just saying think twice 25 then he followed up again with me on the same topic in
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1 early December. 1 THE WITNESS: October it is.
2 Q Am | characterizing right that his questions 2 BY MR. SLOTTEE:
3 were more process-based versus substance? 3 Q So these are two calendar kind of entries that
4 A That's the way | interpreted it, yeah, because 4 were provided by APFC labeled APFC-SWEF 124 and 125. And
5 what we ended up doing was we provided all of the details | 5 we see on October 6 -- Tuesday, October 6, 1:45 p.m. to
6 that Angela had -- Angela and her team had provided to the | 6 2:05 p.m., fiscal year 2022 APFC budget development
7 board. And | don't remember the exact dates. I'm sorry. 7 meeting, Dunleavy governor. Do you see that?
8 But it's in that time frame. 8 A Yes,ldo.
9 Q Okay. Was it ultimately determined that was the 9 Q And there is also a meeting indicated on
10 appropriate way to handle that? 10 Tuesday, October 19.
11 A I'm not sure. | have discontinued my review of 11 MS. LEEAH: Can | just voice an objection for
12 that. I'm not sure what the governor's office is doing, 12 the record on discussions about the budget. | mean, that
13 if we are continuing to review that process. I don't 13 would be executive privilege.
14 know. 14 MR. SLOTTEE: Okay. I'm just going to be asking
15 Q Okay. Did you have any concerns over it? 15 about her discussions regarding --
16 A Alittle, yeah. 16 MS. LEEAH: | understand. You mentioned
17 Q And | guess to be specific, we are just talking 17 discussion, but | wanted to -- before you went there.
18 about the period before the decision was made to terminate 18 BY MR. SLOTTEE:
19 Ms. Rodell. 19 Q And then we see another meeting on October 19,
20 A Okay. Could you say that again. 20 2:00 p.m. to 2:45 with Governor Dunleavy. Do you see
21 Q Sure. Did you have concerns over the process 21 that, as well? It's on the second page.
22 that you were kind of working through before Ms. Rodell's 22 A Okay. What date?
23 employment was terminated? 23 Q The first one is October 6th.
24 A Oh, yeah. This was before. Before that, yeah. 24 A Right.
25 Q And did this play any -- was this factor in your 25 MR. PTACIN: The 6th and the 19th.
Page 67 Page 69
1 kind of -- was this issue raised during the trustee 1 THE WITNESS: Okay. The budget development
2 executive session? 2 meeting, is that what we are looking at? Oh, no. The
3 A No, no. 3 2:00 meeting. No. Which one?
4 Q Did it play any role in your consideration of 4 BY MR. SLOTTEE:
5 the question? 5 Q Let's start with the budget development meeting.
6 A No, not at all. It's process to me. 6 A Theonein '20.
7 Q Any other conversations with members of the 7 Q On October 6.
8 governor's -- of the governor's office regarding 8 A Yes. Okay.
9 Ms. Rodell? 9 MR. PTACIN: So the year is 2020.
10 A | had a conversation with the governor. 10 MR. SLOTTEE: You are right. October 2020.
11 Q Okay. When did that happen? 11 BY MR. SLOTTEE:
12 A Is that what you are -- 12 Q Did you discuss Ms. Rodell's performance during
13 Q Sure. When did that happen? 13 that 2020 meeting?
14 A It would have been Octoberish, | think. 14 A No.
15 MR. PTACIN: Of what year? 15 Q Okay. Then let's go to 2021.
16 THE WITNESS: Of '21. I'm trying to remember 16 A Okay. Which day?
17 the date. Okay. Please give me a moment, but it had -- | 17 Q October 19th. Let's start there.
18 let me -- let me tell you what it was. 18 A Which meeting? Which time?
19 MR. PTACIN: He may have a calendar, and that's 19 Q Thereis a 2:00 p.m. to 2:45 p.m. that
20 why I kind of raised this. 20 specifically references Dunleavy, governor. Does that
21 THE WITNESS: Okay. Yeah. If | had a calendar, |21 refresh your recollection about having a meeting with the
22 | could see what date it was. 22 governor?
23 MR. SLOTTEE: Okay. We will mark it as|Exhibit 23 A Imean, | have meetings with the governor. They
24 12, 24 don't -- the titles are never on. And so --
25 (Exhibit/No. 12 marked.) 25 Q Let me ask a general question, then.
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1 A I'mtrying to think about what this particular 1 employment?
2 meeting was. 2 A No. I'm sorry. ldon't remember the dates on
3 Q I guess my general question is: What do you 3 this.
4 recall about your -- you testified that you had a 4 Q Do you recall any other conversations with any
5 meeting -- a discussion with Governor Dunleavy about 5 member -- with the governor or any member of his staff
6 Ms. Rodell. 6 regarding Ms. Rodell's employment?
7 A Yes. 7 A Employment?
8 Q What do you recall -- it was in the October time 8 Q Yes.
9 frame is my understanding. 9 A No.
10 A Yes. 10 Q Do you recall any -- did you have any
11 Q What do you generally recall about that meeting? 11 discussions with the governor or any member of his staff
12 A Okay. Thank you. | can't remember the date. 12 or any representative of the governor about whether or not
13 MR. PTACIN: And just to clarify, what year? 13 Ms. Rodell's employment should be terminated?
14 Because you are being shown October 2020 and October 2021. | 14 A No.
15 THE WITNESS: The '21 is what I'd like to 15 Q Did you have a discussion with anybody prior to
16 respond to now. 16 the executive session in which the potential of
17 BY MR. SLOTTEE: 17 terminating Ms. Rodell's employment was brought up,
18 Q VYes. 18 besides, | think, the conversation you had with Mr. --
19 A Sometime in, | believe it was, October, 19 with Craig Richards that you previously testified to?
20 Commissioner Feige and | were meeting with the governor to | 20 A No. But full disclosure here, okay. | did have
21 establish our plans associated with ESG. You know what 21 aconversation with the governor in 2020. Okay. And it
22 thatis. Environmental, social and governance. We were 22 was aphone call about the Permanent Fund Corporation.
23 talking about ESG. Ithink Corri was in the room. 23 And the purpose of the call was to ask the governor --
24 Anyways, the governor just brought up the -- the fact, | 24 actually, I think it would have been in September 2020.
25 guess, that he -- you know what? Now that | think about 25 The purpose of the call would have been to ask the
Page 71 Page 73
1 this, was that '20? Or '21? Anyways, | don't remember 1 governor and try to get him to support incentive comp for
2 the date. 2 the Permanent Fund organization.
3 Q Okay. 3 And so, you know, we were asked by | think
4 A They were -- they were -- the governor brought 4 either Angela or Craig -- and this is Corri and I. we
5 up aconversation that he had had with Angela in regard to 5 were asked by either Angela or Craig to talk to the
6 Angela's discussion about converting the Permanent Fund 6 governor to see if we could get him to support the
7 Corporation to an ESG fund. And the governor asked me if 7 incentive comp because it would -- it would determine
8 | knew about that and what were my thoughts. 1| -- 8 whether or not we were going to put it in the budget
9 anyways, | didn't know about her comment, and he justtold | 9 and -- because he has the veto power. And we didn't want
10 me that he didn't support converting the Permanent Fund to | 10 Angelato have to go around and lobby all the legislature,
11 an ESG fund. And that was it. 11 get support for it to then just be vetoed. Right?
12 I did end up sending a follow-up email to Craig 12 So toward the end of that conversation, the
13 Richards about this and asked him if he thought that it 13 governor said, how is Angela doing? And | said, she's
14 was something that the trustees should talk about, 14 doing great. And Corri then said, yes, she's improving.
15 considering that Angela had talked with the governor about | 15 And | was surprised at that because | didn't -- | was
16 it. |thought, geez, should we talk about it. And he had 16 unaware that there were prior performance issues.
17 said it had been discussed before and there was no need. 17 Q Because you had just started?
18 Q Had been discussed before by the trustees? 18 A | had started in February, but this was my first
19 A |think so, yeah. 19 time going through -- I mean, | had only done two board
20 Q Okay. Did you have any conversation with 20 meetings, | think, by that point. So Corri said that her
21 Ms. Rodell about her going to the governor with that idea? 21 performance has improved, and he said, great. Good to
22 A No. 22 hear. And that was that.
23 Q Did you have any concerns about her going to the 23 Q Okay. Allright. Did you have any
24 governor with the idea that played a factor in your 24 conversation -- well, | think | asked that broadly, but
25 decisionmaking regarding the termination of Ms. Rodell's 25 just to make sure | hit all the bases, did you have any
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1 discussions with any members of the legislature or their 1 rather than taking this task in hand was demonstrative of
2 staff regarding termination of Ms. Rodell's employment 2 the CEO's discomfort with engaging her board openly and
3 prior to it actually happening? 3 honestly.
4 A No. 4 Was this your comment or was this -- to your
5 Q Okay. Go back to|Exhibit 7, which is the CEO 5 recollection?
6 performance evaluation, the summary. 6 A This was not my comment.
7 A Okay. 7 Q Okay. So do you recall other trustees having
8 Q Okay. So I'm going to turn to the second page, 8 issues with the manner in which Ms. Rodell brought on that
9 it's page 166. The second line, the second comment under | 9 mediator?
10 Q4, financial leadership, says, "Budget process could have | 10 A Yes, because | did, as | mentioned earlier. And
11 been managed better. Initial budget requests were not 11 hereis another comment. So another trustee did. |
12 well vetted by CEO prior to submission to the board." Is 12 don't -- so okay. | guess what | could do is, in order to
13 that what -- | think you previously testified about your 13 answer that is share what happened at the meeting --
14 concerns over the 2021 budget, at least the initial form 14 Q Okay.
15 ofit. 15 A --which is that there was concern about
16 A This would have been for the 2023 buget. 16 bringing the mediator on and the -- and Bill Moran was the
17 Q Sorry. 2023 budget? 17 chair, and so he asked people what they thought in regard
18 A Yes. 18 to should they proceed. And at the time, | was kind of
19 Q That's what you were -- you understand that's 19 ambivalent about it, but concerned because I just had
20 referring to that? 20 learned that Al Bolea was a mediator, so | felt like that,
21 A Yeah. That was my comment. 21 as | mentioned earlier, was inappropriate. The end result
22 Q The next line says, "CEO has a tendency to 22 was that the chair, Bill Moran, told the mediator that we
23 control financial and other information that goes to the 23 would not be having this discussion today. So what
24 board, executive branch, and legislature to help push her |24 that -- what I recall then is that the majority of the
25 own agenda." 25 trustees did not appreciate that.
Page 75 Page 77
1 In your point of view, did you view Ms. Rodell 1 Q Did that mediator issue, did that come up again
2 as having an agenda that was different than the Board of 2 during that 2021 executive session when discussing
3 Trustees? 3 Ms. Rodell's performance?
4 A No. 4 A Yeah, | think it did. | think it did. And |
5 Q Did you feel that she was controlling the 5 think that it kind of related to trust.
6 financial and other information that was going to the 6 Q Kind of to that issue, there is a couple -- the
7 board? 7 next -- the next comment, it says, "The director's
8 A You know, | don't really have enough information 8 relationship with the board has soured." There is also a
9 to know whether she would have been controlling it or not. | 9 reference to "a number of trustees in recent years have
10 But I would say no. | mean, | didn't feel that way. 10 lost trust in her veracity and leadership."
11 Okay. 11 Did you review Ms. Rodell's relationship with
12 Q And then did you hear from anybody from the 12 the board as soured?
13 executive branch complaining about the manner in which 13 A ldon't know if | would use the word "soured."
14 Ms. Rodell transmitted information either in terms of 14 |would say it was tense, and towards the latter half
15 controlling it or limiting the information that she -- 15 of '21, it felt like the meetings were just really
16 A No. 16 stressful. Andit's hard to put a -- put my finger on why
17 Q What about from -- the same question, but for 17 that was happening. But it seemed like maybe Angela was a
18 members of the legislature or their staff? 18 little on edge, and | don't know why, though. | can't
19 A No. 19 give you an example. It just felt that way.
20 Q If we turn to the next page, the top is Q6, 20 Q Did other trustees express to you that they had
21 board relations. And the first comment references -- kind 21 lost trust in Ms. Rodell's veracity and leadership?
22 of the third sentence there says: CEO tends to rely upon 22 A Inthe executive session, yes.
23 the resolutions and strategic plan as a shield when she 23 Q How many other trustees said that?
24 doesn't want board input. Hiring a mediator to manage the 24 A Iknow two for sure. I'm trying to think about
25 discussion of strategic plan without telling the trustees 25 thethird one, if he actually said it. Yeah. | would say
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1 three. 1 Q Do you recall who first brought up the issue or
2 Q Who would have been the three? 2 the potential for termination during that first day?
3 A Commissioner Feige, Commissioner Rieger -- not 3 A ldon't remember. There was a lot of back and
4 Rieger. I'm sorry. Commissioner Feige. Feige, Craig and | 4 forth, so --
5 Ethan. 5 Q Sowas -- it was kind of a conversational
6 Q What about you? Maybe we will break that in 6 approach versus you get to speak, you get to speak, you
7 two. Had you lost trust in her veracity, Ms. Rodell's 7 getto speak, or --
8 veracity? 8 A It was conversation, definitely.
9 A ldon't know what was meant by the word 9 Q Did you have any phone calls with any other
10 "veracity" in this. That's really hard for me to say. 10 trustees that night between the ending of the executive
11 That's what somebody else wrote. 11 session and the start of the executive session the next
12 Q Inyour understanding of how you would 12 day --
13 understand the word "veracity." 13 A No.
14 A Towards the end, | had -- | was -- well, 14 Q --in which you discussed Ms. Rodell?
15 obviously | questioned her leadership at the end. Okay. |15 A No, not that | recall. | went right home.
16 And I told you why. And | started to see that in 16 Q So any conversation with anyone between the
17 September in the Kodiak board meeting, but | wasn't 17 ending of the first executive session and the start of the
18 thinking about a termination. You know, | was just 18 second one about Ms. Rodell's employment?
19 starting to observe. 19 A No.
20 Q Well, during the -- during the executive 20 Q So you come back the second day and you start --
21 session, so the 2021 executive session, | know you 21 continue the discussion that had been started the prior
22 testified earlier that there had been a call from Chairman 22 day, right?
23 Richards sometime in, like, October, | think, or sometime 23 A Yes. Only there was -- the second executive
24 before the executive session. 24 session, Corri was participating because she wasn't there
25 A October or November. I don't remember. Yeah. 25 for the first day. It was just the five of us. And so
Page 79 Page 81
1 Q So let's say during the actual executive 1 for the -- the way it started out the second day was for
2 session, do you recall when was the first time that, okay, 2 usto listen to her opinion. And so we heard her opinion.
3 we need to think about potentially terminating 3 Q Okay. And then at one point during the second
4 Ms. Rodell's employment? Was that right at the beginning 4 day, was there any discussion during the second day about
5 of the meeting? Start of day two? Do you recall kind of 5 alternatives to termination?
6 where in the timeline it was? 6 A Trying torecall. Yeah. We had -- as | said
7 A Okay. Yeah. So the way the executive session 7 earlier, we had talked about whether or not additional
8 worked was | started the session by describing the survey, | 8 training would help. And you know, then folks said no,
9 you know, the percent response, you know, how it was 9 you know. This has been going on for many years. |think
10 conducted. | went through process. And then | went -- | 10 that's -- that's it.
11 talked through the survey results. And everybody listened | 11 Q Was -- when was the decision -- was there a kind
12 and participated. 12 of decision made during executive session that, yes, we
13 And there was no discussion of a termination 13 are going to terminate Ms. Rodell's employment?
14 until maybe three-quarters of the way through. It began 14 A We talked about towards the end after -- you
15 as adiscussion. But there were no decisions that were 15 know, we all talked for along time -- about how we would
16 made that first day. Everybody was still really 16 likely vote. And folks shared how they would likely vote.
17 contemplating it because, you know, it's a -- it's a 17 Q What was the overall vote at that time, the
18 significant -- a significant decision. 18 likely vote?
19 Q Uh-huh. 19 A Fiveto one.
20 A And so there was arecognition that it was 20 Q Five to one. Who was the one that was -- said
21 something that the trustees all needed to think about 21 they would likely vote against?
22 individually. And we agreed that that night we would -- 22 A Vote against the motion?
23 we would think about it. We would think about what each |23 Q Yeah.
24 other had said, and we would come back together the next | 24 A Yeah. Bill Moran.
25 day and we would talk about it again. 25 Q And is that what the ultimate vote was?
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1 A Yes. 1 big mistake because no one would ever be able to do the
2 Q Sowhere in this process was Ms. Rodell kind 2 job that she did and manage the fund as she did. She told
3 of -- was Ms. Rodell ever invited into the executive 3 us that there would be political ramifications for our

4 session? 4 decision. She told us that she was going to hold each one
5 A Yes. 5 of us individually accountable. It was very

6 Q Where in the process did that happen? 6 unprofessional.

7 A Attheend. 7 Q Did she provide any detail about what she

8 Q After you had already discussed how you were 8 thought these political ramifications would be or why she

9 likely to vote? 9 would hold you individually accountable?
10 A  Yes. 10 A No.
11 Q So at that point, the Permanent Fund 11 Q During your discussions over whether or not to
12 Corporation, in your view, understanding you are speaking 12 terminate Ms. Rodell's employment, did the issue of, hey,

13 for yourself and not on behalf of the committee, had 13 what are the political ramifications of this decision

14 already kind of made the decision that you were going to 14 going to be? Did that come up at all?

15 terminate Ms. Rodell's employment? 15 A No. We all focused on our fiduciary duty. And

16 A There was a consensus that that would be the 16 our first fiduciary duty was to the future of the fund.

17 direction; however, you -- nothing is final until you get 17 Q Were there discussions during -- you know,

18 out therein the public record and you cast your vote. 18 during executive session about, all right, we are going

19 And truthfully, | wavered on casting that final vote. 19 to -- we are going to go in a different direction with the

20 Q Soyou bring Ms. Rodell in. You invite her in. 20 executive director; what is the transition plan for

21 And so what happens after she comes in the room? 21 replacing her?

22 A Craig led the discussion with her. He -- he 22 A Atthe very end prior to Angela coming in, Craig
23 told her that the board would be moving in a different 23 brought it up.

24 direction. And I don't know his exact words, but that her |24 Q What was the nature of that discussion?

25 services were -- were no longer needed, or something like | 25 A He said we need to -- we need to talk about

Page 83 Page 85

1 that. 1 what -- what we are going to do in this transition period

2 Q Was she given an opportunity to kind of advocate 2 before we hire a new executive director. And | hadn't

3 for herself or make any comments in response? 3 even thought about any of that because | didn't know that
4 A No. 4 this was even going to happen. But he had suggested that
5 Q Was there a discussion between the trustees 5 Val Mertz be appointed acting director. And he talked

6 whether or not to give her that opportunity before you 6 about how he had alot of confidence in her and how she

7 made the final decision? 7 had actually -- she had actually done that role before.

8 A Yes. And it was decided that she would unlikely 8 And everybody agreed. And we all have a lot of confidence
9 be able to change the decisions because the problems had | 9 in Val. And she is doing areally good job, so --

10 been going on for many years. 10 Q Was there any discussion about whether or not

11 Q Okay. Was she given the opportunity -- how -- 11 you were terminating Ms. Rodell kind of immediately

12 so she was coming in. How long did Craig Richards kind of 12 versus, you know, having, you know, a target, quote,

13 talk to her about, hey, we are going to go in a different 13 unquote, retirement date or target separation date

14 direction? Was it just a couple sentences or was it this 14 somewhere in the future?

15 is why and kind of go into detail? 15 A Ithink that there was a very, very short

16 A No whys. It was short. Maybe five minutes, ten 16 discussion of that, but the conclusion was that it

17 minutes, if that. 17 wouldn't be good for the organization for her to be there
18 Q Uh-huh. Was she given the option to resign or 18 in a manner where she knew that she was being terminated.
19 be terminated? 19 That wouldn't -- that wasn't going to work.

20 A Yes. 20 Q Was that a consideration that was kind of

21 Q Did she have anything to say during the 21 specific to Angela's either kind of -- blanking on the

22 executive session? 22 word -- Angela's attitude or approach or just in general,

23 A Yes. 23 like just kind of abstractly?

24 Q What did she say? 24 A | think it's a combination of both is what you

25 A This is awful. She said that we were making a 25 said in general. Typically when you let executives go,
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1 you don't keep them hanging around. You just don't. So | 1 who do the buys and the sells have a very good

2 it was that, plus the potential for her to be angry, and 2 relationship, cohesive, work in harmony, collaborative

3 we didn't want that in the organization. 3 with the executive director so that we don't have

4 Q Did you feel that there was kind of a financial 4 attrition issues that could potentially impact returns.

5 risk that she would make a bad choice and do something 5 I have a vision that the organizations, both the

6 inappropriate after being told she was terminated or she 6 operations organizations and the investment organizations,
7 was going to be terminated? 7 work really well together as ateam. There is all this

8 A |didn't even think about that. 8 conflict that is going on there that she hadn't been able

9 Q Was there a discussion about the potential 9 to resolve.
10 impact on the Permanent Fund Corporation from kind of the | 10 And then additionally, the relationship with
11 view of third parties, like investment partners, the 11 some of the members of the board was in jeopardy. They
12 market in terms of making such a sudden change? 12 had lost confidence in her. So I considered all of that

13 A We didn't discuss that that | recall. 13 in terms of as we move forward and we really continue to
14 Q These were -- the two executive sessions that 14 grow, is this the right leader to lead us into the future.

15 were held in that December 2021 were the only executive 15 Then | also considered the history, you know,

16 sessions in 2021 in which Ms. Rodell's employment or 16 the historical performance reviews. And that -- that

17 performance was discussed? 17 was -- that was the foundation of my vote.

18 A | --Ithink you are asking me was her 18 Q Was your view of Ms. -- well, let me strike

19 performance discussed only in those two executive 19 that. Did the -- did the extent to which Ms. Rodell's, as

20 sessions. 20 you understood them, views towards the future of the

21 Q Correct. 21 Permanent Fund Corporation and how to fund Permanent Fund,
22 A The answer is yes. 22 the Permanent Found Dividend, did that play any role in

23 Q Did the trustees go through the written response 23 your decision to vote in favor of the termination of her

24 that Ms. Rodell provided both in her self-evaluation and 24 employment?

25 her response to the survey comments? 25 A No.

Page 87 Page 89

1 A Not in that meeting, no. | think it was 1 Q Did anyone from the governor's office or the

2 provided, but no -- no one talked about those. 2 executive branch ask you to seek the termination of

3 Q Did you consider her response in making your 3 Ms. Rodell's employment?

4 evaluation or decision? 4 A No.

5 A No. 5 Q Did anyone from the legislature or their staff

6 Q What's that? 6 members ask you to seek the termination of Ms. Rodell's

7 A No. 7 employment?

8 Q Why not? 8 A No.

9 A Imean,lreadit--Iread the response, and 9 Q Whatrole, if any, did the governor's overall

10 this -- what | learned here and what | heard from others | 10 agenda in regards to the Permanent Fund Corporation and
11 was more compelling to me than her response. 11 the Permanent Fund Dividend play in connection with your
12 Q Il guess let me ask this. | don't know if | 12 decision to vote in favor of Ms. Rodell's termination?

13 necessarily asked it specifically. From your point of 13 MR. BIRNBAUM: I'm sorry. | -- can we have a

14 view -- because you voted in favor of terminating 14 moment?

15 Ms. Rodell's employment, right? 15 MR. SLOTTEE: Sure.

16 A  Yes. 16 MS. LEEAH: Can we talk to Commissioner Mahoney
17 Q Why was Ms. Rodell terminated -- why was her 17 for a second?

18 employment terminated? 18 MR. SLOTTEE: Sure.

19 A What was my reason? 19 (Off the record.)

20 Q Yes. 20 BY MR. SLOTTEE:

21 A Okay. So | kind of already said it, but I'll 21 Q Do you want me to restate it again?

22 restate it. Hopefully I'm consistent. So my vision is 22 A The answer is no.

23 that the fund is a 100-billion-dollar fund by the year 23 Q No? Okay.

24 2030. And in order for that to happen, we need to have a | 24 Did you have any discussion about -- during that

25 very high performing team where the investment officers | 25 executive session about the manner in which you would
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1 inform the public about Ms. Rodell's termination? 1 but when they are populated, they are populated with a
2 A No. 2 different purpose.
3 Q Or about the reason for the termination? 3 Q What do you think the purpose of it is versus --
4 A No, not in that meeting. 4 as opposed to the 360-degree review?
5 Q When did that -- did that happen -- obviously 5 A Well, those type of surveys are populated at the
6 subsequent to that did you eventually have discussions 6 purpose of winning an award. A performance survey is more
7 about that? 7 associated with the nuts and bolts of what's really going
8 A Yes. 8 onin the organization.
9 Q Did you or -- did you inform the governor or 9  Q Didyou solicit any input from any of the APFC,
10 anybody in the governor's office about the decision to 10 Permanent Fund Corporation's, kind of third party, like,
11 terminate Ms. Rodell's employment before it was -- before | 11 investment advisors or investment investors -- or not
12 the -- before it was -- the vote was taken at the trustee 12 investors, but investment partners about their view of
13 meeting? 13 Ms. Rodell's performance?
14 A Before the vote was taken? 14 A No.
15 Q Right. 15 Q Did you ever hear any concerns from any third
16 A No. 16 parties about -- other than members of the legislature or
17 Q Okay. Are you aware of anybody else in the 17 the executive branch about Ms. Rodell's performance?
18 trustees communicating with the governor's office or 18 A No.
19 anybody in the executive branch during that executive 19 Q Okay. I'm going to give you what we are going
20 session about what was the -- the discussion regarding 20 to mark as|Exhibit 13,
21 Ms. Rodell's employment? 21 (Exhibit/No. 13/ marked.)
22 A I'm not aware of anyone, no. 22 BY MR. SLOTTEE:
23 Q Did any -- during that executive session on the 23 Q Okay. So thisis an email string. They are alll
24 second day when you were discussing the termination of |24 dated December 7th between -- it's between yourself and
25 Ms. Rodell's employment, did other trustees express 25 Craig Richards, December 7, 2021.
Page 91 Page 93
1 specific reasons for why her employment should be 1 A Yes.
2 terminated that you can recall, sitting here today? 2 Q And looks like you are attaching and sending
3 A Yeah. | said those earlier. 3 to -- at least the top line of the email is the weighted
4 Q Anything else besides what you have already 4 average results.
5 testified to? 5 A Yes.
6 A No. I mean, not that | recall. There were 6 Q And when you say "weighted average results,"
7 probably alot more than what | said. |just don't 7 what do you mean by that?
8 remember all of them. 8 A I mean it's the average of the total that
9 Q Did -- during that executive session, did -- was 9 responded.
10 there any discussion about the employee surveys other than | 10 Q What do you mean by "weighted average," though?
11 the 360-degree survey that had been taken of the APFC 11 A Okay. So for example, if you look at advocacy
12 employees over the prior year or two? 12 and external relations in regard to the board, if only
13 A The surveys using SurveyMonkey? 13 four responded and each one of them provided a different
14 Q No. The other surveys. There was, for example, 14 number, the weighted average of the four could -- could
15 the best place to work award that they received -- that 15 potentially -- it just shows the statistics of the
16 APFC received in the summer of 2021. Like, for example, 16 numbers.
17 was that -- was that brought up or discussed at all? 17 Q Okay. How much did this -- these kind of --
18 A ldon't recall. 18 these scores, the weighted average scores, did you
19 Q Did it factor into your evaluation at all that 19 consider these in making your decision to vote in favor of
20 you can recall? 20 terminating Ms. Rodell's employment?
21 A 1t did not factor into my evaluation. 21 A No.
22 Q Any particular reason why? 22 Q Why not?
23 A Because Il mean, | -- | like those surveys. | 23 A Well, actually, let me correct myself. |
24 think they are really good for morale and to really, you |24 considered them. Okay. Like | considered mostly like the
25 know, create a positive reputation for the organization; |25 investments -- | looked at all of them. | considered all
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1 of them, but | focused more of my opinion based on the 1 large influence on me when he said she was never going to
2 comments because these are just numbers. They -- they 2 changein regard to her management style. But his
3 tell a part of the story, but they don't tell the whole 3 comments overall about Angela -- | mean, he listened. He
4 story. 4 was quiet most of the time, but, yeah, | mean, he was --
5 Q Was there discussion in the executive session 5 he was positive.
6 about these numbers? Like for example, that the average 6 Q Why did his comments that she was never going to
7 overall was, what, 3.6 overall average, which is between, 7 change have an influence on you?
8 at least according to the scoring rubric at the bottom, 8 A Because | was focused on the future, like the
9 between meets most expectations and meets all 9 nextyear. And as | had said before, | really -- | really
10 expectations? 10 desired a high-performing team where there wasn't the
11 A |think that the 3.6 was mentioned, but it was 11 conflict with the investments group, investments and
12 not -- the numbers were not a big part of the conversation | 12 organizations. | wanted everyone to be cohesive and
13 at all, at least not that I recall. The conversation was 13 working together. And | know it's possible because |
14 more about what | said earlier, the experiences, the 14 manage the staff that manage 53 billion dollars. Okay.
15 historical performance, et cetera. 15 That's not that much different in terms of management than
16 Q Okay. Did Ms. -- did Mr. Richards ever either 16 a 83-billion-dollar fund.
17 ask you either by voice, text or email to take any 17 And the treasury department reports to me. We
18 particular approach in terms of filling out the survey or 18 don't have any of these issues. | was also on a couple of
19 adding any comments to the survey? 19 other boards that were investment boards, and | didn't see
20 A No. 20 thoseissues on those other boards, either. So to me this
21 Q Have you heard of anybody -- from any other 21 was an anomaly.
22 trustees that Mr. Richards asked them to do that, as well? 22 And when Bill said she wasn't going to change,
23 A No. 23 that was -- that was hard for me to -- to continue to
24 Q Not as well, but asked them to do that? 24 support her. And he -- he knows her longer than I do in
25 A No. 25 regard to her role as the ED.
Page 95 Page 97
1 Q So after the vote was taken to terminate 1 Q Because he was serving as a trustee before you
2 Ms. Rodell's employment -- so this was in public session 2 were serving as a trustee, correct?
3 after executive session -- the formal vote is taken, were 3 A Yeah.
4 you part of any direction being given to APFC in regards 4 Q What is your kind of best recollection as to the
5 to what they should do next in terms of turning off 5 primary separate reason of each trustee for voting in
6 Ms. Rodell's access as to IT, to emails, et cetera? 6 favor of terminating Ms. Rodell's employment? We can just
7 A No. 7 go trustee by trustee, if that's easier.
8 Q From your point of view and understanding 8 So Trustee Feige.
9 that -- was there -- in your view, was there a board 9 A Trustee Feige -- | think Trustee Feige didn't
10 consensus as to why Ms. Rodell's employment should be 10 like the way the meetings were run. She felt there was
11 terminated or did each individual trustee express a 11 not enough time for collaboration and discussion amongst
12 separate reason for why they would want to terminate her 12 the trustees. She thought it was planned that way. She
13 employment? 13 thought -- I don't like to say what other people think. |
14 A Well, I can't get inside each of their heads. 14 mean, this is --
15 Q Going off of what they said. 15 Q To the extent you recall the expressed reasons.
16 A Yeah. Because -- but my takeaway was that each 16 A Yeah. Ithink that she felt that Angela wasn't
17 of the five trustees had different reasons. 17 transparent. That's what | recall.
18 Q And then Bill Moran was the one trustee that 18 Q Okay. And what about Trustee Schutt?
19 voted against termination? 19 A What I recall him saying was in regard to his
20 A Yes. 20 concerns about the op ed relating to the government
21 Q Did he express any reasons why for why he was 21 shutdown. That's what | recall.
22 voting against termination? 22 Q Trustee Richards?
23 A Yeah. Let's see. He -- he thought -- he just 23 A He was concerned that she wasn't -- wasn't
24 thought Angela overall did a good job. He recognized that | 24 adhering to, like, the board direction, that she kind of
25 she had problems. He was surprisingly the one that had a | 25 had her own agenda.
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1 Q Did he express a view of -- what his view of her 1 Q Let's see. Which trustee -- Trustee Rieger, do
2 agenda was? 2 you recall any specific comments from him?
3 A No, not that | recall. 3 A Yeah. Trustee Rieger -- Trustee Rieger made a
4 Q Okay. Did he express kind of -- identify 4 comment that based on the discussions that we were having
5 specific board directives that he felt like she was not 5 in executive session that he could see that there was a
6 advancing? 6 lack of confidence in Angela and from -- you know, several
7 A He may have. | don't remember them. 7 of the trustees, and because -- and he just believed that
8 Q Anything else from Trustee Richards that you can 8 aboard really couldn't continue with that executive
9 recall? 9 director with that lack of confidence. Again, I'm
10 A No. 10 paraphrasing, you know. I'm trying to remember the high
11 Q Did you see any evidence of, like, personal 11 level points.
12 animus between Trustee Richards and Angela, going either 12 Q So there are two commissioners serving on the
13 way? 13 Board of Trustees, right?
14 A Yes. 14 A Uh-huh.
15 Q What type of personal animus did you see? 15 Q Did the fact that there is two commissioners --
16 A Ithink they just had a personality conflict. | 16 the fact that you don't want to be foreseen as diverging
17 don't know. You know, as Angela's friend, she shared with | 17 in your votes, that you want to try to vote as a block;
18 me some of the concerns she had, | guess, just about Craig | 18 did that factor in at all?
19 and the way he treated her. 19 A No. Corri and | have voted different ways. Not
20 Q What would those be? 20 onthatissue, but on other issues, so. Yeah, no. We are
21 A ldidn't see them, so it's hard for me to say. 21 both very independent in our thinking.
22 Q What did Ms. Rodell say they were? 22 Q What is your general view of the effectiveness
23 A I'm thinking. Okay. I'm trying to remember. | 23 of at least the stated policy in the APFC's governance
24 think | remember Angela saying that he just -- he just 24 manual about evaluating the executive director? You see
25 wasn't very nice. He just wasn't very nice to her. 25 ways to improve it, to make it better? Do you think it is
Page 99 Page 101
1 Q Did you see any instances of unprofessional 1 an effective method of evaluation or is there a different
2 conduct either from Mr. Richards to Ms. Rodell or vice 2 approach that you think would be better?
3 versa, Ms. Rodell to Mr. Richards? 3 A Ithink it's a guideline, and | think the
4 A You know, it was just -- it's really hard to 4 guideline is very typical and standard based on other
5 pinpoint. It was just stressful. There was tension. And 5 policies I've seen. And it's pretty basic, you know.
6 you could feel it in the room. You know, he -- he was 6 MR. SLOTTEE: Can we take just a quick break. |
7 motivated initially to, when | first kind of came on the 7 want to give Mr. Trickey a call.
8 board, to open up an office in Anchorage. And she -- she 8 (A break was taken.)
9 didn't really support that. And | think Craig felt like 9 BY MR. SLOTTEE:
10 when she put together the numbers to -- to quantify how 10 Q Commissioner Mahoney, would it be fair to say
11 much it would cost, | -- | think he didn't feel like they 11 that the trustees did not give any consideration to what
12 were realistic numbers. And that may have been an example | 12 the public would think about an immediate termination of
13 of her own agenda. 13 Ms. Rodell without a public explanation of the reasons at
14 Q Did you ever see an instance in which 14 the time the termination decision was being made?
15 Mr. Richards told her to "shut up"? 15 A You know, it wasn't discussed in the executive
16 A Shutup? 16 session, and we -- we do employ a communications director,
17 Q (Nods head.) 17 Paulynn. And so after the fact, Paulynn developed a
18 A No. Would that have been in a board meeting? | 18 statement, and it was released to the public. | don't
19 mean, | don't remember that. 19 recall -- I think it just said -- | don't recall the
20 MR. PTACIN: You don't ask questions. 20 details of it, but that's what was released.
21 THE WITNESS: Sorry. Sorry. 21 Q Was that statement kind of run through the board
22 MR. PTACIN: It's okay. 22 for approval or was that --
23 MS. LEEAH: Inquiring minds. 23 A Yes, after the fact, yeah.
24 THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. 24 Q Allright. | mean, were you surprised at the
25 BY MR. SLOTTEE: 25 reaction to the termination?
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1 A The reaction of who? 1 REPORTER S CERTI FI CATE
2 Q Public reaction or, | guess, maybe the 2 I, MARY A\ VAVRIK, RVR Notary Public in and for
3 legislative reaction to the termination. 3 the State of Alaska, do hereby certify:
4 A Yes. 4 That the witness in the foregoing proceedings was
5 Q Why were you surprised? 5 duly sworn; that the proceedings were then taken before me
. 6 at the time and place herein set forth; that the testinony
6 A 1--you know, | -- I guess | just hadn't ) )
. 7 and proceedi ngs were reported stenographically by me and
7 thoughtaboutit. 1 wasn't focused on that. 1was 8 later transcribed under ny direction by conputer
8 focused --focused on what was in front of me. 9 transcription; that the foregoing is a true record of the
9 Q Okay. Solmean, sitting here today and kind of 10 testinony and proceedings taken at that tine; and that |
10 looking back, is there something that you would want to 11  amnot a party to nor have | any interest in the outcome
11 have done differently regarding the process that either -- 12 of the action herein contained.
12 that led to the termination of Ms. Rodell's employment or 13 IN W TNESS WHERECF, | have hereunto subscribed ny
13 subsequent to that? 14  hand and affixed ny seal this 15th day of June 2022.
14 A What should we have done different? | haven't 15 .
15 thought about that, either. Okay. So that's why I'm 16 4\‘\ 0\ \f\“‘ 7
16 thinking on the spot. This kind of matter is extremely 17 L wlv\ i '
17 uncomfortable, no matter what process you have in place. 18
18 So it was -- it was going to be difficult, and it was NAR_Y A VAR K_’
19 difficult. 19 Regi stered 'NEI'It Reporter
Notary Public for Al aska
20 In hindsight, would | have done anything 20
21 different? You know, there is always little things, | 21 M, Commission Expires: November 5, 2024
22 guess, you can improve on, but would it have changed the | 5,
23 outcome? You know, I'm talking about the process. 23
24 Q Uh-huh. 24
25 A The outcome wouldn't have changed. Idon't -- | 25
Page 103 Page 105
1 know the outcome wouldn't have changed. 1 FErrata Sheet
2 Q I mean, sitting here today, do you think the 2
3 outcome was still the correct decision? 3 NAME OF CASE: ALASKA LEG SLATIVE BUDGET & AUDIT COW TTEE
4 A Yes, especially her closing words. 4  DATE OF DEPCSI TION: 06/ 14/2022
5 Q Oh, after you -- after she was told that she was 5 NAME OF WTNESS: LUCI NDA MAHONEY
6 being terminated, her reaction to that? 6 Reason Codes:
7 A Yeah. Ithink all the trustees were very taken 7 1. To clarify the record.
8 aback at that, and it probably validated their decisions. 8 2. To conformto the facts.
9 MR. SLOTTEE: Okay. No further questions. 9 3. To correct transcription errors.
10 MR. PTACIN: Great. 10 Page Li ne Reason
11 MR. SLOTTEE: Thank you very much, Commissioner. | 11 From to
12 Appreciate your time. 12 Page Li ne Reason
13 (Proceedings adjourned at 11:50 a.m.) 13 From to
14 (Signature reserved.) 14 Page Li ne Reason
15 15 From to
16 16  Page Li ne Reason
17 17 From to
18 18  Page Li ne Reason
19 19 From to
20 20 Page Li ne Reason
21 21 From to
22 22 Page Li ne Reason
23 23 From to
24 24
25 25
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Charter of the Board of Trustees

INTRODUCTION

1. The State of Alaska has establshed the Alaska Permanent Fund Corporatin
(APFC) to manage and invest the assets of the Alaska Permanent Fund and other
funds designated by law (Fund). [AS 37.13.040]

2. The Board of Trustees of the APFC (Board) consists of six members appointed by
the Governor. Two of the members are required by law to be heads of principal
departments of state government, one of whom shall be the commissioner of
revenue. Four members shall be appointed by the Governor from the public with
recognized competence and wide experience in finance, investments, or other
business management-related fields. [AS 37.13.050]

DuTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Governance
3. The Board wil establish a committee structure that it considers necessary and
appropriate.

4, The Board will establish charters setting out the duties and responsbbilities of:

(a) The Board of Trustees;

(b) The Chair and Vice Chair of the Board;
(c) The Committees of the Board;

(d) The Investment Advisory Group; and
(e) The Executive Director.

5. The Board will establish governance policies as necessary, including bylaws and
other Board standards, to ensure effective operation of the affairs of the Board.

6. The Board wil establish a process for the evaluation of the performance of the
Executive Director and wil conduct such performance evaluation annualy.

Investments

7. In managing and investing the assets of the Fund, the Board is required to exercise
the judgment and care under the circumstances then prevaiing that an
institutional investor of ordinary prudence, discretion, and inteligence exercises in
the designation and management of large investments entrusted to it, not in
regard to speculation, but in regard to the permanent disposttion of funds,
considering preservation of the purchasing power of the Fund over time while

1
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maximizing the expected total return from both income and the appreciation of
capttal. [AS 37.13.120]

8. The Board will establish an investment policy which shall include the Board's overall
investment phiiosophy, as well as other related policies as necessary for the
effective management and investment of the assets of the Fund.

9. The Board wil establish a framework and process for the management of the
investment risk of the Fund, which shall be set out in the investment policy .

10. At least every five years the Board wil review the investment policy and approve
the long-term or strategic asset allocation of the Fund in terms of the proportion
of total assets to be invested within @ minimum-maximum range at any point in
time.

Finance, Acocounting and Audit

11.  The Board wil ensure that appropriate financial and operational controls and
procedures are in place to safeguard the assets of the Fund.

12.  The Board will ensure that audits of these controls and procedures are conducted
from time to time by an independent external auditor in order to ensure that the
assets are properly accounted for, and that the investments of the Fund are in

accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

13.  The Board wil ensure that annual financial statements of the Fund are prepared
and that these statements are audited by an independent external auditor. It will
approvethe annual financial statements, and include them as part of an annual
report for distrbution to the Governor, the Legislature and the public. [AS
37.13.170]

Operations and Human Resources

14.  The Board wil appoint an Executive Director and review the performance of the
Executive Director annualy.

15. The Board wil establish a four-year strategic plan for the APFC and review the
strategic plan annually.

16.  The Board wil approvean annual operating budget for the APFC.
17. The Board wil establish human resources policies and procedures necessary for

the effective management of the APFC, including a compensation and benefit
policy and a succession plan for the senior management of the organization.
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Communications

18. The Board wil establsh a communications policy which sets out guidelines with
respect to how the Board and individual trustees should communicate with:

(a) The staff of the APFC;

(b) Service providers;

(c) The media, including social media such as Facebook, LinkedIn, and Twitter and
(d) Other external parties.

Appointments

19.  The Board wil approvethe appointment of the following key service providers and
advisors:

(@) The External Auditor;

(b) The Custodian;

(c) The Investment Consuftant;

(d) The members of the Investment Advisory Group; and
(e) At the Board’s election, any other service providers.

Monitoring and Reporting

20. The Board wil establish a policy which sets out its requirements regarding the
reports the Board will receive on a regular basis in order to meet its responsibilty
for the oversight of the management of the APFC.

21.  The Board wil review on a regular basis, without limitation, the following:

(@) The investment performance of the Fund and each asset class, including the
costs of managing the Fund;

(b) The asset allocation and investment risk of the Fund; and

(c) The complance program of the Fund and the APFC in relation to applicable
laws and regulations, as well as all policies, proceduresand bylaws established
by the Board.

22. The Board wil review the compliance of the Board, ts committees, the Chair and
Vice Chair of the Board, and the Executive Director with the duties and
responsibiities set out in their respective charters.

23.  TheBoard will review all policies established by the Board as frequently as required
under the terms of the individual policy.

REVIEW AND AMENDMENT OF THE CHARTER
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25.

Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation
Charter of the Board of Trustees

The Governance Committee will review this Charter at least once every three (3)
years and recommend any amendments to the Board for approval as necessary to
ensure that the Charter remains relevant and approprite.

The Board of Trustees adopted this Charter on September 24th™, 24th 2020.
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Charter of the Audit Committee of the Board

INTRODUCTION

1. The Board has established an Audit Committee (“the Committee”) to assist the
Board in the financial oversight of the APFC.

2. The Board has established this Charter which sets out the duties and
responsibilties of the Committee.

ROLE
3. The role of the Audit Committee will be to:

() Monitor the integrity of the financial reporting process and the system of
internal controls and procedures regarding finance, accounting, and legal

compliance;

(b) Review the performance and independence of the APFC's external audiors;
and

(c) Provide an avenue of communication among the external audiors,
management, the Chief Financial Officer, and the Board.

AUTHORITIES

4. The Committee will have the authority to conduct any investigation appropriate to
fulfil its responsbilties.

5. The Committee will have direct access to the external auditors, as wel as all APFC
management and staff, legal counsel, as well as al advisors, consultants and
investment managers of the Fund.

6. The Committee may retain, at the expense of the APFC and consistent with

applicable procurement requirements, consultants or experts it considers
necessary in the performance of its duties.

OPERATING PROCEDURES

7. The Committee wil consist of at least three Trustees, each of whom must have a
basic understanding of finance and accounting and be able to read and understand

financial statements.
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8. The Committee wil meet at least two times annualy, or more frequently as
circumstances dictate. The Committee Chair will approve an agendain advance of
each meeting.

9, The Committee will invite members of management, auditors, or other

professionak as deemed necessary, to attend meetings and provide pertinent
information. The Committee may meet in executive sessions as necessary within
the requirements of the Alaska Open Meetings Act [AS 44.62.310].

10.  The Committee wil maintain minutes or digital recordings of Committee meetings
and periodically report to the board of Trustees on significant results of the
Committee’s activities.

11. The Committee wil annualy perform a seff-assessment of the Committee’s
performance.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
Financial Reporting and Internal Controls

12. The Committee will carry out the following responsibilities with respect to financial
reporting and internal controks:

(a) Review the annual audited financial statements prior to fiing or distribution of
the final report. This review should include discussion with management and
external auditors of significant tssues regarding accounting principles,
practices, and judgments;

(b) In consultation with management, the external auditors, and the Chief
Financial Officer, consider the integrity of the financial reporting processes and
controls; discuss significant financial risk exposuresand the steps management
has taken to monitor, control, and report such exposures; and review
significant findings prepared by the external auditors and the Chief Financial
Officer together with management's responses;

(c) Discuss any significant changes to applicable accounting principles and any
items required to be communicated by the independent auditors;

(d) At least annually, review with the APFC's counsel any legal matters that could
have a material impact on the Fund’s financial statements, the APFC's

compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and any inquiries received
from regulators or governmental agencies; and

External Audit

13. The Committee will have the following responshbilties with respect to the APFC's
external auditors:
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(a) Review the external auditors' audit plan - discuss scope, staffing, locations,
refance upon management, and general audit approach;

(b) Consider the external auditors' judgments about the qualty and
appropriateness of the APFC's accounting principles as applied in its financial
reporting;

(c) Discuss with management and the external auditors the qualty of the
accounting principles and underlying estimates used in the preparation of the
Fund’s financial statements;

(d) Discuss with the external auditors the clarty of the financial disclosure
practices used or proposed by the APFC;

(e) Review the performance and independence of the auditors and periodically
recommend to the Board the appointment of the external auditors or approve
any discharge of auditors when circumstances warrant; and

(f) On anannual basis, review and discuss with the external auditors all significant
relationships the auditors have with the APFC that could impair the audtors'
independence.

REVIEW AND AMENDMENT OF THE CHARTER

14.  The Governance Committee, in consultation with the Audit Committee, and staff
wil review this Charter at least once every three (3) years and recommend any
amendments to the Board for approval as necessary to ensure that the Charter
remains relevant and appropriate.

15.  The Board of Trustees adopted this Charter on September 24th, 2020.
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Charter of the Governance Committee of the Board

INTRODUCTION

1. The Board has established a Governance Committee (“the Committee”) to assist
the Board in the governance of the APFC.

2. The Vice Chair of the Board wil serve as the Chair of the Governance Committee.
The Vice Chair may act on behalf of the Governance Committee in performing the
duties set forth in this Charter with the approval of the ful Board.

DuTies AND RESPONSIBILITIES
Governance

3. The Governance Committee wil review the charters of the Board, its committees,
the Chair, the Vice Chair, the Investment Advisory Group, and the Executie
Director, as well as the governance policies of the Board as frequently as required
under the terms of the individual charter or policy. The Committee wil recommend
any proposed changes in the charters and policies to the Board for approval as
necessary.

4, The Committeewil review compliance by the Board, its committees, the Chair, the
Vice Chair and the Executive Director with the duties and responsibilities set forth
in their respective charters.

5. The Committee wil ensure that the Board undertakes an evaluation of the
performance of the Executive Director annually. It wil supervise and coordinate
the process by which the evaluation is conducted, including developing and
recommending to the Board an evaluation survey, meeting with the Executive
Director to discuss the evaluation results, and preparing an evaluation report.

6. Every three years, the Committee will review and update the senior management
personnel (including Executive Director, Chief Investment Officer, Chief Risk
Officer and Chief Financial Officer) succession plan.

Strategic Planning and Budgeting

7. The Committee will assist the Board in establshing a Strategic Plan. It will

undertake a comprehensive review of the Plan every three to four years, and
supervise the preparation of a new Strategic Plan.

Monitoring and Reporting
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8. The Committee will review and approve any changes to the list of reports that the
Board will receive on a regular bass as set out in the Monforing and Reporting
Polcy.

REVIEW AND AMENDMENT OF THE CHARTER

9. The Governance Committee will review this Charter at least once every three (3)
years and recommend any amendments to the Board for approval as necessary to
ensure that the Charter remains relevant and appropriate.

10.  The Board of Trustees adopted this Charter on September 24th, 2020.
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Charter of the Chair of the Board

INTRODUCTION

1. Alaska Statute37.13.050 requires the Board to elect a Chair annually from among
its members.

DuTIes AND RESPONSIBILITIES

2. The Chair will perform the duties and responsibilties and exercise the powers as
specified below:

(a) Appoint the members of the committees of the Board and the committee chairs
(other than the chair of the Governance Committee);

(b) Coordinate Board meetings, agendas, schedules and presentations, in
consultation with the Executive Director;

(c) Preside at the meetings of the Board and ensure that such meetings are
conducted in an efficient manner and in accordance with Alaska’s Open
Meetings Act and agreed-upon rules of order;

(d) Facilitate effective and open communications between the Board and the
Executive Director;

(e) Act as one of the official spokespersons for the APFC, together with the
Executive Director;

(/) Review and approve travel and other expenses of the members of the Board
of Trustees;

(g) Review and approve travel outside of the United States and other expenses of
the Executive Director; and

(h) Carry out any other duties and responshilties as assigned by the Board.

REVIEW AND AMENDMENT OF THE CHARTER

3. The Governance Committee will review this Charter at least once every three (3)
years and recommend any amendments to the Board for approval as necessary to
ensure that the Charter remains relevant and appropriate.

4. The Board of Trustees adopted this Charter on September 24th, 2020.
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Charter of the Vice Chair of the Board

INTRODUCTION

1.

The Bylaws of the APFC establish the Vice Chair as an officer of the Board. The
Vice Chair is elected annually.

DuTties AND RESPONSIBILITIES

2.

The Vice-Chair wil perform the duties and responsibilities and exercise the powers
as specified below:

(a) Assume the duties of the Chair when the Chair is absent, or when the Chair
designates the Vice-Charr to act in that capacty;

(b) Temporarily act as the Chair in the event of death, resignation, removal from
office, or permanent disabilty of the Chair, until the election of a new Chair;

(c) Serveas the Chair of the Governance Committee; and

(d) Carry out any other duties and responsibilties as assigned by the Board.

REVIEW AND AMENDMENT OF THE CHARTER

3.

The Board of Trustees will review this Charter at least once every three (3) years

and make any amendments as necessary to ensure that the Charter remains
relevant and appropriate.

The Board of Trustees adopted this Charter on September 24th, 2020.
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Charter of the Investment Advisory Group

INTRODUCTION

1. The Board of Trustees has established an Investment Advisory Group consisting
of at least one but not more than three individuals who have considerable
knowledge and experience in the management and investment of large
endowment or trust funds to serve as independent advisors to the Board of
Trustees.

2. This Charter sets out the duties and responsibilities of the Investment Advisory
Group, which includes evaluating Fund performance, asset alocation, the merits
of specific investment proposals, and other investment topics identified by the
Board.

3. The Board wil have full authority over the selection and appointment of the

members of the Investment Advisory Group who wil serve at the pleasure of the
Board.

DuTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

4, The Investment Advisory Group (or “IAG”) members are expected to attend in-
person at least three of the quarterly Board meetings and present at least one
topic annually for the Board'’s consideration on best practices in the management
of large instttutional funds, with input from the Board on the specific topic for
presentation.

5. The IAG will provide comments to the Board on the following issues:
(a) The long-term or strategic asset alocation of the Fund;
(b) The risk management framework of the Fund;
(c) Any changes to the investment policy;
(d) Any proposed investment in new asset classes;
(e) Any proposed investment in new or innovative investment products or

strategies, particularly those involving alternative or non-traditional asset

classes;

(f) Any significant changes to the investment management structure of the Fund,
including the following:

12
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i}  Therelative proportion of assets in an asset class managed by external
investment managers versus internal staff;
i)  Thereltive proportion of assets in an asset class managed using active
versus passive investment strategies;
i)  The total number of active nvestment managers or portfolios in an
asset class; and

(g) Any other issue at the discretion of the Investment Advisory Group or as
requested by the Board.

6. The IAG shall make contact with the Chief Investment Officer prior to each quarterly
Board meeting to discuss topics on the agenda for the upcoming meeting, including:

(@) Fund performance for the quarter;

(b) Changes being considered or implemented to the asset allocation or
investment policy; and

7. Each Quarter, the Staff shall provide documentation included as a regular Board
report, demonstration that the IAG had met with the CIO as required in Section 6.

8. Any special topics that are to be discussed at the upcoming Board meeting.

9. Each member of the Investment Advisory Group will annually visit the Juneau office
of the APFC and attend in-person an investment committee meeting of the APFC Staff.

REVIEW AND AMENDMENT OF THE CHARTER

10.  The Governance Committee will review this Charter at least once every three (3)
years and recommend any amendments to the Board for approval as necessary to
ensure that the Charter remains relevant and appropriate.

11.  The Board of Trustees adopted this Charter on September 24th, 2020.
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Charter of the Executive Director

INTRODUCTION

1. Alaska Statute 37.13.100 states that the Board of the APFC may employ and
determine the salary of an Executive Director.

2. The Bylaws of the APFC state that the Executive Director will be the chief executive
officer of the Corporation and serve at the pleasure of the Board. The Bylaws, set
out, in general terms, the duties of the Executive Director.

3. The Board has, for greater clarity, established this Charter which sets out, in more
specific terms, the duties and responsibilties of the Executive Director.

4. The Executive Directormay delegate certain of these duties to staff. The Executive
Director wil, however, remain responsble for ensuring that these duties are
carried out.

Duties AND RESPONSIBILITIES
Leadership

5. The Executive Director will provide executive leadership to the APFC in setting and
achieving its mission, goals and objectivesand wil manage the APFCin accordance
with guidelines and parameters established by the Board. In doing so, the
Executive Director may solicit advice and counsel from the Board as necessary.

Policy Development

6. The Executive Director will providesupporttothe Board in establishing the policies
of the Board. This wil involve working with the Board and the Governance
Committee to identffy issues requiring Board policy, conducting the necessary
analysis of such issues and providing clear and well-supported policy
recommendations for Board approval.

Investments
7. The Executive Director will develop and recommend to the Board:

(a) An investment policy, including the Board’s overall investment philosophy, and
mechanism for monitoring and managing investment risk;

(b) The long-term or strategic asset allocation of the Fund in terms of the
proportion of total assets to be invested within a minimum-maximum range at

any point in time; and
14
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8. The Executive Director wil implement all investment policies and strategies as
approved by the Board.

Finance, Acoounting and Audit

9, The Executive Director will direct that appropriate financial and operational
controls and procedures are put in place to safeguard the assets of the Fund.

10. The Executive Director will direct and supervise a review of the Corporation’s
internal controls and procedures to ensure that the operations of the Corporatin
are performed in a secure and appropriate manner.

11.  The Executive Director will direct and supervise the preparation of annual financial
statements of the APFC and cooperate in the audt of these statements by an
independent external auditor prior to their submission to the Audit Commitee for
its review.

12.  The ExecutiveDirectorwil prepare and coordinate management'’s response to any
issues of significant concern on the part of the external auditor, and wil meet and
discuss with the Audit Committee the findings of the audt.

Operations and Human Resources

13.  The Executive Director will develop and recommend to the Board the overal
organizational structure of the APFC.

14.  The Executive Director will be responsible for managing the day -to-day operations
of the APFC.

15.  The Executive Director will have the authority to make all necessary operational
expenditures, consistent with budgets, policies, and internal controk established
by the Board.

16.  The Executive Directorwil have the authority to executeall formal documentsand
contracts on behalf of the APFC.

17.  The Executive Director wil develop and recommend to the Board:

(a) A strategic plan; and
(b) An annual operating budget for the APFC.

18.  The Executive Director will select and employ the staff necessary to manage the
APFC and develop appropriate staff training and development programs.

19.  The Executive Director will develop and recommend to the Board human resources
polcies and procedures necessary for the effective management of the APFC,
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including a compensation and beneftt policy and a succession plan for the senior
management of the organization.

20. The Executive Director will determine the appropriate level of compensation for
staff within the benefits and compensation policy approved by the Board.

Communications

21, The Executive Director wil develop and recommend to the Board a
communications policy which sets outs guidelines with respect to how the Board
and individual trustees will communicate with:

(a) The staff of the APFC;

(b) Service providers;

(c) The media, including social media such as Facebook, LinkedIn, and Twitter;
and

(d) Other external parties.

22. The ExecutiveDirector wil serve as one of the official spokespersonsfor the APFC,
together with the Chair of the Board.

Appointments

23.  The Executive Director will direct and supervise the conduct of al necessary due
diigence that s appropriate in the search and selection of all service providers of
the Fund.

24.  The Executive Director will develop and recommend to the Board the appointment
of the following key service providers and advisors:

(@) The External Audtor;

(b) The Custodian;

(c) The members of the Investment Advisory Group;
(d) The Investment Consultant; and

(e) Other service providers as the Board may direct.

25.  The Executive Director wil be responsible for the selection and appointment of all
other service providers not appointed by the Board.

26.  The Executive Director wil negotiate and execute the terms and provisions of all
agreements and contracts with the service providers of the Fund, including those
appointed by the Board.

Monitoring and Reporting

27. The ExecutiveDirector wil develop and recommend to the Board a monitoring and
reporting policy which sets out the Board’s requirements regarding the reports it
will receive on a regular basis in order to meet its responsibilty for the oversight
of the management of the APFC.
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28.  The Executive Director wil provide the Board with all relevant and appropriate
information in a timely manner so as to enable the Board to meet its
responsbilties.

29. The Executive Director wil monitor on an ongoing bass, without mitation, the
following:

(@) The investment performance of the Fund, asset classes, and investment
managers and portfolios, including the costs of managing the Fund;

(b) The asset allocation and investment risk of the Fund; and

(c) The complance of the Fund and the APFC with all applicable laws and
regulations, as wel as al policies, procedures and bylaws established by the
Board, including those set forth in the Board standards.

30. The Executive Director will periodicaly review the performance, level of service
and fees of the service providers appointed by the Executive Director.

31. TheExecutiveDirectorwil direct and supervise the preparation of an annual report
of the APFC for distribution as required by Alaska Statute 37.13.170.

REVIEW AND AMENDMENT OF THE CHARTER
32. The Governance Commitee wil review this Charter at least once every three (3)
years and recommend any amendments to the Board for approval as necessary to

ensure that the Charter remains relevant and appropriate.

33.  The Board of Trustees adopted this Charter on September 24th, 2020.
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OBIECTIVES OF THE POLICY

1. The Board of Trustees of the APFC has established this Board Polcy Development
Processin order to meet the following objectives:

(a) To set out the process by which the Board will develop and establish the
policies of the Board; and

(b) To ensure that the process s sound and reasonable and provides the Board
with effective policies that achieves the goals and objectives of the APFC.

PoLiCcY GUIDELINES
Roles and Responsibilities
2. The role of the Executive Director in the policy development process wil be to:

(a) Assist the Board in identifying appropriate areas or subject matters in which a
board policy may be required;

(b) Provide the Board with sound and comprehensive analysis of the underlying

issues;

(c) Undertake any research and analysis required in the development of the
proposed policy, with the assistance of external advisors and consultants if
necessary; and

(d) Prepare a draft of the proposed policy for the Board’s consideration.

3. The role of the Board is to review the proposed policy, including the research and
analysis undertaken, and approvei if the Board determines that the policy will
achieve the goak and objectives of the APFC.

Development and Approval

4, Any member of the Board, a Board committee, or the Executive Director may
propose to the Board that it consider the development of a new Board policy .

5. In determining whether a particular matter warrants a Board polcy, the Board
should consider whether t meets the following criteria:

(a) The matter may have a significant impact on the APFC’s abilty to achieve its
goals and objectives;
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(b) &k s an ongoing concern which &5 expected to come up again or remain
indefinttely; and

(c) It is notan operational matter that would otherwise fall within the responsbilty
of the Executive Director.

6. If the Board determines that the matter warrants a Board policy, it wil pass a
motion directing the Executive Director to prepare and submit a draft polcy to the
Board for its consideration.

7. A Board polcy should contain, at a minimum, the following sections:

(a) Objectives of the policy — what the policy s intended to achieve;

(b) Policy guidelines — the actual terms and provisions of the policy ; and

(c) Review and amendment of the policy — how often the policy wil be reviewed,
and the date(s) on which the policy was adopted and/or amended.

8. The Board wil approve thefinal language of a polcy by a roll call vote.

Maintenance and Review

9. Al Board polcies wil be maintained in up-to-date form in a single volume or a
series of volumes within the APFC's offices, and will be accessible to trustees, staff

and the public. Trustees will be provided with a copy of the Board policies which
will be updated as necessary.

10. The Board wil formally review a Board policy within the time period specified in
the policy, but no less frequently than once every three years. Any Trustee, Board
committee, or the Executive Director may propose to the Governance Committee
that a particular policy be reviewed earlier than required.

REVIEW AND AMENDMENT OF THE POLICY

11.  The Governance Commitee wil review this Policy at least once every three (3)
years and recommend any amendments to the Board for approval as necessary to
ensure that the Policy remains relevant and appropriate.

12.  The Board of Trustees adopted this Policy on September 24th, 2020.
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Strategic Planning and Budgeting Policy

OBIJECTIVES OF THE PoLICY

1.

The Board of the APFC has established this Strategic Planning and Budgeting
Polcy in order to meet the folowing objectives:

(@) To ensure that the APFC plans, in a delberate and systematic way, for the
future needs of the organization; and

(b) To achieve a consensus among the Board and staff on how those needs and
priorities are going to be met.

PoLicY GUIDELINES

The Strategic Plan

2.

The APFC will establish a Strategic Plan, extending over a period of four years into
the future, to be reviewed and updated annually, which wil address, without
imitation, the following:

(a) The mission of the APFC;

(b) The philosophy and core values of the organization;

(c) The goals and objectives of the APFC over the four-year period;

(d) An evaluation of the external environment in which the APFC operates;

(e) An assessment of the organization’s internal resources and capabilties; and
(f) The strategies for achieving the APFC’s goals and objectives.

The Strategic Plan will include a list of the specific projectsand intiatives to be
started and/or implemented over the next fiscal year, including for each project or
intiative:

(@) ks potential beneftt or impact;
(b) Responsibiity for implementation;
(c) Timeline for completion; and

(d) Budgetary implications.

The Board, with the assistance of the Executive Director, wil undertake a
comprehensive review of the Strategic Plan at least every four years.
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The Planning and Budgeting Process

5. The Executive Director wil review and update the Strategic Plan annualy and
present a report to the Governance Committee that includes:

(a) A review of the implementation of the Strategic Plan for the currentfiscal year;
and

(b) The updated Strategic Plan, including the current projects and inktiatives in
progress to be carried forward and new intigtives tobe undertakenin the next
fiscal year.

6. The Executive Director wil present to the Board semi-annually a variance report
on the current year's Budget that provides:

(a) A comparison of actual expenditures versus the budget; and
(b) An explanation for significant differences in actual and budgeted amounts for
any budget item.

7. The Executive Director will prepare and present to the Board annually a proposad
Budget for the next fiscal year which provides:

(a) A breakdown of the Budget by line tem, and within each lne tem by major
expense category;

(b) A comparison of each budget item to the current year’s budget and actual
expenditure (projected to year-end);

(c) An explanation of significant changes from the previous year for any budget
item; and

(d) The identification of budgetary amounts tied to any project or intiatives in the
Strategic Plan for the next fiscal year.

8. Any significant revisions to the Strategic Plan or Budget must be reviewed and
approved by the Board.

9. The Executive Director shall inform the Board Chair in a timely manner, if for any
reason, a particular project or initiative cannot be implemented or completed as

planned.

REVIEW AND AMENDMENT OF THE POLICY

10. The Governance Committee will review this Policy at least once every three (3)
years and recommend any amendments to the Board for approval as necessary to
ensure that the Policy remains relevant and appropriate.

11.  The Board of Trustees adopted this Policy on September 24th, 2020.
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Monitoring and Reporting Policy

OBJECTIVES OF THE PoOLICY
1. The Board of the APFC has established this Monitoring and Reporting Polfcy in

order to set out ts minimum requirements with respect to the reports it expects
to receive on a regular bask.

PoLicy GUIDELINES

2. The Board will receive the reports specified in the Appendix to this Policy. The
reports wil be provided on a regular basis at the frequency indicated in the
Appendix.

3. The Board may receive additional reports on an ad hoc basis as necessary.

4. Any request by Trustees for additional reports to be provided on a regular basis
wil require approval by the Board and an amendment to the Appendix of this
Policy.

REVIEW AND AMENDMENT OF THE POLICY

5. The Governance Committee will review this Policy at least once every three (3)
years and recommend any amendments to the Board for approval as necessary to

ensure that the Policy remains relevant and appropriate.

6. The Board of Trustees adopted this Policy on September 24th, 2020.
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Monitoring and Reporting Policy

APPENDIX
Governance Reports
Name of Report Frequency |Prepared By |Description of Report

1. Review of Every 3 years | Staff Report on the findings and
Governance Policies recommendations of the Board's review of
and Charters its governance policies and charters. There

could be separate reports, for policies one
year and charters another year.

2. Governance Report Every 3 years | Third Party or | Report on compliance with governance

staff policies and charters. This report should be
part of the Board’s review of its policies
and charters, and produced with the same
frequency, i.e. every 3 years, with separate
reports for policies and charters.

3. Executive Director Annual Vice Chair, or Report on the results of the Executive
Performance Third Party Officer’s performance evaluation.
Evaluation Report

4. Board Education Annual Staff Report on the activities of the Board and
Report its members with respect to education.

S. IAG Report Quarterly Staff Report on conpliance with IAG

requirements
Investment Reports
Name of Report Frequency |Prepared By |Description of Report

6. Investment Monthly and | Staff and/or Report on the asset allocation and

Performance Report Quarterly Investment investment performance of the Fund,
Consultant including the performance of asset classes

7. Risk Management Quarterly Staff and/or Report on the investment risk of the Fund,

Report Investment its asset classes and investment portfolios.
Consultant

8. Asset Allocation At least every 5 | Staff and/or Report on the findings and

Study years Investment recommendations of a review of the long-
Consultant term or target asset allocation policy of the
Fund.

9. Review of the At least every 5 | Staff and/or Report on the findings and
Fund’s Investment years Investment recommendations of a review of the
Policies Consultant investment policy statement and related

policies and procedures of the Fund.

10. Review of the Quarterly Staff and/or Report on the performance and strategies
Fund’s Investment Investment of the investment managers of the Fund.
Managers Consultant
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Monitoring and Reporting Policy

Name of Report Frequency |Prepared By Description of Report
11. Annual Financial Annual Staff and Report on the financial position and
Report, including: External Auditor | activities of the Fund.
» Audited Financial
Statements
= Management’s
Discussion and
Analysis
= Auditor’s Opinion
12. Cybersecurity/IT Every 3 years | Staff and/or Report on the safety and security controls
Audit Third Party of the Fund.
Planning and Budgeting Reports
Name of Report Frequency |Prepared By Description of Report
13. Budget Variance Semi-Annual | Staff Report on the implementation of the
Report current year's budget, showing the
variance between actual and budgeted
expenditures.
14. Operating Budget Annual Staff Report on the proposed budget for the
next fiscal year,
24
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ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION

Trustee Education Policy

OBJECTIVES OF THE PoLicy

1. The Board of the APFC has established this Trustee Education Poky with the
folowing objectives:

(a) To ensure that the members of the Board have access to the knowledge and
information necessary for them to fulfil their fiduciary duties as trustees of the
Alaska Permanent Fund; and

(b) To assist them in becoming well informed in all matters pertaining generally to
the management of a large institutional fund, both public and private, and
more specifically to the management and investments of the Fund.

PoLicY GUIDELINES
2. The education program for Trustees wil be based on the folowing principles:

(a) The program should include both in-house education, so that Trustees can
share in a common base of knowledge and information relevant to their tasks,
as wel as external conferences and seminars, so that Trustees can benefit
from exposureto alternative perspectives and interaction with trustees of other
organizations;

(b) There should be diverse sources for education, beyond APFC staff and current
service providers, including other external consultants, advisors and experts,
so that Trustees may benefit from a wide range of views and opinions; and

(c) Trustees are expected to participate in any in-house education sessions that
may be organized for their benefit, including an orientation session for new
Trustees. They are also encouraged to attend external conferences and
seminars.

3. The education program wil consist of the following:

(a) A formal orientation for new Trustees;
(b) A Trustee Reference Manual containing key information about the APFC;
(c) In-house education, including:
i) At the request of the Board, an annual education session
ii) Seminars and briefings from time to time;
iii) Selected reading material provided by staff; and
(d) External conferences and seminars.

25
APFC-SWEF 000104





Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation
Trustee Education Palicy

Orientation Program

4. The Executive Director will develop an orientation program designed to introduce
new trustees to all relevant operations of the APFC, and to the duties and
responsbilties of the Trustee. The aim of the orientation program wil be to
ensure that a new Trustee s in a position to contribute fully to the delberations
of the Board, and effectively carry out their duties and responsibities as soon as
possible after joining the Board.

5. The orientation program should include the following:

(a) A briefing by the Executive Director on the history, mission, organization and
operations of the APFC;

(b) A briefing by the Chief Investment Officer on the investment philosophy, asset
allocation, investment managers, and the major investment portfolios of the
Fund;

(c) A briefing on the laws and regulations governing the APFC, the fiduciary duties
and responshbilities of the Trustees, the Board Charter, Committee structure,
Bylaws and other Board standards including disclosure requirements;

(d) A briefing on administrative policies and procedures relating to Board
members;

(e) An introduction to the APFC’s website and the educational resources avaiable
there for Trustees; and

(f) A briefing by the Chair of the Board and the Executive Director on the major
issues currently before the Board.

6. The new Trustee will also, as part of the orientation program, be provided with
the folowing:

(a) The Trustee Reference Manual;

(b) Selected articles and papers on the APFC and institutional fund management;
(c) A st of upcoming conferences and seminars; and

(d) The most recent Annual Report, including the audited financial statements.

Trustee Reference Manual
7. The Trustee Reference Manual will include the following:

(a) The laws and regulations governing the Alaska Permanent Fund;

(b) The Bylaws of the APFC;

(c) The Charters and Governance Policies established by the Board;

(d) A list of Board committees and committee members;

(e) Names and contact information for Trustees, members of the Investment
Advisory Group and the Executive Director;
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Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation

Trustee Education Policy
(f) Organization chart of the APFC;
(g) List of the APFC’s major service providers; and
(h) The Investment Policy for the Fund.
In-house Education
8. The Board will periodically conduct assessments of its educational requirements to

ensure t wil be provided with the knowledge and information necessary to
discharge its functions.

9, Trustees are encouraged to attend, if scheduled, an annual educational session
which may be organized either by the Executive Director or in conjunction with
other Alaska public funds such as the Alaska Retirement Management Board.

10. The Executive Director wil, from time to time, organize short seminars or
presentations on various topics by APFC staff and service providers, as well as
other external consultants, advisors and experts. The Executive Director wil
consult with Trustees to identify topicsof special interest or relevance to the Board,
taking into account the resutts of the educational needs assessment. These
sessions may be organized ether as part of regular Board meetings or as stand-
alone events.

11.  The Executive Director wil also provide Trustees with relevant and appropriate
reading material (e.g., journal articles, research studies, news clippings, etc.).

External Conferences and Seminars

12.  The Executive Director wil maintain a kst of conferences and seminars that
Trustees may wish to attend, with expenses to be paid for by the APFC upon
approvalof the Chair. The Executive Director will update the fist from time to time
taking into account new information and feedback from previous conference

attendees.

13.  The Executive Director will notify the Board of upcoming conferences on a regular
basis at Board meetings.

14.  Trustees are free to attend any other conferences, seminars, or workshops, other
than those recommended by the Executive Director. The potentil rembursement
of expenses incurred by Trustees will be subject to prior approval by the Chair.

Trustee Education Report

15.  The Executive Director will present to the Board annually a report on the various

educational activities undertaken by the Board and individual Trustees during the
year.
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Trustee Education Policy

REVIEW AND AMENDMENT OF THE POLICY

16.  The Governance Committee will review this Policy at least once every three (3)
years and recommend any amendments to the Board for approval as necessary to
ensure that the Policy remains relevant and appropriate.

17.  The Board of Trustees adopted this Polcy on September 24th, 2020.
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ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION

Board Communications Policy

OBJECTIVES OF THE PoLicy

1. The Board has established this Board Communications Polcy in order to faclitate
effective communication by the Trustees with each other, and with APFC staff and
service providers, the media and other external parties.

PoLICY GUIDELINES
Communication among Trustees

2. Trustees are free to communicate with each other on matters concerning the
APFC, subject to the requirements of Alaska’s Open Meetings Act.

Communication with Staff

3. While Trustees have the right to communicatewith any member of the APFC staff,
they should direct questions and requests for information regarding the APFC's
management and operationsto the Executive Director or senior management staff.

4, Any guestion or request for information which can reasonably be expected to take
up a significant amount of time, effort or resources on the part of APFC staff or
service providers should be made through a formal request at a Board or
committee meeting or with the consent of the Chair of the Board.

5. Trustees may directly contact the Executive Director or members of the senior
management staff or APFC legal counsel, with any other question or request for
which an answer or response i readly available or can be quickly and easily
obtained.

Communication with Service Providers

6. Trustees should communicate with the APFC's investment managers and other
service providers on matters concerning the APFC generally at Board or committee
meetings, or through staff. ¥ Trustees have any questions or wish to request any
information from service providers, they should contact the Executive Director or
a member of the senior management staff.

7. If Trustees do communicate directly with a service provider, they should be careful
not to disclose any privieged information, make any commitments on behalf of
the Board, or provide any special treatment or favoritsm to the service provider.
Trustees should disclose the nature of any communication with the service
provider that is important or material to the APFC to the Board at their earliest
convenience.
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Board Communications Policy

8. Trustees should refer any investment opportunties or proposals they receive from
a service provider which may be of relevance to the APFC directly to the Executive
Director.

9. The provisions of Section 6 through 8 above wil not apply to Trustees’
communication with the Investment Consultant, the Investment Advisory Group,

the Auditor and APFC legal counsel.
Communication with the Media and Other External Parties

10.  The Chair and the Executive Director will both serve as the official spokespersons
for the APFC.

11.  In their role as spokespersons, they should communicatein a manner consistent
with the established policies and decisions of the Board and should not make
comments which represent their personal views.

12.  The Executive Director wil be responsible for all “press releases” or written
communications with the media. Such communications should clearly and
accurately represent the actions and decisions of the Board.

13. Al Trustees, including the Chair, are free to communicate with the media on
matters concerning the Board or the APFC in their capacity as individual Trustees.
If approached by the media for interviews or information on the APFC, they may
refer the matter to one of the official spokespersons. If Trustees do communicate
with the media, they should observe the folowing guidelines:

(3) Trustees, other than the Chair, should not speak on behalf of the Board unless
specificaly authorized to do so by the Board;

(b) I authorized to speak on behalf of the Board, Trustees should folow the
provisions of Section 11 above; and

(c) I Trustees, including the Chair, are speaking as individual Trustees, they
should indicate that they are doing so, and not speaking on behalf of the Board.

14.  Any written material on the APFC prepared by Trustees for publication or general
distribution should be submitted to the Executive Director for review prior to its
publication or distribution. The review wil be only for the purpose of verifying the
accuracy of the material to ensure that the APFC is not being inadvertently
misrepresented.

REVIEW AND AMENDMENT OF THE PoLICY
15. The Governance Committee will review this Polcy at least once every three (3)

years and recommend any amendments to the Board for approval as necessary to
ensure that the Policy remains relevant and appropriate.
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16.  The Board of Trustees adopted this Poficy on September 24th, 2020.
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ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION

Executive Director Performance Evaluation Policy

OBJECTIVES OF THE PoLICY

1. The Board of Trustees of the APFC has established this Executive Director
Performance Evaluation Polcy with the following objectives:

(a) To ensure that the Executive Director receives appropriate and useful feedback
on their performance from the Board on an annual basis; and

(b) To help develop clear and meaningful performance objectivesfor the Executive
Director.

PoLicY GUIDELINES
Roles and Responsibilities

2. The Board wil be responsible for evaluating the performance of the Executive
Director on an annual bass.

3. The Governance Committee will be responsible for intiating and coordinating the
performance evaluation process.

4, The Board may retain the services of an independent third party to faciitate and
administer the performance evaluation in order to ensure the integrty and
confidentiality of the process.

Evaluation Survey and Criteria

5. The Board will establish a survey to provide Trustees with a tool for evaluating the
performance of the Executive Director based on a number of criteria, including the
following:

(a) Achievement of the goals and objectives of the APFC;

(b) Completion of the specific projects and initiatives set out in the strategic plan
for that fiscal year;

(c) Implementation of Board policies and reporting requirements;

(d) General leadership and management skills; and

(e) Compliance with the Executive Director’s charter.

6. The Governance Committee, with the assistance of the Executive Director, will
develop and recommend to the Board the design of the survey.
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The Evaluation Process

7. The Vice Chair, acting as Chair of the Governance Committee, wil meet with the
Executive Director to review the evaluation survey and criteria and agree on any

changes.

8. Towards the end of the calendar year and before the fourth quarter meeting of
the Board, the Vice Chair wil distrbute a package of materials to each Trustee
which may include the following:

(a) A report prepared by the Executive Director on their achievements for the
previous year, including the Executive Director’s own assessment of the extent

to which the evaluation criteria were met;
(b) The strategic plan and budget for the fiscal year or a summary thereof; and
(c) The evaluation survey, containing the evaluation criteria, to be filed out by the
Trustee.

9. Trustees should complete the survey and return it to the faciitator within a
specified period of time. The faciltator wil tabulate the resuits of the survey,
present a report summarizing the results to the Governance Commitee, together
with the completed evaluation surveys. The Committee wil review the report and
submit it to the Board.

10. The Board, consistent with Alaska’s Open Meetings Act, wil meet in executive
session to review and discuss the results of the Executive Director’s performance
evaluation. The Governance Committeewil prepare a draft Evaluation Report, with
the Executive Director’s assessment and the summary of the evaluation results
attached as appendices.

11. The Board, consistent with Alaska’s Open Meetings Act, wil meet with the
Executive Director in executive session to discuss the results of the performance
evaluation and any opportuntties for improvement.

12.  The Board wil then approvethe final Evaluation Report, folowing which the Charr,
Vice Chair and the Executive Director will each sign the Evaluation Report.

13.  TheVice Chair will cause thesigned Evaluation Reportto be placed in the Executive
Director’s personnel file.

REVIEW AND AMENDMENT OF THE PoLICY

14. The Governance Committee will review this Policy at least once every three (3)
years and recommend any amendments to the Board for approval as necessary to
ensure that the Policy remains relevant and appropriate.

15.  The Board of Trustees adopted this Policy on September 24th, 2020.
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Board Standards

OBJECTIVES OF THE STANDARDS

1. The Permanent Fund was established by Article IX, Section 15 of the Alaska
Constitution. The statutory purpose of the APFC s to manage and invest the
assets of the Permanent Fund. The Trustees’ conduct s subject to Alaska
Constitution and Statutes, regulations under the Alaska Administrative Code, and
various other rules and policies. The Board of Trustees has established the Board
Standardsto identify applicable rules and policies and provide further guidance to
Trustees in conducting their affairs and activities as Board members.

PoLicYy GUIDELINES

2. Trustees wil conduct themselves with honesty, integrity, decorum, and

professionalism in all aspects of their duties, and in their interaction with fellow
trustees, APFC staff, service providers, and other external parties.

With Respect to Compliance with Laws, Regulations and Policies

3. Trustees will abide by all appliicable laws and regulations, including, in particular,
the following:

(a) Alaska Statutes at Title 37, Chapter 13;

(b) Alaska Administrative Code at Title 15, Chapter 137;

(c) APFC Bylaws;

(d) The Alaska Open Meetings Act and regulations thereunder;

(e) The Alaska Executive Branch Ethics Act and regulations thereunder,
administered by the Department of Law; and

() The Alaska Conflict of Interest Act and regulations thereunder, administered
by the Alaska Public Offices Commission (APOC).

4, Trustees will abide by all policies of the APFC.

With Respect to Confidentiality and Use of Information

5. Trustees wil respect the confidentiality of all information pertaining to the APFC
to which they become privy to by virtue of their posttion. They will not disclose
any confidential information to any external party unless required to do so by kaw.

6. Any information on the APFC that Trustees request in their capacity as Trustees

wil only be to fulfil their responsbilties as Trustees of the APFC and not for use
in their own personal or business affairs.
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With Respect to Enforcement of the Board Standards

7. The Chair of the Board wil enforce and attempt to rectify any breach of the Board
Standards.

8. I a Trustee has reason to beleve that a material violtion of the Board Standards
has taken place, they wil notify the Chair (or the Vice Charr if the alegation &
against the Chair) and the Executive Director.

REVIEW AND AMENDMENT OF THE POLICY

9. This Policy will be reviewed periodically and amended by the Board as necessary
or appropriate.

10.  The Board of Trustees adopted this Policy on September 24th, 2020.
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From: Rieger, V

To: Mahoney, Lucinda; Richards, Craig; Rodell, Angela; Brown, Chad
Subject: Executive Director Performance Review
Date: Wednesday, November 4, 2020 2:39:08 PM

| hope everyone is doing well.

The annual performance review process for the Executive Director is ready to get going. At
the end of last week | chose Vicki Graham as the consultant to assist in the process. Her plan
for her first step will be to talk by phone individually to the three members of the Governance
Committee, plus Chad Brown and Angela Rodell, to get a better feel for issues and priorities as
well as to get a picture of what the process has been in prior years. I've asked Chad to assist in
coordinating times for each phone call.

Following that, Ms. Graham plans to design a questionnaire to be circulated to the six
trustees, plus a questionnaire to be circulated to top staff and possibly also to a sample of
others in the organization. She will receive the responses confidentially, and anonymize the
feedback.

In the time between the receipt of the feedback and the December Board meeting, Ms.
Graham will provide a summary of all the feedback to Angela Rodell, and Angela will have an
opportunity to prepare a response and possibly a self-evaluation as well.

At the December Board meeting the Governance Committee will have an executive session
with all six trustees present, where | anticipate we will first meet without Angela to review the
feedback and response, and then we will meet with Angela. Unless something unexpected
comes up, | don’t anticipate that we will need to have a separate Governance Committee
meeting prior to the executive session at the December Board meeting.
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APFC CEO Performance Evaluation

Q1 What is your role within APFC?

ANSWER CHOICES
Staff (1)

Direct Report (2)
Board Member (3)
Prefer Not To Say (4)

Prefer to 'Opt Out’ (5)
TOTAL

BASIC STATISTICS

Minimum Maximum
1.00 5.00

Answered: 21 Skipped: 0

RESPONSES
23.B1%

33.33%
23.81%
9.52%

9.52%

Median fMean
2.00 2.48

1/21

21

Standard Deviation
1.22
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ANSWER CHOICES
Investments (1)
Operations (2)

Neither (3)
TOTAL

BASIC STATISTICS

Minimum
1.00

APFC CEQ Performance Evaluation

Q2 Please designate your organizational affinity.

Answeret] 19
Maximum Median
3.00 2.00

2/21

Skipped- 2

RESPONSES
21.05%

31.58%

47.37%

Mean Standard Deviation
2.26 0.78
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APFC CEO Performance Evaluation

Q3 Strategic development: - Effectively implements and models
APFC's mission, vision, and purpose- Engages the board in strategic
direction- Considers evolving trends and factors and adjusts plans
accordingly

Ansvered 1S Swkipned 2

EXCEEDS MEETS ALL MEETS MOST  MEETS SOME  DOES NOT NA TOTAL WEIGHT
EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS MEET AVERAG
) 2 3) (4) EXPECTATIONS
(5
(no 15 79% 26.320% 2211% 15.79% 0.00%  0.00%
Iabel) 3 5 8 3 0 0 19 3

BASIC STATISTICS

Mimmum Maximum Median Mean Standard Deviation

100 4.00 3.00 2.58 0.94

# PLEASE PROVIOE COMMENTS TO HELP INFORM YOUR RANKING. DATE

1 Angela has made significant etfons in this regarg, last two strategic retreats in 2016 and 2018 12/2/2020 2:42 PM

have been very helpful in this regard

2 APFC's mission and strategic vision 1s well understood by its employees, and Angela has the 12/1/2020 1:57 PM
Corporation revisit the strategic plan on a regular basis. She bnngs Board members into the
strategic planning session and makes sure that all stakeholders are engaged.

3 My rating does not have a high degree o convicuon. yet. since | have only a number of 12/1/2020 7:34 AM
months of direct experience to base it on.

4 | feel that Angela is guite active in not only facilitating the current strategic plan but guite often 11/30/2020 6:44 PM
asks tor thoughts and vision going forward for the organization. Angela has also done a great
job lacilitating the organizaticn through the pandemic in my rind.

5 Have seen increased engagement n sharing mission, vision and purpose of APFC, Doing well 11/30/2020 3:56 PM
with engaging Board in strategic direction. | dort have a sense of how evolving trends are
applied (o adjusting APKC plans.

6 b year stralegic planning sessions are beneficial to this process 11/30/2020 9:55 AM

7 Good at seeing the big picture. Has lots of cutward facing contact (o stay infcrmed about 11/30/2020 9:19 AM
markets, whal peers a'e doing, etc.

8 Angela trequently reminds staff about the strategic plan and our core values and challenges 11/30/2020 9:11 AM
staff to honor these in our daily work at APFC. APFC slill sutfers, on some level. from some
staff working together with other like-minded staff in silos that don't always interact as a single
team with unified goals. In my opinion, the responsibility for this problems rests with more than
Jjust Angela and unul all of the affected sialf are valiing to acknowledge thewr role and work
toward solving tius problem, APFC will continue to be adversely impacted by these silos.

9 CEO Rodell implements and models APFC's mission, vision, and purpose effectively and wath 11/30/2020 8:05 AM
strength through her words and actions She brings the core vajues of APFC into her
conversations and the decisions she makes She 1s an outstanding leader engaging the board
and stalf alike. it has been a pleasure to work closely with her - | teel like | can leam a lot from
her and appreciate the work she i1s doing for the Fund, the Corporation, and Alaskans.

10 Bnings forward interesting topics to Board for censideration. Monitars achievement if strategic 11/29/2020 5:54 PM
objectives.
11 | belleve Angela is keenly focused on APFC's mandate, fully cogmzant of evolving landscape. 11/27/2020 12:54 PM

Engagement with the board and other stakeholders is central to her effons
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Q4 Financial leadership:-

throughout the organization-
place to protect organization's financial health-

APFC CEO Performance Evaluation

Identifies and mitigates risks to fund-
Controls costs and ensures resources are allocated appropriately
Ensures internal control systems are in
Provides sufficient and

clear information about financial progress and results

Answered: 19 Skipped 2

BASIC STAIISTICS

Khmmum
100

.
(&)

She nrought i the fust Chie’ Risk Of“:icer the: fund has ever had 1o enswe the risks are
mit.gated. We cut chairs out of our remodel to ensure e stayed withir budget even itl our
counterpats suggest 1g things |+ e everyone goes over budget | beheve there are more intemal
controls and systems 11 place now thar ever before

Angela takes stewardship and prudence of the Fund very seriously. Working with the IT and
Administrative Depantments during this pandemic. she has made sure that staff has had the
necessary resources to completely fulfill any needs that their duties required while working
remotely. She has also worked with stalf to get a solid disaster recovery plan created.

Same comment as above regarding limited months of observation. It does appear that she
pays careful attention tc the administrative budget and is on top of all the policies and
procedures.

The first bullet is where Angela excels for sure in identifying and mitigating perceived risk to
the fund. She also relies heavily on her staff to give her accurate information and she trusts
it... then makes tough intemal decisions that arent always popular but are probably the most
prudent. Angela is always results-oriented.

| helieve that at times resources are not allocated appropriately throughout the organization.
These should align better with the strategic goals. As an organization we still have issues with
staff retention due to compensation which is not comparable to other similar organizations
across all roles.

The office remodel that she over saw was very expensive at $4+ million dollar, was poorly
executed and added little to no bencfit to the organization.

Authonty i1s delegated to staff to perform these functions as noted. Intemal reposting sys:ems
are o~ place through the annual financial audit, monthly fr-ancial and pe-formance repons and
the risk dashnoard. The COO position has not been filled - prozerly structured it ~.ouid bring
needed support Lo internal control systemns and alleviate sirain on existng staff.

Angela requires staff to consider cost savings as a valuable viay to I'mprove ‘und returns.
However because 111s very complicated to allocate all APFC cost to specific assets classes
port‘olic managers/siaft appear less concerned about costs tha: won't negatively iImpacl
returrs. In time this gap needs 10 -emedied. Our new contract management system may help
wth this issue.

| do not ‘ecl qualihed 1o answer

Coordinated a great nsk tulerance session for trustees

4/21

EXCEEDS MEETS ALL MEETS MOST MEETS SOME DOES NOT N/IA TOTAL  WEIGHTI
EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS MEET AVERAG
(2) (3) (4) EXPECTATIONS
(5)
10.53% 3..58% 31.58% 15 79% 5.26%  5.26%
? 6 6 3 1 it 19 3
Max mum Median NMean Standard Deviation
590 390 272 1.04
PLEASE PROVIDE COMMENTS TO HELP INFORM YOUR RANKING. DATE

12/3/2020 6:38 PM

12/1/2020 1.57 PM

12/1/2020 7:34 AM

11/30/2020 6:44 PM

11/30/2020 5:56 PM

11/30/2020 10:14 AM

12/30/2023 9:55 AM

11/30:,2020 9:11 AM

11/30/2020 8:05 AM
11:29/2028 5:54 PM
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APFC CEO Performance Evaluation

Has led efforts to ensure risk management and control frameworks Keep pace with growing
scale of fund and fast changing operating environment.

5/21

11/27/2020 12:54 PM
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Q5 Advocacy and external relations:-

APFC CEO Performance Evaluation

and the public- Engages external stakeholders in a professional,
effective manner- Seeks out speaking engagements to provide fund

visibility-

Outwardly communicates to public and legislators about
APFC's vision, goals, and progress

Answered: 19 Skipped. 2

EXCEEDS MEETS ALL MEETS MOST MEETS SOME DOES NOT N/A TOTAL
EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS MEET
@ @ (3) (03] EXPECTATIONS
(5)
{no 36.84% 31.58% 15.79% 15.79% 0.00% 0.00%
label) 7 6 3 3 0 0 19
BASIC STATISTICS
Minimum Maximum Median Mean Standard Deviation
1.00 4.00 2.00 2.11 1.07
# PLEASE PROVIDE COMMENTS TO HELP INFORM YOUR RANKING. DATE
i She is constantly talking to external stakeholders (rotary groups, chambers of commerce, 12/3/2020 6:38 PM
legislators, etc.) to help educate them on what we do.
2 Bringing the IFSWF conference to Juneau, in my opinion, causes Angela to exceed 12/1/2020 1:57 PM
expectations in external relations. She regularly speaks in public forums and at civic
engagements. Along with her Communications team, she strives to keep legislators very well
informed about the workings and needs of the Fund.
3 Again here, my rating does not have a high degree of conviction yet because of the limited 12/112020 7:34 AM
amount of months of observation. She appears to be very willing to speak to groups that
request it, ana is beefing up the outreach effort, and has been willing to engage legislators.
with more time it will be possible to give a more informed rating on effectiveness.
4 Angela is a very public figure in “today’s Alaska" as the state relies so heavily on the fund. | 11/30/2020 6:44 PM
feel she does a tremendous amount of public and stakeholder education,
5 would like to see more general public engagements regarding importance of how fund is 11/30/2020 3:56 PM
managed in the current climate and with POMV distributions. Feedback on presentations given
to various investment or business organizations is good, but perhaps expanding the audience
to a more general, grassrools level, is in order.
6 Emphasizes transparency in reporting. Places high value on communications plan. Actively 11/30/2020 9:19 AM
participates in public speaking opportunities and conferences.
7 This is the area that Angela is the most valuable to APFC and the State. Angela has cultivated  11/30/2020 9:11 AM
a good working relationsnip with the Legislature and vanous Adminis:rations She uses these
relatonshins 1¢ get her ang the Board's message heard and understood.
8 CEQ Rodell 1s an excellent face of the Corporation, Fund. and Alaska. She 1s h'gnly respected 113342020 8:05 AM
throughout :he investing community, on a global scale. She is soaght after 10 keynote and
patucipate in virtual meetings and corferences. CEO Rodell has a strong Commurications
po nt person dedicated to seeking out speaking engagements and communicating i
legislazors. CEO Rodell stnives 0 educate Alaskans on the =und and 1S an engaging speaker
relaying the vision. goals. and miss on of the Corporation
¢ Angela is very visible in Alaskan community. Frequent speaker. 12/291202G 5:54 PNV
N Has been an outstanding ambassagor of the fung, the state and community in the giobal stage 11127:202C 12:54 P\
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APFC CEO Performance Evaluation

Q6 Board relations:- Collaborates with the board to set the strategic

direction for the organization- Provides opinions and perspective on
Board topics- Responsive to Board's direction and feedback-
Keeps the board informed of important developments and issues-

Maintains direct communication with Trustees

regarding her opinion regarding trustee decisions.

7/21

Answered: 19  Skipped: 2
EXCEEDS MEETS ALL MEETS MOST MEETS SOME DOES NOT N/A TOTAL WEIGHTI
EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS MEET AVERAG
1) (2) 3) (4) EXPECTATIONS
®)
(no 5.26% 47.37% 26.32% 10.53% 5.26% 5.26%
label) 1 9 5 2 1 1 19 3.
BASIC STATISTICS
Minimum Maximum Median Mean Standard Deviation
1.00 5.00 2.00 2.61 0.95
# PLEASE PROVIDE COMMENTS TO HELP INFORM YOUR RANKING. DATE
1 | has been interesting to watch the dynamics of the board and the evolving perspectives on 12/3/2020 6:38 PM
what we should be doing. It is clear to anyone watching over the past few years that the
relationship between the ED and some members of the board have been strained. When board
direction has been given, she provides necessary staff resources o ensure the boards
expectations are met.
2 This can be a difficult one to manage, since it may involve providing input that is contrary to 12/1/2020 7:34 AM
the direction the board is inclined to go. but also to implement the board's direction if the
decision is made.
3 With the relatively constant tumover of this board keeping them all up to speed and responding  11/30/2020 6:44 PM
to direction must be a difficult task. | believe Angela's contact and communication with the
board is often and copious.
4 Generally good. At times, past communication difficulties with the board have caused 11/30/2020 9:19 AM
downstream effects for staff.
5 This question is better directed to the Board members. Between Board meetings | know 11/30/2020 9:11 AM
Angela has contact with Board members but it doesn't happen in a way that is visible to APFC
Staft. For the most part, Angela appears to work well with the Board during Board meetings.
That said, from time to time when Angela disagrees with the Board or a specific Board
member's postition on a certain issue that she feels strongly about, her frustration becomes
apparent. That said, Ol don't know how these reactions are perceived by the Board.
6 CEO Rodell is an active communicator with the Board. She is responsive to the Board and 11/30/2020 8:05 AM
actively engages them while providing options and perspectives in & respectful and
knowledgeable manner.
7 Angela has reached out to me on various topics. | encourage Angela to speak out more 11/29/2020 5:54 PM
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APFC CEO Performance Evaluation

Q7 Organizational culture:- Sets organizational tone that attracts and
retains top talent- Maintains an open, honest, trusting and collaborative
relationship with staff- Articulates a compelling future for the
organization- Encourages collaboration across departments-

Engages others in exchanges of view points

Answered: 19 Skipped: 2

EXCEEDS MEETS ALL MEETS MOST MEETS SOME DOES NOT N/A TOTAL  WEIGHTI
EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS MEET AVERAG
(1) (2) (3) 4) EXPECTATIONS
()
(ro 5,284 28 32% 21 05% 38.84¢: 5 2% 8.26%
label; 1 g 4 7 1 1 19 2

BASIC STATISTICS

pinmem Maximum Vedian Vear Starard Ceviaticn

1.00 500 3.00 311 1.0%

# PLEASE PROVIDE COMMENTS TO HELP INFORM YOUR RANKING. DATE

i Angela has a vesiun tnat 1s prepanry (e orgarizaton lor the future. She consistertly has 12/3:2020 6:.40 PM

exnresseq as we mavre changes that where nossible these charges shoula be relevant for
years to come This can pose a chailerge for some s:af* who are uranle’unw ll.rg to see (ha:
vis or and, i~ some cases. would appear 1o ne bapoy acing things the same way ey have for
lhe ias: X years. A good example 's cur oifice space, many people were upset they lost therr
offices. However, | see our younger population of employees using the collaboration rooms and
common areas with their laptops and they're working, socializing and being more productive
than just sitting in an office or cubicle. A believe a lot of the pushback that has been received
from staff are those who would prefer to s'mply nde in to the sunset and collect their pension
with little questioning of what they're doing and how they're doing it.

2 Given the restraints put on her by the Legislature, Angela does her best to attract and retain 12/1/2020 2:05 PM
top talent. She is honest about her perceptions of future issues, whether or not she feels
certain items will be successful or not.

3 In all the guestions in this section, don have sufficient information to provide a rating. 12/1/2020 7:34 AM

4 Angela always has her finger on the pulse of the organization and articulates her concerns well 11/30/2020 6:51 PM
when she has them and motivates and praises them appropriately. Angela often asks for
others' viewpoints and | believe takes them very seriously.

5 | believe the CEO encourages collaboraticn across depanments and has been effective at 11/30/2020 6:07 PM
increasing collaboration. She exchanges view points with other players within the organization.
Does a great job at articulating a compelling future for the organization to attract new
employees. However, we stll have issues to retain top talent. | believe there is work to do in
the area of ogen. trusting, and honest relationship with staff.

8 Board ofier hears that attract ng tatent :s tough due to pay. | wonder if the other attributes of 11730/2020 4-20 PM
the APFC are being e‘ectively comr.inicated 16 potential recrunts - public service. aifilianon
with a 100 tier soveraigr wealth fund. With new remote viork place policies now in place |
wonger if we will see an :mprovement in rec u ting success

7 The CEQ manages by iear sne s 1arely irterested in beanng the opimion of staff uniesstis 11:30i2020 10 58 AM
suppontive of her vievs The APFC has been las nig very good people under ber watch.

8 The tone has been established and 1s effecuvely conveyed along with the future for the 11/30/2020 10.29 AM
organization Collaboration happers as needed, hu: the organization is sather silo-ed. Angela
nas made proyress or ashk.ng for and listening to staft viewspaints - but maintairs her povier 1o
ne the altimate decisior-mak.er.

G | beleve Argelua has worked hard over tae last year to fomns strong relatonsh o< with each of 11/30/2020 9:3H AM
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APFC CEO Performance Evaluation

her direct reports. But, she has done this in a one-on-one basis. So, when APFC works
together as a team we still suffer from operating in silos and fail to work openly and honestly
with each other 1o achieve our mission. | believe the relationships Angela has formed with her
direct reports will prove crucial to APFC taking the next step, but we still have work to go
before we function as a healthy team with a unified mission. Angela has also started holding
periodic team meetings in which she requests input from all of her direct reports. Again this 1s
a great first step that needs to be continued and nurtured to encourage her direct reports ‘0
work openly and candidly with each other in plain sight.

Seems to have a good relationship with direct reports but there is a cultural silo between
investments and the rest of the departments which is real and cannot be fixed by staff alone.

I have been blown away by the talent and reputation that the Corporation has within Alaska.
the US, and giobally. CEO Rodell has worked collaboratively with her staff to buld and
maintain an absolutely outstanding :eam of talent at APFC. There 1s clear direction,
collaboration, communication, and structure at the Corporation. CEO Rodell has leaders across
the departmern:s hat engage the r staff and provide leadersip

Auntion nas been well managed conswenag the challengas ol a Juneau HiC.

Even prior 1o her involvemen w.ih APFC, our organizaion has been divided by the lack of
trust. Invesiments vs everyone else. She's working to brdge this divide by establishing
standing meetings which has belped.

Despite the extraneous factors that challenge attracung and reta'rung talent she has strvexd
hard to ac the bes: with success

9/21

11/30/2020 9:20 AM

11/30/2020 8:26 AM

117282020 5:57 PM

11/28/2020 €38 A
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APFC CEO Performance Evaluation

Q8 Staff development and motivation:- Ensures meaningful and
challenging goals for performance improvement- Committed to staff
development- Ensures the right people are in place to carry out the
organization's strategic direction- Encourages staff to capitalize on

opportunities to improve productivity and quality- Keeps staff focused
on critical objectives- Reduces interference with goal
accomplishment- Understands what motivates staff as individuals

Anseered. 19 S<pped. 2

EXCEEDS MEETS ALL MEETS MOST  MEETS SOME  DOES NOT N/A TOTAL WEIGHTI
EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS MEET AVERAG
(1) @ (3) {4) EXPECTATIONS
(5)
(no 10.53% 31.58% 15.79% 36.84% 0.00%  5.26%
label; 2 6 3 7 o 1 19 3

BASIC STATISTICS

Minimum Maximum Median Mean Standard Deviation

1.00 4.00 3.00 2.83 1.07

# PLEASE PROVIDE COMMENTS TO HELP INFORM YOUR RANKING. DATE

1 Angela has pushed stalf 10 pursue additional certifications, trainings, and any other 12/3/2020 6:40 PM

opportun:ties to develop professionaily (and personaily). She is valling to make changes if
needed o ensure the right people are in the nght places. Sometimes convincing mangers to do
the same is difficult. Angela implemented a monthly group breakfast for those who were
celebrating birthdays. This was done out cf her owr pockel and the impetus for this was an
oppertunty for her to ensure time with members of the team she might not interact with on a
regular basis, to listen and learn about their lives, how they're feeling and help understand what
motivates them.

2 Training and career development have always been on integral pant of APFC's corporate 12/1/2020 2:05 PM
culture, and Angela nas completely encouraged and suppored that growth tor staff.

3 | believe this 1s where Angela excels.. Making sure staff is focused, motivated, anc capable. 11/30/2020 6:51 PM
Angela has done wonders to shape the culture over my tenure at the APFC in a much more
productive way.

4 | believe CEO helps shielding staff from outside distractions in order to accomplish goals and 11/30/2020 6:C7 PM
keeps staff tocused on critical objectives. CEO encourages staff (o capitalize on opponunities
to improve productivity and quality.

5 Echo previous thought - s there a sufficient focus on the non-monetary aspects of APFC 11/30/2020 4:10 PM
employment? Those can be hugely motivating

6 There 1s support for individual efforts and opporntunites for self-improvement. Angela is not a 11/30/2020 10:23 AM
hands-on manager but is supportive and viilling to isten (o and talk through issues. objectives.
challenges.

7 Angela does not micromanage her direct reports  She points out issues that need to be 11/30/2020 9:35 AM

addressed and leaves it to the relevan: supervisor to solve these issues However, some of
these long-standing issues remain unresolved. It is hard to assign all of the blame for this 1o
Angela because there is plenty of blame to go around. It 1s my understanding that Angela has
set up small working groups with key APFC staff to work on some of these issues to ensure
that some of these issues get addressed. t am hopeful that this additional prodding will
improve sume uf these 1ssues

8 CEO Rodell is not a micro-manager - in my experience, some depantmenial leaders can be, but ~ 11/30/2020 8:26 AM
| have yet o see that at any level at the Corporation. Stafi 1s encouraged to think outside of

10721 Rodell Personnel PRA 000222





10

APFC CEOQ Performance Evaluation

~

the box and introduce solutions and new ideas. | have found that everyone at the corporation
feels values and encouraged to do their best work.

Perception of stalf 1s that they are delivering excellent results as directed by CEO. 11/29/2020 5:57 PM

Many of our staff do not have foundational knowledge to do their job. This 1s across all 11/28/2020 9:38 AM
depantments. When they need to work with others, this is ohvious which has eroded the trust

across departments. To fix this more of the "old timers" at APFC need to actually learn about

the tasks they've been assigned...and not train the next generation of staft. 1t will onty make

us weaker. There appears (g be a focus on traring the new hires which is needed. Training the

"old timers" would make more of an improvement.
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APFC CEO Performance Evaluation

Q9 Internal communications:- Values transparency- Maintains
open lines of communication at all levels- Engages staff in discussions
about goals and objectives- Listens to staff, bringing their perspectives
into overall consideration of issues- Asks questions before expressing
own opinion- Ensures all individuals have an opportunity to share their

view points and insights during meetings

Answered 16  Skipped: 2

EXCEEDS MEETS ALL MEETS MOST  MEETS SOME  DOES NOT NJA  TOTAL WEIGHT
EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS MEET AVERAG
) @ ) @) EXPECTATIONS
5
(no 5.26% 31.58% 31.58% 15.79% 10.53%  5.26%
label) 1 6 6 3 2 1 19 3.

BASIC STATISTICS

Minimum Maximum Median Mean Standard Deviation

100 5.00 3.00 2.94 1.08

# PLEASE PROVIDE COMMENTS TO HELP INFORM YOUR RANKING. DATE

1 Angela is constantly asking questions and poking holes in ideas. | do not believe she does this  12/3/2020 6:40 PM

because she is trying to be a pain or some sort of power trip. | believe it is because she wants
to have confidence that | have thought through my decisions, she is not one to just rubber
stamp things. Once I've answered her questions and incorporated any feedback, | almost
always have the green light to move forward. | believe some see questiorung as a chaflenge to
their expertise rather than a verification of It.

2 Angela does well at listening to other viewpaints, even those that may not agree with her cwn. 12/1/2020 2:05 PM
before commenting on issues or topics. She is respectful of what others have to say.

3 | have no problems getting Angela's attention and time. Angela will frequently seek me out to 11/30/2020 6:51 PM
discuss projects, goals, and stafting morale. She often will not let a meeting end without one-
by-one asking everyone if they have input before adjourning.

4 | believe CEO ask staff for opinion, to share their views and perspectives. However, | am not 11/30/2020 6:07 PM
sure that staff at all levels feel comfortable in sharing different views. CEO engages staff in
discussions about goals and objectives.

S Effective leadership requires thal leaders share vision, goals and raticnale in decision making. 11/30/2020 4:10 PM
Taking staff on the journey with us takes extra time initially but pays dividends in staff respect
and buy-in. This appears to be improving. Remote working posture may have brought this to
the fore.

6 Angela generally does not value the opinion of stafi. She over rode the CIO hiring committee’s 11/30/2020 10:56 AM
recommendation not to hire Russell Reid. He did not work out. She did not utilize the APFC
real estate team and it's property manages for guidance on the APFC office remodel. Not a
great outcome. Angela over rode the CIO and real estate leams recommendation to retain a
larger apartment portfolio. That hurt the performance of the fund.

7 Opportunities are available. however, staff still seems to lack trust? and show an unwillingness ~ 11/30/2020 10:20 AM
to engage in all staff meetings. Angela has an open door policy - one must choose to use it.
Meetings are often conducted by getting all viewpoints and insights. Typically, Angela holds on
expressing her opinion until others have spoken. She is strong and decisive in decision
making.

8 APFC as an entity still operates in a series of silos and information is often shared with the 11/30/2020 9:35 AM
members of each silo but not often with all APFC members. Angela has been trying to engage
her direct reports in team meetings in being more candid with each other to improve this
problem. It remains to be seen whether this will improve this problem. Angela definitely
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APFC CEOQO Performance Evaluation

engages others 1o get their opinions and provides all with a chance o weigh-in before key
tecisions are made.

I have leamed a tot from CEO Rodel! ohserving her leadership at the Corporation. She 11/30/2020 8:26 AM
maintains open lines of communication, checks in with staff. listens. and responds. She is
available to staff and engages in open dialogue and discussions.

1321 Rodell_Personnel PRA_ 000225





Q10 Fair and equitable organizational culture:-

APFC CEO Performance Evaluation

authority with responsibility throughout the organization-
equally seeks the opinions of individuals throughout the organization-
Listens to how individuals throughout the organization are feeling, and

dialogues with them about their perspectives-

fairness, honesty, and compassion

Answered: 19  Skipped 2

Appropriately aligns
Actively and

Exhibits values of

EXCEEDS MEETS ALL MEETS MOST MEETS SOME DOES NOT N/A TOTAL  WEIGHTI
EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS MEET AVERAG
1) (2) (3) (4) EXPECTATIONS
&)
(no 0 00% 42 13% 10.53% 36.84%0 5.28% 5.26%
label ¢ <] 2 7 i 1 10 2
BASIC STATISTICS
Minee e Max:mum Meman Mean Standard Deviaiion
2.00 500 3.00 3.0¢ 103
#@ PLEASE PROVIDE COMMENTS TO HELP INFORM YOUR RANKING. DATE
z She orly ~tens 11 when she teels ke she has to. other thar tnat she appears to allow sta‘l to 12/3:2020 540 M
:ake responsibility ‘or their ac: ors.
2 Absolutely... The compassion 1s there when reeded however Argela has high expectaunons 12/30:2020 &8:5. PM
and those expectaticrs are for everyone... includirg nersel’ This feads o hard but onest
conversat:ons when necessary also... which | respec:.
3 CEO apnropriately algrs auathanty with respons:hility througheat the organization 11/30/2020 6:07 PM
4 Expectanons are clear for meet rg professional s:arcards. 1 seens live Angela erjoys 13/30:202C 10.29 AM
engagng with staff in casually asking how things are going. Forums for |-sten ng about 1ow
people are feelrg ard therr perspectves are 1ot well estabhished. Setling the cultural tone
threugh actions. ot words 1S essertal, and ofter i 1s observed that tnere are differert
standards apphed throughout the corporation nased on mdividual actions.
) This s arother one of Argela's strengths. She oxpects sapervisors 1o ntanage their stalf and L1300 2020 9:35 AM
gel then assigned woik completec
6 Actively seeks teedback but coule be moie consistent enforcement o’ expectatons regarding 11/36:2020 920 AM

hehavior and performanrce across the organ.zat or.

14721
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APFC CEO Performance Evaluation

Q11 Role model and change agent:- Develops and refines appropriate
internal systems for effective operations- Thinks innovatively-
Exhibits a high level of emotional intelligence- Seeks new information
and perspectives- Values a diversity of opinions- Earns and
maintains respect of employees- Appropriately delegates authority

Answered: 19  Skipped 2

EXCEEDS MEETS ALL MEETS MOST  MEETS SOME  DOES NOT N/A TOTAL  WEIGHTI
EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS MEET AVERAG
N o) A3) (@) EXPECTATIONS
(5)
(no 15.79% 21.05% 26 32 36.84% 0.0  0.00%
label) 3 2 5 7 0 0 :9 3,

BASIC STATISTICS

Virimam Max:mum Median Nean Standard Deviatior

150 4.00 3.00 2.84 1.09

# PLEASE PROVIDE COMMENTS TO HELP INFORM YOUR RANKING. DATE

1 | do tunk Angela meets most of these 12/3/202G 9:39 PV
2 Angela hkes to hear :nput from a varety of sources 10 gain a better undersianding of issues 12:1/2020 2:18 N

She 1s oper to 1"lemnal change, both operationally and technologically .n order to make
processes more cthcient.

3 For the most part, | would put N/A on all the questions in this section due to lack of direct 12/1/2020 7:34 AM
observation, but | do have very favorable impression in the "Seeks new information and
perspectives” bullet point, since it appears that she reads or follows a large array of
publications and is an active member of at least one high-tevel investment association. This is
important in allowing her to bring an independent perspective to the investment decision
making process.

4 As I've mentioned previously Angela has been relentless at reshaping the culture since I've 11/30/2020 7:00 PM
been aboard. She has been successful by being respectful but demanding, innovating, and
giving folks the autonomy and authority to carry out the mission.

5 Angela is a strategic and visionary thinker. She is engaged with organizations and peers of 11/30/2020 10:43 AM
other wealth funds. She is also an active consumer of news and periodicals to stay informed

6 Angela is great at delegating authority and she very much values a diversity of opinions among  11/30/2020 9:48 AM
staff. 1 think Angela could do a better job at being the role model that she wants all APFC to
exhibit.

7 i have appreciated working under, and with CEO Rodell. She exemplifies the type of leadership ~ 11/30/2020 8:30 AM

that Alaska needs. | am thankful for her direction and guidance at the Corporation. She is an
asset to the Corporatior, Board. and Alaska.

& Steadfast support tor considering multiple an< vaned perspectives. Reflects confidence 11/2712020 101 PM
trmness anc trust
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Q12 Problem solver:- Keeps a pulse on shifts and trends in the
political, social, and economic environment- Encourages staff to
challenge the status quo- Thinks quickly and assimilates ideas
well- Handles ambiguous situations well, bringing focus to the
organization's pursuit of mission and vision- Allows for failure as long
as the risk does not cause personal harm or irreversible loss to the
organization

Answered: 19 Skinped: 2

EXCEEDS MEETS ALL MEETS MOST MEETS SOME DOES NOT N/A TOTAL  WEIGHTI
EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS MEET AVERAG
(1) (2 3) (4) EXPECTATIONS
(5)
(nc¢ 10.53% 36.64% 31.58% 15.79% 0.00%  5.26%
label) ? 7 6 2 0 1 19 3

BASIC STATISTICS

Mir
10

wum Maximum Median Mean Stardard Doviatier
0 4.00 2.50 2.56 090
PLEASE PROVIDE COMMENTS TO HELP INFORM YOUR RANKING., DATE

She 1s constantly pushirg me ard tin turn push my tean: to think abou: how we can do things 12/3/2020 9:58 PM
better, more efficiently and with less risk. She definitely keeps abreast of the political, soctal

and economic environment She provides her team with the ability to learn from their mistakes

as long as there is no personal harm or irreversible loss.

Angela keeps on top of current events. She is ‘quick on her feet' when it comes to unexpected 12/1/2020 2:18 PM
situations or issues that come up, such as sudden Board meeting discussions or requests.
She is always pushing staff to challenge themselves for the better.

I would agree on all fronts. Especially the "ambiguous situations" piece. She requires clearand  11/30/2020 7:00 PM
concise information often asking how it aligns to the strategic plan in order to help clarify.

Angela is engaged and informed. She often challenges the status quo and encourages others 11/30/2020 10:43 AM
to do so. The mission and vision are central to our work as a public corporation, and Angela
often focuses the dialogue on these essentials.

Angela often challenges staff to think about issues around the world that could help or hinder 11/30/2020 9:48 AM
the task that APFC is tasked with.

Consistently challenges status qguo. 11/30/2020 9:24 AM
One thing I've learned working with CEOQ Rodell is never say "I don't know" - always have a 11/30/2020 8:30 AM

solution or idea 10 come up with the answer! She wan's answers and solutiors. She thinks on
her feet and has great feedbacx. She looks at issues [rom numerous perspectives and has a
pulse on all of the many environments tha: alfect vur communica:’on strategies . budgetary
requests, hoard meetings, and Fund performrance. CEO Rodell 1s an outstand:ng leader when it
comes to problem-solving and considenng mary opinions ard perspectives

Effectively leverages resources 11/27/2020 1:01 PM
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APFC CEO Perfarmance Evaluation

Q13 Leadership development:- Committed to continually improving
personal leadership performance- Demonstrates self-discipline-
Assumes responsibility for adverse outcomes- Demonstrates
humility- Perseveres through challenges

Answered 1¢  Skiyped. 2

EXCEEDS MEETS ALL MEETS MOST  MEETS SOME  DOES NOT N/A TOTAL  WEIGHTI
EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS MEET AVERAG
) @ (3) @ EXPECTATIONS
{5)
(no 10.53% 36.84% 21.05% 26.32% 0.00% 5.26%
label) 2 7 4 5 0 1 19 3.

BASIC STATISTICS

Minimum Maximum Median Mean Standard Deviation

100 4.00 2.50 2,67 1.00

# PLEASE PROVIDE COMMENTS TO HELP INFORM YOUR RANKING, DATE

1 Angela has proactively inquired about coaching and personal development starting about 4 12/3/2020 9:59 PM

years ago. These last few years have been a balance of some incredible successes for APFC
and some deep challenges, she has continued to persevere through times | myself might have
given up. I've worked with a lot of people from large cities throughout my career, her humility &
and self discipline compared to are better than many.

2 | would agree on all of the above. 11/30/2020 7:00 PM

3 Angela has a strong desire to improve her leadership but at times does not seem willing o 11/30/2020 9:48 AM
evaluate and acknowledge her strengths and weaknesses (i.e. self-awareness).
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Q14 Systems thinker:-

the organization-

Establishes a unifying vision and culture across

Considers the big picture when making decisions-

Builds interconnectedness in the system to achieve organizational success

N/A TOTAL

0

26%
1 9

Standard Devialion

Answered: 19 Skippedh: 2
EXCEEDS MEETS ALL MEETS MOST MEETS SOME DOES NOT
EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS MEET
(1) (2) {3) (4) EXPECTATIONS
()

(no 21.05% 21.05% 31.58% 21.05¢%: 0.C0~

label) 4 4 5 4 0

BASIC STATISTICS

Ainimum Maximum Vedian hMear

1.00 4.00 3.00 2.56 1.07

8 PLEASE PROVIDE COMMENTS TO HELP INFORM YOUR RANKING.

3 She nas r ed very hard to unify the organization nowever there are stll silos and those that
prefer to say one thing In a meetng ther presenting things differently when back in front of
ther teams.

Z oirg back tc the strategic plarning sessiors. Angela is careful to ma-e sure all stakeholders
- Boara, management, and s:aff - are engaged and well-infermed about the mission and vision
cf tne Fund arc Corporaiion.

3 As mentioned... she's wholly responsible for what | feel is a motivaled. talented and world-
class arganization bailt or. "us™ not "him and her.”

4 Angela 's good at the tig picliure issies and does not get lost in the weeds on such i55.es.
That said, AP~C as an en:tty 1s fragmented and siloed

5 Has the big picture 1 miind when nink'ng strategically. Somettnes feels Iike we are trying to

(%23

do 00 much too quickly. Would benef't from mare focus on setung pricrities for corporate
nitiatives.

She tries

18/21

DATE
12/3/2020 9:59 PNV

12/1/2020 2.18 PM

11/30/2020 7:00 PM

1:/30/2020 9:48 AM

17/30/2023 9:24 AM

11/28/2020 9:40 AM
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APFC CEO Perfarmance Evaluation

Q15 Internal partnership:- Inspires loyalty among staff to further the
mission and vision of the organization- Encourages collaboration
throughout the organization- Creates supportive relationships

throughout the organization- Carefully and fairly monitors individual

performance
Answered: 19  Skipped 2
EXCEEDS MEETS ALL MEETS MOST MEETS SOME DOES NOT NA TOTAL WEIGHT)
EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS MEET AVERAG
(1) (2) (3) (9 EXPECTATIONS
®
(no 10.53% 21.05% 26.32% 31.58% 5.26% 5.26%
label) 2 4 5 6 1 1 19 3
BASIC STATISTICS
Minimum Maximum Median Mean Standard Deviation
1.00 5.00 3.00 3.00 111
# PLEASE PROVIDE COMMENTS TO HELP INFORM YOUR RANKING. DATE
1 Collaboration has been a huge fecus during Angela's tenure. From bringing back the summer 12/3/2020 9:59 PM
picnic and scftball against our friends at treasury, to paying a good chunk of the cost for a
holiday party she has done a very good job in ensuring all vaices are heard. My performance is
carefully monitored and | receive timely, constructive and positive feedback for my efforts.
2 Angela encourages the different departments to assist and suppont each other and to be 12/1/2020 2:18 PM
ransparent in their goals and how those goals may affect others in the Corporation.
3 All of the above- yes. 11/30/2020 7.00 PM
4 CEO encourages collaboration, inspires to further mission and vision. CEO creates supportive 11/30/2020 6:10 PM
relationships throughout the arganization
5 Angela has worked closely with me to improve my issues with some APFC staff, | appreciated  11/30/2020 9:48 AM
her candor and support. But | believe Angela could benefit from having an employee she trusts
helping her identify and work on her own areas that need improvement.
6 Could be more proactive in bridging the gap between investments and the rest of the staff. 11/30/2020 9:24 AM

19/21
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Q16 Effective communication:-
dialogue throughout the organization-
interruption-

(ro
lanel}

APFC CEO Performance Evaluation

telephone calls-

3ASIC STATISTICS

Mimiram
100

Answered: 19 Skipped: 2
EXCEEDS MEETS ALL MEETS MOST MEETS SOME DOES NOT
EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS MEET
(1) (2 (3 (4) EXPECTATIONS
(5)
10.53¢¢ 36.84% 06.329% 10.53% 10.53%
2 7 5 2 2
Maximum rMed-an tMean
5 00 2.50 2.72 115

PLEASE PROVIDE COMMENTS TO HELP INFORM YOUR RANKING.

Angela s def utely willing (0 engage in tough conversatiors, and will listen and acjust as
necessary. A good exampic of this s the response to COVID. Our Crsis Management Team
has a very diitenng opiters or how tc handle th ngs. She has listened and allowed very frank
and open ccrversauon aboul the nuances of navigating (e panderic ard ulumately we found
a very cemforiable place Lo be in (erms of how we have worhed with our staft, the changing
rrardates and unseen pressure. Al the erd of the day it was her decisior as the ED and the
teedback we received has beer overwhelmurgly poasitive 11 how COVID has been handled.

Angela s not alraid to face difficult siluatiors or lopics. At the sare ture, she also has ar
open ear to hear the challerges or issues that others may face.

As slated. . Angela is no! afraid of having haid discuss cns and chooses the correct venue for
them.

Far the most part. Arcela :s a good listener. If she s emotionally charged about an issue she
car be hard to approach and have a candid corversatior wth about such issues. Thase
situalions are. however, relatively rare.
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NIA TOTAL

5.26%
M 19

S:andard Deviatior

DATE
12/3/2020 9:59 PM

12/1/2020 2:18 PM

11/30/2020 7:00 24

11/30/2020 9:48 An
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Encourages open communication and
Listens to others without
Engages in difficult conversations and confrontations-
Utilizes appropriate channels of communication eg. Email, face-to-face,
Practices empathic listening
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APFC CEQ Performance Evaluation

Q17 Please include any other comments about the CEO's performance, or
any circumstances that may have influenced the CEQO's performance in the

past year.
Anseed @ Semnped 15
# RESPONSES DATE
All comments and examples are personal Overall | en;oy working with Argela she s lar, 121312C20 9:59 PM

competent and { believe truly wants what is bes: for the fund. Is she perfect, no. | nope the
constructive feedback provided will help her improve. | also hope the relationship with some
members of the board continue to improve.

2 Angela does an outstanding job of communicating the Corporation’s vision and mission to not 12/1/2020 2:22 PM
only staff and internal stakeholders, but also to the public. She keeps the Fund focused and
on-track, while using effective communication and accepting different viewpoints. Angela is a
great leader for APFC, and she excels at her role as its CEO.

3 Angela cares deeply for the State of Alaska and its peaple. She has the values of the Fund at 11/30/2020 7:03 PM
hand and ready to apply to any situation and... does this often. Also, as an employee of the
APFC, | trust Angela wholly and her daily example motivates me.

4 CEO adapted organization to remote workforce posture effectively and has begun to think of 11/30/2020 4:14 PM
ways to use this circumstance to the advantage in recruiting talent and saving APFC money.

S Angela seems o be more conscious of her leadership style and listening to the opinions of her ~ 11/30/2020 10:49 AM
team,

6 Has been an exceptional leader during the COVID pandemic 11/27/2020 1:03 PM
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From: Vicki Graham

To: Rieger, Steve; Mahoney, Lucinda; Richards, Craig
Subject: APFC CEO Performance Feedback: Proposed Report
Date: Monday, December 7, 2020 2:13:13 PM
Attachments: APFC Results Ri

Importance: High

Confidential - Personnel Record
APFC Governance Committee,

Please find the attached proposed report developed from data collected from the APFC CEO
Performance Review Survey administration. Per APFC procedures. you are receiving this
draft copy of the report for review prior to its distribution to the full board in preparation for
Thursday’s Executive Session. If you have any comments, concerns. or edits please reach out
to me at 435-640-2286 prior to midday tomorrow. If I do not hear from you I will assume that
vou are fine with the report as presented. and approve its distribution to the board.

Thank you for your continued commitment to this process.

Regards.
Vicki

Dr. Vicki Graham / Whiting, PhD, MBA
Professor of Management and Leadership
Gore School of Business

Westminster College

Salt Lake City. UT 84098
vwhiting@westminstercolleg
435-640-2286
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Confidential — Personnel Record

APFC CEO Performance Feedback Report

Please find four tables attached detailing performance feedback survey results. As you review

these tables, please keep in mind:

- The organizational response rate was 78%. Twenty-seven individuals were invited to

participate. Twenty-one completed the survey.

- Due to the small sample size in subgroups, the probability that outliers on either tail
(Exceeds expectation or Does not meet expectation) can skew the results, thus
consideration of open-ended comments is necessary to provide the most complete

understanding of provided feedback.
- Scale for ranking:
0 5 - Exceeds expectation
4 — Meets all expectations
3 — Meets most expectations
2 — Meets some expectations

o]
0
0
0 1-Does not meet expectations

APFC CEO Performance Feedback Results Tables

Overall Summary Score

Score

Assessment of CEO Accountabilities

This set of questions seeks to understand perceptions of the CEO's
capabilities related to strategic-level aspects of the CEO's role within
APFC.

Strategic development:

- Effectively implements and models APFC’s mission. vision, and
purpose

- Engages the board in strategic direction

- Considers evolving trends and factors and adjusts plans accordingly

3.42

Financial leadership:

- Identifies and mitigates risks to fund

- Controls costs and ensures resources are allocated approprniately
throughout the organization

- Ensures internal control systems are m place to protect organization’s
financial health

- Provides sufficient and clear information about financial progress and
results

LBA 1-000002





Advocacy and external relations:

- Educates external stakeholders and the public

- Engages external stakeholders in a professional. effective manner
- Seeks out speaking engagements to provide fund visibility

- Outwardly communicates to public and legislators about APFC’s
vision, goals, and progress

3.89

Board relations:

- Collaborates with the board to set the strategic direction for the
organization

- Provides opmions and perspective on Board topics

- Responsive to Board’s direction and feedback

- Keeps the board informed of important developments and 1ssues
- Maintains direct communication with Trustees

3.39

Organizational Culture and Team Relations

This set of questions seeks to understand perceptions of the CEO's
effectiveness in leading team interactions and strengthening organizational
culture within APFC.

Organizational culture:

- Sets organizational tone that attracts and retains top talent

- Maintains an open. honest. trusting and collaborative relationship
with staff

- Articulates a compelling future for the organization

- Encourages collaboration across departments

- Engages others in exchanges of view points

2.89

Staff development and motivation:

- Ensures meaningful and challenging goals for performance
provement

- Commuitted to staff development

- Ensures the right people are m place to carry out the organization’s
strategic direction

- Encourages staff to capitalize on opportunities to umprove
productivity and quality

- Keeps staff focused on critical objectives

- Reduces mterference with goal accomplishment

- Understands what motivates staff as individuals

317

Internal communications:

- Values transparency

- Maintains open lines of communication at all levels

- Engages staff in discussions about goals and objectives

- Listens to staff. bringing their perspectives into overall consideration
of 1ssues

3.06
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- Asks questions before expressing own opinion
- Ensures all individuals have an opportunity to share their view points
and insights during meetings

Fair and equitable organizational culture:

- Appropnately aligns authority with responsibility throughout the
organization

- Actively and equally seeks the opinions of mdividuals throughout the
organization

- Listens to how mdividuals throughout the organization are feeling,
and dialogues with them about their perspectives

- Exhibits values of fairness, honesty, and compassion

38

.94

Assessment of CEO Personal Attributes and Leadership Qualities
This set of questions seeks to understand perceptions of the effectiveness
of the CEO's personal attributes and leadership qualities in leading APFC.

Role model and change agent:

- Develops and refines appropriate internal systems for effective
operations

- Thinks mnovatively

- Exhibits a high level of emotional intelligence

- Seeks new information and perspectives

- Values a diversity of opinions

- Earns and maintains respect of employees

- Appropriately delegates authority

Problem solver:

- Keeps a pulse on shifts and trends 1o the political. social, and
economic environment

- Encourages staff to challenge the status quo

- Thinks quickly and assimilates 1deas well

- Handles ambiguous situations well. bringing focus to the
organization’s pursuit of mission and vision

- Allows for failure as long as the risk does not cause personal harm or
irreversible loss to the organization

3.44

Leadership development:

- Commuitted to continually improving personal leadership performance
- Demonstrates self-discipline

- Assumes responsibility for adverse outcomes

- Demonstrates humility

- Perseveres through challenges

3.33

Systems thinker:
- Establishes a umfying vision and culture across the orgamzation
- Considers the big picture when making decisions

3.44
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- Builds mterconnectedness in the system to achieve organizational
success

Internal partnership:

- Inspires loyalty among staff to further the mission and vision of the
organization

- Encourages collaboration throughout the organization

- Creates supportive relationships throughout the organization

- Carefully and fairly monitors individual performance

3.00

Effective communication:

- Encourages open communication and dialogue throughout the
organization

- Listens to others without interruption

- Engages in difficult conversations and confrontations

- Utilizes appropriate channels of conmununication eg. Email. face-to-
face. telephone calls

- Practices empathic listening

3.28
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Summary by Organizational Affinity

Summary by Organizational Affinity
*Note, ‘Neither’ column includes more than
Board Identification

Overall

Investment

Operations

Neither

Assessment of CEO Accountabilities

This set of questions seeks to understand perceptions
of the CEO's capabilities related to strategic-level
aspects of the CEO's role within APFC.

Strategic development:

- Effectively umplements and models APFC’s
mission, vision, and purpose

- Engages the board in strategic direction

- Considers evolving trends and factors and
adjusts plans accordingly

3.42

3.0

4.0

Financial leadership:

- Identifies and mitigates risks to fund

- Controls costs and ensures resources are
allocated approprniately throughout the organization
- Ensures internal control systems are i place to
protect organization’s financial health

- Provides sufficient and clear information about
financial progress and results

3.28

3.8

3.38

Advocacy and external relations:

- Educates external stakeholders and the public

- Engages external stakeholders in a
professional, effective manner

- Seeks out speaking engagements to provide
fund visibility

- Outwardly communicates to public and
legislators about APFC’s vision. goals. and progress

3.89

)
-
N

4.83

Board relations:

- Collaborates with the board to set the strategic
direction for the organization

- Provides opinions and perspective on Board
topics

- Responsive to Board’s direction and feedback
- Keeps the board mformed of umportant
developments and issues

- Maintains direct communication with Trustees

3.39

)
n

3.83
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Orgamizational Culture and Team Relations
This set of questions seeks to understand perceptions
of the CEO's effectiveness in leading team

mteractions and strengthening organizational culture
within APFC.

Organizational culture:

- Sets organizational tone that attracts and retains
top talent

- Maintains an open, honest. trusting and
collaborative relationship with staff

- Articulates a compelling future for the
organization

- Encourages collaboration across departments

- Engages others in exchanges of view points

2.89

b2
[ae]
h
L)
tn

2.86

Staff development and motivation:

- Ensures meaningful and challenging goals for
performance improvement

- Commutted to staff development

- Ensures the right people are i place to carry
out the organization’s strategic direction

- Encourages staff to capitalize on opportunities
to improve productivity and quality

- Keeps staff focused on eritical objectives

- Reduces mterference with goal
accomplishment

- Understands what motivates staff as
mdividuals

3al7

Internal communications:

- Values transparency

- Mamtains open lines of communication at all
levels

- Engages staff in discussions about goals and
objectives

- Listens to staff. bringing their perspectives into
overall consideration of 1ssues

- Asks questions before expressing own opinion
- Ensures all individuals have an opportunity to
share their view points and msights during meetings

3.06

(]
h

s 3.67 3.0

Fair and equitable organizational culture:
- Approprately aligns authority with
responsibility throughout the organization

(S}

.94

S
o]
N

3.67

[S]

.86
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- Actively and equally seeks the opinions of
individuals throughout the organization

- Listens to how ndividuals throughout the
organization are feeling. and dialogues with them
about their perspectives

- Exhibits values of fairness, honesty, and
compassion

Assessment of CEO Personal Attributes and
Leadership Qualities

This set of questions seeks to understand perceptions
of the effectiveness of the CEO's personal attributes
and leadership qualities m leading APFC.

(]
n

Role model and change agent: - 3.16 25 3.67 3.
- Develops and refines appropriate mternal
systems for effective operations

- Thinks mnovatively

- Exlubits a high level of emotional intelligence
- Seeks new information and perspectives

- Values a diversity of opinions

- Earns and maintains respect of employees

- Appropriately delegates authority

Problem solver: 3.44 3.25 4.0 3.14
- Keeps a pulse on shifts and trends in the
political. social. and econonue environment

- Encourages staff to challenge the status quo

- Thinks quickly and assimilates ideas well

- Handles ambiguous situations well. bringing
focus to the organization’s pursuif of mission and
vision

- Allows for failure as long as the risk does not
cause personal harm or irreversible loss to the
organization

Leadership development: 3.33 3.25 3.67 3.14
- Commutted to continually improving personal
leadership performance

- Demonstrates self-discipline

- Assumes responsibility for adverse outcomes
- Demonstrates humility

- Perseveres through challenges

Systems thinker: 3.44 325 4.0 3.29
- Establishes a unifying vision and culture across
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the organization

- Considers the big picture when making
decisions

- Builds interconnectedness in the system to
achieve organizational success

Internal partnership: 3.00 2.5 3.5 3.0
- Inspires loyalty among staff to further the

mission and vision of the organization

- Encourages collaboration throughout the

organization

- Creates supportive relationships throughout the

organization

- Carefully and fairly monitors individual

performance

Effective communication: 3.28 3.0 417 2:1

- Encourages open communication and dialogue
throughout the organization

- Listens to others without interruption

- Engages m difficult conversations and
confrontations

- Utilizes appropriate channels of
communication eg. Email. face-to-face, telephone
calls

- Practices empathic listening

LBA 1 - 000009






Summary by Organizational Role

Summary by Organizational Role Overall | Staff | Direct Board
*Note: Does not include ‘Prefer Not to Say’ Report

Assessment of CEOQ Accountabilities

This set of questions seeks to understand
perceptions of the CEO's capabilities related
to strategic-level aspects of the CEO's role
within APFC.

(8]

Strategic development: 34 4.0 3.43 34
- Effectively implements and models
APFC’s mission, vision, and purpose

- Engages the board 1n strategic direction
- Considers evolving trends and factors
and adjusts plans accordingly

Financial leadership: 3.28 3.0 3.14 4.0
- Identifies and mitigates risks to fund

- Controls costs and ensures resources are
allocated appropnately throughout the
organization

- Ensures internal control systems are in
place to protect organization’s financial health
- Provides sufficient and clear information
about financial progress and results

Advocacy and external relations: 3.89 4.0 4.29 34
- Educates external stakeholders and the
public

- Engages external stakeholders in a
professional. effective manner

- Seeks out speaking engagements to
provide fund visibility

- Outwardly communicates to public and
legislators about APFC’s vision, goals, and
progress

Board relations: 3.39 3.5 3.29 3.2
- Collaborates with the board to set the
strategic direction for the organization

- Provides opinions and perspective on
Board topics

- Responsive to Board’s direction and
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feedback

- Keeps the board informed of important
developments and 1ssues

- Maintains direct communication with
Trustees

Orgamzational Culture and Team Relations
This set of questions seeks to understand
perceptions of the CEO's effectiveness in
leading team interactions and strengthening
organizational culture within APFC.

Organizational culture:

- Sets organizational tone that attracts and
retains top talent

- Maintains an open. honest, trusting and
collaborative relationship with staff

- Articulates a compelling future for the
organization

- Encourages collaboration across
departments

- Engages others in exchanges of view
pomts

[S]

.89

wh

3.0

3.0

Staff development and motivation:

- Ensures meaningful and challenging
goals for performance improvement

- Committed to staff development

- Ensures the right people are in place to
carry out the organization’s strategic direction
- Encourages staff to capitalize on
opportunities to improve productivity and
quality

- Keeps staff focused on critical objectives
- Reduces interference with goal
accomplishment

- Understands what motivates staff as
individuals

(5]
o

N

3.43

w
in

Internal communications:

- Values transparency

- Maintains open lines of communication
at all levels

- Engages staff in discussions about goals
and objectives

3.06

wh

3.0
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- Listens to staff, bringing their
perspectives into overall consideration of
1ssues

- Asks questions before expressing own
opinion

- Ensures all individuals have an
opportunity to share their view points and
mnsights during meetings

Fair and equitable organizational culture:
- Appropriately aligns authority with
responsibility throughout the organization

- Actively and equally seeks the opinions
of individuals throughout the organization

- Listens to how individuals throughout
the organization are feeling. and dialogues
with them about their perspectives

- Exlubits values of fairness, honesty. and
compassion

2.94

3.0

Assessment of CEO Personal Attributes and
Leadership Qualities

Thus set of questions seeks to understand
perceptions of the effectiveness of the CEO's
personal attributes and leadership qualities in
leading APFC.

Role model and change agent:

- Develops and refines appropriate
internal systems for effective operations
- Thinks mnovatively

- Exhibits a lugh level of emotional
mtelligence

- Seeks new information and perspectives
- Values a diversity of opinions

- Earns and maintains respect of
employees

- Appropriately delegates authority

3.16

34

Problem solver:

- Keeps a pulse on shifts and trends in the
political. social. and economic environment

- Encourages staff to challenge the status
quo

- Thinks quickly and assimilates 1deas
well

- Handles ambiguous situations well,

3.44

4.0
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bringing focus to the organization’s pursuit of
mussion and vision

- Allows for failure as long as the risk
does not cause personal harm or irreversible
loss to the organization

Leadership development:

- Committed to continually improving
personal leadership performance

- Demonstrates self-discipline

- Assumes responsibility for adverse
outcomes

- Demonstrates humility

- Perseveres through challenges

333

4.0

3.14

Systems thinker:

- Establishes a unifying vision and culture
across the organization

- Considers the big picture when making
decisions

- Builds mterconnectedness in the system
to achieve organizational success

3.44

3.14

4.0

Internal partnership:

- Inspires loyalty among staff to further
the mission and vision of the orgamzation

- Encourages collaboration throughout the
organization

- Creates supportive relationships
throughout the organization

- Carefully and fairly monitors individual
performance

3.00

3.0

3.0

Effective communication:

- Encourages open communication and
dialogue throughout the organization

- Listens to others without interruption
- Engages n difficult conversations and
confrontations

- Utilizes appropriate channels of
communication eg. Email, face-to-face.
telephone calls

- Practices empathic listening

4.0

3.0
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Open-Ended Questions

Comments

Assessment of CEO Accountabilities
This set of questions seeks to
understand perceptions of the CEO's
capabilities related to strategic-level
aspects of the CEO's role within
APFC.

Strategic development:

- Effectively implements and
models APFC’s mission. vision, and
purpose

- Engages the board in strategic
direction

- Considers evolving trends and
factors and adjusts plans accordingly

Angela has made significant efforts in this regard, last two strategic
retreats in 2016 and 2018 have been very helpful in this regard

APFC's mission and strategic vision is well understood by its
employees, and Angela has the Corporation revisit the strategic plan
on a regular basis. She brings Board members into the strategic
planning session and makes sure that all stakeholders are engaged.

I feel that Angela is quite active in not only facilitating the current
strategic plan but quite often asks for thoughts and vision going
forward for the organization. Angela has also done a great job
facilitating the organization through the pandemic in my mind.

Have seen increased engagement in sharing mission, vision and
purpose of APFC. Doing well with engaging Board in strategic
direction. I don't have a sense of how evolving trends are applied to
adjusting APFC plans.

5-year strategic planning sessions are beneficial to this process.

Good at seeing the big picture. Has lots of outward facing contact to
stay informed about markets, what peers are doing, etc.

Angela frequently reminds staff about the strategic plan and our core
values and challenges staff to honor these in our daily work at APFC.
APFC still suffers, on some level, from some staff working together
with other like-minded staff in silos that don't always interact as a
single team with unified goals. In my opinion, the responsibility for
this problem rests with more than just Angela and until all of the
affected staff are willing to acknowledge their role and work toward
solving this problem, APFC will continue to be adversely impacted by
these silos.

CEO Rodell implements and models APFC's mission, vision, and
purpose effectively and with strength through her words and
actions. She brings the core values of APFC into her conversations
and the decisions she makes. She is an outstanding leader engaging
the board and staff alike. It has been a pleasure to work closely with
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her - I feel like I can learn a lot from her and appreciate the work she
is doing for the Fund, the Corporation, and Alaskans.

Brings forward interesting topics to Board for consideration.
Monitors achievement of strategic objectives.

I believe Angela is keenly focused on APFC's mandate, fully cognizant
of evolving landscape. Engagement with the board and other
stakeholders is central to her efforts

Financial leadership:

- Identifies and mitigates risks to
fund

- Controls costs and ensures
resources are allocated appropnately
throughout the organization

- Ensures internal control systems
are in place to protect organization’s
financial health

- Provides sufficient and clear
information about financial progress
and results

She brought in the first Chief Risk Officer the fund has ever had to
ensure the risks are mitigated. We cut chairs out of our remodel to
ensure we stayed within budget even with our counterparts
suggesting things like everyone goes over budget I believe there are
more internal controls and systems in place now than ever before.

Angela takes stewardship and prudence of the Fund very seriously.
Working with the IT and Administrative Departments during this
pandemic, she has made sure that staff has had the necessary
resources to completely fulfill any needs that their duties required
while working remotely. She has also worked with staff to get a solid
disaster recovery plan created.

It appears that she pays careful attention to the administrative
budget and is on top of all the policies and procedures.

The first bullet is where Angela excels for sure in identifying and
mitigating perceived risk to the fund. She also relies heavily on her
staff to give her accurate information and she trusts it... then makes
tough internal decisions that aren't always popular but are probably
the most prudent. Angela is always results-oriented.

I believe that at times resources are not allocated appropriately

throughout the organization. These should align better with the

strategic goals. As an organization we still have issues with staff
retention due to compensation which is not comparable to other
similar organizations across all roles.

The office remodel that she over saw was very expensive at $4+
million dollar, was poorly executed and added little to no benefit to
the organization.

Authority is delegated to staff to perform these functions as noted.
Internal reporting systems are in place through the annual financial
audit, monthly financial and performance reports, and the risk
dashboard. The COO position has not been filled - properly
structured it would bring needed support to internal control systems
and alleviate strain on existing staff.

Angela requires staff to consider cost savings as a valuable way to
Improve fund returns. However, because it is very complicated to
allocate all APFC cost to specific assets classes portfolio
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managers/staff appear less concerned about costs that won't
negatively impact returns. In time this gap needs to be remedied. Our
new contract management system may help with this issue.

Coordinated a great risk tolerance session for trustees.
Has led efforts to ensure risk management and control frameworks

keep pace with growing scale of fund and fast changing operating
environment.

Advocacy and external relations:

- Educates external stakeholders
and the public

- Engages external stakeholders in
a professional. effective manner

- Seeks out speaking engagements
to provide fund visibility

- Outwardly communicates to
public and legislators about APFC’s
vision, goals, and progress

She is constantly talking to external stakeholders (rotary groups,
chambers of commerce, legislators, etc.) to help educate them on
what we do.

Bringing the IFSWF conference to Juneau, in my opinion, causes
Angela to exceed expectations in external relations. She regularly
speaks in public forums and at civic engagements. Along with her
Communications team, she strives to keep legislators very well
informed about the workings and needs of the Fund.

She appears to be very willing to speak to groups that request it, and
is beefing up the outreach effort, and has been willing to engage
legislators.

Angela is a very public figure in "today's Alaska" as the state relies so
heavily on the fund. I feel she does a tremendous amount of public
and stakeholder education.

Would like to see more general public engagements regarding
importance of how fund is managed in the current climate and with
POMYV distributions. Feedback on presentations given to various
investment or business organizations is good, but perhaps expanding
the audience to a more general, grassroots level, is in order.

Emphasizes transparency in reporting. Places high value on
communications plan. Actively participates in public speaking
opportunities and conferences.

This is the area that Angela is the most valuable to APFC and the
State. Angela has cultivated a good working relationship with the
Legislature and various Administrations. She uses these
relationships to get her and the Board's message heard and
understood.

CEO Rodell is an excellent face of the Corporation, Fund, and Alaska.
She is highly respected throughout the investing community, on a
global scale. She is sought after to keynote and participate in virtual
meetings and conferences. CEO Rodell has a strong Communications
point person dedicated to seeking out speaking engagements and
communicating with legislators. CEO Rodell strives to educate
Alaskans on the Fund and is an engaging speaker relaying the vision,
goals, and mission of the Corporation.
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Angela is very visible in Alaskan community. Frequent speaker.

Has been an outstanding ambassador of the fund, the state and
community in the global stage

Board relations:

- Collaborates with the board to set
the strategic direction for the
organization

- Provides opimions and
perspective on Board topics

- Responsive to Board’s direction
and feedback

- Keeps the board mformed of
important developments and 1ssues

- Maintains direct communication
with Trustees

I has been interesting to watch the dynamics of the board and the
evolving perspectives on what we should be doing. It is clear to
anyone watching over the past few years that the relationship
between the ED and some members of the board have been strained.
When board direction has been given, she provides necessary staff
resources to ensure the boards expectations are met.

This can be a difficult one to manage, since it may involve providing
input that is contrary to the direction the board is inclined to go, but
also to implement the board's direction if the decision is made.

With the relatively constant turnover of this board keeping them all
up to speed and responding to direction must be a difficult task. I
believe Angela's contact and communication with the board is often
and copious.

Generally good. At times, past communication difficulties with the
board have caused downstream effects for staff.

This question is better directed to the Board members. Between
Board meetings | know Angela has contact with Board members but
it doesn't happen in a way that is visible to APFC Staff. For the most
part, Angela appears to work well with the Board during Board
meetings. That said, from time to time when Angela disagrees with
the Board or a specific Board member's position on a certain issue
that she feels strongly about, her frustration becomes apparent. That
said, Ol don't know how these reactions are perceived by the Board.

CEO Rodell is an active communicator with the Board. She is
responsive to the Board and actively engages them while providing
options and perspectives in a respectful and knowledgeable manner.

Angela has reached out to me on various topics. | encourage Angela
to speak out more regarding her opinion regarding trustee decisions.

Organizational Culture and Team
Relations

This set of questions seeks to
understand perceptions of the CEO's
effectiveness in leading team
mteractions and strengthening
organizational culture within APFC.
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Organizational culture:

- Sets organizational tone that
attracts and retains top talent

- Maintains an open. honest.
trusting and collaborative relationship
with staff

- Articulates a compelling future
for the orgamization

- Encourages collaboration across
departments

- Engages others in exchanges of
view points

Angela has a vision that is preparing the organization for the future.
She consistently has expressed as we make changes that where
possible these changes should be relevant for years to come. This can
pose a challenge for some staff who are unable/unwilling to see that
vision and, in some cases, would appear to be happy doing things the
same way they have for the last X years. A good example is our office
space, many people were upset they lost their offices. However, | see
our younger population of employees using the collaboration rooms
and common areas with their laptops and they're working,
socializing and being more productive than just sitting in an office or
cubicle. I believe a lot of the pushback that has been received from
staff are those who would prefer to simply ride in to the sunset and
collect their pension with little questioning of what they're doing and
how they're doing it.

Given the restraints put on her by the Legislature, Angela does her
best to attract and retain top talent. She is honest about her
perceptions of future issues, whether or not she feels certain items
will be successful or not.

Angela always has her finger on the pulse of the organization and
articulates her concerns well when she has them and motivates and
praises them appropriately. Angela often asks for others' viewpoints
and I believe takes them very seriously.

I believe the CEO encourages collaboration across departments and
has been effective at increasing collaboration. She exchanges
viewpoints with other players within the organization. Does a great
job at articulating a compelling future for the organization to attract
new employees. However, we still have issues to retain top talent. |
believe there is work to do in the area of open, trusting, and honest
relationship with staff.

Board often hears that attracting talent is tough due to pay. ] wonder
if the other attributes of the APFC are being effectively
communicated to potential recruits - public service, affiliation with a
top tier sovereign wealth fund. With new remote workplace policies
now in place, I wonder if we will see an improvement in recruiting
success.

The CEO manages by fear, she is rarely interested in hearing the
opinion of staff unless it is supportive of her view. The APFC has
been losing very good people under her watch.

The tone has been established and is effectively conveyed along with
the future for the organization. Collaboration happens as needed, but
the organization is rather silo-ed. Angela has made progress on
asking for and listening to staff viewpoints - but maintains her power
to be the ultimate decision-maker.

I believe Angela has worked hard over the last year to form strong
relationships with each of her direct reports. But, she has done this
in a one-on-one basis. So, when APFC works together as a team we
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still suffer from operating in silos and fail to work openly and
honestly with each other to achieve our mission. I believe the
relationships Angela has formed with her direct reports will prove
crucial to APFC taking the next step, but we still have work to go
before we function as a healthy team with a unified mission. Angela
has also started holding periodic team meetings in which she
requests input from all of her direct reports. Again this is a great first
step that needs to be continued and nurtured to encourage her direct
reports to work openly and candidly with each other in plain sight.

Seems to have a good relationship with direct reports but there is a
cultural silo between investments and the rest of the departments
which is real and cannot be fixed by staff alone.

I have been blown away by the talent and reputation that the
Corporation has within Alaska, the US, and globally. CEO Rodell has
worked collaboratively with her staff to build and maintain an
absolutely outstanding team of talent at APFC. There is clear
direction, collaboration, communication, and structure at the
Corporation. CEO Rodell has leaders across the departments that
engage their staff and provide leadership.

Attrition has been well managed considering the challenges of a
Juneau HQ.

Even prior to her involvement with APFC, our organization has been
divided by the lack of trust. Investments vs everyone else. She's
working to bridge this divide by establishing standing meetings
which has helped.

Despite the extraneous factors that challenge attracting and
retaining talent, she has strived hard to do the best with success.

Staff development and motivation:
- Ensures meaningful and
challenging goals for performance
improvement

- Committed to staff development
- Ensures the nght people are in
place to carry out the organization’s
strategic direction

- Encourages staff to capitalize on
opportunities to improve productivity
and quality

- Keeps staff focused on critical
objectives

- Reduces interference with goal
accomplishment

- Understands what motivates staff
as individuals

Angela has pushed staff to pursue additional certifications, trainings,
and any other opportunities to develop professionally (and
personally). She is willing to make changes if needed to ensure the
right people are in the right places. Sometimes convincing mangers
to do the same is difficult. Angela implemented a monthly group
breakfast for those who were celebrating birthdays. This was done
out of her own pocket and the impetus for this was an opportunity
for her to ensure time with members of the team she might not
interact with on a regular basis, to listen and learn about their lives,
how they're feeling and help understand what motivates them.

Training and career development have always been an integral part
of APFC's corporate culture, and Angela has completely encouraged
and supported that growth for staff.

I believe this is where Angela excels... Making sure staff is focused,
motivated, and capable. Angela has done wonders to shape the
culture over my tenure at the APFC in a much more productive way.
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I believe CEO helps shielding staff from outside distractions in order
to accomplish goals and keeps staff focused on critical objectives.
CEO encourages staff to capitalize on opportunities to improve
productivity and quality.

Echo previous thought -- is there a sufficient focus on the non-
monetary aspects of APFC employment? Those can be hugely
motivating.

There is support for individual efforts and opportunities for self-
improvement. Angela is not a hands-on manager but is supportive
and willing to listen to and talk through issues, objectives, challenges.

Angela does not micromanage her direct reports. She points out
issues that need to be addressed and leaves it to the relevant
supervisor to solve these issues. However, some of these long-
standing issues remain unresolved. It is hard to assign all of the
blame for this to Angela because there is plenty of blame to go
around. It is my understanding that Angela has set up small working
groups with key APFC staff to work on some of these issues to ensure
that some of these issues get addressed. | am hopeful that this
additional prodding will improve some of these issues.

CEO Rodell is not a micro-manager - in my experience, some
departmental leaders can be, but I have yet to see that at any level at
the Corporation. Staff is encouraged to think outside of the box and
introduce solutions and new ideas. I have found that everyone at the
corporation feels valued and encouraged to do their best work.

Perception of staff is that they are delivering excellent results as
directed by CEO.

Many of our staff do not have foundational knowledge to do their job.
This is across all departments. When they need to work with others,
this is obvious which has eroded the trust across departments. To fix
this more of the “old timers" at APFC need to actually learn about the
tasks they've been assigned...and not train the next generation of
staff. It will only make us weaker. There appears to be a focus on
training the new hires which is needed. Training the "old timers"
would make more of an improvement.

Internal communications:

- Values transparency

- Maintains open lines of
communication at all levels

- Engages staff in discussions
about goals and objectives

- Listens to staff. brninging their
perspectives into overall consideration
of issues

- Asks questions before expressing
OoWn opinion

Angela is constantly asking questions and poking holes in ideas. I do
not believe she does this because she is trying to be a pain or some
sort of power trip. | believe it is because she wants to have
confidence that I have thought through my decisions, she is not one
to just rubber stamp things. Once I've answered her questions and
incorporated any feedback, | almost always have the green light to
move forward. I believe some see questioning as a challenge to their
expertise rather than a verification of it.

Angela does well at listening to other viewpoints, even those that
may not agree with her own, before commenting on issues or topics.
She is respectful of what others have to say.
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- Ensures all individuals have an
opportunity to share their view points
and insights during meetings

I have no problems getting Angela's attention and time. Angela will
frequently seek me out to discuss projects, goals, and staffing morale.
She often will not let a meeting end without one-by-one asking
everyone if they have input before adjourning.

I believe CEO asks staff for opinions, to share their views and
perspectives. However, | am not sure that staff at all levels feel
comfortable in sharing different views. CEO engages staff in
discussions about goals and objectives.

Effective leadership requires that leaders share vision, goals and
rationale in decision making. Taking staff on the journey with us
takes extra time initially but pays dividends in staff respect and buy-
in. This appears to be improving. Remote working posture may have
brought this to the fore.

Angela generally does not value the opinion of staff. She over rode
the CIO hiring committee's recommendation not to hire
He did not work out. She did not utilize the APFC real estate team
and it's property manages for guidance on the APFC office remodel.
Not a great outcome. Angela over rode the CIO and real estate teams
recommendation to retain a larger apartment portfolio. That hurt the
performance of the fund.

Opportunities are available; however, staff still seems to lack trust?
and show an unwillingness to engage in all staff meetings. Angela has
an open door policy - one must choose to use it. Meetings are often
conducted by getting all viewpoints and insights. Typically, Angela
holds on expressing her opinion until others have spoken. She is
strong and decisive in decision making.

APFC as an entity still operates in a series of silos and information is
often shared with the members of each silo but not often with all
APFC members. Angela has been trying to engage her direct reports
in team meetings in being more candid with each other to improve
this problem. It remains to be seen whether this will improve this
problem. Angela definitely engages others to get their opinions and
provides all with a chance to weigh-in before key decisions are made.

I have learned a lot from CEO Rodell observing her leadership at the
Corporation. She maintains open lines of communication, checks in
with staff, listens, and responds. She is available to staff and engages
in open dialogue and discussions.

Fair and equitable organizational
culture:

- Appropnately aligns authority
with responsibility throughout the
organization

- Actively and equally seeks the
opinions of individuals throughout the
organization

She only steps in when she feels like she has to, other than that she
appears to allow staff to take responsibility for their actions.

Absolutely... The compassion is there when needed however Angela
has high expectations and those expectations are for everyone...
including herself. This leads to hard but honest conversations when
necessary also... which I respect.
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- Listens to how individuals
throughout the organization are
feeling. and dialogues with them about
their perspectives

- Exhibits values of faimess.
honesty. and compassion

CEO appropriately aligns authority with responsibility throughout
the organization

Expectations are clear for meeting professional standards. It seems
like Angela enjoys engaging with staff in casually asking how things
are going. Forums for listening about how people are feeling and
their perspectives are not well established. Setting the cultural tone
through actions, not words, is essential, and often it is observed that
there are different standards applied throughout the corporation
based on individual actions.

This is another one of Angela's strengths. She expects supervisors to
manage their staff and get their assigned work completed.

Actively seeks feedback but could be more consistent enforcement of
expectations regarding behavior and performance across the
organization.

Assessment of CEO Personal
Attributes and Leadership Qualities
This set of questions seeks to
understand perceptions of the
effectiveness of the CEO's personal
attributes and leadership qualities
leading APFC.

Role model and change agent:

- Develops and refines appropriate
internal systems for effective
operations

- Thinks mnovatively

- Exlubats a high level of
emotional intelligence

- Seeks new information and
perspectives

- Values a diversity of opinions
- Earns and maintains respect of
employees

- Appropriately delegates authority

I do think Angela meets most of these.

Angela likes to hear input from a variety of sources to gain a better
understanding of issues. She is open to internal change, both
operationally and technologically, in order to make processes more
efficient.

I have a very favorable impression in the "Seeks new information
and perspectives" bullet point, since it appears that she reads or
follows a large array of publications and is an active member of at
least one high-level investment association. This is important in
allowing her to bring an independent perspective to the investment
decision making process.

As I've mentioned previously Angela has been relentless at reshaping
the culture since I've been aboard. She has been successful by being
respectful but demanding, innovating, and giving folks the autonomy
and authority to carry out the mission.

Angela is a strategic and visionary thinker. She is engaged with
organizations and peers of other wealth funds. She is also an active
consumer of news and periodicals to stay informed
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Angela is great at delegating authority and she very much values a
diversity of opinions among staff. 1 think Angela could do a better job
at being the role model that she wants all APFC to exhibit.

I have appreciated working under, and with CEO Rodell. She
exemplifies the type of leadership that Alaska needs. | am thankful
for her direction and guidance at the Corporation. She is an asset to
the Corporation, Board, and Alaska.

Steadfast support for considering multiple and varied perspectives.
Reflects confidence, firmness and trust

Problem solver:

- Keeps a pulse on shifts and
trends m the political, social. and
economic environment

- Encourages staff to challenge the
status quo

- Thinks quickly and assimilates
ideas well

- Handles ambiguous situations
well. bringing focus to the
organization’s pursuit of mission and
vision

- Allows for failure as long as the
nisk does not cause personal harm or
ureversible loss to the organization

She is constantly pushing me and I in turn push my team to think
about how we can do things better, more efficiently and with less
risk. She definitely keeps abreast of the political, social and economic
environment She provides her team with the ability to learn from
their mistakes as long as there is no personal harm or irreversible
loss.

Angela keeps on top of current events. She is 'quick on her feet' when
it comes to unexpected situations or issues that come up, such as
sudden Board meeting discussions or requests. She is always
pushing staff to challenge themselves for the better.

I would agree on all fronts. Especially the "ambiguous situations”
piece. She requires clear and concise information often asking how it
aligns to the strategic plan in order to help clarify.

Angela is engaged and informed. She often challenges the status quo
and encourages others to do so. The mission and vision are central to
our work as a public corporation, and Angela often focuses the
dialogue on these essentials.

Angela often challenges staff to think about issues around the world
that could help or hinder the task that APFC is tasked with.

Consistently challenges status quo.

One thing I've learned working with CEO Rodell is never say "l don't
know" - always have a solution or idea to come up with the answer!
She wants answers and solutions. She thinks on her feet and has
great feedback. She looks at issues from numerous perspectives and
has a pulse on all of the many environments that affect our
communication strategies, budgetary requests, board meetings, and
Fund performance. CEO Rodell is an outstanding leader when it
comes to problem-solving and considering many opinions and
perspectives.

Effectively leverages resources

Leadership development:
- Committed to continually

Angela has proactively inquired about coaching and personal
development starting about 4 years ago. These last few years have
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umproving personal leadership
performance

- Demonstrates self-discipline

- Assumes responsibility for
adverse outcomes

- Demonstrates humility

- Perseveres through challenges

been a balance of some incredible successes for APFC and some deep
challenges, she has continued to persevere through times I myself
might have given up. I've worked with a lot of people from large
cities throughout my career, her humility & and self-discipline
compared to are better than many.

I would agree on all of the above.
Angela has a strong desire to improve her leadership but at times

does not seem willing to evaluate and acknowledge her strengths
and weaknesses (i.e. self-awareness).

Systems thinker:

- Establishes a unifying vision and
culture across the organization

- Considers the big picture when
making decisions

- Builds mterconnectedness in the
system to achieve organizational
success

She has tried very hard to unify the organization however there are
still silos and those that prefer to say one thing in a meeting then
presenting things differently when back in front of their teams.

Going back to the strategic planning sessions, Angela is careful to
make sure all stakeholders - Board, management, and staff - are
engaged and well-informed about the mission and vision of the Fund
and Corporation.

As mentioned... she's wholly responsible for what I feel isa
motivated, talented and world-class organization built on "us" not
"him and her."

Angela is good at the big picture issues and does not get lost in the
weeds on such issues. That said, APFC as an entity is fragmented and
siloed.

Has the big picture in mind when thinking strategically. Sometimes
feels like we are trying to do too much too quickly. Would benefit
from more focus on setting priorities for corporate initiatives.

Internal partnership:

- Inspires loyalty among staff to
further the mission and vision of the
organization

- Encourages collaboration
throughout the organization

- Creates supportive relationships
throughout the organization

- Carefully and fairly monitors
mdividual performance

Collaboration has been a huge focus during Angela's tenure. From
bringing back the summer picnic and softball against our friends at
treasury, to paying a good chunk of the cost for a holiday party she
has done a very good job in ensuring all voices are heard. My
performance is carefully monitored and I receive timely, constructive
and positive feedback for my efforts.

Angela encourages the different departments to assist and support
each other and to be transparent in their goals and how those goals
may affect others in the Corporation.

All of the above- yes.

CEO encourages collaboration, inspires to further mission and vision.
CEO creates supportive relationships throughout the organization

Angela has worked closely with me to improve my issues with some
APFC staff. | appreciated her candor and support. But I believe

LBA 1 - 000024






24

Angela could benefit from having an employee she trusts helping her
identify and work on her own areas that need improvement.

Could be more proactive in bridging the gap between investiments
and the rest of the staff.

Effective communication:

- Encourages open communication
and dialogue throughout the
organization

- Listens to others without
mterruption

- Engages in difficult
conversations and confrontations

- Utilizes appropriate channels of
communication eg. Email, face-to-
face. telephone calls

- Practices empathic listening

Angela is definitely willing to engage in tough conversations, and will
listen and adjust as necessary. A good example of this is the response
to COVID. Our Crisis Management Team has a very differing opinions
on how to handle things. She has listened and allowed very frank and
open conversation about the nuances of navigating the pandemic and
ultimately we found a very comfortable place to be in terms of how
we have worked with our staff, the changing mandates and unseen
pressure. At the end of the day it was her decision as the ED and the
feedback we received has been overwhelmingly positive in how
COVID has been handled.

Angela is not afraid to face difficult situations or topics. At the same
time, she also has an open ear to hear the challenges or issues that
others may face.

As stated... Angela is not afraid of having hard discussions and
chooses the correct venue for them.

For the most part, Angela is a good listener. If she is emotionally
charged about an issue she can be hard to approach and have a
candid conversation with about such issues. Those situations are,
however, relatively rare.
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APFC CEO Performance Evaluation
Summary Comments

Please include any other comments
about the CEO’s performance, or any
circumstances that may have
influenced the CEO’s performance n
the past vear.

All comments and examples are personal. Overall | enjoy working
with Angela she is fair, competent and I believe truly wants what is
best for the fund. Is she perfect, no. I hope the constructive feedback
provided will help her improve. I also hope the relationship with
some members of the board continue to improve.

Angela does an outstanding job of communicating the Corporation's
vision and mission to not only staff and internal stakeholders, but
also to the public. She keeps the Fund focused and on-track, while
using effective communication and accepting different viewpoints.
Angela is a great leader for APFC, and she excels at her role as its
CEO.

Angela cares deeply for the State of Alaska and its people. She has the
values of the Fund at hand and ready to apply to any situation and...
does this often. Also, as an employee of the APFC, | trust Angela
wholly and her daily example motivates me.

CEO adapted organization to remote workforce posture effectively
and has begun to think of ways to use this circumstance to the

advantage in recruiting talent and saving APFC money.

Angela seems to be more conscious of her leadership style and
listening to the opinions of her team.

Has been an exceptional leader during the COVID pandemic
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3— PFC ALASKA PERMANENT
FUND CORPORATION

Subject:

Date:

Angela Rodell -
Self Evaluation, December 1, 2019 — November 30, 2020

December 1, 2020

APFC Performance 2020

It is very difficult to discuss the performance of APFC without discussing the performance of the
Fund. The performance of the Fund provides a quantitative method of evaluating all the efforts of
staff over the course of the year. In that light, while returns were lower than recent years at
2.01%, they were in the top quartile for large public plans (Callan). Since | joined 5 years ago, the
Fund has continued to grow. | am especially proud of our 5-year return of 8,43% which was in the
top quartile for large public plans and well above median for endowments and foundations (top
quartile was 8.50% or better — Callan).

Administration & Management/Staff

2020 has been a year like no other — for all of us. Early on signs of a global pandemic were being
reported and meetings started cancelling. It became apparent as | met with our partners around
the world that | would need to have a plan for keeping staff safe while still delivering on our
mission and vision - to manage and invest the assets of the Permanent Fund and other funds
designated by law and to deliver outstanding returns for the benefit of all current and future
generations of Alaskans.

The first step | took was to have IT, Finance and Admin teams prepare needs assessments and test
work remote systems in February. | assembled a COVID Crisis Management group consisting of
representatives from all teams in order to have an ongoing coordinated response. | am deeply
committed to the APFC team and it was important to provide a flexible work policy that
recognized the unique challenges we faced. On March 2" | curtailed business travel and by March
18" | had instituted a voluntary work from home policy. On March 24" we went into mandatory
work from home in compliance with the Governor’s mandates.

Staff were invited to come back into the office on a voluntary basis in June and we have continued
under that directive until the Governor requested all staff to work from home whenever possible
starting November 16". This mandate continues to be in effect through December 15, Prior to
that mandate, on any given day | am pleased to report a third of the staff were coming into the
office. Staff chose their days based on work and meeting requirements and their ability to limit
exposure to others.

During this time, staff have continued to deliver on our priorities. On March 317, the value of the
Fund was $60.0 billion and by October 31* the Fund had grown to $65 billion. We held our first
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ever all virtual Board meeting in May. We hired 9 new professionals that included a fixed income
credit analyst, a real estate asset manager, a risk officer, 2 portfolio accountants, 3 administrative
assistants and a procurement officer while delivering on all the commitments we had to the State.
This could not have been done without the coordinated effort and high level of communication
and most importantly commitment by all the teams. | take great pride in these accomplishments.

My bigger challenge this year has been in the arena of recruitment. Staff turnover is occurring
primarily in middle and back office operations and with junior level investment personnel. The
most senior person to leave this past year was Rose Duran, Director of Real Estate, after 30 years
of service. Tim Andreyka had been working with Rose for the past couple of years as part of a
succession plan, recognizing Rose was approaching retirement. | was pleased to be able to
promote him and he is now focused on finding a new senior portfolio manager.

Administrative services lost 2 administrative assistants to investment analyst positions, a third
assistant to business school and the departure of our procurement specialist to a position at
Sealaska. These departures happened in the span of approximately 8 weeks, creating a huge hole.
Sara Race was able to move quickly with HR, get positions posted, interview remotely and fill all
vacant positions by mid-September. | think this experience highlights a willingness on our part to
hire and train internal candidates, find internal promotion opportunities, recognize that the APFC
brand has created a demand for positions and we have the ability to act quickly.

Recruiting into investments continues to be a challenge for a variety of reasons. It is very time
consuming, requiring managers to spend a significant portion of their day on non-investment
matters. We have revisited our process for investment positions and HR has done a great job
streamlining candidates by creating a resume scoring system along with video recorded
interviews to specific questions that all members of a hiring team can watch on their own
schedule. We cannot however wait two or three weeks to get back to a potential candidate
because the market is competitive and we lose out. | am continuing to work with staff to prioritize
filling our vacancies and believe we will be making offers for a couple of the investment positions
by the end of the year. Filling vacancies with professionals who have a core sense of service, a
passion for investing and fit well within our APFC culture will continue to be a priority in the
coming year.

Community & Public Relations

| do not think there has been a time when community and public relations has been more
important to maintaining widespread support for the Fund and APFC. Increased focus by the
public, the legislature and the administration on the Alaska Permanent Fund has given me an
opportunity to engage in numerous public speaking opportunities around the state. | continue to
seek out opportunities to meet with various interest groups in Alaska and with virtual meetings it
has made it easier to schedule those.

Our website has been updated, highlighting the need for ongoing education. The 2009 Alaskans
Guide to the Permanent Fund has been updated to 2020 and | believe this will be a helpful
education tool for all. | am in the process of planning to meet with ail freshman legislators prior to
the start of session in order to introduce APFC and the Fund and discuss the Board’s priorities.
These first meetings will be key to a successful legislative session that is forecasted to be difficult.
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Board Relations

Of all the areas of responsibility, board relations have been the most difficult and this year
marked both an all-time low as well as a source of improvement. There has been a lack of trust
and confidence in the Board by me and in me by the Board. The reciprocal lack of trust was
illustrated by the introduction of major charter changes to the ED responsibilities which included
having the chief investment officer report directly to the Board. This was a new low that needed
to be addressed and | believed one way to improve relations was to improve my communication
with the trustees. | set for myself a goal to send the board an email every two weeks which
touched on various successes and issues that had occurred. | believe it provides me with an
opportunity to give trustees a sense of everything that is going on between meetings as well a
providing an avenue for trustees to ask questions or raise concerns.

Improving board relations will continue to be a top priority for me in the upcoming year.
2021 Prioritiey

My vision for the Corporation since joining 5 years ago is to empower an organization that
overwhelmingly delivers on its mission of providing and building value to the State. In that vein, |
have identified the following as my top 3 priorities for 2021: (i) work on building a strong data
operation, (ii) improve our regulatory infrastructure; and (iii) maintain robust public relations.

The importance of good data cannot be overstated and with an increasingly complex portfolio
and the velocity at which decisions are made, having a robust internal data room will be integral
to growing the Fund. In addition, the number of public records requests and analyses have made
the need for accurate, accessible data a key component to maintaining transparency and public
trust.

As the Fund has grown in size, certain Federal regulatory requirements have taken effect. For
example, if we have more than S8 billion in derivatives exposure, we are required to maintain
certain records and filings. Compliance with these regulations will require that we continue to
invest in the personnel, processes and technology going forward and highlights yet another need
for good data.

Finally, transparency, thoughtful processes, measurable outcomes all lead to confidence in APFC
and the ability to grow the Fund. It is with that in mind, that | look to expand on communications
and public relations to ensure that we are properly resourced and that Alaskans can trust in the
outcomes generated by APFC. This effort will require the addition of a full-time person, continued
expansion into various social media outlets, persistent updating of the website and seeking out
various public speaking and interview opportunities.

2021 will be a challenging year. The State will be facing unprecedented pressure to deliver
essential services in the wake of the pandemic and we will be asked to step up and do our part
and most likely more. | am committed to working with the Board and staff to ensure that we are
aligned, that Alaskans fully understand what our strengths and limitations are and that we deliver
the performance Alaskans have come to rely on.
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From: Richards, Craig

To: Rieger, Steve; Mahoney. Lucinda
Subject: Re: Performance Review

Date: Tuesday, December 8, 2020 3:38:58 PM
Steve,

Draft report looked fine to me. | did not see Angela's response but that is what it is.

Can we make sure and get the strategic plan circulated to the Board as well. | think that would
be helpful.

Craig

From: Rieger, Steve

Sent: Monday, December 7, 2020 1:10 PM
To: Mahoney, Lucinda; Richards, Craig
Subject: Performance Review

Qur consultant, Vicki Graham, has completed the Performance Feedback Report for Angela
Rodell’s performance review later this week. | have asked Ms. Graham to forward the report
to you, along with Angela’s self-evaluation. We may also have a third document available by
the time of the Board’s executive session on Thursday, which will be a response by Angela to
the Performance Feedback Report.

As | mentioned earlier, | would like to have Ms. Graham circulate these review documents to
all trustees beforehand, and we would go directly to the executive session with all six trustees
present without holding a Governance Committee meeting, even though our governance
policies call for the documents to be presented to the full board by the Governance
Committee. If you have any objection to bypassing the step of having a Governance
Committee meeting beforehand please let me know; otherwise | will plan to ask Ms. Graham
to circulate the performance review documents to all trustees tomorrow.

Thank you—I look forward to seeing both of you (virtually) at the meeting.

Steve







CEO Performance evaluation APFC CONFIDENTIAL December 6, 2021

The following document represents a summary of the results of the 360 degree performance evaluation of Angela

Rodell.

Overall Summary

Oversaw an organization that delivered record returns in FY 21 during a volatile market.

Oversaw a rapid expansion in assets under management without any evident problems

Designed a remote-work system for the organization at an early stage in the pandemic--before there was any
consensus on best practices—-that has worked well.

Continued to share and communicate APFC education in the community in a mostly remote environment

Has addressed and managed risk and cyber threats to organization in a responsible manner thereby protecting the
assets

Her relationship with the Board is stressed and some Trustees report a lack of trust and candor. The same can be
said for her dealings with the executive branch and the legislature.

Strained relationship with members of the investment staff.

Silos between Operations and Investments continue to cause conflict in the organization

Key Comments Provided in Survey

Q3 Strategic development

Effectively implements and models APFC’s mission, vision, and purpose * Engages the board in strategic direction
Considers evolving trends and factors and adjusts plans accordingly

' Board Needs improvement in bringing the Board in on str?égfc&recﬁbﬁ and evolving trendz{. As

fast as the market and investment climate have been changing over the past 12-18 months,
expectation was to have a more dynamic engagement from the CEO on strategy and evolving
lrends/factors impacting the Fund. Rather, we got only references to "what the Strategic
Plan says" - no real leadership or vision in this area in a broadly dynamic situation. Reduces
confidence in the CEQ's performance.

' Board | Does not embrace the vision of the Board, but instead tries to control the Board to achieve — 27

her own vision and points of view. Although she has done good work on goals with which she

is aligned, she actively resists and undermines the Board and staff in areas in which she is not -
aligned. | also believe she lacks a long-term vision for the fund as evidenced by the failure of

the APFC to develop a best in class goal for each asset class as envisioned in the strategic

Vlﬁvestmen‘ts. CEO focus is more on opera_nons than investments

Investments | Firm and fair in managing conflict resolution in accordance with mission, vision and pu rpose

Considers tr trends and factors

Investments Some staff feel disengaged and voiceless. Surrounds herself with * Ieadershiip” that_agrees

0

with her opinions. -
perations | Highly supportive of CEO work and indicate strategy issues are due to Board not wantmg to
address/empower her.
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Q4 Financial leadership

Identifies and mitigates risks to fund * Controls costs and ensures resources are allocated appropriately throughout the
organization * Ensures internal control systems are in place to protect organization’s financial health
Provides sufficient and clear information about financial progress and results
"Board i Needs Improvement in ensuring costs are controlled and resources are allocated appropnately
‘ FY23 budget appeared to be developed without rigor around adding resources and controlling
! | costs over the long term

Board l Budget process could have been managed better. Initial budget requests were not well
! vetted by CEO prior to submission to the Board.
' Board CEO has a tendency to "control” financial and other information that

o ~ goes to the board, executive branch and legislature to help her push her ownagenda

Investments : Resources not allocated appropriately; spends too much time promoting admin staff and t trying to
. build large admin organization, bureaucracy builder

_Investments Manages risk well

Investments Spent too much money on remodel and doesn’t manage money effectively, APFC could manage with

o _half the budget & 30% less staff. Efforts to increase compensation for admin does not drive value
_Operations _Emphasizes transparency and supports internal control systems_
Operations - Need more resources to manage back office operations

Q5 Advocacy and external relations

Educates external stakeholders and the public » Engages external stakeholders in a professional, effective manner Seeks
out speaking engagements to provide fund visibility * Outwardly communicates to public and legislators about
APFC’s vision, goals, and progress

Board ~CEQisan excellent advocate of the fund an excellent communlcator

"Investments "CEO is exceptlonal in this capacity and does so professnonally to protect fund and educate
o - stakeholders
Operations Great advocate of the fund Very professional, effective advocate of APFC.
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Q6 Board Relations

Collaborates with the board to set the strategic direction for the organization * Provides opinions and perspective on
Board topics * Responsive to Board's direction and feedback * Keeps the board informed of important
developments and issues * Maintains direct communication with Trustees

| Board | Often sense the Board is only told certain things by CEO to drive a specific outcome. Board
requires honest transparency. Board is not sought out in a collaborative manner. CEO tends to rely
upon the Resolutions and Strategic Plan as a shield when she doesn't want Board input. Hiring a
“Jediator to manage the discussion of Strategic Plan, without telling the Trustees, rather than taking
this task in hand was demonstrative of the CEQ's discomfort with engaging her Board openly and
- honestly.
Board The Directors relatlonshlp with the Board is soured. Information that comes to the Board is
controlled and manipulated, Board goals are sometimes ignored or even undermined, and a
- number of trustees in recent years have lost trust in her veracity and leadership
Investments  Strives to exceed Board expectations while preserving the fund
Investments CEQ at odds with Board 7 -
Operations Dynamic between CEO and the Board appears difficult.
' Operations Board needs to empower the CEO

Q7 Organizational culture

Sets organizational tone that attracts and retains top talent-Maintains an open, honest, trusting and collaborative
relationship with staff * Articulates a compelling future for the organization * Encourages collaboration across
departments-Engages others in exchanges of view points

Board " Given difficulties, as reported by CEQ, in recruiting and retaining staff with current approach,
Board has not been presented with information on how CEQ intends to improve recruiting and
retention at APFC, other than through incentive comp and increased salaries. What is the CEQ's
vision for a compelling future for APFC? This should be a living vision that is articulated Regularly

Investments Some Investment team members do not believe its opinions are heard or valued

Investments Investments vs Operations conflict is difficult and is not improving

Operations Divide continues to persist between investment teams and operations which has been made worse
by incentive comp, comparing to Treasury & Board comments about compensation

Operations APFC is a great place to work and organizational tone is good.

Q8 -Staff development and motivation

Ensures meaningful and challenging goals for performance improvement * Committed to staff development Ensures
the right people are in place to carry out the organization’s strategic direction * Encourages staff to capitalize on
opportunities to improve productivity and quality * Keeps staff focused on critical objectives Reduces interference
with goal accomplishment * Understands what motivates staff as individuals

Investments C')p.i“h'ib.nsﬁvary signifii:anfiy Some indicate CEO is not a motivator and staff perfo_rm well due to
| personal commitment to Alaskan. CEO does not empower s staff

| Operations Board brings down morale due to compensation discussions, Angela does her best at keeping morale 5

and motivation up.
Operations | CEO does best to develop staff with the resources available
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Q9- Internal Communications

Values transparency * Maintains open lines of communication at all levels * Engages staff in discussions about goals and
objectives * Listens to staff, bringing their perspectives into overall consideration of issues * Asks questions before
expressing own opinion * Ensures all individuals have an opportunity to share their view points and insights during

meetings * Communicates effectively and respectfully with staff

" Investments Needs to listen more to staff with mvestment expenence Some staff couch opmnons so as to not

~_  upsether

~ Operations ~ Highly engaged wnth staff good communicator, and has an open -door pOllCY

Q10-Fair and equitable organization culture

Appropriately aligns authority with responsibility throughout the organization * Actively and equally seeks the opinions
of individuals throughout the organization * Listens to how individuals throughout the organization are feeling, and
dialogues with them about their perspectives * Exhibits values of fairness, honesty, and compassion
" Investments Orgamzatlon  culture is not managed in a3 manner that that APFC is an investment management

L , company.
‘Operations Creates an organizational culture that is balanced between Ops andrlnvestments

Q11-Role model and change agent
Develops and refines appropriate internal systems for effective operations * Thinks innovatively * Exhibits a high level of
emotional intelligence * Seeks new information and perspectives ¢ Values a diversity of opinions * Earns and maintains
respect of employees * Appropriately delegates authority

Investments  CEO would benefit to revisit the aelergation of authority to ensure process is not interfering with

o ‘ productivity ]
Investments Needs to create a more open envnronment that encourages dwersnty of thought N o
Operations Thinks “outside the box” to evaluate pracess change. Creative thinker, seeks out ideas and oplmons
of others
Q12-Problem solver

Keeps a pulse on shifts and trends in the political, social, and economic environment ° Encourages staff to challenge the
status quo * Thinks quickly and assimilates ideas well * Handles ambiguous situations well, bringing focus to the
organization’s pursuit of mission and vision ¢ Allows for failure as long as the risk does not cause personal harm or
irreversible loss to the organization

Investments ) Comments provuded conflicting opinions o o o
_Operations 1 Not afraid of change and endorses new methods
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Q13-Leadership development

Committed to continually improving personal leadership performance * Demonstrates self-discipline * Assumes
responsibility for adverse outcomes * Demonstrates humllity * Perseveres through challenges

[ Investments 1 Performs well particularly when persevering through challenges

Q14-Systems Thinker

Establishes a unifying vision and culture across the organization * Considers the big picture when making decisions
Builds interconnectedness In the system to achieve organizational success
Operations | No notable comments L i
investments | No notable comments o o S |

Q15-Internal Partnership

Inspires loyalty among staff to further the mission and vision of the organization * Encourages collaboration throughout
the organization * Creates supportive relationships throughout the organization * Carefully and fairly monitors individual
performance

[Investments | Comments provided conflicting observations _ L
Operations Working to remove silos to function more like asingle team

Q16-Effective communication — Internal

Encourages open communication and dialogue throughout the organization * Listens to others without interruption
Engages in difficult conversations and confrontations * Utilizes appropriate channels of communication eg. Email, face-
to-face, telephone calls * Practices empathic listening

Board Most Trustees do not have enough info to comment. ED is strong on exhibiting values of fairness,
‘ _honesty and compassion o B

Investments ~ Comments provided conflicting observations

Operations Has regular meetings, engaged with staff.
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CEO Performance Evaluation Summary
Weighted Average Results by Group

12.6.21

Board Investments Operations Neither Combined
Q3 Strategic development: 2.75 2.94 4.3¢€ 4.25 3.56
QA4 Financial leadership: 3 2.63 4.33 4 3.35
Q5 Advocacy and external relations:- 3.2% 3.6 49 475 4.11
Q6 Board Relations 2.5 3.17 4.3 15 3.65
Q7 Organizational culture 3 2.53 4.4 4.25 3.42
Q8 -Staff development and motivation: ? 3 £33 £.25 36
Q9- Internal Communications 1.5 3 4.22 4.5 3.48
Q10-Fair and equitable organization culture 2.5 2.64 LL £.25 3.48
Q1l1-Role model and change agent 3 2.93 4.2 [ 3.53
Q12-Problem solver 3.3 3.07 4.6 25 3.78
Q13-Leadership development 3 2.93 4.1 75 3.55
Q14-Systems Thinker 2.75 3.23 4.3 £33 3.5
Q15-Internal Partnership 1 2.87 4 4 3.35
Q16-Effective communication 3 3 L2 4 3.61
Avgoverall 2.6 3.0 4.3 4.3 3.6
Exceeds Expectations 5
Meets Al. Expectations < 3.6 's overall average
Meets Miost Expectations 3
Meess Seme Expectations 2
Daoes not Meet kxpectations 1
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Final 2021 CEO Performance Evaluation - APFC

Q1 What is your role within APFC?

Answered. 38 Skipped: 0

Staff

Direct Report l

Board Member

arefer Not To
Say |

0% 10% 20% 30% 40%  50% 60% 70% B80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Staff 69.23%

Direct Report 7.69%

Board Memb;er 10.26% -
Prefer Not To Say 12.82%

TOTAL
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Final 2021 CEO Performance Evaluation - APFC

Q2 Please designate your organizational affinity.

investments

Operations
Neither

Board Member ’::‘"—.- Ay

0% 10% 20%

ANSWER CHOICES

Investments
Operations
Neither

Board Member
TOTAL

Answered. 37

30% 40% 50%

Z128

Skipped: 2

60%  70% B80% 90% 100%

RESPONSES
43.24%

32.43%
13.51%

10.81%
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Final 2021 CEO Performance Evaluation - APFC

Q3 Strategic development: -
APFC’s mission, vision, and purpose-
direction-

Effectively implements and models
Engages the board in strategic |
Considers evolving trends and factors and adjusts plans \

accordingly
Answered. 36  Skipped. 3
(no label)
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%  B80% 90% 100%
i Exceeds Ex. . Meets ALE Mzets Most Maets Son
Does Not M. - N/A
EXCEEDS MEETS ALL MEETS MOST MEETS SOME DOES NOT NIA TOTAL
EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS MEET
EXPECTATIONS

(no 33.33% 22.22% 19.44% 16.67% 8.33%  0.00%
label) 12 8 7 6 3 0 36
# PLEASE PROVIDE COMMENTS TO HELP INFORM YOUR RANKING. DATE
: 4 Evolving trends could be better considered and | believe there has been some hesitancy to 12/1/2021 9:13 PM

adjust plans when requests are not fulfilled, in particular with budget items.
2 CEO focus is more on operations than investments, 11/30/12021 7:07 PM
3 Needs improvement in bringing the Board in on strategic direction and evolving trends. As fast 11/30/2021 5:51 PM

as the market and investment climate have been chanaging over the past 12-18 manths, my

expectation was to have a more dynamic engagement from the CEO on strategy and evolving

trends/factors impacting the Fund. Rather, we got only references to "what the Strategic Plan

says" -- no real leadership or vision in this area in a broadly dynamic situation. Reduces my

confidence in the CEO's performance,
4 CEO Rodell exemplifies the three strategic development capabilities very well. She is firm and 11/29/2021 12:39 PM

fair in managing conflict resolution and does so in accordance with the funds mission, vision

and purpose. She is also well plugged in 1o the trends and factors affecting the fund.
5 The CEO is effective within the bounds set by the board, but much of what needs to be 11/26/2021 12:45 PM

strategically addressed isn't within her power to implement due to the board's failure 1o

3/29
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Final 2021 CEQ Performance Evaluation - APFC

empower her

Very effective a implementing and modeling mission, vision & purpose. Recent atiempts al
engaging the hoard i some strategic areas have been me! with resistance. Work on hoth
Angela's and the heard's part 10 establish more open and effective communications would
mprove this area.

Angela has built a :eam that delivers exceptional performance anc empowers the management
team 1o lead. Over the past yeai, evolving and adjusting plans has been key to cperating and
managing the Fund during the continued pandemic successlully. Straiegic development/
direction is imponant 10 Angela. The last two live-year strategic plans demonstrate not only her
destre to have a clear direction, but she took the next step to ensure that sumething was
mioduced that would hold us accountable ‘or achieving those goals. Recent Board meetings
hrought lo hight that the Board does not seem 1o be sull strategically aligned with what they
previously approved. When Angela tried 16 engage the hoard, the discussion was sefused and
then seemed to be dismissed.

Under Angeia’s leadership, APFC has effectively ransformed from an organization where
people felt empowered and engaged. and where s1aff had input and agreement with the
organizational goals, (e a place where siaff feels disengaged and voiceless. | think this was by
gesign on order to remove powet from various parts of the organization and shift thal power in
her favor, There have heen countless small and not so small decisions where relevant staft
unanimously disagrees with, but because nc one smgularly has a powerlul enough voice o the
organization lacks the mechanisms for checks and balances. she is able to proceed with nc
cpposition or regard for what people ruly think, or wha: 1s in the hest interest of the
organizazion. Prior to Angela, no one fel: threatened to voice their opinion. This is definitely not
the case now.

Angela engages the board, explaining the directior she and stalf are laking APFC and Lhe
challenges we are all facing. .

it doesnt seem like CEO is engaged with the board arvund strategic direction; rathet il seems
like she has her plans and 1deas and 15 unly open 1o confirming opinions. She tends 1o
surround herself with "leadership” that agrees with her selecting [or loyally more than selevam
inclustry experience or talent.

Imited understanding ot invesiment industry prevents CEQ ‘-om playing leadership role but
engagemenl of third party was helpful

i cannol imagine a better public face for the Corporation than CEO Rodeli. Angela has
developed an outstanding global, national, s:atewide, and local reputation for leadership and
vision. She works well with staff and is ar example for us on being an excellent leader who is
aci:vely engaged but also witling (o learn and adjust. | can teil she desires 10 engage the board
in these areas and does her best 1o implement and communicate the strategic direction of
APFC with the board and stalf alike.

Direc:or Rodell does not embrace the vision of the Board, but instead tries to contral the Board
1o achieve her own vision and points of view. Although she has done good work on goals with
which she is aligned. she actively resists and unclermines the Board and staff in areas in which
she is not aligned. | also believe she lacks a long-term vision tor the fund as evidencec by the
failure of the APFC tc develop a best n» class goal for each asset class as envisioned in the
strategic plan.

cant speak 16 her engagement with the board, bul meets extectauons on the other two pieces

4729

11/26/2021 11:41 AM

112412021 2:12 ®M

11/24/2021 1:37 PM

1123/2021 3:14 PM

11/23/2021 2:11 PM

11/22/2021 8:13 PMm

11/22/2921 3:07 PM

11/21/2021 2:56 PN

11/20/2021 9:32 PM
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Final 2021 CEQ Performance Evaluation - APFC

Q4 Financial leadership:- Identifies and mitigates risks to fund-
Controls costs and ensures resources are allocated appropriately
throughout the organization- Ensures internal control systems are in
place to protect organization’s financial health- Provides sufficient and
clear information about financial progress and results

Answered. 35 Skipped. 4

(no label)

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90%

B Exceeds Ex.. . Maats All E. Meats Most Meats Som.
Does Not M... . INIA
EXCEEDS MEETS ALL MEETS MOST MEETS SOME DOES NOT
EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS MEET
EXPECTATIONS
25.71% 25.71% 17.14% 14.29% 14.29%
9 9 6 & 5

PLEASE PROVIDE COMMENTS TO HELP INFORM YOUR RANKING.

Resources are not always allocated appropriately to fulfill the mission of an investment
arganization.

Resources are not allocated appropnately throughout the organization. Budgeted costs are
frequently reallocated/diverted to areas based on CEQ bias.

Needs improvement in ensuring costs controlled and resources are allocated appropriately.
FY23 budget appeared to be developed without rigor around adding resources and controlling
costs over the long term.

Budget process could have been managed better. Initial budget requests were not not well
velled prior to submission to the Board.

CEQ Rodell is focused on risk mitigation and provides sufficient information. One area that she
could benefit from is expanding the authorization for required investment business travel so it
can better fit the benefit for the investments and overall performance

5/29

"
%

NIA TOTAL  WEIGHTI
AVERAG
2.86%
1 35 3
DATE

12/1/2021 9:13 PM

11/30/2021 7:07 PM

11/30/2021 5:51 PM

11/30/2021 5:30 PM

11/29/2021 12:39 PM
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Spent a very large sum of money, $4mm -$5mm, to remodel the office that is now a less
effective work space, smaller individual work space, much smaller hoard room, toco much open
space, underutilized conference rooms, etc. Our Real Estate team and property managers
were not consulted in the planning process.

Generally speaking. APFC needs more back office resources 1o support the direct investment
activity of the Fund. Bui, Angela does a good job putting together and overseeing a sound
investment process using the resources currently at her disposal.

All of these topics are addressed with verbose reporting in public meetings and in day-to-tay
operations.

There is an emphasis on transparency in reporting. Has staff and processes in place to
mitigate risk and support internal control systems. Relative to peers, the corporation has been
asked to do a tremendous amount with little resources. Angela has effectively managed the
situation and has identified this as a nsk to the fund. Mitigating this risk seems to be outside
of her control.

A risk team was buik and has continued Lo develop and evolve to identify and mitigate risks.
APFC has lapsed funds from the budget back to the ERA for the past few years, except for
investment management fees. Not because of over-budgeting, but rather because projecls are
managed to reduce costs efficiently, savings are gained when identified, and resources are
challenging to obtain. Angela continues to encourage initiatives that have been icentified to
inprove intemnal controls and protection. Adequate resources are what will make it all possible.
Internally and externally information is readily available.

Angela's objective has been 10 build and manage as large an organization as possible without
regard for what is actually needed and possible in terms of managing money in a cost etiective
way. This is the area where the conflict of interest between her perceived interests and the
interests of managing money effectively is felt the most. | would even include recent policies
with regard to incentive pay, even though they benefit me personally, in the category of
something that has very, very dubious justification. | am confident that if this organization was
ran in a way 10 minimize the tracleoffs of what makes sense from an investment standpoint
and the resources required, APFC could probably run on half the budget with 30% less staff
without sacrificing returns. On the contrary, you will probably have better net of cosis returns,
with a greater clarity and visibility on how and where you added value.

Angela seems 10 have a good grasp of the needs of the organizaton and works hard to obtain
the reseurces necassary 1o do our job well.

I think that Argela spentis 100 much ime and energy promoting non- nvestment refated staff at
APEC. When an interral conflict anses she often supports he back office rather than the
investors. Our accountants, IT staff, and Admins are paid farly compared 1o counterparns
around the state. Ow investors do make more money than the suppor( staff but the
overwhelming miajority of us have been recruited from figher paying jobs in the lower 48. |
hope the COOC role is left vacat. eliminated. or filled by someone who has substantial
expenence managing an investment iirm in the jower £8. That 1s an example of a role that may
be flled by an ambitious internal candidate who lacks experience.

As tielates 1o cost rranagement, CEO s a lnt of a bureaucracy builder... examples include
hir ng an additional conrs person to supplemert ©rector of Corrnunicatons and then as<iny
for a 3rd comms person .n budget when in the sast there was :ust one indvidaal in this role.
Admin tean) seems 10 keep growing and growing as well. There 1s a feeling witnin investments
dept that resnurces and decision-makig intluence are cisproportionately allocated to the
senor support stalf. There is a strong impression that over the past 5.6 years available salary
increase amounts get disproportionately allucated to non-investments areas 1.e.. perhaps the
live year salary growth of the tog 4 or § support staif would be much higher than the same
figure for the top 4 or 5 mvestmeints pos:ions.

CEO's effon appears (o be ‘ocused on daving compensaticn ap for admin stalf, buiiding
headcoun: 1n non-investment areas. renovating ofi:ce space, and other activities that do ot
generate obv:ous value for the State. Regarding tisk to AP =C, | beheve the CEO increases
mvastmen: sk by assertny contral over nvestment dec sions.

I dlont work with Angela 1n this capacity s am unable 10 comment

My expetience 1s that the ED has a tendency ‘o "conttot” fmancial and other information that
goes (o the hoard, executive branch an: legislatwie to help her push her own agenda.

6729

11/29/2021 10:49 AM

1172912021 9:50 AM

11/26/2021 12:45 PM

11/26/2021 11:41 AM

11/24/2021 2:12 PM

11/24/2021 1:37 PM

12124120231 11°23 AM

11/2412021 8:46 AM

11123:2021 2,22 P

1172212021 8 13 PM

11/22(2021 3:07 PM
11/21/2021 2:56 PM
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Final 2021 CEO Performance Evaluation - APFC

Q5 Advocacy and external relations:-
and the public-
effective manner-

Educates external stakeholders
Engages external stakeholders in a professional,
Seeks out speaking engagements to provide fund

visibility- Outwardly communicates to public and legislators about
i 4
APFC's vision, goals, and progress
Answered 35 Skipped. 4
(no label)
0% 0% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%
E_:I Exceeds Ex.. . Meets All E... Mests Most Meets Som.
Does Not M. . N/A
EXCEEDS MEETS ALL MEETS MOST MEETS SOME DOES NOT NIA TOTAL  WEIGHTI
EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS MEET AVERAG
EXPECTATIONS
(no 51.43% 20.00% 20.00% 5.711% 2.86%  0.00%
lanel) 18 7 7 2 1 0 35 4
# PLEASE PROVIDE COMMENTS TO HELP INFORM YOUR RANKING. DATE
1 CEOQ Rocell is exceptional in this capacity and does so in a very prolessional manner to both 11/29/2021 12:39 PM
protect the fund while educating the stakeholders.

2 Angela speaks at a number of public facing functions and engages with the Legislature dunng 11/29/2021 9:50 AM

session. She is respected hy most audiences for her candid independent responses on behalf
of the fund and the comoration.

3 The new communications strategy 1s eflective and the public governance structure is useful to
external stakeholders.

4 Angela is a great advocate of the Fund to extemnal stakeholders. She accepts speaking
engagements whenever asked and represents the Fund on several boards of
national/intemational groups. She seems to be respected by the Legislature and is freguently
asked to present on relevant topics.

5 That she does.

7/29

11/26/2021 12:45 PM

11/26/2021 11:41 AM

11/24/2021 1:37 PM
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Final 2021 CEO Performance Evaluation - APFC

GEG has done a good job of highlighting to various stakeholdess the importance of APFC 1o 11/22/2021 813 PM
the State.

Angeia 1s an outspoken advocate for the Comporation. She has established herself as an expert  11/22/2021 3:07 PM
and ner reputation speaks ior itself. She is engaged or all levels - with local groups (Rotary

and Chamber of Commerce), statewide groups (SE Conference and Leyislators), nauonwide,

and ylobally! She’s currently the Chair of two highly respected organizations - PPt and IFSWF.

She mamtains & husy speaking calendar anct maintains a profess;onal, elfective manne in

every way as she communicates APFC's vision, goals. and progress.
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Q6 Board relations:-

direction for the organization-
Board topics-

Collaborates with the board to set the strategic
Provides opinions and perspective on
Responsive to Board's direction and feedback-

Keeps the board informed of important developments and issues-

Maintains direct communication with Trustees

Answered 34  Skipped. 5
g 2
(no label)
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90%
Exceeds Ex . Meets All E. Meets Most Meets Som
Does Not i - N/A
EXCEEDS MEETS ALL MEETS MOST MEETS SOME DOES NOT
EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS MEET
EXPECTATIONS
32.35% 23.53% 11.76% 17.65% 5.88%
11 8 4 6 2

PLEASE PROVIDE COMMENTS TO HELP INFORM YOUR RANKING.
Perspective provided to Board does not always reflect the opinions of Stalf on all topics.

CEC seems at odds with the Board at times regarding strategic direction and reacts
defensively to Board direction and feedback

Often sense the Board is only told ceriain things by CEO to dnve a specific outcome. Board
requires honest transparency. Board is not sought out in a collaborative manner. CEQ tends 1o
rely upon the Resolutions and Strategic Plan as a shield when she doesnt want Board input
Hiring a mediator to manage the discussion of Strategic Plan, without telling the Trustees,
rather than taking this task in hand was demonstrative of the CEQO's discomfort with engaging
her Board openly and honestly.

Engaging with an outside consultant/mediator? (Al Balay) was a surprise and seemed
unnecessary. A discussion with the board in advance to establish the goals of the consultant
would have been more effective.

9/29

100%

N/A TOTAL
8.824%

3 34
DATE

12/1/2021 9:13 PM
11/30/12021 7:07 PM

11/30/2021 5:51 PM

11/30/2021 5:30 PM
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CEO Rodell takes this function very seriously and strives to exceed the Board's expeclations
while simultaneously preserving the fund which she is charged to protect.

There is room for improvement in this arca for both Angela and the Board. Some meetings give
the impression to the casual observer there is tension between Angela and the Board. In
reality, it is probably more likely a relatively normal sign of problem resolution that is happening
on the record that involves getting the entire Board and Angela on the same page.

Again, it can be difficult to see the CEO repeatedly informing the board of APFC's neet to be
empowered, only to be compared {o other State of Alaska entities that aren't profit centers,

There seems to be a difficult dynamic between Angela and some hoard members which
appears to get in the way of efficient progress on some issues. It's not clear how much control
Angela has over this. More open communication in both directions in advance of meetings
woulld allow for better alignment and give staft a more clear iclea of what is expected of them.

Angela needs to do a better job of letting the Board know that their own words are detrimental
to the Corporation and staff. Through statements they've made at regular meetings, it is clear
that most Trustees are clueless about the actual day-to-day workings and the suppon
environment needed at an investment organization; and yet, the Trustees continue to make
policy decisions based on their lack of understanding.

As mentioned ahove, collaboration on strategic direction is unclear at this time. 1 am not sure
opinion is Lhe right word. Angela directs staff and provides them with the information and
direction necessary to address Board topics or requests. Often Board requests require a
significant amount of engagement with minimal direction. Angela is great at helping provide
clarity or ways to approach topics from various perspectives,

It is my opinion that the Board has failed to “collaborate” with Angela and the Board does not
vatue her or the staff of APFC.

It doesn't appear to me that CEO considers the board to be her boss.

Angela is an outspoken and highly respected advocate for the Corporation. She is passionate
about communicating with the Board. She is professional and respectful in providing opinions
and perspectives on Board topics. Her demeanor in meetings is professional and respectful. |
have observed her efiorts to keep the board informed, maintain direct communication with
Trustees, anc collaborate wilth (he Board. She is responsive to the Board's direction and
feedhack and works hard to clearly commuricaze on behalf of and advocate for staff,

The Directors relationsitp with the Board is soured. (nforniation that comes to ihe Board is
conirolled and manipulated, Board goals are sometimes ignored or even undeimined, and a
number of trustees in recent yoars have fost Lrust in her veracity and leadership.

as staf! not privy [0 this

10/29

11/29/2021 12:39 PM

11/29/2021 9:50 AM

11/26/2021 12:45 PM

1172612021 11:41 AM

11/26/2021 10:46 AM

11/24/2021 2:12 PM

11/23/2021 3:14 PM

11/23/2021 2:11 PM
11/22/2021 3:07 PM

11/21/2021 2:56 PM

11/20/2021 9:32 PM
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Q7 Organizational culture:-
retains top talent-
relationship with staff-
organization-
Engages others in exchanges of view points

wm

Answered. 34 Skipped

(no label)

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% G0% 70% BO% 90% 100

‘J Exceeds Ex.. . Mests All £ Meeats Mpst .. Meets Som
Does Not M . N/A
EXCEEDS MEETS ALL MEETS MOST MEETS SOME DOES NOT
EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS MEET
EXPECTATIONS

(no 32.35% 23.53% 11.76% 11.76% 17.65%
label) 11 8 4 4 6
i PLEASE PROVIDE COMMENTS TO HELP INFORM YOUR RANKING.
1 Generally sets a divisive tone and pits one group against another. Does not act in an open,

honest and trusting way. Frequently is friendly, pleasant and agreeable in person and then talks
negatively behind ones back. Is more concemned with back office compensation than
investments.

2 Given difficulties, as reported by CEO, in recruiting and retaining staff with current approach,
Board has not been presented with information on how CEO intends to improve recruiting and
retention at APFC, other than through incentive comp and increased salaries. What is the
CEO's vision for a compelling future for APFC? This should be a living vision that is aniculated
regularly.

3 CEOQ Rooell approached Organizational culture in a productive way to encourage these 5 points
without creating a threatening environment

4 It is clear that Angela does not want to hear an opinion that is different from hers, and can
become angry when staif expresses a different opinion. Angela surrounds herself with yes

11729

Sets organizational tone that attracts and
Maintains an open, honest, trusting and collaborative
Articulates a compelling future for the
Encourages collaboration across departments-

ar

o

NJ/A TOTAL  WEIGHTI
AVERAG
2.94%
1 34 3
DATE

11/30/2021 7:27 PM

11/30/2021 5:59 PM

11/29/2021 12:43 PM

11/29/2021 11:09 AM
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Final 2021 CEO Performance Evaluation - APFC ;

Q8 Staff development and motivation:- Ensures meaningful and
challenging goals for performance improvement- Committed to staff
development- Ensures the right people are in place to carry out the
organization's strategic direction- Encourages staff to capitalize on

opportunities to improve productivity and quality- Keeps staff focused
on critical objectives- Reduces interference with goal
accomplishment- Understands what motivates staff as individuals

Answered: 33 Skipped. 6 |

(no label)

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Exceeds Ex . Meets All E Meets Mosl Meets Som |
Does Not M.. ' N/A

EXCEEDS MEETS ALL MEETS MOST MEETS SOME DOES NOT NIA TOTAL WEIGHTI
EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS MEET AVERAG
EXPECTATIONS
(no 27.27% 27.27% 15.15% 16.150% 6.06%  9.09%
label) 9 g 5 5 2 3 3 3
PLEASE PROVIDE COMMENTS TO HELP INFORM YOUR RANKING. DATE

There has been emphasis of these topics in some department more than others. Support, stall 12/1/2021 9:22 PM
motivation understanding should exist across the arganization.

The obsession on remote work (both local and out of state) at all levels, including support 11/30/2021 7:27 PM
staff, is not conducive to preductivity and and the achievernent of critical objectives

CEO Rodell has & tough role to fill for this category. Restrictions on what can be offered to 11/29/2021 12:43 PM
develop and motivate staff are often an indication that the Board may not recognize what is

needed to truly have an “Institutional” platform. Alaska is a remote location and budgetary

restrictions only impede performance, impacting all 7 points above. One area that this Board

should understand relates to staff compensation. It would be prudent and accretive to

performance if you adjust compensation 1o meet market. On one hand, you want oul-

13/ 29 Rodell Personnel PRA 000189
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perforrsance while on the other you want to estabhisn the fund as a stancardized governmen:
enuty withowt market compensation. Simply does rot align with poductive performance.

As noted above, the CZ0 does whal she can with availlable resouices. staft development and 11/26/2022 12:57 P
productivity and qualty improvement can be challenging wnen turnover :s tugh.

De not kave enough direct information to provide a ranking 11/26/2021 12°47 PM

Angela does her best at keeping enloyee morale and mictivatuon ap. Thus 1s especially true 11/26420G21 10°58 AM
now. as she is currently compeling with a Board that has reduced staff morale and motivation

with their own statements at recent BOT meetings. The Board brings us down. and Angela has

to kit us back up again.

The slaft at APFC does a gooad job hecause they love what they do and because they care 11/24/2021 2:53 PM
about the rmission of ke fund for the peopie ol Alaska. unier Angela, botl of these have

received only p service. Her strategy 15 exactly o divide ane conguer - water down

tesponsibilities, disengage and silo people, hire "yes men”, blur the lines of appropriate reporis

and controls and therefore require her final approval on every decision. Empowering is the last

thing she wants to da.

Wwithout the right people in place to carry out the organization's strategic direction, APFC would ~ 11/24/2021 2:26 PM
not be functioning at the high tevel it is now, 1 have heard more than one expert express their

amazement at our ahility to perform and accomplish what we are at this level, given our

resources.

I've been encouraged to look for opportunities to grow and learn new skills unlike other places | 11/23/2021 3:15 PM
have worked.

CEO definitely has some people in key leadership positions with more authority than their 13/23/2021 2:13 PM
experience dictates. CEO is not one of the more motivating people I've worked with in my

career. Generally, CEO's of investment firms understand markets and investing better than she

does, as a result you respect them and they get more work and higher quality work out of the

team because you want to perform for the leader you respect.

Angela is a testament to heing able to juggle all sorts of tasks. She is involved in so many 112212021 3:30 PM
facets of leadership (investment & personnel decisions, speaking apportunities, board

meetings, etc). She handles everything with grace and a calm demeanar. She is good at

recognizing talents and encouwaging stafi to further therr education or training. She is

commitied 1o staif development and gives her direct reporis the apportunity to do so. She is

good at clearly communicaling objectives and challenges. She gives praise and also

constructive Crticism.

14729 Rodell Personnel PRA 000190
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Q9 Internal communications:- Values transparency-
open lines of communication at all levels-
about goals and objectives-
into overall consideration of issues-

own opinion-

Maintains

view points and insights during meetings-Communicates effectively and

respectfully with staff

NIA TOTAL  WEIGHTI
AVERAG
65.06%
2 33 3
DATE

11/2912021 12:43 PM

11/29/2021 11:09 AM

11/26/2021 12:57 PM

Answered. 33 Skipped: 6
(no Label)
0% 10%  20%  30% 40% 50% 60% 70%  BO%  90% 100%
| Exceeds Ex.. [ Meews ALE. Meets Most.., Meets Som...
Does Not M. . N/A
EXCEEDS MEETS ALL MEETS MOST MEETS SOME DOES NOT
EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS MEET
EXPECTATIONS

(no 24.24% 33.33% 15.15% 6.06% 15.15%

label) 8 11 5 2 5

# PLEASE PROVIDE COMMENTS TO HELP INFORM YOUR RANKING,

1 CEO Rodell generally exceeds this category. Challenges appear when volume of
communication outpaces the many other requirements. She is exceptional at listening and
asking questions.

2 Angela rarely listens to staff and often does the opposite. Examples would be ignoring the CIO
hiring committee recommendation and hiring Russel Read who was the third choice of the
committee, ovemding the CIO and the Real Estates team to hold a large multi-family asset
and selling it instead. There many other examples.

3 She is succinet and highly engaged with staff,

4 Do not have enough direct information to provide a ranking

15/29

11/26/2021 12:47 PM

Rodell Personnel PRA 000191

Engages staff in discussions
Listens to staff, bringing their perspectives
Asks guestions before expressing
Ensures all individuals have an opportunity to share their
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Final 2021 CEQ Performance Evaluation - APFC

Q10 Fair and equitable organizational culture:- Appropriately aligns
authority with responsibility throughout the organization- Actively and
equally seeks the opinions of individuals throughout the organization-

Listens to how individuals throughout the organization are feeling, and

dialogues with them about their perspectives- Exhibits values of
fairness, honesty, and compassion

Answered: 33 Skipped: 6
(no Label)
‘l;"“"
iy
0% 10% 20% 30% 40%  50% 60% 70%  BO0%  90% 100%
L Exceeds Fx.. ' Meets AllE Meets Most Meets Som..
Does Not M. [ N/a
EXCEEDS MEETS ALL MEETS MOST MEETS SOME DOES NOT NIA TOTAL  WEIGHTI
EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS MEET AVERAG
EXPECTATIONS
{no 21.21% 39.39% 9.09% 12.12% 12.12%  6.06%
label) 7 13 3 4 4 2 33 3.
# PLEASE PROVIDE COMMENTS TO HELP INFORM YOUR RANKING. DATE
1 Values of faimess, honesty and compassion have nol been exhibited in some instances with 12/1/2021 9:22 PM
certain staff or departments.
2 Organizational culture does not emphasize the APFC as an investment management 11/30/2021 7:27 PM
company. The emphasis is more focused on equalizing authonty and responsibility to areas
other than investments.
3 CEO Rodell exceeds in this category however | think it should remain high on the list to 11/29/2021 12:43 PM
expand discussions with all staff. It would also be prudent to revisit the alignment with
authority as it relates to business functions relevant to investments. The process can lead (o
inefficiency when overly burdensome.
4 Angela does not seek the opinions of staff, and and seem not to care about staffs opinion 11/26/2021 11:09 AM

unless that opinion agrees with hers.

17/ 29 Rodell Personnel PRA 000193
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Don't have enough direct information on all the bullet pcints in this item, but panticularly strong 11/26/2021 12:47 PM
on exhibiting values of fairness, honesty and compassion.

Exactly the opposite on ali the points above. 11/24/2021 2:53 PM

Too much authority is given to people who are filling positions such as Operations Manager or 11/23/2021 2:13 PM
HR Director (important titles, but not necessarily sman people with relevant experience).

She almost weighs opinions 1oo equally. Some departments (investments) should have more 11/23/2021 7:59 AM
influence than others.

Created and reinforces culture of mediocrity and maintains unusual level of control by refusing 11/22/2021 8:17 PM
to delegate authority

I appreciate that Angela is fair, honest, compassionate, and equitable. She leads by example 11/22/2021 3:30 PM
and expects from others what she expects of herself. She never acts like she's hetter than

anyone else and I've never felt like she treats employees differently whether theyre investment

staft or acmns Seeas awordertul stener 2ad s hapoy to shara appronnate wescom and

nerspectve.

18729 Rodell Personnel PRA_ 000194





Q11 Role model and change agent:-
internal systems for effective operations-
Exhibits a high level of emotional intelligence-

and perspectives-
maintains respect of employees-

{no
label)

=

Final 2021 CEO Performance Evaluation - APFC

Values a diversity of opinions-

Not always value a variety of opinions. For that reason staff may not always maintain respect
of certain decisions.

CEO Rodell exceeds here and would benefit to revisit the delegation of authority to ensure
process is not interfering with productivity.

Angela does not micromanage her direct reports. She empowers and expects them to make
their own decisions. That said there area few employees at APFC that do not respect Angela
and this is harmful to the organization. Yet, ! do not beliesve Angela’s actions are the reason

these few employees do not respect her.

Change agent - definitely. Creative thinker. Seeks out ideas and opinions of others.
I love have a female leader as a role model

The Board's move to empower the CIO / Investments Dept with their own investment
committee with reporting to the board if CEQ over-rules was an important move that tempers

19729

Develops and refines appropriate
Thinks innovatively-
Seeks new information

Earns and

Appropriately delegates authority

Answered. 37 Skipped: 6
(no label)
B
%]
B
_t-(.
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%
_'f Exceeds Ex : Meets AlLE... Meets Most Meets Som
Does Nol M... ﬁ-' N/A
EXCEEDS MEETS ALL MEETS MOST MEETS SOME DOES NOT N/A TOTAL  WEIGHTI
EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS MEET AVERAG
EXPECTATIONS
27.27% 30.30% 18.18% 9.09% 12.12%  3.03%
9 10 5] 3 il 1 33 3
PLEASE PROVIDE COMMENTS TO HELP INFORM YOUR RANKING. DATE

12/1/2021 9:41 PM

11/29/2021 12:43 PM

11/29/2021 10:04 AM

11/26/2021 11:42 AM
11/23/2021 3:16 PM
11/23/2021 2:15 PM
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her ahility to follow her instinct 1o over-rule, Most of CEO's mstincts to change things of which
their are many (desire to remodel the office. certain staffing changes) are not positives, so
while she probably could cite many changes unitertaken, they in mast cases would have been
better left alone.

She can be quick tempered, which discourages input and open communication 11/23/2021 8:25 AM

Angela is good about asking "why are we doing it this way?" or "what does it look like if we do 11/2212021 3:48 PM
it this way?°. | appreciate that she thinks outsite of the box and encourages siaff to de so as

well. She values stall and then diverse opinions and always treats us with respect and

honesty. | am proud to work for Angela and the Corporation. This job is full of diverse and

absolulely amazing people. Everyone 1s highly respected and exceptionally good at what they

do. 1 am thanklul for a leader like Angela. She i1s able to mantain that balance of being an

authority figure, but still being approachalble and respected. Angela has surrounded herself by

really great staff who are instrumental in supporung her and working with her to be the absolute

pest leader she can be.
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(no label)
b
f 2
I3 ]
&
0% 10%  20% 30% 40% 50% B80%  70%  B0%  S0% 100%
Exceeds Ex n Meets All E Meets Maost Meets Sorm
Does Not M.. - N/A
EXCEEDS MEETS ALL MEETS MOST MEETS SOME DOES NOT NIA TOTAL  WEIGHTI
EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS MEET AVERAG
EXPECTATIONS
(no 36.36% 30.30% 12.12% 9.09% 5.09% 3.03%
label) 12 10 4 3 3 A 33
# PLEASE PROVIDE COMMENTS TO HELP INFORM YOUR RANKING. DATE
1 CEOQ Rodeli is a very prudent problem solver. | would re-order your bullet points to place the 11/29/2021 12:43 PM
last one first as | believe all problems nzed to be addressed under guidance nisk mitigation as
it relates 1o irreversible loss to the organization.
2 Angela is not afraid of change or endorsing new methods to accommodate such change. 11/29/2021 10:04 AM
3 On most topics CEQ exhibits poor judgement, so that is the most challenging aspect of 11/23/2021 2:15 PM
prablem solving abilities.
4 | admire Angela's ability to think on her feet. | see this frequently in interviews or legislative 11/22/2021 3:48 PM

Final 2021 CEO Performance Evaluation - APFC

Q12 Problem solver:- Keeps a pulse on shifts and trends in the
political, social, and economic environment- Encourages staff to
challenge the status quo- Thinks quickly and assimilates ideas
well- Handles ambiguous situations well, bringing focus to the
organization’s pursuit of mission and vision- Allows for failure as long
as the risk does not cause personal harm or irreversible loss to the
organization

3 Skinped: &
SO <RIpped. o

committee meetings where she may not know what question she'll be asked. She's always
able to maintain decorum and provide thoughtful responses. She allows staff to make

21/ 29 Rodell Personnel PRA 000197
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mistakes and learn from them. I've ocbserved her grace and forgiveness when I've made
nmistakes that didn't cause personal harm or ineversible ioss 0 the organization bul were
embarrassing for me. Sne allowed me to work through those situations and ercouraget ne (o
keep trying or politely suggested alternative ways | could get to solutions. | appreciale her
knowledge of trends around political, social, and economic development. She is well informed
antl sman as a whip.

Rodell Personnel PRA 000198
22 /29 - - -





Final 2021 CEO Performance Evaluation - APFC

Q13 Leadership development:-
personal leadership performance-

Committed to continually improving
Demonstrates self-discipline-
Demonstrates

Assumes responsibility for adverse outcomes-
humility- Perseveres through challenges

Answered: 33 Skipped: 6

(no label)

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% €0% 70% B80% S0%

B Exceeds Ex. . Meets AlLE Meets Most Meets Som
Does Not M. - N/A
EXCEEDS MEETS ALL MEETS MOST MEETS SOME DOES NOT
EXPECTATIONS  EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS MEET
EXPECTATIONS

(no 30.30% 24.24% 24.24% 12.12% 9.09%
label) 10 8 g 4 3
i PLEASE PROVIDE COMMENTS TO HELP INFORM YOUR RANKING,
1 CEO Rodell performs well as it pertaing to Leadership Development, particularly when

persevering through challenges. This is no easy assignment and the Board should recognize
this particular talent.

2 “Demonstrates humility” made me laugh.

3 Angela is widely respected for her leadership. Not just of the Corporation but at PP| and
IFSWF, so much so she's their Chairt She must be incredibly busy, but when Angela's al work,
she's 100% here. She gives her all and demonstrates exceptional leadership traits - honesty,
integrity, clear communication, efficiency, caring, compassion, and so much more. | appreciate
her humility and ability to persevere when things don't go her way

23/29

100%

NIA TOTAL  WEIGHTI
AVERAG
0.00%
0 33 3
DATE

11/29/2021 12:43 PM

11/23/2021 2:15 PM
11/22/2021 3:48 PM
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Q14 Systems thinker:-
the organization-

Establishes a unifying vision and culture across
Considers the big picture when making decisions-

Builds interconnectedness in the system to achieve organizational success

Answered: 3: SKipped

{no label)

50% T0% B0% 90%

. Meets All £. Meets Mos Meets Som.
[
EXCEEDS MEETS ALL MEETS MOST MEETS SOME DOES NOT
EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS MEET
EXPECTATIONS
(no 25.00% 37.50% 15.63% 12.50% 6.25%
label) g 12 B 4 2
# PLEASE PROVIDE COMMENTS TO HELP INFORM YOUR RANKING.
1 CEO Rodell is confident in this function and executes accordingly.
2 Angela leads by example and has definitely established a unifying vision and culture in the

Corporation, She thinks outside of the box and is passionate about organizational success and

has equipped staif to work at succeeding in all areas.

3 The APFC continues to be an orgamization vath a lot of silos. The ED inherited part of that

culture, but it sull persists.

24129

100%

NIA TOTAL  WEIGHTI
AVERAG
3.13%
1 32 3
DATE

11/29/2021 12:43 PM
11/22/2021 3:48 PM

11/21/2021 3:16 PM
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Q15 Internal partnership:-
mission and vision of the organization-

throughout the organization-

Final 2021 CEO Performance Evaluation - APFC

throughout the organization-

performance

Answered: 34 Skipped: 5

(no label)

Inspires loyalty among staff to further the

Encourages collaboration
Creates supportive relationships

Carefully and fairly monitors individual

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 0% 80% 90% 100%

{8 Exceeds Ex.. . Meets All E... Meets Most.. Meets Som.
DoeshNotM.. [ n/A
EXCEEDS MEETS ALL MEETS MOST MEETS SOME DOES NOT
EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS MEET
EXPECTATIONS
23.53% 23.53% 20.5%9% 8.82% 14.71%
8 8 7 3 5

PLEASE PROVIDE COMMENTS TO HELP INFORM YOUR RANKING.

As mentioned previously fairness has not always besn displayed across the organization.
Inspires loyalty to a favored group of staff. Does not failly monitor individual performance.
CEO Rodell exceeds all expectalion here.

Angela has been working hard the last few years to have the various silos at APFC function
more like a single team.

Do not have enough direct information to provide a ranking

| find it incredibly fulfilling 10 work for APFC. It's not often you find a leader like Angela, and the
other leadership here who are committed to not only the success of an organization, but each
person working here. | feel valued, supported, respected, and encouraged. | am thankful for the
ability 1o pursue my passions while working for the Corparation and working with an absclutely
incredible tearn of professionals. We are a team and Angela is an exceptional leader.

25129

NIA TOTAL  WEIGHTI
AVERAG
8.82%
3 34 3
DATE

12/1/2021 9:41 PM
11/30/2021 7:35 PM
11/29/2021 12:43 PM
11/29/2021 10:04 AM

11/26/2021 12:47 PM
11/22/2021 3:48 PM
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Q16 Effective communication:-
dialogue throughout the organization-
interruption-

Encourages open communication and
Listens to others without
Engages in difficult conversations and confrontations-

Utilizes appropriate channels of communication eg. Email, face-to-face,

telephone calls-

Answered: 34  Skipped: 5

(no label}

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

EE Exceeds Ex “ Meets All E... Meets Most. Meets Som..
Does Not M... - N/A
EXCEEDS MEETS ALL MEETS MOST MEETS SOME DOES NOT
EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS EXPECTATIONS MEET
EXPECTATIONS
(no 23.53% 38.24% 11.76% 5.88% 11.76%
label) 8 13 4 2 4
# PLEASE PROVIDE COMMENTS TO HELP INFORM YOUR RANKING.
1 Generally encourages open communications and dialog
2 CEO Rocell exceeds all expeciation here. Note to arganizer of this survey, some of your
guestions are repetitive in nature.
3 Many of CEO's decisiens simply ignore feedback from imponant team members. Most

recently, her pushing of flexible work plans including out of state work plans has ignored
feedback that it should be subject to supervisors' discretion. There is a feeling that we may all
need 1o just approve the plans to work remote of our staff members regardless of whether we
feel like its the best move for the fund. At the same time there is a feeling that the HR Director
is encouraging everyone to consider remote work - talking directly to junior staff and bypassing
their supervisors. It is not helpful and engenders a lack of trust.

4 She can be quick tempered, which discourages input and open communication

5 | appreciate that Angela communicates with staff. She knows everyone by name and greets

26/29

Practices empathic listening

N/A TOTAL  WEIGHTI
AVERAG
8.82%
3 34 3
DATE

11/30/2021 7:35 PM
11/29/2021 12:43 PM

11/23/2021 2:15 PM

11/23/2021 8:25 AM
11/22/2021 3:48 PM
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you as she walks around the office. She has regular staif meetings and is engaged while in the
oifice. There have heen times where it's husy and everyone is overwheimed and on edge, but
Angela maintains a calm, professional demeanor. She hrings positive energy to the workplace.

Rodell Personnel PRA 000203
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Q17 Please include any other comments about the CEO’s performance, or
any circumstances that may have influenced the CEO's performance in the

-3

[

w

past year.

R |

RESPONSES DATE
Hath ~g adational to add. 2143002021 736G P

Qverall ke Board should be pleased wb her pedomance. As a iizuciary, 1 s egually 11/292021 2244 P
impertant that the 8oa -« pe rore diligen: i keesing polites cat of the Permanent Sund, avel

dore so at theyr own pes | This vell deveiop a very strong Board for future hene’it of the furc

a~d all of its benei:c anes. Thank you for ine engageren:.

Creatng and martaning aependence 10 ensaie [erg lerm Invesiment sUccess s avery 11292021 (12 1C AM
conpkcated and challerging environmert to onerate in. Angela works naid to achieve this

goal. Bat fong-term saccess of tis gual is skared with mary ollers ai APFC. including the

Boaie, The Fund's lerg-teni saccess & ackeving this goal will go a feng way to suppeirg

the State's long-le'm success.

<

Hi:t o arce over the last year has boen exenrploy nobesithstanding sioictisd’ resowrcnly 120262021 100 PM
ssues relating to »la’t retentuon,

Twe spechic tems, net necessanly piched anon the guestonnaire, which retfect pasit vely on 1L26:2001 2247 P
the Execatve Direcor's pedormance. (1) she nas overseen a r-apid expansion m assels aeuer

M cgeent without <y evident hiccaps ueplementing the cerporation s straiegy whie

derr cnstratng a trotoagh atiention to detal 2) sthe deqiged a renotewoi- syste for the

orgerizator ar an eaily stage r (he pinderic--hetoe tiere was any consersas 00 hest

pracices--thal has wored well,

inmy coincr Angela meets ¢t exceeds e«pectations in ali areas! | believe she s a great 11:26:2021 1102 AM
corpirate leader whe s cpen. henest, and fas, In Apgeia, APFC has a gieat ieader

APFZ has a tustory of mirng irexpenenced leaders with legiumate backgreund runnng 11:24:2021 2:56 PM
mvestmart operatons. | put & lot of the bame or e voard as well- they need to focus on

find ng peop'e wno are expencnced. passienate, engaged anc who Know 10w 1o molivate

people. Those people exist, they o net need 19 se motivated oy money but the board neecs

otk mare fexcobly.

Angela conrects will vath s:af® vmy expenence. Mastintersciions nave been very positve. 12:24/2022 11.28 AN
AR Fanng Acgeia at the belr give me conlidence that APECas mov ng i & sositive

direchio v, She caras about the enployees awd just as i po-tant. cares deeply abuout the

stakeholeers

Lore focus <hocle be sperd ronvestren? statl comp J12402021 8A7 AN

tee: lize uy teen &t APFC, my sapevisct and A-gela are all working towards o common goal 117232021 318 PM
and |icve working & APEFC 1:Fink (e Board needs to do a netter [ub of understand ng what
all ¢ us du and suppert us

bwould nope hat the CEO can be ren nded that we are an nvestmei: firm 175t and foremost 11;23:202°0 2.29 PM
anit mvestments shieuldnt play secora fiddle to HR. Fmange. Admin, ete, | also think that

CEO axd HR Birector's enthusiasi ‘or Hexable 7 remote work and out-of-state work plans

sacula be tencpered. It sheuld se mace clear tiat this 15 only SuBject 10 supenvisors annroval,

Evern wath supanvisor s anprova 1 certan that there are accourtants at homre dong laarery o

‘Pe dishies while tey ae down for flexible work from junead™ status. The suppott staff shoutd

be 0 the off.ce support.ag the mvestment activ tes of the funa - rayhe thare are special

circums:ances that can ne consilered case-by-case.

Shie seen's 10 suround herselt with stalt thar are alrad o express er real opimion wack can 11/23/2022 8:28 AW
resLl A poor and quaestonanls decisons

brones APFC fronean nereaibly arhiealiy work envitonmet Those e leqaersha and ey 11222020 355 PM
of Iy coworkers al iy Brevions positivr were oo teke misdeis ana e lack of
professiorahs ™, commumcation. and respect greatly af*ecied my dec sion o Jeave. § have

heen ovegoyed with tie env ronment at APFC. 1 am Blown away by the caliber of stall ara
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leadership here. | have greal 1espect for the work they do and the passion they bring (o work.
Angela is an inciedible leadler. | obseive her speaking with legislatars, at a board meeting, or in

“stall meetings and have a tremendous amount of respect for her professionalism, demeanor,

and character She is pivotal i the success of APFC and | am tharkful {or her leadership and
performance.

Angela is a valued leader at APFC - seiting the tone and direction for the organization {rom 1112212021 9:01 AM
within while gamernng extemal respect in Alaska and Globally.

Angela does a fantastic job and this organization would sutfer without her. 11/22/2021 8:32 AM
Direcior Rodell has tiwee issues that continue (o be problematic. Her relationship with the 11/21/2021 3:20 PM

Board lacks trust and cantor. The same can be said for her dealings with the executive branch
ang the leyislature. Finally, there continues o he a strained relationship with members ol the
investment stalf. On a positive note, Director Rodell can be effective in external
communicatons and internal dealings on matters which she cares about and wishes to
accomplish. If she could hiing that same energy to Boarzi goals and streamlining internal
givisions she would grow tremendously as a feader.

Rodell Personnel PRA 000205
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From: jtusi viev

To: rd of Tr
Cc: h Lucin
Subject: Survey Monkey Performance Evaluation (APFC)/

Good afternoon APFC Board of Trustees,

On behalf of Commissioner Mahoney;

Below is a link that provides access to a 360 performance review of the Executive Director. Each
question should be rated based on the following:

Exceeds expectations, meets all expectations, meets most expectation, meets some expectations,
does not meet expectations.

The results of the survey and the comments will be compiled and will be anonymous. The survey

results will be shared with Angela and the trustees and will be the framework for her performance
review,

Please complete the survey by November 30"

https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/KC58SES

Dates Task

November 17 Questionnaire is loaded into Survey Monkey

November 18 - 29 Distribute survey to all Trustees and APFC staff

November 30 — Dec 6 Compile results. Share results with Executive
Director

Exec Director compiles a self-evaluation summary
report based on results of survey.

Dec 8 am — Trustee Discuss results of survey

meeting/Executive session Discuss upcoming priorities, goals and objectives
prior to Board meeting

Dec 9 - Executive Session, Discuss results with Executive Director & Trustees

including Executive Director Discuss priorities, goals and objectives for
upcoming year
Document discussion

If you have any questions please don’t hesitate to reach out.
Thank you,

Genevieve Wojtusik

Alaska Depariment of Revenue
Legislative Liaison
907.465.6829

genevieve. wojtusikiwalaska.gov

LBA 3-000341





CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This email message including any attachmenits is for the sole use of the
intended recipient(s) and may contain deliberative, confidential and privileged information.
Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the infended
recipient, please contact the sender by reply e-mail and destroy all copies of the original
message.
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From: rown, Ch

To: Ethan Schutt; Feige, Corri; Mahoney, Lucinda; Moran, Bill; Richards, Craig; Rieger, Steve
Subject: FW: Survey Monkey Performance Evaluation (APFC)

Date: Saturday, November 20, 2021 10:32:28 AM

Trustees,

My apologies the Board did not receive this directly from Genevieve. The distribution list is for
internal APFC use, limited to apfc.org senders,

Please see the link below for the ED Performance Review.

Have a great weekend,
CB

From: Wojtusik, Genevieve R (DOR) <genevieve.wojtusik@alaska.gov>
Sent: Friday, November 19, 2021 3:13 PM

To: All Staff <AllStaff@apfc.org>

Cc: Mahoney, Lucinda <lucinda.mahoney@alaska.gov>

Subject: Survey Monkey Performance Evaluation (APFC)

Good afternoon APFC Team,

On behalf of Commissioner Mahoney;

Below is a link that provides access to a 360 performance review of the Executive Director. Each
question should be rated based on the following:

Exceeds expectations, meets all expectations, meets most expectation, meets some expectations,
does not meet expectations.

The results of the survey and the comments will be compiled and will be anonymous. The survey
results will be shared with Angela and the trustees and will be the framework for her performance
review.

Please complete the survey by November 30",

h /fwww . surveymonkey.com/r/K F

If you have any questions please don’t hesitate to reach out.
Thank you,

Genevieve Wojtusik

Alaska Department of Revenue
Legislative Liaison
907.465.6829

LBA 1-000151





CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This email message including any attachments is for the sole use of the
intended recipient(s) and may contain deliberative, confidential and privileged information.
Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the infended

recipient, please contact the sender by reply e-mail and destroy all copies of the original
message.
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& Tweet

2 Angela Rodell
¥ @AmRodell

#akleg As of June 30th the ERA has an uncommitted balance
of $9.3 billion of which the Governor’s appropriation bill
would use $3 billion leaving the balance of $6.3 billion for
future appropriations.

1:53 PM - 8/20/21 from Juneau, AK - Twitter for iPhone

Il View Tweet activity

3 Retweets 1 Quote Tweet 14 Likes

EXHIBIT

§ \ s
:

Mo Worat)






October 5, 2020 -
October 11, 2020

QOctober 2020 November 2020
SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa
123 1234567
456 7 8 910 8 91011121314
111213141516 17 15 16 17 18 19 20 21
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28
2526 27 28 29 30 31 29 30

Monday, October 5

([(J12:00am Anne Weske out on PL - Weske, Anne ¥ (DOR) -

Tuesday, October 6
(L] & Anne Weske out on PL - Weske, Anne Y (DOR) ]

E
]

[[:]Gen flying from ANC to JNU so taking leave from 10am to 1pm

Monday - Wojtusik, Genevieve R (DOR)

111:00am - 2:00pm hold

[Z13:15pm - 3:45pm PH: FY22 DOR Budget Development MTG -
Dunleavy, Governor (GOV sponsored)

[13:30pm - 4:30pm Canceled: GOA FY22 DOR Budget Development
Meeting (WebEx; ANC-WEST Conf. Rm.) - Lagundino, Jennifer T (GOV)

[]4:30pm - 5:30pm Meet with Neil for beverages

| [11:45pm - 2:05pm PH: FY22 APFC Budget Development MTG -

| [£]3:00pm - 3:30pm Weekly Update-CSSD (Microsoft Teams Meeting) -

[[]7:00am - 7:30am Response to Legis Audit re MOC1 due.

[7]8:30am - 9:00am Weekly Update-Treasury (Microsoft Teams
Meeting) - Mahoney, Lucinda M (DOR) &

[7]9:30am - 10:00am Weekly Checlc in with Genevieve (Microsoft
Teams Meeting) - Mahoney, Lucinda M (DOR) &

[F112:00pm - 1:30pm finalize MOC1 report and send out
[11:30pm - 2:00pm Canceled: GOA FY22 APFC Budget Development

Meeting (WebEx; ANC-WEST Conf. Rm.) - Lagundino, Jennifer T (GOV)

Dunleavy, Governor (GOV sponsored)

Mahoney, Lucinda M (DOR) O

Wednesday, October 7

Thursday, October 8

(] Anne Weske out on PL - Weske, Anne Y (DOR) ?

[ ] ¢ 12:00am Anne Weske out on PL - Weske, Anne Y (DOR)

[]12:00am Colleen working in Juneau offices (October 7 - 9) - =
Glover, Calleen M (DOR)

[_] + Colleen working in Juneau offices (October 7 - 9) - Glover, k4

Colleen M (DOR)

[F18:00am - 11:00am hold

[31 1:00am - 12:00pm 11:00 AM: PH: Cabinet
(1-800-315-6338,,73220#) - Stevens, Ben A (GOV)

[[]12:00pm - 4:00pm Updated invitation with note: DOR Strategic
Planning - Session 2 @ Wed Oct 7, 2020 1pm - 5pm (PDT)
(lucinda.mahoney®@alaska.gov)

(https://usO2web.zoom.us/j/843335115077 pwd=akdUMXVZRTASTOVOZ
1FMWEXITDYyQTQ9) - randy@randygardiner.com

[[]3:20pm - 3:40pm 3:20 PM: PH: Comm Mahoney (1-800-315-6338 ,,
73220#) - Stevens, Ben A (GOV)

[[]9:00am - 10:00am MTG: RCCG/Holland America with DOR
(Microsoft Teams Meeting) - Mahoney, Lucinda M (DOR)

[C19:30am - 10:00am meet (Microsoft Teams Meeting) - Mahoney,
Lucinda M (DOR)

[]3:15pm - 3:45pm PH: FY22 AMHTA Budget Development MTG -
Dunleavy, Governor (GOV sponsored)

Friday, October 9

]+ 12:00am Colleen worklng in Juneau offices (October 7 - 9) - §|

| Glover, Colleen M (DOR)

[£]9:00am - 10:00am HR Transformation: DOR Transition Plan
(Microsoft Teams Meeting) - Ralliaram, Rohan (DOA)

[[]10:00am - 10:30am HR (Microsoft Teams Meeting) - Mahoney,
Lucinda M (DOR)

Saturday, October 10

Sunday, October 11

Mahoney, Lucinda M (DOR)

2 4/13/2022 4:28 PM
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October 18, 2021 -
October 24, 2021

October 2021 November 2021
SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa
1 2 123456
345678329 7 8 910111213
10111213 141516 14151617 18 19 20
17 1819 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30

31

Monday, October 18
[Dalaska Day-Holiday

E97:30am - 8:00am zach out of office
fZ)2:00pm - 4:00pm Private Appointment &

Tuesday, October 19

£17:30am - 8:00am zach out of office

{518:00am - 9:00am Weekly 0OC (Tuesday, as Monday is haliday)
(Microsoft Teams Meeting) - Mahoney, Lucinda M (DCR)

{F19:00am - 9:30am Bi-Weekly Check In with Treasury: Pam and Zach
{Microsoft Teams Meeting) - Mahoney, Lucinda M (DOR) <+

£9:30am - 11:30am FY23 DOR Budget Development Meeting (GOV
CONF OMB JUNEAU 8TH FLOOR (GOV sponsored);
https://www.zoomgov.com/j/1604245385?pwd =UEdQa2ZvcmVpTUxpU
2YyOHhININZ2z09) - Steininger, Neil A {(GOV)

{Z]1:00pm - 1:30pm Private Appointment - &

5)2:00pm - 2:45pm MTG: Comm. Mahoney - Dunleavy, Governor (GOV
sponsored)

Wednesday, October 20

[CJaHFC -Annual AHFC BOD Meeting & Audit Committee (TBD) |

B 7:30am - 8:00am zach out of office

Ef8:00am - 1:00pm October 20, 2021 Meetings - Audit Committee,
ACAH Annual Meetings and AHFC Annual Meeting (AHFC
Boardroom Anchorage) - Willy Mathias

E38:30am - 9:30am AHFC Audit Committee (ANC- AHFC Boardroom )

Ed9:30am - 10:00am ACAH Annual Membership & BOD Meeting
{ANC- AHFC Boardroom )

E=110:00am - 11:00am AHFC Annual BOD Meeting (ANC- AHFC
Boardroom )

f]1:30pm - 2:30pm DOR Director's Meeting (Microsoft Teams
Meeting) - Mahoney, Lucinda M (DOR} O

Thursday, October 21
[E]7:30am - 8:00am zach out of office

E]9:00am - 9:30am Bi-Weekly Check in with CSSD/Carol (Microsoft
Teams Meeting) - Mahoney, Lucinda M (DOR) <

Friday, October 22

E17:30am - 8:00am zach out of office

[£A10:00am - 11:30am FYI: H W8M: Analysis from Leg. Fi. Director on
PFD and POMYV Leglslation (LIVESTREAM: Gavel Alaska, 3kl.tv)

f12:00pm - 12:30pm MTG: DOR (East Conference Room - ANC OOG) -
Baker, Miles C (GOV)

[:32:15pm - 3:15pm Gaming Work Sesslon - Fechter, Brian W (DOR)

Saturday, October 23

Sunday, October 24

Mahoney, Lucinda M (DOR)

4/13/2022 4:34 PM
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lafolla, Rachel R (LAW)

From: Mahoney, Lucinda M (DOR) <lucinda.mahoney@alaska.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, December 7, 2021 4:55 PM

To: Richards, Craig

Subject: RE: CEO - APFC Performance Review CONFIDENTIAL
Attachments: CEO Evaluation summary of weighted averages 12.7.27.xIsx

See enclosed.

The weighted average results for the board are somewhat skewed because some trustees responded "N/A" to some
questions. Therefore the voice of the few that did respond carried more weight. You can see this result in the questions
that are more internal management oriented. Examples include Q8 & Q15. | planned to bring this handout to the
meeting and reference if needed. |suspect the board won't be focused as much on the numbers, but more so on the
bigger picture items like strategy, leadership, organization culture, etc.

| did provide this document to Angela so that she could see the responses.
From: Richards, Craig <crichards@apfc.org>

Sent: Tuesday, December 7, 2021 4:43 PM

To: Mahoney, Lucinda M (DOR) <lucinda.mahoney@alaska.gov>

Subject: Re: CEO - APFC Performance Review CONFIDENTIAL

Thanks Commissioner. Were there any numerical results or anything like that from the scoring system? If not no
worries, just didn't see that data.

Craig

From: Mahoney, Lucinda M (DOR) <lucinda.mahoney@alaska.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, December 7, 2021 12:07:12 PM

To: Richards, Craig

Subject: CEO - APFC Performance Review CONFIDENTIAL

HI Craig,

Enclosed is a summary of the CEQ's performance evaluation. The summary was developed based on the results of the
360 degree survey tool that was distributed to all staff and trustees. We received responses from 61% of those
surveyed.

The results of the survey were provided to Angela so that she could review and respond if desired. Angela did respond. |
have also included the self-assessment developed by Angela.

LBA 1-000209






We will be discussing the performance evaluation at the Executive Session on Wednesday and also at the Executive
Session on Thursday.

These documents are confidential; please do not forward or provide to others.

Kind regards,

Lucinda Mahoney
Commissioner of Revenue

LBA 1-000210





CEO Performance Evaluation Summary
Weighted Average Results by Group

12.6.21
Board Investments Operations Neither Combined

Q3 Strategic development: 2.75 2,94 4.36 4.25 3.56
Q4 Financial leadership: 3 2.63 4.33 4 3.35
Q5 Advocacy and external relations:- 3.25 3.6 4.9 4.75 411
Q6 Board Relations 2.5 3.17 4.3 4.5 3.65
Q7 Organizational culture 3 2,53 4.4 4.25 3.42
Q8 -Staff development and motivation: 2 3 4.33 4.25 3.6
Q9- Internal Communications 15 3 4.22 4.5 3.48
Q10-Fair and equitable organization culture 2.5 2.64 4.4 4.25 3.48
Q11-Role model and change agent 3 2.93 4.2 4.5 3.53
Q12-Problem solver 33 3.07 4.6 45 3.78
Q13-Leadership development 3 2.93 4.1 4.75 3.55
Q14-Systems Thinker 2.75 3.23 4.3 433 3.65
Qi5-Internal Partnership 1 2.87 4 4 3.35
Q16-Effective communication 3 3 4.2 4 3.61
Avg overall 2.6 3.0 4.3 4.3 3.6
Number of survey responses 4 15 12 5 36

Total FTE's plus Trustees 59
Exceeds Expectations % responded  61%
Meets All Expectations
Meets Most Expectations
Meets Some Expectations

Does not Meet Expectations

3.6 is overall average
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           1             ANCHORAGE, ALASKA; TUESDAY, JUNE 14, 2022



           2                             8:57 a.m.,



           3     called as a witness herein, being first duly sworn to 



           4     state the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the 



           5     truth, testified under oath as follows:



           6                            EXAMINATION



           7     BY MR. SLOTTEE:  



           8          Q    Thank you, Commissioner Mahoney.  Could you 



           9     state your full name for the record.  



          10          A    Lucinda Mahoney.  



          11          Q    And what is your current position with the 



          12     State?  



          13          A    Commissioner of the Department of Revenue.  



          14          Q    And you also serve as a member of the Board of 



          15     Trustees for the Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation?



          16          A    I do.  



          17          Q    My name is Chris Slottee.  I'm here representing 



          18     the Legislative Budget & Audit Committee, who is 



          19     conducting an investigation into the processes employed by 



          20     the Board of Trustees to evaluate the performance of the 



          21     executive director and the termination of Angela Rodell 



          22     from her position as executive director in 2021.  



          23               I'm going to ask you some questions about that 



          24     process and that decision.  If at any time you don't 



          25     understand what I said, either because I'm speaking too 
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           1     quickly or you're not quite sure of the time frame, please 



           2     just interrupt me and say, can you be more specific, what 



           3     time frame are you talking about.  Okay?  



           4          A    Okay.  Sounds good.



           5          Q    So you -- you started as a commissioner or were 



           6     appointed to be -- sorry -- a trustee in 2020, correct?



           7          A    Correct.



           8          Q    Were you part of the Governance Committee when 



           9     they approved the revised Board of Trustees charters and 



          10     governance policies in September of 2020?



          11          A    Yes.  



          12          Q    So I'm going to mark this as Exhibit 1.  I'm 



          13     going to be referring to this throughout the meeting 



          14     today.  



          15               (Exhibit No. 1 marked.)



          16     BY MR. SLOTTEE:



          17          Q    Okay.  So do you recall this -- the document 



          18     that I gave you, which is titled Alaska Permanent Fund 



          19     Corporation Board of Trustees Charters and Governance 



          20     Policies?



          21          A    I recall it, yes.



          22          Q    And this was adopted by the Board of Trustees in 



          23     2020?



          24          A    I mean, I would likely need to review the agenda 



          25     and make absolutely sure, but if -- I'm assuming that what 
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           1     you are saying is accurate, so I would say yes.  



           2          Q    It has a date of September 24, 2020.  



           3          A    You are right.  It does.



           4          Q    All right.  So I'm going to turn you to page, at 



           5     the bottom, page 32 of the document, or it's marked at the 



           6     bottom APFC-SWEF 111.  



           7          A    Page 32.  Right.  



           8          Q    Yes.  And it's titled the Executive Director 



           9     Performance Evaluation Policy?



          10          A    I see it.  



          11          Q    Okay.  And so under Policy Guidelines under 



          12     Roles and Responsibilities, the No. 4, what's paragraph 4, 



          13     it says, "The board may retain the services of an 



          14     independent third party to facilitate and administer the 



          15     performance evaluation in order to ensure the integrity 



          16     and confidentiality of the process."  



          17               Do you recall discussions over, including that 



          18     language in this 2020 version when this -- when this 



          19     packet of policies or charters was adopted?  



          20          A    No.  



          21          Q    Do you remember any discussion at the Board of 



          22     Trustees about wanting to bring in a third-party 



          23     consultant to handle the evaluation of the executive 



          24     director or --



          25          A    I don't recall the conversation in September of 
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           1     2020.  



           2          Q    Okay.  All right.  And then it goes on to say:  



           3     The board will establish -- I'm looking at paragraph 5.  



           4     It says, "The board will establish a survey to provide 



           5     trustees with a tool for evaluating the performance of the 



           6     executive director based on a number of criteria, 



           7     including the following."  And there is (a) through (e).  



           8     Do you see that? 



           9          A    I do.  



          10          Q    So I have a few questions I'm going to ask you 



          11     about that survey.  



          12          A    Okay.  



          13          Q    So do you recall anything about hiring a 



          14     consultant in 2020 to help develop that survey?



          15          A    I do.  



          16          Q    Okay.  What generally do you recall about that?



          17          A    I just remember that a consultant was hired to 



          18     manage the process.  That's it.  And that's all I 



          19     remember.



          20          Q    Did you play any role in selecting the 



          21     consultant?



          22          A    No.  



          23          Q    Do you know who did?



          24          A    No.



          25          Q    Do you remember having any conversations with 
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           1     that consultant in 2020 about the contents of the survey?



           2          A    I'm thinking.



           3          Q    Uh-huh.  



           4          A    I did talk to her, so I'm trying to remember 



           5     what I talked to her about.  Yeah.  I think I did talk to 



           6     her about the survey.  



           7          Q    Okay.  What do you recall talking to her about 



           8     the survey?



           9          A    I remember reading it, and I think I asked her 



          10     to add something to the survey, but I don't remember what 



          11     it was.  



          12          Q    So was it the consultant who kind of prepared 



          13     the initial version of the survey, the survey questions?



          14          A    Yes.



          15          Q    And then trustees -- at least you were asked for 



          16     some input into if you had any changes or questions about 



          17     it? 



          18          A    I think so.  Yeah.  That's what I recall.  



          19          Q    Do you remember if Ms. Rodell had any -- was -- 



          20     had any discussions with the consultant over the contents 



          21     of the survey?



          22          A    I don't.  I don't know.  



          23          Q    You weren't part of any of those conversations 



          24     that you recall?



          25          A    No, no.
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           1          Q    I'm going to give you what's going to be marked 



           2     as Exhibit 2, which is an email from Steve Rieger to 



           3     Lucinda Mahoney, Craig Richards, Angela Rodell and Chad 



           4     Brown dated November 4, 2020.  



           5          A    Okay.  So do you want me to read the whole thing 



           6     or -- 



           7          Q    If you want to, yes.  



           8          A    Okay.  Okay.  



           9               (Exhibit No. 2 marked.)



          10     BY MR. SLOTTEE:



          11          Q    Okay.  So Steve Rieger, was he a trustee at the 



          12     time?



          13          A    Yes.



          14          Q    Was he vice chair at the time?



          15          A    Yes.  



          16          Q    And then Craig Richards was a trustee at the 



          17     time?



          18          A    Yes.



          19          Q    Was he chair at that time?



          20          A    No.  



          21          Q    Who was chair?



          22          A    I don't think so.  I think at that time it was 



          23     Bill Moran.  



          24          Q    Okay.  And then Chad Brown, who was that?



          25          A    He's an HR person.  
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           1          Q    So if you see the beginning of the email it 



           2     references Vicki Graham being chosen as a consultant.  Do 



           3     you remember Vicki Graham?



           4          A    I do.  



           5          Q    Do you remember, was it Steve Rieger's decision 



           6     to engage her, or was it a trustee -- like the entire 



           7     board decided to engage her?



           8          A    I recall that Steve had made a recommendation 



           9     that Vicki be hired to manage the process.  



          10          Q    Do you remember what Vicki's credentials were or 



          11     why she was retained versus somebody else?



          12          A    No, I don't.  



          13          Q    Okay.  So if you look at the second paragraph, 



          14     it says, "Following that, Ms. Graham plans to design a 



          15     questionnaire to be circulated to the six trustees, plus a 



          16     questionnaire to be circulated to top staff and possibly 



          17     also to a sample of others at the organization.  She will 



          18     receive the responses confidentially and anonymize the 



          19     feedback."



          20               Do you recall any discussions with Ms. Graham 



          21     about who -- which employees within APFC to include in 



          22     that survey?  



          23          A    No.  



          24          Q    Do you recall any discussions with any other 



          25     trustees about which employees to include in that survey?
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           1          A    No.  



           2          Q    Do you recall any discussions with Ms. Rodell 



           3     about which employees to include in that survey?



           4          A    No.  I don't think I was involved in those, I 



           5     mean, but I don't recall.  



           6          Q    Okay.  Do you recall, was it the same 



           7     questionnaire that the -- did the trustees in 2020 receive 



           8     the same questionnaire/survey that the employees received?



           9          A    Yes.  I believe so.  There would be a document 



          10     where we could go back and look at that to be sure.



          11          Q    Do you want to look at the survey?



          12          A    Because there was something in 2020 that was 



          13     published where I could make sure that my response was 



          14     accurate.



          15          Q    Let me give you what we will mark as Exhibit 3, 



          16     which will be the 2020 survey responses.  



          17               (Exhibit No. 3 marked.) 



          18     BY MR. SLOTTEE:



          19          Q    Actually, I'm also going to give you this, which 



          20     is an email from Vicki Graham to Steve Rieger, yourself 



          21     and Craig Richards on December 7th with the final report 



          22     from the 2020 survey.  



          23               MR. SLOTTEE:  So make that as Exhibit 4.  



          24               (Exhibit No. 4 marked.)



          25               THE WITNESS:  Okay.  So it appears as though the 







                             PACIFIC RIM REPORTING  907/272-4383          



�



                                                                        12







           1     same survey was distributed to staff as to the board.  



           2     Okay.  So my inclination was correct.  Thank you for 



           3     providing that.



           4     BY MR. SLOTTEE:



           5          Q    And then in addition to the -- so did you -- 



           6     obviously this is dated December -- sorry.  December 7, 



           7     2020.  Do you recall reviewing this prior to having 



           8     executive session in 2020 to discuss Ms. Rodell's 



           9     performance?



          10          A    I am sure I did, but I don't recall.



          11          Q    Okay.  



          12          A    It's quite a while.  Quite a long time ago.



          13          Q    Sure.  Sure.  And then I'm going to give you 



          14     what's marked as Exhibit 5, which is a memo from Angela 



          15     Rodell titled Self-Evaluation, December 1, 2019 to 



          16     November 30, 2020 dated December 1, 2020.  



          17               (Exhibit No. 5 marked.) 



          18     BY MR. SLOTTEE:



          19          Q    So as part of the executive director evaluation 



          20     process, Ms. Rodell was provided a copy of the report on 



          21     the survey, is that right?  And then she was given an 



          22     opportunity to provide a written response?



          23          A    You are talking about 2020?  



          24          Q    2020, yes.  



          25          A    I don't know.  I wasn't involved in the process 
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           1     itself.  I just reviewed the outputs.  



           2          Q    Okay.  So did the -- did the Governance 



           3     Committee meet prior to the executive session in 2020 to 



           4     discuss the survey results and what report would be 



           5     provided to the trustees?



           6          A    I don't recall.  I mean, I remember that we had 



           7     a meeting of the whole, the entire board.  I don't recall 



           8     a specific governance meeting with just, like, three 



           9     people.



          10          Q    Okay.  Well, if we could turn back to the 



          11     policies that I gave to you earlier, and if we go to 



          12     page 33 of that document.  And so there is a title -- 



          13     there is a section called Evaluation Process, right? 



          14          A    Uh-huh. 



          15          Q    And it starts off with:  The vice chair, acting 



          16     as the chair of the Governance Committee, will meet with 



          17     the executive director to review the evaluation survey and 



          18     criteria and agree on any changes.  In 2020 that was Steve 



          19     Rieger, right?



          20          A    Yes.  



          21          Q    Okay.  And then No. 8 is:  Towards the end of 



          22     the calendar year before the fourth quarter meeting of the 



          23     board, the vice chair will distribute a packet of 



          24     materials to each trustee which will include either a 



          25     report from the executive director, a strategic plan and 
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           1     budget and the evaluation survey and criteria to be filled 



           2     out by the trustees, right?



           3          A    That's what it says, uh-huh.



           4          Q    Do you recall receiving the survey in 2020 and 



           5     filling it out?



           6          A    Yes.  



           7          Q    And then 9 says:  The trustees should complete 



           8     the survey and return it to the facilitator.  The 



           9     facilitator will tabulate the results and present a report 



          10     summarizing the results to the Governance Committee, 



          11     together with the completed evaluation surveys.  The 



          12     committee will review the report and submit it to the 



          13     board.  



          14               And then No. 10 says:  The board will meet in 



          15     executive session to review and discuss the results of the 



          16     executive director's performance evaluation.  The 



          17     Governance Committee will prepare a draft evaluation 



          18     report with the executive director's assessment and 



          19     summary of the evaluation results attached as appendices.  



          20               And so my questions are just kind of generally 



          21     on the use of the Governance Committee, but I also want to 



          22     give you this before I ask you there to make sure we have 



          23     full context here.  



          24               We'll mark this as Exhibit 6.  This is an email 



          25     from Steve Rieger -- it's an email chain between Steve 
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           1     Rieger, Lucinda Mahoney and Craig Richards on December 7, 



           2     2020.  



           3               (Exhibit No. 6 marked.)?



           4     BY MR. SLOTTEE:



           5          Q    So I just kind of summarized the evaluation 



           6     process as stated in the 2020 board charter package.  And 



           7     then we have this email from Steve Rieger to you and Craig 



           8     Richards on December 7, 2020, and particularly the second 



           9     paragraph where he says:  I would like to have Ms. Graham 



          10     circulate these review documents to all trustees 



          11     beforehand, and we would go directly to the executive 



          12     session with all six trustees present without holding a 



          13     Governance Committee meeting, even though our Governance 



          14     Committee policies call for the documents to be presented 



          15     to the full board by the Governance Committee.  



          16               If you have any objection to bypassing this step 



          17     of having a Governance Committee meeting beforehand, 



          18     please let me know.  Otherwise, I will plan to have 



          19     Ms. Graham present -- circulate the documents to all the 



          20     trustees the following day.  



          21               Do you see that?  



          22          A    I do.  



          23          Q    Do you recall any discussions or -- in 2020 



          24     around not having that Governance Committee meeting and 



          25     just going directly to the full board?
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           1          A    I mean, I'm reading the email that you have 



           2     here, and I suspect this is all there was.  I don't recall 



           3     any verbal discussions.  So we didn't meet.



           4          Q    So to your recollection, nobody objected to not 



           5     having a Governance Committee at the time?



           6          A    That's correct, because it's ultimately a vote 



           7     of all the six.  I mean, everybody discussed -- you know, 



           8     everybody has got to talk about it, not just three.



           9          Q    All right.  Did -- to your recollection, did the 



          10     Governance Committee ever meet just as the Governance 



          11     Committee to consider evaluation of Ms. Rodell's 



          12     performance or surveys related to her performance?



          13          A    No.



          14          Q    All right.  So then in 2021 -- I want to turn to 



          15     the survey process in 2021.  And in 2021, the Board of 



          16     Trustees did not use Vicki Graham or another consultant to 



          17     manage the evaluation process, is that right?



          18          A    That's right.



          19          Q    And in 2021, were you the vice chair of the -- 



          20     vice chair at that time?



          21          A    Yeah.



          22          Q    So therefore the chair of the Governance 



          23     Committee?



          24          A    Yes.



          25          Q    So were you involved in the process of 
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           1     developing the survey of Ms. Rodell's performance in 2021?



           2          A    Yes.  



           3          Q    So in 2021 why was a consultant, third-party 



           4     consultant, not used to facilitate that evaluation of 



           5     Ms. Rodell's performance?



           6          A    I thought about it and concluded that we didn't 



           7     need the consultant because we were going to essentially 



           8     use the same survey questions that she had developed.  I 



           9     am very familiar with SurveyMonkey you know, as a tool 



          10     because we have deployed it at the Department of Revenue 



          11     several times with over 450 people potentially using the 



          12     survey.  



          13               Additionally, I am just a person who is focused 



          14     on saving money, and so, you know, I believe that if -- 



          15     you know, if I compiled the survey, we could save a little 



          16     bit of money.  Granted, it's not a lot.  



          17               But more importantly, my goal was to try to 



          18     establish a standardized annual process for these 



          19     performance reviews such that it would be like clockwork 



          20     every year.  You know, we would reevaluate the questions.  



          21     They are very simple to update or change in SurveyMonkey.  



          22     Distribute, and then the software tool compiles the 



          23     results and the graphs.  And it's easy.  



          24          Q    So did any of the questions in the survey change 



          25     from 2020 to 2021 that you recall?
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           1          A    There was one question that -- that I wanted in 



           2     there, which was just a -- a component associated with 



           3     listening.  You know, I think listening is a very 



           4     important attribute for a manager.  And I think Craig 



           5     Richards also made a suggestion -- there is an email on 



           6     that --



           7          Q    Uh-huh.  



           8          A    -- for an update to one of the questions.



           9          Q    Okay.  And did you -- so in 2020 not all of the 



          10     employees of APFC received the survey link.  It was a 



          11     selection that was chosen by the consultant.  In 2021, all 



          12     of the employees at least had the option to complete the 



          13     survey, is that correct?



          14          A    Yes.  



          15          Q    Was there -- do you recall -- what was your 



          16     rationale between -- behind expanding the kind of reach of 



          17     the survey to 100 percent of the employees at least having 



          18     the opportunity to take it?



          19          A    Sure.  You know, the more responses that you 



          20     have in a survey, the more accurate it could be.  And plus 



          21     with the power of the software compiling all the results, 



          22     to me it was -- didn't matter if we had 21 responses or 40 



          23     responses because of the way that the software compiles 



          24     the data.  



          25               And plus, as I had mentioned before, we have 
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           1     successfully run these surveys in the Department of 



           2     Revenue with hundreds of people and, you know, we just get 



           3     really good results.  So I believe that the more the 



           4     feedback, the better we would be able to evaluate.  



           5          Q    So were you -- did you -- were you like an 



           6     administrator on the, like, SurveyMonkey and software 



           7     platform in that you could go in there and change the 



           8     questions and -- 



           9          A    No, I didn't do that.  



          10          Q    Who did that?



          11          A    Genevieve. 



          12          Q    And you would tell her what to change, and she 



          13     would go in there and change it?



          14          A    Yeah.  And it was just, I think, three or four 



          15     words, you know.  It was essentially the same survey as 



          16     what Vicki had developed.



          17          Q    And for the survey, when employees took it, did 



          18     they have to identify kind of what their -- not 



          19     necessarily -- well, did they identify what their job 



          20     title was or their position was in APFC?



          21          A    No.  



          22          Q    Did they identify in any way?



          23          A    Yes.  They were asked to identify whether they 



          24     were under investments, operations, board or neither.  



          25     There was an option for neither just in case somebody 







                             PACIFIC RIM REPORTING  907/272-4383          



�



                                                                        20







           1     didn't want to be associated with a group.  



           2          Q    Okay.  And so why did you -- was that a choice 



           3     that you made to set it up in that way?



           4          A    I'm thinking about that.  And it was done that 



           5     way the prior year.  



           6          Q    Did you agree with that approach?  And why was 



           7     it set up like that or what would be your rationale for 



           8     setting it up like that?



           9          A    The reason for setting it up that way was to 



          10     just get an understanding of how Angela's performance was 



          11     viewed between the investor staff and the operations staff 



          12     and the board, which was the same as -- as what Vicki had 



          13     done the year before.  



          14          Q    But it was an option so people could select 



          15     neither so they didn't have to self-identify?



          16          A    Yeah, I think it may have been -- if I could go 



          17     back and see if that was what -- 



          18          Q    Sure.  



          19          A    No.  It was there.  It was called "prefer not to 



          20     say."  So it was there.  There was no difference.  So 



          21     there is no difference.



          22          Q    Okay.  Was there any kind of -- when people took 



          23     the survey, did they have to, like, create an account or 



          24     log in or do something to confirm that they are an 



          25     employee of APFC who is taking the survey?
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           1          A    I believe so, but that was all administered by 



           2     Chad.  



           3          Q    Okay.  Okay.  Are you aware, was there any 



           4     restrictions on somebody taking the survey more than once?   



           5          A    I'm not aware that someone did take the survey 



           6     more than once.  That would have been unethical.  However, 



           7     it's my understanding that there are controls.  And we did 



           8     not customize the software tool at all.  It's off the 



           9     shelf.  



          10          Q    Was it the same -- that was the same software 



          11     tool that was used in 2020, right?



          12          A    Yeah.  Yes.  I'm sorry.



          13          Q    So the type of survey, I've seen it referred -- 



          14     the type of survey that was used in 2021 -- in 2020, is it 



          15     referred to as a 360-degree survey; is that accurate?



          16          A    Uh-huh.



          17          Q    What is your understanding of what a 360-degree 



          18     survey is?



          19          A    It's a representation of opinions about 



          20     performance for -- that are obtained from subordinates, as 



          21     well as bosses.  So it's a full review.



          22          Q    Did the board receive any kind of training or 



          23     education on the strengths and weaknesses of using a 



          24     360-degree review for a performance evaluation?



          25          A    You know, I don't recall anything in 2020 
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           1     because that would have been the year, in my opinion, when 



           2     it would have been appropriate to do that because we were, 



           3     you know, essentially doing the same as what had been done 



           4     the prior year.  



           5          Q    Did you have any concerns over using the 



           6     360-degree survey?  Did you, like, well, this is -- it's 



           7     good for what it's worth, but you have these X concerns 



           8     about that type of process?



           9          A    I didn't have concerns about it, but I also 



          10     recognize that these type of surveys represent one data 



          11     point of many that you -- or we, the trustees, would use 



          12     to evaluate Angela's performance.  It's not the sole 



          13     thing.  It's a reference.  



          14          Q    Okay.  In 2021, what were the other data points 



          15     that were used to evaluate Ms. Rodell's performance?



          16          A    In the executive session, some of the trustees 



          17     talked about areas of concern that were not on the 360.  



          18          Q    What were those areas of concern?



          19          A    One trustee talked about an op ed that Angela 



          20     had written in the newspaper without working -- or 



          21     notifying the trustees that she was doing that.



          22          Q    Which trustee was that?



          23          A    Trustee Schutt.  



          24          Q    And what was the subject matter of the op ed, if 



          25     you recall?
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           1          A    Potential government shutdown and the impact on 



           2     the Permanent Fund.  



           3          Q    Was Trustee Schutt's -- was the concern over the 



           4     op ed about the substance or the process?



           5          A    I think you should ask him.



           6          Q    Well, based on what you recall what he said at 



           7     the time.  



           8          A    I think it was both, but that's what I recall.  



           9     I mean, there was a lot said in that meeting, and there 



          10     were four hours of discussion.  It's hard to remember the 



          11     details.  



          12          Q    Sure.  But what other data points do you 



          13     remember being a subject matter that was considered by the 



          14     trustees when you were evaluating Ms. Rodell's performance 



          15     in 2021?  



          16               MR. PTACIN:  I'm sorry.  The first question was 



          17     2020, and now you are going to 2021, is that right?  



          18               MR. SLOTTEE:  I thought my first question was 



          19     where she referenced the Trustee Schutt.  That was in -- 



          20               THE WITNESS:  '21.  



          21               MR. PTACIN:  Sorry.  Go ahead.  



          22               THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  It was '21.  Yeah.  



          23               So you are asking me what was discussed -- are 



          24     you asking me what was discussed in the executive session?  



          25     BY MR. SLOTTEE:
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           1          Q    Yeah.  You mentioned there were a variety of 



           2     data points that the trustees considered when evaluating 



           3     performance in 2021.  You identified Trustee Schutt 



           4     expressing a concern over this op ed.  I'm asking what 



           5     other data points were considered.  



           6          A    Let me think about that.  So there was 



           7     significant discussion about past performance reviews and 



           8     the problems that existed in the past that had not been 



           9     resolved.  So that would not have been an item that would 



          10     have been on the 2021 performance review.  And that was, 



          11     you know, a pretty significant concern for some of the 



          12     trustees.



          13          Q    What were the items that had been kind of -- 



          14     that were addressed in 2021 in this executive session 



          15     about past problems that had not been resolved?



          16          A    One problem was associated with what we refer to 



          17     as the silos in the Permanent Fund Corporation.  It's an 



          18     organizational structure concern.  And there is a lot of 



          19     conflict and tension between the operations staff and the 



          20     investment staff.  And that causes internal problems 



          21     within the organization.  



          22               Angela had recognized that that was a problem, 



          23     you know, for many years that she was unable to resolve.  



          24     And the board -- we also talked about how the board 



          25     recognized that this was a problem that they had asked 
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           1     Angela to try to resolve this.  They had sent her to 



           2     management training to try to help her improve her skills 



           3     to resolve this problem, and it was still unresolved.  



           4          Q    So where were you seeing evidence of the -- the 



           5     continued issue of a silo between -- and the conflict 



           6     between investment and operations?  Was it based on the 



           7     survey comments or in addition to the survey comments?



           8          A    For me personally, it was just the survey 



           9     comments.  I didn't talk to the staff about those type of 



          10     issues.  That was her job.



          11          Q    Okay.  And so the board had asked Angela to go 



          12     to management training to try to help her develop the 



          13     tools to address these silo issues that had been 



          14     previously identified?  



          15          A    That's what I understand.  This was before I got 



          16     there.  Okay?  So -- and I'm just saying that those were 



          17     references that people addressed that were in addition to 



          18     the 360.



          19          Q    Okay.  Well, let's say while you were there.  So 



          20     in 2020 and in 2021 -- I guess it may just be from post 



          21     2020.  Was there something that was asked of Ms. Rodell to 



          22     do in regards to the operation -- this silo between 



          23     operations and investment while you were there that you 



          24     felt that she had not actually accomplished or hadn't 



          25     done?
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           1          A    You know, the board talked with her about trying 



           2     to resolve these problems and -- in 2020, and then in 2021 



           3     it was still a problem.  So you know, in regard to the 



           4     specific inner workings within the Permanent Fund 



           5     Corporation about that tension and the conflict, I don't 



           6     know specific details.  That wasn't my job.  That wasn't 



           7     my role.  



           8          Q    That was Ms. Rodell's role as the executive 



           9     director?



          10          A    Yes.  That was her job.  



          11          Q    Okay.  All right.  Any other data points?



          12          A    I'm thinking.  Yeah.  There was another -- there 



          13     was another one.  So it's kind of along the same 



          14     conversation here.  There was discussion, you know, about 



          15     should we try to invest more training with Angela and see 



          16     if she would -- see if she could improve, you know.  And 



          17     one of the trustees said that she wouldn't improve.  



          18     This -- she is -- this is the way she is, and she's not 



          19     likely going to improve.  So we needed to, you know, like 



          20     accept that.



          21          Q    Which trustee was that?



          22          A    Bill Moran.



          23          Q    Okay.  So the prior training at least that was 



          24     maybe discussed was this management training?



          25          A    Yeah.  
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           1          Q    Any other training that was -- had been 



           2     attempted with Ms. Rodell that you recall being discussed 



           3     at the time?



           4          A    It was just referred to as management training.  



           5     But I have been on the board for two years.  Some of the 



           6     other trustees have been on longer, so I don't know what 



           7     other -- you know, what that really meant, if that was 



           8     just one or multiple.  I don't know.



           9          Q    Okay.  Any other data points that you can 



          10     recall?



          11          A    No, that's it.  If I think of something as we go 



          12     on, I'll tell you.



          13          Q    Thank you.  Did -- was one of the data points 



          14     considered by the trustees -- or let me -- was one of the 



          15     data points discussed during this executive session the 



          16     financial performance of the Permanent Fund Corporation?



          17          A    Yes.



          18          Q    And how had the financial -- how had the 



          19     Permanent Fund performed financially over the last -- the 



          20     prior year?



          21          A    Excellent.



          22          Q    How much weight did that give -- was that -- in 



          23     your mind, how much weight would you give that towards 



          24     your evaluation of Ms. Rodell?



          25          A    We talked about -- we talked about -- if you 
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           1     look at the document, the summary document for the 



           2     performance review, the very first five bullets on it, if 



           3     I recall, were all of the good things that Angela did for 



           4     the organization.  And we talked about it.  We talked 



           5     about the exceptional returns.  



           6               But the thing to remember and the thing that you 



           7     need to think about is the returns are delivered by 51 



           8     people working at the Permanent Fund Corporation, not one 



           9     person.  The executive director doesn't singlehandedly 



          10     deliver performance.  There is a group of investors.  They 



          11     are the ones that are making the buy/sell transaction 



          12     decisions.  They are the ones that are selecting the 



          13     private equity investments, the managers.  



          14               I mean, there are so many components associated 



          15     with delivering returns.  It's a team.  It's a whole team 



          16     that makes that happen.  And so she was a part of that 



          17     team, no doubt, but she was also not allowed to be 



          18     involved in the investment decisions.  And that was a 



          19     decision that had been made.  



          20               I was really new on the board when that 



          21     happened, but she was removed from that process.  



          22          Q    When did that happen?



          23          A    I don't recall specifically.  I think it was 



          24     early 2020, or it may have even been prior to my arrival.  



          25     I think it was prior to my appointment to the board.  And 
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           1     I -- yeah.



           2          Q    When you say "removed from the process," I guess 



           3     what do you mean by that?  She had no -- no final 



           4     decisionmaking authority or did not -- was not allowed to 



           5     provide her input into investments?



           6          A    So I'm going to try my best to tell you what I 



           7     recall.  Okay?  So the investment group has an investment 



           8     committee, and they make determinations together about how 



           9     to make investments.  And then they would have another 



          10     meeting that would include Angela.  



          11               And then the way the new policy worked was if 



          12     Angela disagreed with the investment committee's decision, 



          13     then that -- the next level of decisionmaking had to come 



          14     to the board because there was concern that -- I don't 



          15     really know what it was about her having that unilateral 



          16     decisionmaking ability for investments. 



          17          Q    So Ms. Rodell has described it as if the -- she 



          18     disagreed with the investment committee, she could say no, 



          19     but then there would be a report to the board.  And I 



          20     would assume the board could then override her decision.  



          21     Is that consistent with your -- 



          22          A    I think so.  A report or report to the board, I 



          23     kind of construe that to be the same.  



          24          Q    Sure.  Sure.  Okay.  Did that ever happen while 



          25     you were a trustee?
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           1          A    No.  



           2          Q    Did the trustees have discussions in the context 



           3     of evaluating Ms. Rodell's performance in 2021 about that 



           4     specific issue?  Not that specific issue.  Sorry.  The 



           5     issue of how much to weight the actual financial 



           6     performance of the Permanent Fund Corporation versus, for 



           7     example, the siloing issue that you identified, the 



           8     training issue that you identified earlier.  Was there a 



           9     discussion over the relative weights to apply to the 



          10     different factors?



          11          A    There were no weights.  



          12          Q    No formal weights?



          13          A    No.  



          14          Q    Did the board have -- 



          15          A    There was no statistical number, if that's what 



          16     you are asking.  No.  I mean, I don't think that's how you 



          17     evaluate executives, with statistics.  



          18          Q    What do you think is the best way to evaluate an 



          19     executive in an entity such as the Permanent Fund 



          20     Corporation?



          21          A    Well, I think the survey is one data point.  



          22     Discussing some of the items that I shared with you 



          23     earlier that were concerns in an executive session, you 



          24     know, understanding how the organization is performing, 



          25     you know.  Understanding, like, the strategic plan, what 
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           1     kind of progress is being made there.  



           2               I mean, there is a lot of different variables.  



           3     And they -- they kind of just all meld together.  And the 



           4     board has to take a look at, is this the leader that we 



           5     want based on past performance to lead us into the future.  



           6     And so it all kind of goes together.  



           7          Q    So -- and I use this as an example because it's 



           8     fresh on my mind and not that I'm trying to compare the 



           9     two, but my sons went to a state robotics Lego 



          10     competition, and they had to present this project.  They 



          11     get a rubric and said, do you work well with each other; 



          12     did you ask good questions.  And they present it to a 



          13     committee -- or evaluation of, like, three or four people 



          14     and the people fill out the rubric and they talk and they 



          15     have an ultimate decision of who wins, who loses, rank all 



          16     the different projects.  



          17               Was there any type of kind of rubric or kind 



          18     of -- not necessarily a document, but all right, these are 



          19     the different factors we are going to consider; we are 



          20     going to go through them one by one by one to make sure 



          21     everybody is considering all these relevant factors within 



          22     the trustees, and then the trustees will vote on what the 



          23     next step is to be?  



          24          A    So the way our process worked was we -- we 



          25     started with the 360-degree review results, which 
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           1     identifies all those factors, and as we walked through the 



           2     different questions as a group, we discussed -- you know, 



           3     we looked at what the investment team said, what ops said, 



           4     what the board said, and then we had a discussion about 



           5     that topic.  So we looked at factors, but did we say, this 



           6     one is worth 10 percent, this one is worth 30 percent?  



           7     No.  No. 



           8          Q    Okay.  Did you -- other than the -- so you had 



           9     the survey results with you.  Not the raw survey 



          10     responses, right?  Just the summary report in 2021?



          11          A    Yes.  



          12          Q    And actually, let me get that in front of you 



          13     just to make sure.  



          14               MR. SLOTTEE:  We are on Exhibit 7?  6?



          15               (Exhibit No. 7 marked.) 



          16               MR. SLOTTEE:  And somehow I ended up with only 



          17     two of these.  Let me go make a quick -- 



          18               MR. PTACIN:  Chris, I think I have one from 



          19     yesterday, if it's the same document.  



          20               MR. SLOTTEE:  It is, but I don't have one for 



          21     the Department of Law, so let me go make a quick copy.  I 



          22     assume you want a copy of this.  



          23               MS. LEEAH:  Yes, please.  



          24               MR. SLOTTEE:  We will go off record.  



          25               (Off the record.)
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           1     BY MR. SLOTTEE:



           2          Q    Okay.  So what I've just marked as Exhibit 7 is 



           3     a document titled CEO Performance Evaluation, APFC, 



           4     confidential, December 6, 2021.  Do you see that?



           5          A    Yes.  



           6          Q    Do you recall this document?



           7          A    Yes.



           8          Q    And was this the performance evaluation that was 



           9     presented to the trustees at their executive session where 



          10     they considered Ms. Rodell's performance?



          11          A    Yes.



          12          Q    Okay.  So during that executive session when you 



          13     were considering and discussing Ms. Rodell's performance, 



          14     who was in the room?



          15          A    Okay.  So there were two executive sessions.  



          16          Q    That's a good point.  Let's start on the first 



          17     one, the first day.  



          18          A    The first day, five of the six trustees were in 



          19     the room.



          20          Q    And which trustee was not?



          21          A    Corri Feige.



          22          Q    Was he attending by phone or not attending?



          23          A    She did not attend.  



          24          Q    Sorry.  She.  Sorry.  Was anybody else in the 



          25     room?
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           1          A    Oh, the other five.  



           2          Q    Sure.  Other than the trustees.  



           3          A    Oh.  No.



           4          Q    Was anybody attending by phone?



           5          A    No.  



           6          Q    Okay.  And then let's go to the second day.  And 



           7     this is before -- well, the second day it was -- who was 



           8     present in the room during executive session?



           9          A    The same five trustees, and then Corri Feige 



          10     called in.



          11          Q    Was there anybody else in the room?



          12          A    No.  



          13          Q    Was eventually Ms. Rodell invited to attend 



          14     executive session?



          15          A    Yes.



          16          Q    Was anybody else eventually invited to attend 



          17     the executive session, besides Ms. Rodell?



          18          A    Yes.



          19          Q    Who?



          20          A    Val Mertz.  



          21          Q    Anybody else?



          22          A    No, I don't think so.  I don't recall anyone 



          23     else.



          24          Q    And for the record, who is Val Mertz?



          25          A    Val Mertz was the CFO -- is the CFO, and she is 
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           1     currently the acting director.



           2          Q    Was she invited in after or before Ms. Rodell 



           3     was invited in?



           4          A    After.  She was invited in after Angela left the 



           5     room.  



           6          Q    Okay.  Okay.  During the 2020 executive session 



           7     when you were discussing Ms. Rodell's performance, was 



           8     anybody else in the room besides trustees?



           9          A    I think Vicki Graham.  



          10          Q    That was the consultant that had been hired to 



          11     do the survey?



          12          A    Yeah.  



          13          Q    Anybody else?



          14          A    I don't recall anyone else, but I mean, 



          15     typically the executive sessions are just the trustees and 



          16     whoever is specifically invited, which I think was just 



          17     Vicki.  I -- it's two years ago.  



          18          Q    I understand.  I understand.  So -- but so in 



          19     2021, so you had the CEO performance evaluation summary 



          20     that was -- was that, like, physically in front of the 



          21     trustees?



          22          A    Uh-huh.



          23          Q    Is that a yes?



          24          A    Yes.  



          25          Q    Were there any other documents that were 
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           1     provided to the trustees for use in evaluating Ms. Rodell 



           2     that you know of?



           3          A    I believe -- well, I brought the numeric summary 



           4     of the scores, like the summarization of them.  I also 



           5     brought, but did not distribute, the strategic plan.  It 



           6     was unnecessary.  I was -- I was trying to be prepared for 



           7     what was discussed.  I had previously distributed her -- 



           8     her self-evaluation via an email.  And in that same email 



           9     I had also included the survey results, this document.  



          10          Q    The summary?



          11          A    Yeah.  So I had sent an email and then with the 



          12     data in advance, and then I brought the physical documents 



          13     to the meeting in addition to the strategic plan.  



          14          Q    Any other documents that you can recall bringing 



          15     to the meeting?



          16          A    I brought the -- the detailed summary of the 360 



          17     review just in case trustees had questions about the 



          18     details associated with the summary because I summarized 



          19     data.  



          20          Q    Is that -- let me give you what we will mark as 



          21     Exhibit 8.  Is that the detailed summary you are referring 



          22     to?



          23          A    This is not what I brought.  This is a 



          24     consolidated summary.  What I brought -- and it is likely 



          25     the same, but what I brought was four packets of these:  
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           1     One that was just investments, one that was just 



           2     operations, another one that was just board, and the other 



           3     one that was just -- that was neither, because the way 



           4     that we organized the data was segregated like that.  So I 



           5     wanted the source documents so I could be efficient.



           6          Q    So if someone said, let's look at what the 



           7     investment comments were, you would have those readily 



           8     available?



           9          A    Yeah, yes.



          10               (Exhibit No. 8 marked.)



          11     BY MR. SLOTTEE:



          12          Q    Did any trustee board members ask for copies of 



          13     the raw survey responses?



          14          A    No, not from me.  Maybe Chad.  



          15          Q    I'm sorry.  Yes.  From you, that you are aware 



          16     of.  



          17          A    No.  



          18          Q    And so in -- if we are looking at what's marked 



          19     as Exhibit 7, this is a summary of the comments made by 



          20     employees in response to the -- and board members in 



          21     response to the 360-degree survey?



          22          A    It was a representation of what the overall tone 



          23     was for the comments.  I tried to take out personal, 



          24     you know, some of the comments were personal in nature, so 



          25     I tried to take those out.  And I just tried to establish 
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           1     an unbiased objective summary of the survey.  



           2          Q    So you personally selected kind of 



           3     representative comments to include here?



           4          A    Yeah.  



           5          Q    And then I think this shows a --



           6          A    Chris, I should add that I selected these and 



           7     then I sent the results of my work to Chad Brown, the HR 



           8     manager, and I asked him to go through the raw data and to 



           9     compare what I had identified to represent the overall 



          10     tone to make sure that there wasn't any bias, that it was 



          11     independent, objective.  And I asked him, if he saw 



          12     anything that was out of line, to -- to make edits and to 



          13     let me know.  



          14          Q    Okay.  And did he have any comments or make any 



          15     proposed changes?



          16          A    No.  He actually, I think, said that he thought 



          17     I did a good job.



          18          Q    And then if we look at what's been marked as 



          19     Exhibit -- actually it's been marked as Exhibit 8.  And 



          20     just as an example, go to the third page.  And there are 



          21     some categories there from exceeds expectations to does 



          22     not meet expectations and then total, and then there is a 



          23     weighted average column.  Do you see that in the middle of 



          24     that?



          25          A    Yes.  
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           1          Q    And was those kind of -- those scores, that 



           2     weighted average, was that provided to the trustees?



           3          A    It was provided to the trustees by -- by a 



           4     different group, and then in total.  And I -- I think -- I 



           5     compiled it, and then I also sent -- sent my work to Chad, 



           6     and I said -- I think I found a -- I found something that 



           7     didn't tie.  Okay.  I think I had calculated it myself 



           8     using Excel and then looked at what was the survey, and so 



           9     there was something that didn't -- wasn't exactly the 



          10     same.  So I asked him to check it because I said, there is 



          11     something wrong here, can you check this and see what's 



          12     going on.  And he did, and he came back and confirmed 



          13     something.  And that is what I used.



          14          Q    Okay.  Did you share -- did you give a copy of 



          15     this -- the performance evaluation or any of the documents 



          16     that you brought to the board meeting, the executive 



          17     session, to anyone other than trustees before the 



          18     executive session?



          19          A    I provided it to Angela.



          20          Q    Okay.  Anybody else?



          21          A    No.  Chad.  



          22          Q    Chad.  



          23          A    Chad and Angela.  Yeah.  



          24          Q    Anybody outside of Alaska Permanent Fund 



          25     Corporation?
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           1          A    Oh, no.  This was a confidential document.  



           2          Q    Let me give you what's marked as Exhibit 9.  



           3               (Exhibit No. 9 marked.)



           4     BY MR. SLOTTEE:



           5          Q    And so this is an email from Genevieve   



           6     Wojtusik --



           7          A    Yes.  



           8          Q    -- to the Board of Trustees with a CC to you 



           9     titled SurveyMonkey Performance Evaluation.  And for some 



          10     reason, the version printed out does not actually have a 



          11     date on it, but it looks like this is a summary of the 



          12     timeline for the employee survey or the employee/board 



          13     survey.  Is that accurate?  



          14          A    Yes.  



          15          Q    These dates listed here that she has listed 



          16     there, questionnaire loaded into SurveyMonkey on December 



          17     17 and then the subsequent dates, are those consistent 



          18     with your understanding of what the dates were in terms of 



          19     when the survey was deployed, how long employees had to 



          20     answer it?



          21          A    Yes.  I developed, like, a small little project 



          22     plan here to ensure that we gave everyone enough time to 



          23     respond and then compile.  Yeah.



          24          Q    Was there any kind of like -- were the 



          25     employees -- was there any messaging to the employee over 
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           1     why they were receiving this survey, what was its purpose, 



           2     who was going to be the recipient?



           3          A    It was the same message that you see here.  It 



           4     went to -- Chad, I think, sent it to the employees, and it 



           5     said, I believe, the same thing as what it says here, that 



           6     it's a link to the 360 performance review.  They -- I am 



           7     under the understanding that they have prepared or have 



           8     used the SurveyMonkey tool, so they were familiar with 



           9     that.  And then some of them had operated the tool in the 



          10     prior year, same questions that Vicki established.  



          11          Q    And let me give you what's marked as Exhibit 10.  



          12     So this is an email string.  The top string is from Chad 



          13     Brown to the trustees dated November 20th.  Subject 



          14     matter, forward, SurveyMonkey performance evaluation.  And 



          15     then the first email in the string is from Genevieve 



          16     Wojtusik to all staff at apfc.org, with a CC to you, 



          17     subject matter of SurveyMonkey performance evaluation.  



          18     You see that?  



          19          A    Yeah.  



          20               (Exhibit No. 10 marked.)



          21     BY MR. SLOTTEE:



          22          Q    So I just want to make sure I have it correctly.  



          23     So the Genevieve -- it was from Genevieve's email account 



          24     that the survey was distributed to the APFC -- 



          25          A    Okay.  Thank you.  I didn't know that.  I 
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           1     guess -- I mean, I don't recall that.  I was copied on it, 



           2     but --



           3          Q    Do you recall any other kind of messaging to the 



           4     employees of APFC about the purpose of the survey, the 



           5     timeline, other than this email from Genevieve?



           6          A    I'm not aware of anything else.



           7          Q    Okay.  



           8          A    They are pretty responsible.  They -- when they 



           9     see a deadline, they do it; I mean, those who choose to.  



          10     It wasn't a required -- they weren't required to 



          11     participate.  It was optional.  



          12          Q    Okay.  Did you provide Ms. Rodell with a copy of 



          13     the raw survey responses prior to the executive session, 



          14     or was it just the summary that we have marked as Exhibit 



          15     7?



          16          A    The summary.  



          17          Q    Do you recall, was there any -- was there a 



          18     different process followed in 2020, or do you not know in 



          19     terms of what was provided to Ms. Rodell before the 



          20     executive session?



          21          A    I don't recall.  



          22          Q    Did anyone bring in specific financial 



          23     information, like reports or benchmarks to be discussed by 



          24     the trustees during their evaluation of Ms. Rodell in 



          25     2021?
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           1          A    Did anyone bring in reports.  No one brought in 



           2     reports, other than me.  And for example, I didn't bring 



           3     in the -- you know, the report with numbers would have 



           4     been the year-end performance review, but we all knew that 



           5     it was 29 percent.  So -- and we talked about that.  We 



           6     talked about it, but we didn't need a report because we 



           7     knew it.  



           8          Q    I guess a broader question:  Other than you, did 



           9     any other trustees kind of bring in documents that -- for 



          10     other trustees to either potentially look at or show other 



          11     trustees during that evaluation of Ms. Rodell's 



          12     performance in 2021?  Do you recall anybody else bringing 



          13     in other documents?



          14          A    I don't recall that, no. 



          15          Q    So again, talking about the 2021 executive 



          16     session, prior to that executive session, did you have any 



          17     conversations with Ms. Rodell about what was going to 



          18     happen or what was going to be discussed at that executive 



          19     session?



          20          A    I sent her an email, and I provided her with 



          21     this table, if I recall.  And my -- my goal was to, you 



          22     know, communicate to her the process and then ensure that 



          23     when the agenda was being built for the board meeting, 



          24     that it would accommodate two executive sessions.  You 



          25     know, I said that we were essentially going to use the 
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           1     same process as last year, the one that Vicki did, and -- 



           2     yeah.



           3          Q    Other than that, I mean, did you have any 



           4     conversations, verbal conversations, with Ms. Rodell about 



           5     this is what we are going to talk about at the executive 



           6     session, this is -- I don't know, you may want to be 



           7     prepared to address this or these are the issues that we 



           8     are going to talk about?



           9          A    No.  However, I -- I sent her an email when I 



          10     was in Juneau and she was in Juneau, and I told her that 



          11     if -- if she wanted, that I would come over and meet with 



          12     her to discuss the 360 performance review, and she didn't 



          13     respond.



          14          Q    She didn't -- you didn't have that discussion?



          15          A    Yeah.  She didn't -- she didn't say -- she 



          16     didn't say yes, let's talk about it.  I provided it as an 



          17     option.  She didn't say no, I don't want to talk about it, 



          18     but she didn't say come over, let's talk about it, so -- 



          19          Q    Is that the -- did she provide her written 



          20     response -- she provide two written responses to the -- or 



          21     strike that.  She provided a self-evaluation, right, for 



          22     2021?



          23          A    Yes.



          24          Q    And then did she also provide a written response 



          25     to the survey summary?
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           1          A    Yes.  



           2          Q    Okay.  Do you recall receiving any other written 



           3     responses or communications from her regarding the survey 



           4     or the -- regarding the survey?



           5          A    No, not that I recall, no.



           6          Q    Did -- did the board have any discussions prior 



           7     to the executive session about we are going to be 



           8     evaluating Ms. Rodell.  One topic for discussion is 



           9     potentially the termination of her employment?



          10          A    No.  



          11          Q    When did that first come up, termination of 



          12     Ms. Rodell's employment?



          13          A    Okay.  Could you be more specific?  Like we 



          14     wouldn't have discussed that in a public meeting.



          15          Q    Sure.  Did you have any discussions with any 



          16     trustees, individual trustees, prior to the 2021 executive 



          17     session about the potential for voting to terminate 



          18     Ms. Rodell's performance or employment?



          19          A    I received a call from a trustee.  



          20          Q    And who was that?



          21          A    It was Craig Richards.  



          22          Q    And when was that?



          23          A    When was that.  It would have been either 



          24     mid-October, early November.



          25          Q    And what was the -- if you can recall, what was 
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           1     the substance of that conversation?



           2          A    He -- he called to tell me that he was concerned 



           3     about her performance, and he wanted to open a discussion 



           4     about whether she should continue to lead the fund.  There 



           5     was more, but I don't remember the details.  That was the 



           6     gist of it.



           7          Q    Do you recall -- you don't recall the specific 



           8     date that this happened?



           9          A    No.  



          10          Q    It wasn't a scheduled call?



          11          A    No.  He just called me.  



          12          Q    Do you recall about the length of the call?



          13          A    Let me think.  I'm going to estimate.  Okay?  



          14          Q    Uh-huh.  



          15          A    Ten minutes, maybe.  



          16          Q    Do you recall anything, specifics, about what 



          17     was concerning him about her performance?



          18          A    Could you say that again.



          19          Q    Do you recall any -- did he mention any 



          20     specifics in regards to his concerns about Ms. Rodell's 



          21     performance?



          22          A    Yes.  Okay.  Give me a minute.  Let me think 



          23     about it.  



          24               He -- he was concerned that she wasn't really 



          25     doing what the board had directed her to do.  And I think 
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           1     that was associated with maybe the resolutions.  



           2          Q    Anything else that you can recall?



           3          A    Huh-uh.  



           4          Q    No?



           5          A    No.  I don't recall.  



           6          Q    Do you recall him referencing having a similar 



           7     discussion with other trustees?  He's calling you and 



           8     he's, like, I already talked to blank or I'm going to talk 



           9     to blank.  



          10          A    He did not say that.



          11          Q    Did you talk to any other trustees prior to the 



          12     executive session about the question of whether or not to 



          13     terminate Ms. Rodell's employment?



          14          A    No.  



          15          Q    Just Craig Richards?



          16          A    Yeah.  



          17          Q    And then in terms of the -- so you mentioned 



          18     that -- something about that she wasn't really doing what 



          19     the board had told her to do in regards to what you think 



          20     is the resolutions or associated with the resolutions.  



          21               What do you recall the board having directed 



          22     Ms. Rodell to do in regards to the, quote, unquote, 



          23     resolutions?  



          24          A    The board had established resolutions which now 



          25     are documents that state our policies that we try to 
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           1     communicate to the legislature and to the public.  And you 



           2     know, I don't want to put words in his mouth, but I -- I'm 



           3     not -- he was just -- I don't want to put words in his 



           4     mouth because I might misquote him, but I just know that 



           5     he was he concerned that those weren't being properly 



           6     supported.  



           7          Q    Did you have any concerns over Ms. Rodell's 



           8     properly supporting or implementing the resolutions?



           9          A    No.  



          10          Q    So was this a surprise call, that you weren't 



          11     expecting this call to happen?



          12          A    Yes.  It was a surprise.  



          13          Q    After the call, did you go back and reevaluate 



          14     your -- kind of whether or not you -- your view of 



          15     Ms. Rodell's performance in regards to the resolutions and 



          16     their support?



          17          A    Yes.  



          18          Q    And what did you look at to reevaluate that?



          19          A    I didn't look at any specific documents.  I just 



          20     was -- I thought about it.  I was thinking about it.



          21          Q    Did your view of Ms. Rodell's performance change 



          22     based on that kind of reevaluating or thinking about it?



          23          A    Did it change.  Not in regard to the 



          24     resolutions, no.



          25          Q    So as of the executive session, you still had 
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           1     the view that you didn't feel like she was not properly 



           2     supporting the resolutions?



           3          A    I believed she was properly supporting the 



           4     resolutions.



           5          Q    That's a much more accurate way to say it.  



           6     Appreciate it.  



           7          A    Sometimes those double negatives trip me up, so 



           8     I just like to say it twice.  



           9          Q    That's a much clearer way.  Thank you.  Did you 



          10     end up reevaluating performance on issues other than the 



          11     resolutions?



          12          A    I -- I reserved my opinion in regard to Angela's 



          13     performance until I saw the -- the 360 performance review 



          14     and when I heard the comments from the other trustees.  I 



          15     had made no decision about terminating her until the 



          16     second executive session.  I was really on the fence.



          17          Q    So what about the 360-degree survey review; how 



          18     did that impact your evaluation?



          19          A    I was really concerned about the conflict and 



          20     the stress that I sensed from the 360 review from the 



          21     investment staff.  And the investment -- I mean, everybody 



          22     at the Permanent Fund is extremely important.  Everybody 



          23     contributes.  But it was really important to me that the 



          24     investment staff, you know, have a really collaborative, 



          25     cohesive working relationship with the executive director.  
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           1     Because like I said earlier, they are the ones that are 



           2     making the decisions about our returns.  



           3               And based on what I read, I was concerned that 



           4     it could possibly impact attrition, meaning they would 



           5     leave, and that would negatively impact returns.  So that 



           6     was troublesome to me.  



           7               It was also concerning to me to see the 



           8     comments, you know, about the silos.  You know, there were 



           9     comments from both sides in regard to the tension that 



          10     that was creating in the organization.  



          11               So those -- those areas concerned me.  And -- do 



          12     you want me to go on?  



          13          Q    Yeah, absolutely.  



          14          A    So my vision for the fund and, you know, as a 



          15     trustee, I'm looking to the future.  And by 2030, you 



          16     know, I want our organization to be positioned to be a 



          17     100-billion-dollar fund.  When you look at the modeling, 



          18     which I've looked at, it's very possible.  But in order to 



          19     achieve a 100-billion-dollar fund, we need to have a very 



          20     high performing team in place.  And that means it has to 



          21     be an executive director who can work well with everybody 



          22     in the organization and bring them all together, as well 



          23     as have a good relationship with the board.  



          24               And so you know, as I listened to the trustees 



          25     in executive session, as I considered the 360-degree 
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           1     review, you know, two of the three were -- were broken.  



           2     And I just believed, to move forward to achieve that goal, 



           3     we -- we needed an executive director that could manage 



           4     all of that.  



           5          Q    When you say "two of the three were broken," 



           6     what is the -- just for the record to be clear, what is 



           7     the three and what is the two that were broken? 



           8          A    I just thought that the investment team and the 



           9     board, there were -- there were just -- there were 



          10     relationship issues with both of those very critical 



          11     components of the corporation.  



          12          Q    Issues with the relationship with the executive 



          13     director?



          14          A    Yeah.  



          15          Q    And I'm sorry.  Also just for the record or just 



          16     to be clear, we have been talking about, you know, 



          17     operations and then investment.  How would you separate 



          18     out, just broadly speaking, like operations and investment 



          19     at APFC?



          20          A    Okay.  So the investors are those who do the buy 



          21     and sells and select the investment managers and develop 



          22     the returns.  And then the operations -- they are titled 



          23     operations, but I think of them more as administration.  



          24     They are the ones that are doing the accounting for all of 



          25     the transactions.  It's the IT people that are ensuring 
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           1     that the systems are all safe and secure.  It's the risk 



           2     manager, the communications department, the HR department, 



           3     kind of the back office operations that, you know, a 



           4     corporation needs.  



           5          Q    Okay.  So you mentioned that one of the -- two 



           6     of the things that were -- influenced your decision was 



           7     the 360 review and also the comments from the other 



           8     trustees?



           9          A    Uh-huh.



          10          Q    And you followed up and said that, well, the 



          11     executive director needs to have good relations with the 



          12     board.  From your point of view in 2021, what was the 



          13     relationship between the executive director and the board?



          14          A    Well, I mean, if you look at the survey results, 



          15     which was the first time that I realized that there was 



          16     stress, if you will, or tension between the trustees and 



          17     Angela to the magnitude that it was, I mean, some of the 



          18     board members -- and I'm just going to share some of the 



          19     things that were on the survey -- felt that she was 



          20     manipulative, that she wasn't honest.  Some felt that she 



          21     had her own agenda and wasn't following the board's 



          22     agenda.  



          23          Q    Actually, this would be -- why don't we do this.  



          24     Let's pull up Exhibit 7.  



          25          A    Because I could go here -- 
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           1          Q    Yeah.  So --



           2          A    Yeah.  So like on page -- the very first page, I 



           3     referenced item 2.  Does not embrace the vision of the 



           4     board, but instead tries to control the board to achieve 



           5     her own vision and points of view.



           6          Q    In regards to that statement, is that -- was 



           7     that a view that you had?



           8          A    No.  



           9          Q    Did you see any -- would you point to anything 



          10     like, well, I could see how someone could see that, I just 



          11     didn't agree that that was what Angela was doing?



          12          A    Could you say that again.



          13          Q    I guess I'm trying to find out, were you aware 



          14     of any -- did anybody use any examples of Angela not 



          15     embracing the vision of the board and instead trying to 



          16     control the board?



          17          A    You know, they may have gone into it in the 



          18     executive session, but I don't remember.  



          19          Q    Do you independently -- not necessarily what 



          20     they said in terms of what was said in the executive 



          21     session.  Do you, sitting here today, independently recall 



          22     any instances in which you would have viewed Ms. Rodell as 



          23     not embracing the vision of the board, but instead trying 



          24     to control the board to achieve her own vision?



          25          A    There is one area, yeah.  And that is in regard 
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           1     to the Permanent Fund Corporation budget.  So pretty much 



           2     my entire career, I have been very much a budget hawk, and 



           3     I really like to see budgets that have been really well 



           4     vetted, and I -- I believed that the budget that was 



           5     initially submitted to the trustees back in September 



           6     wasn't really well vetted.  And I was concerned about that 



           7     because the numbers presented were pretty high.  And I -- 



           8     I was confused, truthfully.  I didn't understand why she 



           9     would have presented numbers that were so high.  When we 



          10     challenged them, she came down pretty quickly.  



          11               And so I felt like, is she using the board to 



          12     make the tough decisions about the budget versus making 



          13     them herself, or -- I mean, I don't know what she was 



          14     thinking.  Or was she really trying to build a big 



          15     bureaucracy.  I don't know.  But those were my thoughts.  



          16          Q    And that was the budget in September 2021?



          17          A    Yeah.  



          18          Q    All right.  Any other examples of the -- that 



          19     you would see of Angela potentially not embracing the 



          20     vision of the board but instead trying to control the 



          21     board to achieve her own vision and points of view?



          22          A    No.  I mean, not that I can think of right now.  



          23          Q    Okay.  That same -- let me back up.  Is this 



          24     kind of a cut and paste of a comment from the 360, or did 



          25     you edit it for clarity?
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           1          A    Most of the time I cut and paste, but there were 



           2     other times where I just tried to capture the tone and 



           3     shorten it up a bit.  



           4          Q    Okay.  Well, this one goes on to say:  Although 



           5     she has done good work on goals with which she is aligned, 



           6     she actively resists and undermines the board and staff in 



           7     areas in which she is not aligned.  



           8               Did you see any instances of Ms. Rodell actively 



           9     resisting and undermining the board and staff in areas in 



          10     which she was not aligned?  



          11          A    No.  



          12          Q    Okay.  What was the -- the -- best in class goal 



          13     for -- the next comment references that Ms. Rodell failed 



          14     to develop a best in class goal.  Do you recall there 



          15     being like an initiative from the board to do that?



          16          A    Yeah.  That -- that was a part of the strategic 



          17     plan.  And I don't know all the details of it because it 



          18     was developed and put into place before I became a 



          19     trustee.



          20          Q    Okay.  All right.  So going up to the top, the 



          21     overall summary, if we go down, it's the sixth bullet 



          22     point down.  



          23               MR. PTACIN:  Try not to mark those.  Those are 



          24     the officials.  



          25               THE WITNESS:  Do you have whiteout?  
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           1               MR. SLOTTEE:  It's fine.  It's fine.  



           2     BY MR. SLOTTEE:



           3          Q    The sixth bullet down references -- or it 



           4     states, "Her relationship with the board is stressed and 



           5     some trustees report a lack of trust and candor."  



           6          A    Where are you?  I'm sorry.  Excuse me.



           7          Q    The sixth bullet point down on the top under 



           8     Overall Summary.  Then it goes on to say:  The same could 



           9     be said for her dealings with the executive branch and the 



          10     legislature.  



          11               Did you have a lack of trust in Ms. Rodell?  



          12          A    Not initially.  I was -- I became concerned at I 



          13     believe it was the Kodiak board meeting when she brought 



          14     in what I was told was a mediator to discuss the strategic 



          15     plan.  



          16          Q    Why did that raise concerns regarding your trust 



          17     with Ms. Rodell?



          18          A    Because the -- I believe the normal policy would 



          19     have been to start out a discussion with the board and 



          20     say, I think we need to update the strategic plan.  You 



          21     know, let's collaboratively identify do we need to do this 



          22     over a two- or three-day period because it's a pretty 



          23     significant process to go through.  And you know, 



          24     according to the governance policy, you know, it's 



          25     supposed to start in the Governance Committee.  And 
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           1     then -- and whether we would actually have done it in the 



           2     committee, it is really a discussion of the whole board 



           3     because it's such -- it's important.  



           4               But what she did was she brought in a mediator.  



           5     And I didn't really understand what was going on because I 



           6     didn't know this -- this person.  And I thought it was 



           7     inappropriate, and I just think that it should have been 



           8     addressed in a different manner.  And I didn't understand 



           9     what -- what her objective was there.  



          10          Q    Okay.  So the mediator -- you weren't aware the 



          11     mediator was going to come at all until they kind of 



          12     showed up at the meeting or at last minute?



          13          A    I didn't realize that the person was a mediator.  



          14     Okay.



          15          Q    Do you remember their name?



          16          A    Al Bolea.  



          17          Q    So this was the first time you started having 



          18     kind of concerns about trust and candor?



          19          A    Yeah.  And then at the same meeting, again, it 



          20     was a discussion about the budget.  I again shared my 



          21     concern about an area that I thought was too high, and 



          22     she, like, lashed out at me on the record.  It was really 



          23     uncomfortable, and I was really disappointed in her for 



          24     doing that.



          25          Q    Do you remember the subject matter, the budget 
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           1     matter?



           2          A    It was incentive comp.



           3          Q    Did you have any discussions with her after that 



           4     Kodiak meeting about the lashing out or -- 



           5          A    No.  



           6          Q    -- how disappointed you were?



           7          A    No.  I was -- I was pretty upset about it.  I 



           8     was confused.  I couldn't understand why she got so 



           9     emotional.  You know, we were having a professional 



          10     discussion.  



          11          Q    Okay.  Any other instances?



          12          A    No, not that I can think of right now.



          13          Q    Okay.  That comment says, regarding the lack of 



          14     trust or candor, "The same can be said for her 



          15     dealings" -- Ms. Rodell's dealings -- "with the executive 



          16     branch and the legislature."



          17               Are you aware -- did you have any conversations 



          18     with any members of the legislature or their staff where 



          19     they expressed concern over -- that they had a lack of -- 



          20     they had concern over Ms. Rodell's candor or trust?  



          21          A    Did I have -- who?  Say that again.



          22          Q    Sorry.  Any members of the legislature or their 



          23     staff.  



          24          A    The legislature or their staff.  No.  



          25          Q    What about with the members of the executive 
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           1     branch?



           2          A    Yes.  



           3          Q    Who would that be?



           4          A    Okay.  So can we -- can you restate the question 



           5     just one more time.  I'm sorry.  I want to make sure I 



           6     answer correctly.



           7          Q    Sure.  Did you have any conversations with any 



           8     members of the executive branch where they expressed a 



           9     lack of trust in Ms. Rodell?



          10          A    Not a lack of trust.  So the answer is no.  



          11          Q    What about a lack of candor from Ms. Rodell?



          12          A    No.  



          13          Q    What about any concern -- discussions with 



          14     members of the executive branch wherein they expressed 



          15     concerns about Ms. Rodell kind of in general?



          16          A    Yes.



          17          Q    Who would that have been?



          18          A    So I had had a discussion -- actually, I had 



          19     received a call from Brandon Brefczynski about a tweet 



          20     that she had posted on Twitter, I guess is what it's 



          21     called.



          22               MR. SLOTTEE:  All right.  And 21st century.  



          23     Mark as Exhibit 11 the tweet from Ms. Rodell.  



          24               (Exhibit No. 11 marked.) 



          25                MR. PTACIN:  Lucinda, by my watch, it's been 
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           1     about an hour and 28 minutes.  Do you want to take a 



           2     break?  Are you okay?  



           3               (A break was taken.)



           4     BY MR. SLOTTEE:



           5          Q    So Commissioner, when we broke for a brief at 



           6     ease, I think you were just -- just testified that you had 



           7     received a call from Brandon Brefczynski --



           8          A    Yes.



           9          Q    -- who had expressed a concern about a tweet 



          10     from Ms. Rodell?



          11          A    Yes.



          12          Q    Who is Brandon Brefczynski?



          13          A    I'm not sure of his exact title, but he worked 



          14     in the governor's office at that time.  I think assistant 



          15     to the governor.  I don't know.  But he worked for the 



          16     governor in the governor's office.  



          17          Q    Do you remember -- and what we marked before we 



          18     left was Exhibit 11, which was a printout of a tweet from 



          19     Ms. Rodell on August 20, '21 where she states, quote -- or 



          20     tweeted, "As of June 30th, the ERA has an uncommitted 



          21     balance of 9.3 billion, of which the governor's 



          22     appropriation bill would use three billion, leaving the 



          23     balance of 6.3 billion for future appropriations."  Do you 



          24     see that? 



          25          A    I do.
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           1          Q    Is that the tweet that he was calling about?



           2          A    I believe so, yes.  



           3          Q    What did he -- what was his concern about the 



           4     tweet?



           5          A    He was concerned that the number was wrong.



           6          Q    Okay.  Was the number wrong?



           7          A    I didn't go back and check.  



           8          Q    Okay.  Did you -- were you aware of this tweet 



           9     before Mr. Brefczynski called you?



          10          A    No.



          11          Q    Did you have any concerns about the tweet?



          12          A    No.  



          13          Q    Do you know what -- why she was tweeting this 



          14     out, like what was going on at the same time that she 



          15     tweeted on that August 20th?



          16          A    Okay.  So what I recall is that there was a 



          17     budget presentation going on in house finance, and a 



          18     legislator had asked a question of Neil Steinger, the 



          19     budget director, about what was the balance of the ERA, 



          20     and he cited a number.  And then some minutes later one of 



          21     the legislators got on the record and corrected him.  And 



          22     I think he was referring to this number here.



          23          Q    In Exhibit 11 from Ms. Rodell's tweet?



          24          A    Yes.  



          25          Q    Okay.  So Mr. Brefczynski called you and 
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           1     expressed concern that Ms. Rodell's tweet was factually 



           2     inaccurate.  Any other concerns about Ms. Rodell's tweet?



           3          A    Just the fact that she was tweeting and he 



           4     thought it was an inaccurate number.  That's it.  



           5          Q    So something beyond -- not even necessarily that 



           6     it was inaccurate, but that she was tweeting at all in 



           7     response to this -- apparent response to this testimony 



           8     from the legislature?



           9          A    Yeah, yes.  



          10          Q    Do you recall any other specifics about that 



          11     conversation?



          12          A    I just remember that my response was that I had 



          13     confidence in Angela's numbers, and there are different -- 



          14     okay.  So when he called me, I didn't have this in front 



          15     of me because I don't tweet.  Okay.  I don't know that I 



          16     even know how to get on and look at something like this.  



          17     So I didn't -- I didn't know what the numbers were.  But 



          18     what I said to him was that her numbers aren't wrong 



          19     usually and we need to think about -- I go, what was the 



          20     question?  Was it committed balance?  Was it uncommitted 



          21     balance?  What date?  You know, was it the end of the 



          22     year?  Was it -- because June 30 is the end of the year.  



          23     I didn't hear all that.  I didn't listen to those 



          24     legislative sessions.  



          25               So I was trying to talk to him about, you know, 
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           1     you need -- before you are certain that the number is 



           2     wrong, you need to make sure it's apples to apples kind of 



           3     number.  But he was very concerned.  And I told him that I 



           4     would call Angela and talk to her about it.  



           5          Q    And did you?



           6          A    I did.



           7          Q    What did you talk to her about?



           8          A    I called her and I said to her, Angela, I am 



           9     calling you as your friend.  And she and I were very close 



          10     friends prior to this.  And I said, I'm asking you to be 



          11     mindful of what you tweet.  And it's just -- it has a lot 



          12     of viewership, and I just want you be to be careful.  



          13     That's all I said.



          14          Q    What was Ms. Rodell's response?



          15          A    She got very upset.  She -- she -- I think that 



          16     she overreacted to my comment because I was really trying 



          17     to help her and support her because she's my friend, plus 



          18     I wanted to do what was right for the fund.  I always want 



          19     to protect the integrity and the reputation of the fund.  



          20     And she represents the fund, right?  So -- but she did.  



          21     She got very emotional.  



          22               And she asked me if I was asking her to resign.  



          23     And I said, no, absolutely not.  That is not what this 



          24     conversation is about at all.  And I said, I'm calling you 



          25     as your -- as your friend and just saying think twice 
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           1     before you post and think about the timing.  If you are 



           2     going to post, think about the timing of it because 



           3     sometimes perceptions become reality.  That's what I said.  



           4               It was a long conversation.  You know, we talked 



           5     a lot -- we talked a lot about golfing together.  We both 



           6     have houses down in Palm Springs.  We go out.  And so I 



           7     was trying to -- to get -- I was trying to calm her down 



           8     because I felt like she was really overreacting.  



           9          Q    Did this tweeting incident, this tweet, did that 



          10     play any role in your ultimate kind of consideration 



          11     during executive session over whether or not to 



          12     terminate -- vote in favor of terminating her employment?



          13          A    Absolutely not, because, like I said, most 



          14     likely her number was accurate.



          15          Q    What about the fact of her tweeting and then 



          16     Mr. Brefczynski's call; did that influence you at all, 



          17     have any influence on you?



          18          A    No.  



          19          Q    All right.  Any other conversations with any 



          20     members of the executive branch about Ms. Rodell or her 



          21     performance?



          22          A    Not her performance.



          23          Q    What about Ms. Rodell?



          24          A    Yes.  



          25          Q    What other conversations can you recall?
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           1          A    Okay.  So there was -- okay.  What do you mean 



           2     by the executive branch?  



           3          Q    Well, let's start with anybody working in the 



           4     governor's office.  



           5          A    Okay.  So yes.  Randy Ruaro, the chief of staff, 



           6     called me to share concern about how a transaction was 



           7     booked at the Permanent Fund Corporation.  And this 



           8     transaction was the four-billion-dollar inflation-proofing 



           9     transaction.  So what was ultimately transferred from the 



          10     ERA to the principal was something close to 5.8 billion.  



          11               So he was concerned about was that the right 



          12     process, you know, what was the basis for moving 5.8 



          13     instead of the four.  And you know, he -- he just wanted 



          14     to understand it.  He was concerned, I think, mainly 



          15     because he didn't understand it.  It wasn't really a 



          16     reflection on Angela's performance.  It was really just 



          17     more a concern.  



          18               And so we had -- I think, Craig had initiated a 



          19     request to get the support and the reason why 5.5 was 



          20     ultimately transferred, and then all the details of it, as 



          21     well as the supporting law around why it happened that 



          22     way.  



          23          Q    When did this happen?



          24          A    I'm thinking.  I think it was in November.  And 



          25     then he followed up again with me on the same topic in 
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           1     early December.



           2          Q    Am I characterizing right that his questions 



           3     were more process-based versus substance?



           4          A    That's the way I interpreted it, yeah, because 



           5     what we ended up doing was we provided all of the details 



           6     that Angela had -- Angela and her team had provided to the 



           7     board.  And I don't remember the exact dates.  I'm sorry.  



           8     But it's in that time frame.  



           9          Q    Okay.  Was it ultimately determined that was the 



          10     appropriate way to handle that?



          11          A    I'm not sure.  I have discontinued my review of 



          12     that.  I'm not sure what the governor's office is doing, 



          13     if we are continuing to review that process.  I don't 



          14     know.



          15          Q    Okay.  Did you have any concerns over it?



          16          A    A little, yeah.



          17          Q    And I guess to be specific, we are just talking 



          18     about the period before the decision was made to terminate 



          19     Ms. Rodell.  



          20          A    Okay.  Could you say that again.



          21          Q    Sure.  Did you have concerns over the process 



          22     that you were kind of working through before Ms. Rodell's 



          23     employment was terminated?



          24          A    Oh, yeah.  This was before.  Before that, yeah.



          25          Q    And did this play any -- was this factor in your 
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           1     kind of -- was this issue raised during the trustee 



           2     executive session?



           3          A    No, no.  



           4          Q    Did it play any role in your consideration of 



           5     the question?



           6          A    No, not at all.  It's process to me.



           7          Q    Any other conversations with members of the 



           8     governor's -- of the governor's office regarding 



           9     Ms. Rodell?



          10          A    I had a conversation with the governor.  



          11          Q    Okay.  When did that happen?



          12          A    Is that what you are --



          13          Q    Sure.  When did that happen?



          14          A    It would have been Octoberish, I think.



          15               MR. PTACIN:  Of what year?  



          16               THE WITNESS:  Of '21.  I'm trying to remember 



          17     the date.  Okay.  Please give me a moment, but it had -- 



          18     let me -- let me tell you what it was.  



          19               MR. PTACIN:  He may have a calendar, and that's 



          20     why I kind of raised this.  



          21               THE WITNESS:  Okay.  Yeah.  If I had a calendar, 



          22     I could see what date it was.  



          23               MR. SLOTTEE:  Okay.  We will mark it as Exhibit 



          24     12.  



          25               (Exhibit No. 12 marked.) 
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           1               THE WITNESS:  October it is.  



           2     BY MR. SLOTTEE:



           3          Q    So these are two calendar kind of entries that 



           4     were provided by APFC labeled APFC-SWEF 124 and 125.  And 



           5     we see on October 6 -- Tuesday, October 6, 1:45 p.m. to 



           6     2:05 p.m., fiscal year 2022 APFC budget development 



           7     meeting, Dunleavy governor.  Do you see that?  



           8          A    Yes, I do.



           9          Q    And there is also a meeting indicated on 



          10     Tuesday, October 19.  



          11               MS. LEEAH:  Can I just voice an objection for 



          12     the record on discussions about the budget.  I mean, that 



          13     would be executive privilege.  



          14               MR. SLOTTEE:  Okay.  I'm just going to be asking 



          15     about her discussions regarding -- 



          16               MS. LEEAH:  I understand.  You mentioned 



          17     discussion, but I wanted to -- before you went there.  



          18     BY MR. SLOTTEE:  



          19          Q    And then we see another meeting on October 19, 



          20     2:00 p.m. to 2:45 with Governor Dunleavy.  Do you see 



          21     that, as well?  It's on the second page.



          22          A    Okay.  What date?  



          23          Q    The first one is October 6th.  



          24          A    Right.



          25               MR. PTACIN:  The 6th and the 19th.  
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           1               THE WITNESS:  Okay.  The budget development 



           2     meeting, is that what we are looking at?  Oh, no.  The 



           3     2:00 meeting.  No.  Which one?  



           4     BY MR. SLOTTEE:



           5          Q    Let's start with the budget development meeting.  



           6          A    The one in '20.



           7          Q    On October 6.  



           8          A    Yes.  Okay.



           9               MR. PTACIN:  So the year is 2020.  



          10               MR. SLOTTEE:  You are right.  October 2020.  



          11     BY MR. SLOTTEE:



          12          Q    Did you discuss Ms. Rodell's performance during 



          13     that 2020 meeting?



          14          A    No.  



          15          Q    Okay.  Then let's go to 2021.  



          16          A    Okay.  Which day?  



          17          Q    October 19th.  Let's start there.  



          18          A    Which meeting?  Which time?  



          19          Q    There is a 2:00 p.m. to 2:45 p.m. that 



          20     specifically references Dunleavy, governor.  Does that 



          21     refresh your recollection about having a meeting with the 



          22     governor?



          23          A    I mean, I have meetings with the governor.  They 



          24     don't -- the titles are never on.  And so -- 



          25          Q    Let me ask a general question, then.  







                             PACIFIC RIM REPORTING  907/272-4383          



�



                                                                        70







           1          A    I'm trying to think about what this particular 



           2     meeting was.  



           3          Q    I guess my general question is:  What do you 



           4     recall about your -- you testified that you had a 



           5     meeting -- a discussion with Governor Dunleavy about 



           6     Ms. Rodell.  



           7          A    Yes.  



           8          Q    What do you recall -- it was in the October time 



           9     frame is my understanding.  



          10          A    Yes.  



          11          Q    What do you generally recall about that meeting?



          12          A    Okay.  Thank you.  I can't remember the date.



          13               MR. PTACIN:  And just to clarify, what year?  



          14     Because you are being shown October 2020 and October 2021.  



          15               THE WITNESS:  The '21 is what I'd like to 



          16     respond to now.  



          17     BY MR. SLOTTEE:



          18          Q    Yes.  



          19          A    Sometime in, I believe it was, October, 



          20     Commissioner Feige and I were meeting with the governor to 



          21     establish our plans associated with ESG.  You know what 



          22     that is.  Environmental, social and governance.  We were 



          23     talking about ESG.  I think Corri was in the room.  



          24     Anyways, the governor just brought up the -- the fact, I 



          25     guess, that he -- you know what?  Now that I think about 
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           1     this, was that '20?  Or '21?  Anyways, I don't remember 



           2     the date.



           3          Q    Okay.  



           4          A    They were -- they were -- the governor brought 



           5     up a conversation that he had had with Angela in regard to 



           6     Angela's discussion about converting the Permanent Fund 



           7     Corporation to an ESG fund.  And the governor asked me if 



           8     I knew about that and what were my thoughts.  I -- 



           9     anyways, I didn't know about her comment, and he just told 



          10     me that he didn't support converting the Permanent Fund to 



          11     an ESG fund.  And that was it.  



          12               I did end up sending a follow-up email to Craig 



          13     Richards about this and asked him if he thought that it 



          14     was something that the trustees should talk about, 



          15     considering that Angela had talked with the governor about 



          16     it.  I thought, geez, should we talk about it.  And he had 



          17     said it had been discussed before and there was no need.  



          18          Q    Had been discussed before by the trustees?



          19          A    I think so, yeah.  



          20          Q    Okay.  Did you have any conversation with 



          21     Ms. Rodell about her going to the governor with that idea?



          22          A    No.



          23          Q    Did you have any concerns about her going to the 



          24     governor with the idea that played a factor in your 



          25     decisionmaking regarding the termination of Ms. Rodell's 
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           1     employment?



           2          A    No.  I'm sorry.  I don't remember the dates on 



           3     this.



           4          Q    Do you recall any other conversations with any 



           5     member -- with the governor or any member of his staff 



           6     regarding Ms. Rodell's employment?



           7          A    Employment?  



           8          Q    Yes.  



           9          A    No.



          10          Q    Do you recall any -- did you have any 



          11     discussions with the governor or any member of his staff 



          12     or any representative of the governor about whether or not 



          13     Ms. Rodell's employment should be terminated?



          14          A    No.  



          15          Q    Did you have a discussion with anybody prior to 



          16     the executive session in which the potential of 



          17     terminating Ms. Rodell's employment was brought up, 



          18     besides, I think, the conversation you had with Mr. -- 



          19     with Craig Richards that you previously testified to?



          20          A    No.  But full disclosure here, okay.  I did have 



          21     a conversation with the governor in 2020.  Okay.  And it 



          22     was a phone call about the Permanent Fund Corporation.  



          23     And the purpose of the call was to ask the governor -- 



          24     actually, I think it would have been in September 2020.  



          25     The purpose of the call would have been to ask the 
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           1     governor and try to get him to support incentive comp for 



           2     the Permanent Fund organization.  



           3               And so, you know, we were asked by I think 



           4     either Angela or Craig -- and this is Corri and I.  we 



           5     were asked by either Angela or Craig to talk to the 



           6     governor to see if we could get him to support the 



           7     incentive comp because it would -- it would determine 



           8     whether or not we were going to put it in the budget 



           9     and -- because he has the veto power.  And we didn't want 



          10     Angela to have to go around and lobby all the legislature, 



          11     get support for it to then just be vetoed.  Right?  



          12               So toward the end of that conversation, the 



          13     governor said, how is Angela doing?  And I said, she's 



          14     doing great.  And Corri then said, yes, she's improving.  



          15     And I was surprised at that because I didn't -- I was 



          16     unaware that there were prior performance issues.  



          17          Q    Because you had just started?



          18          A    I had started in February, but this was my first 



          19     time going through -- I mean, I had only done two board 



          20     meetings, I think, by that point.  So Corri said that her 



          21     performance has improved, and he said, great.  Good to 



          22     hear.  And that was that.  



          23          Q    Okay.  All right.  Did you have any 



          24     conversation -- well, I think I asked that broadly, but 



          25     just to make sure I hit all the bases, did you have any 
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           1     discussions with any members of the legislature or their 



           2     staff regarding termination of Ms. Rodell's employment 



           3     prior to it actually happening?



           4          A    No.



           5          Q    Okay.  Go back to Exhibit 7, which is the CEO 



           6     performance evaluation, the summary.  



           7          A    Okay.



           8          Q    Okay.  So I'm going to turn to the second page, 



           9     it's page 166.  The second line, the second comment under 



          10     Q4, financial leadership, says, "Budget process could have 



          11     been managed better.  Initial budget requests were not 



          12     well vetted by CEO prior to submission to the board."  Is 



          13     that what -- I think you previously testified about your 



          14     concerns over the 2021 budget, at least the initial form 



          15     of it.  



          16          A    This would have been for the 2023 buget.



          17          Q     Sorry.  2023 budget?



          18          A    Yes.



          19          Q    That's what you were -- you understand that's 



          20     referring to that? 



          21          A    Yeah.  That was my comment.



          22          Q    The next line says, "CEO has a tendency to 



          23     control financial and other information that goes to the 



          24     board, executive branch, and legislature to help push her 



          25     own agenda."
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           1               In your point of view, did you view Ms. Rodell 



           2     as having an agenda that was different than the Board of 



           3     Trustees?  



           4          A    No.  



           5          Q    Did you feel that she was controlling the 



           6     financial and other information that was going to the 



           7     board?



           8          A    You know, I don't really have enough information 



           9     to know whether she would have been controlling it or not.  



          10     But I would say no.  I mean, I didn't feel that way.  



          11     Okay.



          12          Q    And then did you hear from anybody from the 



          13     executive branch complaining about the manner in which 



          14     Ms. Rodell transmitted information either in terms of 



          15     controlling it or limiting the information that she --



          16          A    No.  



          17          Q    What about from -- the same question, but for 



          18     members of the legislature or their staff?



          19          A    No.  



          20          Q    If we turn to the next page, the top is Q6, 



          21     board relations.  And the first comment references -- kind 



          22     of the third sentence there says:  CEO tends to rely upon 



          23     the resolutions and strategic plan as a shield when she 



          24     doesn't want board input.  Hiring a mediator to manage the 



          25     discussion of strategic plan without telling the trustees 
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           1     rather than taking this task in hand was demonstrative of 



           2     the CEO's discomfort with engaging her board openly and 



           3     honestly.  



           4               Was this your comment or was this -- to your 



           5     recollection?  



           6          A    This was not my comment.



           7          Q    Okay.  So do you recall other trustees having 



           8     issues with the manner in which Ms. Rodell brought on that 



           9     mediator?  



          10          A    Yes, because I did, as I mentioned earlier.  And 



          11     here is another comment.  So another trustee did.  I 



          12     don't -- so okay.  I guess what I could do is, in order to 



          13     answer that is share what happened at the meeting --



          14          Q    Okay.  



          15          A    -- which is that there was concern about 



          16     bringing the mediator on and the -- and Bill Moran was the 



          17     chair, and so he asked people what they thought in regard 



          18     to should they proceed.  And at the time, I was kind of 



          19     ambivalent about it, but concerned because I just had 



          20     learned that Al Bolea was a mediator, so I felt like that, 



          21     as I mentioned earlier, was inappropriate.  The end result 



          22     was that the chair, Bill Moran, told the mediator that we 



          23     would not be having this discussion today.  So what 



          24     that -- what I recall then is that the majority of the 



          25     trustees did not appreciate that.
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           1          Q    Did that mediator issue, did that come up again 



           2     during that 2021 executive session when discussing 



           3     Ms. Rodell's performance?



           4          A    Yeah, I think it did.  I think it did.  And I 



           5     think that it kind of related to trust.  



           6          Q    Kind of to that issue, there is a couple -- the 



           7     next -- the next comment, it says, "The director's 



           8     relationship with the board has soured."  There is also a 



           9     reference to "a number of trustees in recent years have 



          10     lost trust in her veracity and leadership."  



          11               Did you review Ms. Rodell's relationship with 



          12     the board as soured?  



          13          A    I don't know if I would use the word "soured."  



          14     I would say it was tense, and towards the latter half 



          15     of '21, it felt like the meetings were just really 



          16     stressful.  And it's hard to put a -- put my finger on why 



          17     that was happening.  But it seemed like maybe Angela was a 



          18     little on edge, and I don't know why, though.  I can't 



          19     give you an example.  It just felt that way.



          20          Q    Did other trustees express to you that they had 



          21     lost trust in Ms. Rodell's veracity and leadership?



          22          A    In the executive session, yes.



          23          Q    How many other trustees said that?



          24          A    I know two for sure.  I'm trying to think about 



          25     the third one, if he actually said it.  Yeah.  I would say 
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           1     three.  



           2          Q    Who would have been the three?



           3          A    Commissioner Feige, Commissioner Rieger -- not 



           4     Rieger.  I'm sorry.  Commissioner Feige.  Feige, Craig and 



           5     Ethan.



           6          Q    What about you?  Maybe we will break that in 



           7     two.  Had you lost trust in her veracity, Ms. Rodell's 



           8     veracity?



           9          A    I don't know what was meant by the word 



          10     "veracity" in this.  That's really hard for me to say.  



          11     That's what somebody else wrote.



          12          Q    In your understanding of how you would 



          13     understand the word "veracity."  



          14          A    Towards the end, I had -- I was -- well, 



          15     obviously I questioned her leadership at the end.  Okay.  



          16     And I told you why.  And I started to see that in 



          17     September in the Kodiak board meeting, but I wasn't 



          18     thinking about a termination.  You know, I was just 



          19     starting to observe.  



          20          Q    Well, during the -- during the executive 



          21     session, so the 2021 executive session, I know you 



          22     testified earlier that there had been a call from Chairman 



          23     Richards sometime in, like, October, I think, or sometime 



          24     before the executive session.  



          25          A    October or November.  I don't remember.  Yeah.  
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           1          Q    So let's say during the actual executive 



           2     session, do you recall when was the first time that, okay, 



           3     we need to think about potentially terminating 



           4     Ms. Rodell's employment?  Was that right at the beginning 



           5     of the meeting?  Start of day two?  Do you recall kind of 



           6     where in the timeline it was?



           7          A    Okay.  Yeah.  So the way the executive session 



           8     worked was I started the session by describing the survey, 



           9     you know, the percent response, you know, how it was 



          10     conducted.  I went through process.  And then I went -- I 



          11     talked through the survey results.  And everybody listened 



          12     and participated.  



          13               And there was no discussion of a termination 



          14     until maybe three-quarters of the way through.  It began 



          15     as a discussion.  But there were no decisions that were 



          16     made that first day.  Everybody was still really 



          17     contemplating it because, you know, it's a -- it's a 



          18     significant -- a significant decision.  



          19          Q    Uh-huh.  



          20          A    And so there was a recognition that it was 



          21     something that the trustees all needed to think about 



          22     individually.  And we agreed that that night we would -- 



          23     we would think about it.  We would think about what each 



          24     other had said, and we would come back together the next 



          25     day and we would talk about it again.
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           1          Q    Do you recall who first brought up the issue or 



           2     the potential for termination during that first day?



           3          A    I don't remember.  There was a lot of back and 



           4     forth, so -- 



           5          Q    So was -- it was kind of a conversational 



           6     approach versus you get to speak, you get to speak, you 



           7     get to speak, or --



           8          A    It was conversation, definitely.  



           9          Q    Did you have any phone calls with any other 



          10     trustees that night between the ending of the executive 



          11     session and the start of the executive session the next 



          12     day --



          13          A    No.



          14          Q    -- in which you discussed Ms. Rodell?



          15          A    No, not that I recall.  I went right home. 



          16          Q    So any conversation with anyone between the 



          17     ending of the first executive session and the start of the 



          18     second one about Ms. Rodell's employment?



          19          A    No.  



          20          Q    So you come back the second day and you start -- 



          21     continue the discussion that had been started the prior 



          22     day, right?



          23          A    Yes.  Only there was -- the second executive 



          24     session, Corri was participating because she wasn't there 



          25     for the first day.  It was just the five of us.  And so 
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           1     for the -- the way it started out the second day was for 



           2     us to listen to her opinion.  And so we heard her opinion.



           3          Q    Okay.  And then at one point during the second 



           4     day, was there any discussion during the second day about 



           5     alternatives to termination?



           6          A    Trying to recall.  Yeah.  We had -- as I said 



           7     earlier, we had talked about whether or not additional 



           8     training would help.  And you know, then folks said no, 



           9     you know.  This has been going on for many years.  I think 



          10     that's -- that's it.



          11          Q    Was -- when was the decision -- was there a kind 



          12     of decision made during executive session that, yes, we 



          13     are going to terminate Ms. Rodell's employment?



          14          A    We talked about towards the end after -- you 



          15     know, we all talked for a long time -- about how we would 



          16     likely vote.  And folks shared how they would likely vote.



          17          Q    What was the overall vote at that time, the 



          18     likely vote?



          19          A    Five to one.



          20          Q    Five to one.  Who was the one that was -- said 



          21     they would likely vote against?



          22          A    Vote against the motion?  



          23          Q    Yeah.  



          24          A    Yeah.  Bill Moran.



          25          Q    And is that what the ultimate vote was?
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           1          A    Yes.  



           2          Q    So where in this process was Ms. Rodell kind 



           3     of -- was Ms. Rodell ever invited into the executive 



           4     session?



           5          A    Yes.



           6          Q    Where in the process did that happen?



           7          A    At the end.  



           8          Q    After you had already discussed how you were 



           9     likely to vote?



          10          A    Yes.



          11          Q    So at that point, the Permanent Fund 



          12     Corporation, in your view, understanding you are speaking 



          13     for yourself and not on behalf of the committee, had 



          14     already kind of made the decision that you were going to 



          15     terminate Ms. Rodell's employment?



          16          A    There was a consensus that that would be the 



          17     direction; however, you -- nothing is final until you get 



          18     out there in the public record and you cast your vote.  



          19     And truthfully, I wavered on casting that final vote.  



          20          Q    So you bring Ms. Rodell in.  You invite her in.  



          21     And so what happens after she comes in the room?



          22          A    Craig led the discussion with her.  He -- he 



          23     told her that the board would be moving in a different 



          24     direction.  And I don't know his exact words, but that her 



          25     services were -- were no longer needed, or something like 
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           1     that.



           2          Q    Was she given an opportunity to kind of advocate 



           3     for herself or make any comments in response?



           4          A    No.  



           5          Q    Was there a discussion between the trustees 



           6     whether or not to give her that opportunity before you 



           7     made the final decision?



           8          A    Yes.  And it was decided that she would unlikely 



           9     be able to change the decisions because the problems had 



          10     been going on for many years.  



          11          Q    Okay.  Was she given the opportunity -- how -- 



          12     so she was coming in.  How long did Craig Richards kind of 



          13     talk to her about, hey, we are going to go in a different 



          14     direction?  Was it just a couple sentences or was it this 



          15     is why and kind of go into detail?



          16          A    No whys.  It was short.  Maybe five minutes, ten 



          17     minutes, if that.



          18          Q    Uh-huh.  Was she given the option to resign or 



          19     be terminated?



          20          A    Yes.  



          21          Q    Did she have anything to say during the 



          22     executive session?



          23          A    Yes.  



          24          Q    What did she say?



          25          A    This is awful.  She said that we were making a 
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           1     big mistake because no one would ever be able to do the 



           2     job that she did and manage the fund as she did.  She told 



           3     us that there would be political ramifications for our 



           4     decision.  She told us that she was going to hold each one 



           5     of us individually accountable.  It was very 



           6     unprofessional.



           7          Q    Did she provide any detail about what she 



           8     thought these political ramifications would be or why she 



           9     would hold you individually accountable?



          10          A    No.



          11          Q    During your discussions over whether or not to 



          12     terminate Ms. Rodell's employment, did the issue of, hey, 



          13     what are the political ramifications of this decision 



          14     going to be?  Did that come up at all?  



          15          A    No.  We all focused on our fiduciary duty.  And 



          16     our first fiduciary duty was to the future of the fund.



          17          Q    Were there discussions during -- you know, 



          18     during executive session about, all right, we are going 



          19     to -- we are going to go in a different direction with the 



          20     executive director; what is the transition plan for 



          21     replacing her?



          22          A    At the very end prior to Angela coming in, Craig 



          23     brought it up.



          24          Q    What was the nature of that discussion?



          25          A    He said we need to -- we need to talk about 
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           1     what -- what we are going to do in this transition period 



           2     before we hire a new executive director.  And I hadn't 



           3     even thought about any of that because I didn't know that 



           4     this was even going to happen.  But he had suggested that 



           5     Val Mertz be appointed acting director.  And he talked 



           6     about how he had a lot of confidence in her and how she 



           7     had actually -- she had actually done that role before.  



           8     And everybody agreed.  And we all have a lot of confidence 



           9     in Val.  And she is doing a really good job, so -- 



          10          Q    Was there any discussion about whether or not 



          11     you were terminating Ms. Rodell kind of immediately 



          12     versus, you know, having, you know, a target, quote, 



          13     unquote, retirement date or target separation date 



          14     somewhere in the future?



          15          A    I think that there was a very, very short 



          16     discussion of that, but the conclusion was that it 



          17     wouldn't be good for the organization for her to be there 



          18     in a manner where she knew that she was being terminated.  



          19     That wouldn't -- that wasn't going to work.



          20          Q    Was that a consideration that was kind of 



          21     specific to Angela's either kind of -- blanking on the 



          22     word -- Angela's attitude or approach or just in general, 



          23     like just kind of abstractly?



          24          A    I think it's a combination of both is what you 



          25     said in general.  Typically when you let executives go, 
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           1     you don't keep them hanging around.  You just don't.  So 



           2     it was that, plus the potential for her to be angry, and 



           3     we didn't want that in the organization.



           4          Q    Did you feel that there was kind of a financial 



           5     risk that she would make a bad choice and do something 



           6     inappropriate after being told she was terminated or she 



           7     was going to be terminated?



           8          A    I didn't even think about that.  



           9          Q    Was there a discussion about the potential 



          10     impact on the Permanent Fund Corporation from kind of the 



          11     view of third parties, like investment partners, the 



          12     market in terms of making such a sudden change?



          13          A    We didn't discuss that that I recall.



          14          Q    These were -- the two executive sessions that 



          15     were held in that December 2021 were the only executive 



          16     sessions in 2021 in which Ms. Rodell's employment or 



          17     performance was discussed?



          18          A    I -- I think you are asking me was her 



          19     performance discussed only in those two executive 



          20     sessions.



          21          Q    Correct.  



          22          A    The answer is yes.



          23          Q    Did the trustees go through the written response 



          24     that Ms. Rodell provided both in her self-evaluation and 



          25     her response to the survey comments?







                             PACIFIC RIM REPORTING  907/272-4383          



�



                                                                        87







           1          A    Not in that meeting, no.  I think it was 



           2     provided, but no -- no one talked about those.



           3          Q    Did you consider her response in making your 



           4     evaluation or decision?



           5          A    No.  



           6          Q    What's that?



           7          A    No.  



           8          Q    Why not?



           9          A    I mean, I read it -- I read the response, and 



          10     this -- what I learned here and what I heard from others 



          11     was more compelling to me than her response.  



          12          Q    I guess let me ask this.  I don't know if I 



          13     necessarily asked it specifically.  From your point of 



          14     view -- because you voted in favor of terminating 



          15     Ms. Rodell's employment, right?



          16          A    Yes.  



          17          Q    Why was Ms. Rodell terminated -- why was her 



          18     employment terminated?



          19          A    What was my reason?  



          20          Q    Yes.  



          21          A    Okay.  So I kind of already said it, but I'll 



          22     restate it.  Hopefully I'm consistent.  So my vision is 



          23     that the fund is a 100-billion-dollar fund by the year 



          24     2030.  And in order for that to happen, we need to have a 



          25     very high performing team where the investment officers 
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           1     who do the buys and the sells have a very good 



           2     relationship, cohesive, work in harmony, collaborative 



           3     with the executive director so that we don't have 



           4     attrition issues that could potentially impact returns.  



           5               I have a vision that the organizations, both the 



           6     operations organizations and the investment organizations, 



           7     work really well together as a team.  There is all this 



           8     conflict that is going on there that she hadn't been able 



           9     to resolve.  



          10               And then additionally, the relationship with 



          11     some of the members of the board was in jeopardy.  They 



          12     had lost confidence in her.  So I considered all of that 



          13     in terms of as we move forward and we really continue to 



          14     grow, is this the right leader to lead us into the future.  



          15               Then I also considered the history, you know, 



          16     the historical performance reviews.  And that -- that 



          17     was -- that was the foundation of my vote.  



          18          Q    Was your view of Ms. -- well, let me strike 



          19     that.  Did the -- did the extent to which Ms. Rodell's, as 



          20     you understood them, views towards the future of the 



          21     Permanent Fund Corporation and how to fund Permanent Fund, 



          22     the Permanent Found Dividend, did that play any role in 



          23     your decision to vote in favor of the termination of her 



          24     employment?



          25          A    No.
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           1          Q    Did anyone from the governor's office or the 



           2     executive branch ask you to seek the termination of 



           3     Ms. Rodell's employment?



           4          A    No.  



           5          Q    Did anyone from the legislature or their staff 



           6     members ask you to seek the termination of Ms. Rodell's 



           7     employment?



           8          A    No.  



           9          Q    What role, if any, did the governor's overall 



          10     agenda in regards to the Permanent Fund Corporation and 



          11     the Permanent Fund Dividend play in connection with your 



          12     decision to vote in favor of Ms. Rodell's termination?  



          13               MR. BIRNBAUM:  I'm sorry.  I -- can we have a 



          14     moment?  



          15               MR. SLOTTEE:  Sure.  



          16               MS. LEEAH:  Can we talk to Commissioner Mahoney 



          17     for a second?  



          18               MR. SLOTTEE:  Sure.  



          19               (Off the record.)



          20     BY MR. SLOTTEE:



          21          Q    Do you want me to restate it again?



          22          A    The answer is no.



          23          Q    No?  Okay.  



          24               Did you have any discussion about -- during that 



          25     executive session about the manner in which you would 
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           1     inform the public about Ms. Rodell's termination?  



           2          A    No.  



           3          Q    Or about the reason for the termination?



           4          A    No, not in that meeting.  



           5          Q    When did that -- did that happen -- obviously 



           6     subsequent to that did you eventually have discussions 



           7     about that?



           8          A    Yes.  



           9          Q    Did you or -- did you inform the governor or 



          10     anybody in the governor's office about the decision to 



          11     terminate Ms. Rodell's employment before it was -- before 



          12     the -- before it was -- the vote was taken at the trustee 



          13     meeting?



          14          A    Before the vote was taken?  



          15          Q    Right.  



          16          A    No.



          17          Q    Okay.  Are you aware of anybody else in the 



          18     trustees communicating with the governor's office or 



          19     anybody in the executive branch during that executive 



          20     session about what was the -- the discussion regarding 



          21     Ms. Rodell's employment?



          22          A    I'm not aware of anyone, no.  



          23          Q    Did any -- during that executive session on the 



          24     second day when you were discussing the termination of 



          25     Ms. Rodell's employment, did other trustees express 
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           1     specific reasons for why her employment should be 



           2     terminated that you can recall, sitting here today?



           3          A    Yeah.  I said those earlier.



           4          Q    Anything else besides what you have already 



           5     testified to?



           6          A    No.  I mean, not that I recall.  There were 



           7     probably a lot more than what I said.  I just don't 



           8     remember all of them.



           9          Q    Did -- during that executive session, did -- was 



          10     there any discussion about the employee surveys other than 



          11     the 360-degree survey that had been taken of the APFC 



          12     employees over the prior year or two?



          13          A    The surveys using SurveyMonkey?  



          14          Q    No.  The other surveys.  There was, for example, 



          15     the best place to work award that they received -- that 



          16     APFC received in the summer of 2021.  Like, for example, 



          17     was that -- was that brought up or discussed at all?



          18          A    I don't recall.  



          19          Q    Did it factor into your evaluation at all that 



          20     you can recall?



          21          A    It did not factor into my evaluation.



          22          Q    Any particular reason why?



          23          A    Because I mean, I -- I like those surveys.  I 



          24     think they are really good for morale and to really, you 



          25     know, create a positive reputation for the organization; 
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           1     but when they are populated, they are populated with a 



           2     different purpose.  



           3          Q    What do you think the purpose of it is versus -- 



           4     as opposed to the 360-degree review?



           5          A    Well, those type of surveys are populated at the 



           6     purpose of winning an award.  A performance survey is more 



           7     associated with the nuts and bolts of what's really going 



           8     on in the organization.  



           9          Q    Did you solicit any input from any of the APFC, 



          10     Permanent Fund Corporation's, kind of third party, like, 



          11     investment advisors or investment investors -- or not 



          12     investors, but investment partners about their view of 



          13     Ms. Rodell's performance?



          14          A    No.  



          15          Q    Did you ever hear any concerns from any third 



          16     parties about -- other than members of the legislature or 



          17     the executive branch about Ms. Rodell's performance?



          18          A    No.  



          19          Q    Okay.  I'm going to give you what we are going 



          20     to mark as Exhibit 13.  



          21               (Exhibit No. 13 marked.)



          22     BY MR. SLOTTEE:



          23          Q    Okay.  So this is an email string.  They are all 



          24     dated December 7th between -- it's between yourself and 



          25     Craig Richards, December 7, 2021.  
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           1          A    Yes.  



           2          Q    And looks like you are attaching and sending 



           3     to -- at least the top line of the email is the weighted 



           4     average results.  



           5          A    Yes.  



           6          Q    And when you say "weighted average results," 



           7     what do you mean by that?



           8          A    I mean it's the average of the total that 



           9     responded.  



          10          Q    What do you mean by "weighted average," though?



          11          A    Okay.  So for example, if you look at advocacy 



          12     and external relations in regard to the board, if only 



          13     four responded and each one of them provided a different 



          14     number, the weighted average of the four could -- could 



          15     potentially -- it just shows the statistics of the 



          16     numbers.



          17          Q    Okay.  How much did this -- these kind of -- 



          18     these scores, the weighted average scores, did you 



          19     consider these in making your decision to vote in favor of 



          20     terminating Ms. Rodell's employment?



          21          A    No.  



          22          Q    Why not?



          23          A    Well, actually, let me correct myself.  I 



          24     considered them.  Okay.  Like I considered mostly like the 



          25     investments -- I looked at all of them.  I considered all 
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           1     of them, but I focused more of my opinion based on the 



           2     comments because these are just numbers.  They -- they 



           3     tell a part of the story, but they don't tell the whole 



           4     story. 



           5          Q    Was there discussion in the executive session 



           6     about these numbers?  Like for example, that the average 



           7     overall was, what, 3.6 overall average, which is between, 



           8     at least according to the scoring rubric at the bottom, 



           9     between meets most expectations and meets all 



          10     expectations?



          11          A    I think that the 3.6 was mentioned, but it was 



          12     not -- the numbers were not a big part of the conversation 



          13     at all, at least not that I recall.  The conversation was 



          14     more about what I said earlier, the experiences, the 



          15     historical performance, et cetera.  



          16          Q    Okay.  Did Ms. -- did Mr. Richards ever either 



          17     ask you either by voice, text or email to take any 



          18     particular approach in terms of filling out the survey or 



          19     adding any comments to the survey?



          20          A    No.  



          21          Q    Have you heard of anybody -- from any other 



          22     trustees that Mr. Richards asked them to do that, as well?



          23          A    No.  



          24          Q    Not as well, but asked them to do that?



          25          A    No.  
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           1          Q    So after the vote was taken to terminate 



           2     Ms. Rodell's employment -- so this was in public session 



           3     after executive session -- the formal vote is taken, were 



           4     you part of any direction being given to APFC in regards 



           5     to what they should do next in terms of turning off 



           6     Ms. Rodell's access as to IT, to emails, et cetera?



           7          A    No.  



           8          Q    From your point of view and understanding 



           9     that -- was there -- in your view, was there a board 



          10     consensus as to why Ms. Rodell's employment should be 



          11     terminated or did each individual trustee express a 



          12     separate reason for why they would want to terminate her 



          13     employment?



          14          A    Well, I can't get inside each of their heads.



          15          Q    Going off of what they said.  



          16          A    Yeah.  Because -- but my takeaway was that each 



          17     of the five trustees had different reasons.  



          18          Q    And then Bill Moran was the one trustee that 



          19     voted against termination?



          20          A    Yes.



          21          Q    Did he express any reasons why for why he was 



          22     voting against termination?



          23          A    Yeah.  Let's see.  He -- he thought -- he just 



          24     thought Angela overall did a good job.  He recognized that 



          25     she had problems.  He was surprisingly the one that had a 
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           1     large influence on me when he said she was never going to 



           2     change in regard to her management style.  But his 



           3     comments overall about Angela -- I mean, he listened.  He 



           4     was quiet most of the time, but, yeah, I mean, he was -- 



           5     he was positive.  



           6          Q    Why did his comments that she was never going to 



           7     change have an influence on you?



           8          A    Because I was focused on the future, like the 



           9     next year.  And as I had said before, I really -- I really 



          10     desired a high-performing team where there wasn't the 



          11     conflict with the investments group, investments and 



          12     organizations.  I wanted everyone to be cohesive and 



          13     working together.  And I know it's possible because I 



          14     manage the staff that manage 53 billion dollars.  Okay.  



          15     That's not that much different in terms of management than 



          16     a 83-billion-dollar fund.  



          17               And the treasury department reports to me.  We 



          18     don't have any of these issues.  I was also on a couple of 



          19     other boards that were investment boards, and I didn't see 



          20     those issues on those other boards, either.  So to me this 



          21     was an anomaly.  



          22               And when Bill said she wasn't going to change, 



          23     that was -- that was hard for me to -- to continue to 



          24     support her.  And he -- he knows her longer than I do in 



          25     regard to her role as the ED.  
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           1          Q    Because he was serving as a trustee before you 



           2     were serving as a trustee, correct?



           3          A    Yeah.  



           4          Q    What is your kind of best recollection as to the 



           5     primary separate reason of each trustee for voting in 



           6     favor of terminating Ms. Rodell's employment?  We can just 



           7     go trustee by trustee, if that's easier.  



           8               So Trustee Feige. 



           9          A    Trustee Feige -- I think Trustee Feige didn't 



          10     like the way the meetings were run.  She felt there was 



          11     not enough time for collaboration and discussion amongst 



          12     the trustees.  She thought it was planned that way.  She 



          13     thought -- I don't like to say what other people think.  I 



          14     mean, this is -- 



          15          Q    To the extent you recall the expressed reasons.  



          16          A    Yeah.  I think that she felt that Angela wasn't 



          17     transparent.  That's what I recall.  



          18          Q    Okay.  And what about Trustee Schutt?



          19          A    What I recall him saying was in regard to his 



          20     concerns about the op ed relating to the government 



          21     shutdown.  That's what I recall.  



          22          Q    Trustee Richards?



          23          A    He was concerned that she wasn't -- wasn't 



          24     adhering to, like, the board direction, that she kind of 



          25     had her own agenda.
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           1          Q    Did he express a view of -- what his view of her 



           2     agenda was?



           3          A    No, not that I recall.  



           4          Q    Okay.  Did he express kind of -- identify 



           5     specific board directives that he felt like she was not 



           6     advancing?



           7          A    He may have.  I don't remember them.



           8          Q    Anything else from Trustee Richards that you can 



           9     recall?



          10          A    No.  



          11          Q    Did you see any evidence of, like, personal 



          12     animus between Trustee Richards and Angela, going either 



          13     way?



          14          A    Yes.



          15          Q    What type of personal animus did you see?



          16          A    I think they just had a personality conflict.  I 



          17     don't know.  You know, as Angela's friend, she shared with 



          18     me some of the concerns she had, I guess, just about Craig 



          19     and the way he treated her.



          20          Q    What would those be?



          21          A    I didn't see them, so it's hard for me to say. 



          22          Q    What did Ms. Rodell say they were?



          23          A    I'm thinking.  Okay.  I'm trying to remember.  I 



          24     think I remember Angela saying that he just -- he just 



          25     wasn't very nice.  He just wasn't very nice to her.
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           1          Q    Did you see any instances of unprofessional 



           2     conduct either from Mr. Richards to Ms. Rodell or vice 



           3     versa, Ms. Rodell to Mr. Richards?



           4          A    You know, it was just -- it's really hard to 



           5     pinpoint.  It was just stressful.  There was tension.  And 



           6     you could feel it in the room.  You know, he -- he was 



           7     motivated initially to, when I first kind of came on the 



           8     board, to open up an office in Anchorage.  And she -- she 



           9     didn't really support that.  And I think Craig felt like 



          10     when she put together the numbers to -- to quantify how 



          11     much it would cost, I -- I think he didn't feel like they 



          12     were realistic numbers.  And that may have been an example 



          13     of her own agenda.



          14          Q    Did you ever see an instance in which 



          15     Mr. Richards told her to "shut up"?



          16          A    Shut up?  



          17          Q    (Nods head.)  



          18          A    No.  Would that have been in a board meeting?  I 



          19     mean, I don't remember that.  



          20               MR. PTACIN:  You don't ask questions.  



          21               THE WITNESS:  Sorry.  Sorry.  



          22               MR. PTACIN:  It's okay.  



          23               MS. LEEAH:  Inquiring minds.  



          24               THE WITNESS:  I'm sorry.



          25     BY MR. SLOTTEE:
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           1          Q    Let's see.  Which trustee -- Trustee Rieger, do 



           2     you recall any specific comments from him?



           3          A    Yeah.  Trustee Rieger -- Trustee Rieger made a 



           4     comment that based on the discussions that we were having 



           5     in executive session that he could see that there was a 



           6     lack of confidence in Angela and from -- you know, several 



           7     of the trustees, and because -- and he just believed that 



           8     a board really couldn't continue with that executive 



           9     director with that lack of confidence.  Again, I'm 



          10     paraphrasing, you know.  I'm trying to remember the high 



          11     level points.  



          12          Q    So there are two commissioners serving on the 



          13     Board of Trustees, right?



          14          A    Uh-huh.



          15          Q    Did the fact that there is two commissioners -- 



          16     the fact that you don't want to be foreseen as diverging 



          17     in your votes, that you want to try to vote as a block; 



          18     did that factor in at all?



          19          A    No.  Corri and I have voted different ways.  Not 



          20     on that issue, but on other issues, so.  Yeah, no.  We are 



          21     both very independent in our thinking.



          22          Q    What is your general view of the effectiveness 



          23     of at least the stated policy in the APFC's governance 



          24     manual about evaluating the executive director?  You see 



          25     ways to improve it, to make it better?  Do you think it is 
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           1     an effective method of evaluation or is there a different 



           2     approach that you think would be better?



           3          A    I think it's a guideline, and I think the 



           4     guideline is very typical and standard based on other 



           5     policies I've seen.  And it's pretty basic, you know.



           6               MR. SLOTTEE:  Can we take just a quick break.  I 



           7     want to give Mr. Trickey a call.  



           8               (A break was taken.)



           9     BY MR. SLOTTEE:



          10          Q    Commissioner Mahoney, would it be fair to say 



          11     that the trustees did not give any consideration to what 



          12     the public would think about an immediate termination of 



          13     Ms. Rodell without a public explanation of the reasons at 



          14     the time the termination decision was being made?



          15          A    You know, it wasn't discussed in the executive 



          16     session, and we -- we do employ a communications director, 



          17     Paulynn.  And so after the fact, Paulynn developed a 



          18     statement, and it was released to the public.  I don't 



          19     recall -- I think it just said -- I don't recall the 



          20     details of it, but that's what was released.



          21          Q    Was that statement kind of run through the board 



          22     for approval or was that -- 



          23          A    Yes, after the fact, yeah.



          24          Q    All right.  I mean, were you surprised at the 



          25     reaction to the termination?
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           1          A    The reaction of who?  



           2          Q    Public reaction or, I guess, maybe the 



           3     legislative reaction to the termination.  



           4          A    Yes.



           5          Q    Why were you surprised?



           6          A    I -- you know, I -- I guess I just hadn't 



           7     thought about it.  I wasn't focused on that.  I was 



           8     focused -- focused on what was in front of me.  



           9          Q    Okay.  So I mean, sitting here today and kind of 



          10     looking back, is there something that you would want to 



          11     have done differently regarding the process that either -- 



          12     that led to the termination of Ms. Rodell's employment or 



          13     subsequent to that?



          14          A    What should we have done different?  I haven't 



          15     thought about that, either.  Okay.  So that's why I'm 



          16     thinking on the spot.  This kind of matter is extremely 



          17     uncomfortable, no matter what process you have in place.  



          18     So it was -- it was going to be difficult, and it was 



          19     difficult.  



          20               In hindsight, would I have done anything 



          21     different?  You know, there is always little things, I 



          22     guess, you can improve on, but would it have changed the 



          23     outcome?  You know, I'm talking about the process.  



          24          Q    Uh-huh.  



          25          A    The outcome wouldn't have changed.  I don't -- I 
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           1     know the outcome wouldn't have changed.  



           2          Q    I mean, sitting here today, do you think the 



           3     outcome was still the correct decision?



           4          A    Yes, especially her closing words.  



           5          Q    Oh, after you -- after she was told that she was 



           6     being terminated, her reaction to that? 



           7          A    Yeah.  I think all the trustees were very taken 



           8     aback at that, and it probably validated their decisions.  



           9               MR. SLOTTEE:  Okay.  No further questions.  



          10               MR. PTACIN:  Great.  



          11               MR. SLOTTEE:  Thank you very much, Commissioner.  



          12     Appreciate your time.  



          13               (Proceedings adjourned at 11:50 a.m.)



          14               (Signature reserved.)
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